
The YouTube channel "City ofFranklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 3, 2024 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance.

B. 1.
2.

Citizen Comment Period.
A Proclamation in Recognition of Chief of Police Richard P. Oliva.

C. Approval of Minutes: Regular Common Council Meeting of December 19, 2023.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational.

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. Updates to the ROC Ballpark Commons Noise Solutions and Enchant Christmas.
2. A Resolution Authorizing the Installation of a Fence Within the 30 Foot Planting

Strip Plat Restriction, Upon Lot 2 in Southwood East Addition No. 2 Subdivision
(4107 West Bamwood Court) (Mark Anhalt, Applicant).

3. A Resolution Conditionally Approving a 1 lot Certified Survey Map, being a
redivision of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 8318, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey
Map No. 6313, and Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 5401 and Lands all being
part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10, Town 5 North, Range
21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin (by Poths
General LLC, Applicant, Initech LLC, Property Owner) (approximately 7154 South
76th Street).

4. An Ordinance to amend Section 15-3.0447 of the Unified Development Ordinance
Planned Development District No. 42 (Poths General) to amend landscaping
requirements as it pertains to the quantity of plantings required (Poths General LLC,
Applicant) (at approximately 7154 South 76th Street).

5. A Resolution to amend Resolution Nos. 88-3175, 95-4217, 99-4875, 99-4933, 2004-
5733 (not recorded), 2004-5736, and 2015-7074 imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a Special Use Amendment for properties located at 6381, 6411,
6455 and 6421 South 108th Street to allow for construction of a 15,360 square foot
expansion of the Hiller Ford parts warehouse building and associated site paving
modifications upon property located at 6455 South 108th Street (Hiller Ford, Inc. and
Dealership Properties, Inc., Applicants).



Common Council Meeting Agenda
January 3, 2024
Page2

6. Motion to approve from the Director of Health and Human Services to accept the
2024 Division ofPublic Health Consolidated Grant Contracts.

7. Motion to approve from the Director of Health and Human Services to sign the
Medical College of Wisconsin affiliation agreement to host a volunteer student intern
in 2024.

8. Motion to approve from the Director of Health and Human Services to accept the
2024 Strategic Prevention Framework - Partnerships for Success Grant contract.

9. A Resolution to Execute S. 116th Street Trail Project Change Order No. 5 to GRAEF
USA, INC. to Prepare a Phase 2.5 Hazardous Materials Investigation for $40,000.

10. An Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an Ordinance Adopting the 2024
Annual Budgets for the Capital Outlay Fund to carryforward $234,700 of unused
2023 Fire Department building improvement appropriations.

11. An Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance Adopting the 2023
Annual Budgets for the General Fund to move $11,578.38 of Unrestricted
Contingency Appropriations to Fire Department Auto Maintenance Appropriations.

12. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance Adopting the 2023
Annual Budgets for the Capital Improvement Fund to Provide Additional $43,500
Appropriations for the School Traffic Light Project.

13. Authorize Promotion and Wage Adjustment for Marion Eeks to Principal Planner
(Grade Level 9; Hourly Rate of $35) - Account 01-0621-5111.

14. Request Council Approval of an Updated Job Description for the Administrative
Assistant Position, Formally the Secretary Position.

15. Request Council Approval of an Updated Job Description for the Permit Licensing
Specialist Position, Formally the Administrative Clerk Position.

16. Schedule Committee of the Whole Meeting for January 8, 2024 or such other date as
the Common Council otherwise determines is appropriate.

17. Evaluation and Final Selection of Proposed Tax Assessment Services. The Common
Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(e), Considering the
Deliberating or Negotiating the Purchasing of Public Properties, the Investing of
Public Funds, or Conducting Other Specified Public Business, Whenever Competitive
or Bargaining Reasons Require a Closed Session.

18. Confirmation of the Appointment of Shirley Roberts as Director of Clerk Services.
The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 19.85(1)(c)
and (f), to consider employment, promotion, compensation, or performance
evaluation data of a public employee over which the Common Council has
jurisdiction or exercises responsibility and to consider financial, social, or personal
histories of specific persons which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have
substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to in such
histories and may re-enter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

H. Licenses and Permits: License Committee Meeting of January 3, 2024.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
January 3, 2024
Page 3

J. Adjournment.

Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available mn the Common Council Meeting Packet on the City of Franklin
website www franklmnw1 gov

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mdrv1duals through appropriate aids and services
For additional 1formation, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS:

January 16
January 19
February 6
February 8
February 20

Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission
Common Council Meeting

6:30p.m.
6:00p.m.
6:30p.m.
6:00p.m.
6:30p.m.



BLANK PAGE



€it of 1franklin
to(amation

- ->
A PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF CHIEF OF POLICE RICHARD P. OLIVA

WHEREAS, Richard P. Oliva was hired by the City of Franklin to become and became the Chief of Police on May 17,
2005; Richard P. "Rick" Oliva previously served in the City of Milwaukee Police Department commencing in July 1978,
serving many positions and duties, including, but not limited to Patrol Officer, Patrol Sergeant, District Shift Commander,
Patrol Support Division Lieutenant, Patrol Support Division Captain and District Station Captain, serving the City of
Milwaukee for nearly 27 years; and

WHEREAS, in addition to his substantial raising the levels experience, Chief Oliva also endeavored to add
substantial educational credits to his service, including obtaining a Bachelor's Degree in Criminal Justice from the University
of Wisconsin-Milwaukee in 1982, a Master's Degree in Public Administration from the University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee in
1991, and Chief Oliva received a Certificate of Completion from the FBI National Academy in 1996, all supporting and
enhancing his innate leadership skills and dedication; and

WHEREAS, Chief Oliva attained many accomplishments throughout his career, including, but not limited to receiving
the Wisconsin Law Enforcement Journal's Distinguished Service Award in 1993, being a founding member of the Midwest
Gang Crime Investigators Association, being a member of the Governor's Gang Task Force which successfully implemented
first ever State laws specifically addressing gang crime, approved, directed and implemented hours and hours of training for
specialized units, and enhanced collaboration between the Police Department and citizens as an active member of the
Community Safety Coalition while serving the City of Milwaukee; and

WHEREAS, throughout Chief Oliva's term of leadership in the City of Franklin, the Franklin Police Department has
set a high level of engagement with Community outreach and Community involvement, with many ongoing programs
provided by the Franklin Police Department, such as the Franklin Neighborhood Watch, and providing safety education
information and recommendations to schools, church congregations and businesses in the City, and others in the
Community, in addition to the Franklin Police Department working cooperatively and proactively with other area Police
Departments to protect the public health, safety and welfare; and

WHEREAS, the leadership of Chief Oliva is appropriately summarized in the Franklin Police Department Mission
Statement: "Providing high-quality service with integrity and honor", and the Franklin Police Department Vision Statement:
"To be a model of professionalism and efficiency in the law enforcement community, reduce crime, enhance safety, and
improve the quality of life in our community"; and

WHEREAS, while Chief Oliva continues to provide his substantial services to all as of the date hereof, and the Chief
having worked to ensure continuing Command Staff that will carry on the Mission and Vision of the Department, after over
45 years of service, including his last over 18 years with the City of Franklin, Chief of Police Richard P. Oliva is going to retire
from his position on January 2, 2024; and

WHEREAS, Rick Oliva is a one of a kind human being, for the good of all.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, that I, John R. Nelson, Mayor of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin,
on behalf of all of the Citizens of Franklin, the staff of City government, and all of those public officials and staff who know
you and worked with you, and all of the People that you have served, hereby wish you Good Luck and Godspeed, Rick.

Presented to the City of Franklin Common Council this 19th Day of December, 2023.



BLANK PAGE



ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

MINUTES
DECEMBER 5, 2023

MAYORAL
APPOINTMENTS

A.

B.l.

C.

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

DECEMBER 19, 2023
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Franklin Common Council was held on
December 19, 2023, and was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor
John R. Nelson in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W.
Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were
present: Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderman Yousef Hasan,
Alderwoman Courtney Day, Alderman Mike Barber, and Alderman
Jason Craig. Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann was not present. Also
in attendance were Director of Administration Kelly Hersh, City
Engineer Glen Morrow, City Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski, City
Clerk Karen Kastenson and Deputy City Clerk Shirley Roberts.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:32 p.m. and was closed at
6:38p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the Common
Council meeting of December 5, 2023, as presented. Seconded by
Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to confirm the following Mayoral
appointments of:

1. Hotel/Motel Industry Member: Lance A. Schaefer, Everest
Hospitality, LLC, 6901 S. 76th St., Ald. Dist. 2-Tourism
Commission for a I-year term expiring 12/31/2024.

2. Barbara Wesener, 7479 Carter Circle S., Ald. Dist. 5-Tourism
Commission for a I-year term expiring 12/31/2024.

3. Edward Holpfer, 8058 S. 77th Street, Ald. Dist. I-Tourism
Commission for a I-year term expiring 12/31/2024.

4. Mark Wylie, 7468 Carter Circle S., Ald. Dist. 5-Tourism
Commission for a I-year term expiring 12/31/2024.

5. Jeffrey Kuderski, 8135 W. High St., Ald. Dist. 1-Tourism
Commission for a I-year term expiring 12/31/2024.

Seconded by Alderwoman Day. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to confirm the appointments of Election
Inspectors and Alternates as submitted for 2024-2025.

Seconded by Alderwoman Day. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.



Common Council Meeting
December 19, 2023
Page 2

UPDATE TO NOISE G.l.
ISSUES AT THE ROC
BALLPARK
COMMONS&
ENCHANT
CHRISTMAS

UPDATE DOR G.2.
CONCERNS

SANITARY SEWER & G.3.
WATER SYSTEMS
FACILITIES IMPACT
FEES AMENDMENT

RES. 2023-8070 G.4.
SPECIAL USE
AMENDMENT AT 7407
S. 27T ST., MASTER
HALCO, INC.,
APPLICANT, PLATT
CONSTRUCTION INC.,
OWNER

ORD. 2023-2572 G.5.
AMEND UDO AT
TABLE 15-3.0603 FOR

Mayor to provide an update on the solutions to noise issues at the
ROC Ballpark Commons. Laura Nelson with Engage Franklin
provided an update on Enchant Christmas.

Wisconsin State Representative Chuck Wichgers provided an update
on Department ofRevenue Concerns.

Alderman Barber moved to accept the Public Facilities Needs
Assessment and Impact Fee Study draft for Sanitary Sewer System
Facilities and Water System Facilities, with any changes the Council
deems appropriate and direct that a Public Hearing be held on
January 16, 2024 to consider input and adopt a revised Impact Fee
Ordinance. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderwoman Day moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8070, A
RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE
AMENDMENT FOR A FENCE WAREHOUSE, DISTRIBUTION,
AND FABRICATION BUSINESS USE WITH OUTDOOR
STORAGE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7407 SOUTH 27TH
STREET (BY MASTER-HALDCO, INC. APPLICANT, PLATT
CONSTRUCTION INC., PROPERTY OWNER) and to include an
additional barrier or slats within the fence on the south side.
Seconded by Alderman Craig. On roll call, Alderman Craig and
Alderwoman Day voted Aye, Alderman Barber, Alderman Hasan and
AldermanHolpfer votedNo, Motion failed (2-3-1).

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8070, A
RESOLUTION FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE
AMENDMENT FOR A FENCE WAREHOUSE, DISTRIBUTION,
AND FABRICATION BUSINESS USE WITH OUTDOOR
STORAGE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7407 SOUTH 27TH
STREET (BY MASTER-HALDCO, INC. APPLICANT, PLATT
CONSTRUCTION INC., PROPERTY OWNER. Seconded by
Alderman Hasan. On roll call, Alderman Barber, Alderman Hasan
and Alderman Holpfer voted Aye, Alderman Craig and Alderwoman
Day votedNo. Motion carried (3-2-1 ).

Alderman Craig moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-2572, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE TEXT AT TABLE 15-3.0603 STANDARD



Common Council Meeting
December 19, 2023
Page 3

OFFICES & CLINICS
OF CHIROPRACTORS,
ELEAH GLANDER,
GLANDER FAMILY
CHIROPRACTIC,
APPLICANT

RES. 2023-8071 G.6.
SPECIAL USE FOR
CHIROPRACTIC
OFFICE AT 11217 W.
FOREST HOME AVE.
ELEAH GLANDER,
GLANDER FAMILY
CHIROPRACTIC,
APPLICANT,
ANDERSON
COMMERCIAL GRP,
OWNER

RES. 2023-8072 G.7.
AMEND RES. NO.
2022-7873 CONDO
COMPLEX DEV. AT
12000 W. LOOMIS RD.,
BEAR DEV., LLC,
APPLICANT,
BOOMTOWN, LLC,
OWNER

RES. 2023-8073 G.8.
SPECIAL USE FOR
DRINKING PLACE AT
10064 W. LOOMIS RD.,
RANDY LARSON, ON
CLOUD WINE,
APPLICANT

RES. 2023-8074 G.9.
SPECIAL USE FOR
MEAT SMOKER
ENCLOSURE AND
OVERNIGHT FOOD
TRUCK PARKING AT

INDUSTRIAL CLASSIFICATION TITLE NO. 8041 "OFFICES
AND CLINICS OF CHIROPRACTORS" TO ALLOW SUCH USE
AS A SPECIAL USE IN THE M-I LIMITED INDUSTRIAL
DISTRICT (ELEAH GLANDER, GLANDER FAMILY
CHIROPRACTIC, APPLICANT). Seconded by Alderman Barber.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8071, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A
CHIROPRACTIC OFFICE AND SERVICES BUSINESS USE
UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 11217 WEST FOREST HOME
AVENUE (BY ELEAH GLANDER, GLANDER FAMILY
CHIROPRACTIC, APPLICANT, ACG ACQUISITIONS #10 LLC
(D/B/A ANDERSON COMMERCIAL GRP, PROPERTY OWNER)
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Craig moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8072, A
RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION NO. 2022-7873
IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE
APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A CONDOMINIUM
COMPLEX DEVELOPMENT USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED
AT 12000 WEST LOOMIS ROAD (STEPHEN R. MILLS,
PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT,
BOOMTOWN, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER). Seconded by
AldermanHolpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Craig moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8073, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A DRINKING
PLACE (WITHOUT DRIVE-THROUGH FACILITIES) USE UPON
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 10064 W. LOOMIS ROAD, (RANDY
LARSON, ON CLOUD WINE, APPLICANT). Seconded by
Alderman Barber. On roll call, Alderman Craig, Alderman Barber,
Alderwoman Day, Alderman Holpfer all voted Aye; Alderman Hasan
Abstained, motion carried (4-0-1-1).

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8074, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A MEAT
SMOKER ENCLOSURE AND OVERNIGHT FOOD TRUCK
PARKING UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7740 S LOVERS
LANE RD, SUITE 400. (BY THOMAS GREEN, JR., MR. GREENS



Common Council Meeting
December 19, 2023
Page 4

7740 S LOVERS LANE
RD., SUITE 400,
THOMAS GREEN, JR.,
MR. GREENS BBQ,
APPLICANT,
FRANKLIN
WYNDHAM LLC,
OWNER

RES. 2023-8075 G.10.
SPECIAL USE FOR
LIQUOR, TOBACCO, &
MISC. RETAIL SALES
AT 7730 S. LOVERS
LANE RD.,
DHARMESH
GHELANI,AK
DEVELOPERS LLC,
APPLICANT,
FRANKLIN
WYNDHAM LLC,
OWNER

RES. 2023-8076 G.11.
CONSERVATION
EASEMENT AND CSM
AT 9410 S. 76TH
STREET AND 7520 W.
RYAN RD., ALEX
SCHELER, CARMA
LABORATORIES, INC,
APPLICANT AND
OWNER

RES. 2023-8077 G.12.
BUFFERYARD
EASEMENT AND CSM
AT 7520 W. RYAN RD.,
ALEX SCHELER,
CARMA
LABORATORIES, INC,
APPLICANT AND
OWNER

JOB DESCRIPTION G.13.
FOR PROBATIONARY

BBQ, APPLICANT/FRANKLIN WYNDHAM LLC, PROPERTY
OWNER). Seconded by Alderwoman Day. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Craig moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8075, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR LIQUOR,
TOBACCO, & MISC. RETAIL SALES UPON PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 7730 S. LOVERS LANE RD. (BY DHARMESH
GHELANI, AK DEVELOPERS LLC, APPLICANT/FRANKLIN
WYNDHAM LLC, PROPERTY OWNER). Seconded by
Alderwoman Day. On roll call, Alderman Holpfer, Alderwoman Day,
Alderman Barber, Alderman Craig all voted Aye; Alderman Hasan
Abstained, motion carried (4-0-1-1 ).

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8076, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT A CONSERVATION EASEMENT FOR AND AS PART
OF THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF A CERTIFIED SURVEY
MAP (BY ALEX SCHELER, CARMA LABORATORIES, INC,
APPLICANT, CARMA LABORATORIES, INC, PROPERTY
OWNER) (9410 S. 76TH STREET AND 7520 W. RYAN RD.).
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8077, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT A LANDSCAPE BUFFERYARD EASEMENT FOR AND
AS PART OF THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF A CERTIFIED
SURVEY MAP (BY ALEX SCHELER, CARMA
LABORATORIES, INC, APPLICANT, CARMA LABORATORIES,
INC, PROPERTY OWNER) (9410 S. 76TH STREET AND 7520 W.
RYAN RD.). Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to approve Job Description for the position
of Probationary Firefighter-EMT, being a temporary status position



Common Council Meeting
December 19, 2023
Page 5

FIREFIGHER-EMT

EMERGENCY G.14.
CONTINGENCY FOR
ENGINE REPAIRS TO
MED 112

BUDGET G.15.
MODIFICATION
AMENDMENT FROM
2023 CAPITAL
OUTLAY FUND TO
2024 BUDGET

AGREEMENT WITH G.16.
STANTEC
CONSULTING
SERVICES INC. FOR
QUARRY
MONITORING
SERVICES FOR 2024

RES. 2023-8078 G.17.
TEMPORARY
LIMITED EASEMENT
AT7979 W. RYAN RD.

WI DOT PATHWAY G.18.
PROJECT ON S.
LOVERS LANE RD.

RES. 2023-8079 G.19.
WATER STORAGE
TANK CONTRACT TO
LANDMARK

for the purposes of employee recruitment. Seconded by Alderman
Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to approve an emergency appropriation
through a budget amendment for engine repairs to MED 112,
transferring funds from 2023 General Fund- Unrestricted Contingency
(Account Number 01-0199-5499) to the Auto Maintenance operating
budget (Account 01-0221-5241) to fund the repairs in the amount of
$11,578.38, subject to an approval of a budget amendment being
brought back to the January 3, 2024 Common Council meeting.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve to authorize a Budget
Modification Amendment encumbering $234,700 from 2023 Capital
Outlay Fund (Account 41-0221-5822) to the 2024 budget to allow
project completion in 2024, subject to an approval of a budget
amendment being brought back to the January 3, 2024 Common
Council meeting. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. On roll call, all
voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the Quarry Monitoring
Professional Services Agreement for calendar year 2024 with
Attachment A containing service details and costs as provided by
Stantec Consulting Services Inc., and to authorize staff to enter into
said agreement not to exceed $55,000; subject to technical corrections
by staff and submittal of certificate of insurance. Seconded by
Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8078, A
RESOLUTION TO BE COMPENSATED $250.00 BY WISCONSIN
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR 50 SQUARE FEET
OF A TEMPORARY LIMITED EASEMENT AT 7979 W. RYAN
ROAD (TKN 896-9990-001). Seconded by Alderwoman Day. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to direct staff to work with WisDOT on a
pathway project as a rural section path on the west side from W. St.
Martins Road up to the Monastery entrance then the east side over the
bridge. Public meeting will be held on January 30, 2024 from 4-6
p.m. at the Franklin Public Library. Seconded by Alderman Hasan.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8079, A
RESOLUTION TO AWARD LANDMARK STRUCTURES I, LP A
CONTRACT TO CONSTRUCT ELEVATED WATER STORAGE
TANK (CONTRACT B) AT 8120 S. LOVERS LANE ROAD (TKN



Common Council Meeting
December 19, 2023
Page 6

STRUCTURES I, LP AT
8120 S. LOVERS LANE
RD.

RES. 2023-8080 G.20.
WATER
TRANSMISSION MAIN
CONTRACT TO
DORNER, INC. AT S.
LOVERS LANE

ORD. 2023-2573 G.21.
MODIFY MUNICIPAL
CODE SECTIONS 245-5
D & F DESIGNATING
PARKING ZONES AT
FOREST PARK
MIDDLE SCHOOL &
SOUTHWOOD GLEN
ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL

AGREEMENT WITH G.22.
GEOGRAPHIC
MARKETING
ADVANTAGE, LLC
FOR GIS SERVICES
FOR2024

JOB DESCRIPTION G.23.
FOR CLERK'S
DEPARTMENT
ADMINISTRATIVE
ASSISTANT

801-9986-000) IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,833,000. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8080, A
RESOLUTION TO AWARD DORNER, INC. A CONTRACT TO
CONSTRUCT WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN (CONTRACT A)
ALONG S. LOVERS LANE IN THE AMOUNT OF $840,366.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-2573, AN
ORDINANCE TO MODIFY THE MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION
245-5 D. (4) DESIGNATING NO PARKING ON SOUTH SIDE OF
W. FOREST HILL AVENUE IN THE VICINITY OF FOREST
PARK MIDDLE SCHOOL (8225 W. FOREST HILL AVENUE)
AND MODIFY THE MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 245-5 F.
DESIGNATING PARKING IN SCHOOL ZONES FOR BOTH
SIDES OF S. 35TH STREET IN THE VICINITY OF
SOUTHWOOD GLEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL (9090 S. 35TH
STREET). Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the agreement with Geographic
Marketing Advantage, LLC for Geographic Information System (GIS)
Support and Database Maintenance Services for 2024 and authorize
the Director of Administration to execute and administer the contract
effective January 1, 2024. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the updated Job Description for
the Administrative Assistant Position that was formally the Secretary
Position. Alderman Barber called for the question. Seconded by
Alderman Hasan. On roll call, Alderman Barber and Alderman Hasan
voted Aye, Alderman Craig, Alderwoman Day and Alderman Holpfer
voted No, motion failed (2-3-1 ).

Alderman Barber moved to approve the updated Job Description for
the Administrative Assistant Position that was formally the Secretary
Position. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On roll call, Alderman
Barber and Alderman Hasan voted Aye, Alderman Craig,
Alderwoman Day and Alderman Holpfer voted No, motion failed (2-
3-1 ).

Alderman Holpfer moved to table the updated Job Description for the
Administrative Assistant Position that was formally the Secretary



Common Council Meeting
December 19, 2023
Page 7

Position to the January 3, 2024 Common Council meeting with staff
bringing back the requested information regarding funding. Seconded
by Alderwoman Day. All voted Aye, except Alderman Barber.
Motion carried.

JOB DESCRIPTION
FOR CLERK'S
DEPARTMENT
PERMIT LICENSING
SPECIALIST

MODIFY457(b)
RETIREMENT
SAVINGS PLAN

ORD. 2023-2574
AMEND ORD. 2022
2521
2023 ANNUAL
BUDGET

G.24. Alderman Barber moved to approve the updated Job Description for
the Permit Licensing Specialist Position that was formally the
Administrative Clerk Position. Motion failed due to a lack of a
second.

Alderman Hasan moved to table the updated Job Description for the
Administrative Assistant Position that was formally the Secretary
Position to the January 3, 2024 Common Council meeting with staff
bringing back the requested information regarding funding. Seconded
by Alderwoman Day. On roll call, Alderman Craig, Alderwoman
Day, Alderman Hasan and Alderman Holpfer all voted Aye,
Alderman Barber voted No, Motion carried (4-1-1).

G.25. Alderman Holpfer moved to authorize a Resolution for Inclusion
Under the State of Wisconsin Deferred Compensation plan, allowing
staff to implement plans (including Roth options), terminate
contributions through AXA/Equitable. Seconded by Alderman
Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.26. Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-2574, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
THE GENERAL FUND AND CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND TO
PROVIDE CARRY FORWARD APPROPRIATIONS FROM 2022
FOR SPECIFICALLY IDENTIFIED PROJECTS IN THE AMOUNT
OF $323,187. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On roll call, all voted
Aye. Motion carried.

2024 PROPERTY AND G.27.
CASUALTY
INSURANCE
COVERAGE

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the Director of Administration
to renew and execute the City's casualty insurance plans with R&R
Insurance/League of Wisconsin Municipalities Mutual Insurance
(LWMMI), MPIC, Hanover, and ACE American Insurance Company
for 2024, as noted in the table above, for an estimated total annual
premium of $662,931, and to further authorize the payment of
premiums in accordance with or as required by said policy
documents. Seconded by Alderman Craig. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

2024 HIGHWAY
EQUIPMENT

G.28. Alderman Holpfer moved to authorize the Department of Public
Works staff to solicit equipment considered in the 2024 Highway
Equipment Replacement and Capital Outlay Funds. Seconded by



Common Council Meeting
December 19, 2023
Page 8

AGREEMENT WITH
UW-LA CROSSE FOR
HEALTH
DEPARTMENT
INTERN

PROMOTION OF
ASSOCIATE
PLANNER MARION
ECKS

2024 ANNUAL
MARKET
ADJUSTMENT

Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.29. Alderman Barber moved to approve the Director of Health and
Human Services to sign the University of Wisconsin La Crosse
affiliation agreement to host a volunteer student intern in 2024.
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.30. Alderman Barber moved to authorize the promotion and increase in
grade levels for Marion Eeks from Associate Planner Grade Level 7
($28.21/hr.) to Principal Planner Grade Level 9 ($35/hr.). The annual
increase is estimated at $5,553, with a yearly salary of $72,800.
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On roll call, Alderman Barber voted
Aye, Alderman Craig, Alderwoman Day, Alderman Hasan and
Alderman Holpfer voted No, motion failed.

Alderman Day moved to table the promotion and increase in grade
levels for Marion Eeks from Associate Planner Grade Level 7
($28.21/hr.) to Principal Planner Grade Level 9 ($35/hr.). The annual
increase is estimated at $5,553, with a yearly salary of $72,800 to the
January 3, 2024 Common Council meeting with staff bringing back
the requested information regarding funding. Seconded by
Alderwoman Craig. On roll call, Alderman Craig, Alderwoman Day,
Alderman Hasan and Alderman Holpfer all voted Aye, Alderman
Barber voted No, Motion carried (4-1-1 ).

G.31. Alderman Holpfer moved to approve a 2024 Annual Market
Adjustment to the Pay Ranges of the Compensation Plan and a
Market Adjustment to Wage and Salary Rates, both by 3%, along
with a Progress to Market Wage Adjustment, for non-represented
employees effective with the start of the pay period with a pay date of
January 12, 2024, and authorize Human Resources to incorporate the
new Salary Ranges into the Employee Handbook. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Alderman Barber to reconsider G.23, G.24 and G.30.
Motion died due to a lack of a second.

PROMOTION OF DPW G.33.
DEPUTY CLERK
ANDREA STORMOEN

AGREEMENT WITH G.32.

Alderman Barber moved to approve and adopt the newly created job
description for a Department of Public Works Deputy Clerk Position
and to Promote Andrea Stormoen into this new position as she has
been completing these duties for five or more years, as documented in
the attached memos, emails, appeal and job analysis questionnaire.
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the Director of Administration



Common Council Meeting
December 19, 2023
Page 9

CLEARGOV FOR
SOFTWARE

RES. 2023-8081
AGREEMENT WITH
JSA
ENVIRONMENTAL,
INC. FOR LANDFILL
MONITORING

to enter into an agreement with ClearGov, which includes a
Termination at Any Time Without Penalty Clause to lock in 2023
rates for software that would be implemented for the City by the 2025
Budget season or sooner. Seconded by Alderman Craig. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

G.34. Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8081, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT TO CONTINUE PROFESSIONAL
ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES TO MONITOR
COMPLIANCE AT THE METRO RECYCLING & DISPOSAL
FACILITY TO DECEMBER 31, 2024, WITH JSA
ENVIRONMENTAL, INC. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

ORD. 2023-2575 G.35.
AMEND ORD. 2022
2521 ADOPTING 2023
BUDGET FOR SEWER
FUND FOR
EQUIPMENT

RES. 2023-8082 G.36.
PURCHASE 2023
FORD F550

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-2575, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
THE SEWER FUND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL AUTO
EQUIPMENT APPROPRIATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE
PURCHASE OF A UTILITY VEHICLE IN THE AMOUNT OF
$59,784.50. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On roll call, all voted
Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8082, A
RESOLUTION TO PURCHASE A 2023 FORD F550 SUPER
CHASSIS XL V8 DIESEL WITH ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT
FROM HILLER FORD, INC. FOR $119,569.00 FROM THE
SEWER AND WATER UTILITIES. Seconded by Alderwoman Day.
On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Mayor Nelson took a recess at 9:43 p.m. Mayor Nelson reconvened
at 9:50 p.m.

CLOSED SESSION
PROPOSED TAX
ASSESSMENT
SERVICES

G.37. Alderman Barber moved, with regard to the Evaluation and
Recommendations by the Director of Administration for Proposed
Tax Assessment Services. The Common Council may enter closed
session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(e), Considering the
Deliberating or Negotiating the Purchasing of Public Properties, the
Investing of Public Funds, or Conducting Other Specified Public
Business, Whenever Competitive or Bargaining Reasons Require a
Closed Session, and to reenter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. On roll call, all voted
Aye. Motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
December 19, 2023
Page 10

MISCELLANEOUS
LICENSES

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

ADJOURNMENT

H.

I.

J.

Upon reentering open session at 10:59 p.m. No action taken.

Alderman Craig moved to approve the following licenses of the
License Committee Meeting ofDecember 19, 2023:

Grant 2023-24 Operator License to: Michael Anders, Tracey Deak,
Eric Johnson, and Meagan Kehoe.

Seconded by Alderwoman Day. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Craig moved to approve City vouchers with an ending date
of December 14, 2023, in the amount of $2,229,481.25, and payroll
dated December 15, 2023, in the amount of $490,029.56 and
payments of the various payroll deductions in the amount of
$248,060.79, plus City matching payments, and estimated payroll
dated December 29, 2023 in the amount of $468,000 and payments of
the various payroll deductions in the amount of $457,000, plus City
matching payments. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On roll call, all
voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adjourn the meeting of the Common
Council at 11 :02 p.m. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye;
motion carried.



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Updates to the ROC Ballpark Commons
Noise Solutions and Enchant Christmas

MEETING DATE
1- 32/

ITEM NUMBER

The Mayor will provide an update on the solutions to noise issues at the ROC Ballpark Commons. Laura
Nelson with Engage Franklin will provide an update on Enchant Christmas.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

As the Common Council may determine appropriate.

MAYOR - JRN



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

01/03/24

REPORTS & ARESOLUTIONAUTHORIZING THE ITEM NUMBER
INSTALLATIONOF A FENCE WITHIN THE

RECOMMENDATIONS 30 FOOT PLANTING STRIP PLAT
RESTRICTION, UPON LOT 2 IN l

SOUTHWOOD EAST ADDITIONNO.2 !\a
SUBDIVISION

(4107 WEST BARNWOOD COURT)
(MARKANHALT, APPLICANT) Aid. Dist. #4

At its December 21, 2023, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of the attached resolution. The vote was 4-0-2, four 'ayes', no 'noes' and two
absents.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2024-__, authorizing the installation of a fence
within the 30 foot planting strip plat restriction, upon lot 2 in Southwood East
Addition No. 2 subdivision.

Department of City Development: RM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 12-04-23)

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A FENCE
WITHIN THE 30 FOOT PLANTING STRIP PLAT RESTRICTION, UPON

LOT 2 IN SOUTHWOOD EAST ADDITION NO. 2 SUBDIVISION
(4107 WEST BARNWOOD COURT)

(MARK ANI-IALT, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, the Southwood East Addition No. 2 Subdivision Plat prohibits the
building of structures within the 30 foot "Planting Strip" described thereon; and

WHEREAS, Mark Anhalt having applied for a release of the 30 foot "Planting Strip"
easement restriction upon their property to the extent necessary to install a fence along the
south line of the property which abuts West Ryan Road and within the restricted area upon
the property located at 4107 West Barnwood Court, such property being zoned R-6 Suburban
Single-Family Residence District, bearing Tax Key No. 880-0028-000, is more particularly
described as follows:

Lot 2, in Block 22, in SOUTHWOOD EAST ADDITION NO. 2, being a
subdivision of a part of the Southwest 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the
Southwest 1/4 of Section 24, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin; and

WHEREAS, the 30 foot "Planting Strip" easement restriction upon the Final Plat for
Southwood East Addition No. 2 Subdivision and its accompanying restriction of the building
of structures is a restriction which was imposed by the Franklin Common Council in its
approval of the Final Plat; and

WHEREAS, Wis. Stats. § 236.293 provides in part that any restriction placed on
platted land by covenant, grant of easement or in any other manner, which was required by a
public body vests in the public body the right to enforce the restriction at law or in equity and
that the restriction may be released or waived in writing by the public body having the right
of enforcement; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the request for the release of
the 30 foot "Planting Strip" easement restriction only so as to allow for the subject fence
installation, and having considered the proposed location of and type of fence to be installed
upon the subject property in conjunction with existing and required landscaping on the
property, and that the proposed fence will not be readily visible from the adjoining highway
or create any adverse impact upon the aesthetic or buffering purposes of the landscape
bufferyard.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
Page 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the installation of proposed fence of the type and
specifications as described and only upon the location as set forth within the plans
accompanying the application of Mark Anhalt filed on August 7, 2023, be and the same is
hereby authorized and approved and that the "Planting Strip" easement restriction as it would
otherwise apply to such installation upon the subject property only, is hereby waived and
released.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the applicant shall further obtain all required
permit(s) for the installation of the subject fence and that the subject fence shall be installed
pursuant to such permit(s) within one year of the date hereof, or all approvals granted
hereunder shall be null and void.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same are hereby
directed to obtain the recording of this Resolution with the Office of the Register of Deeds
for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2024.

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST·

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of December 21, 2023

Fence and shed installation within planting strip

Item D.1.

RECOMMENDATION: City Development staff recommends denial of this request to allow for the
installation of a fence and a shed within the 30-foot Planting Strip upon Lot 2 of the Southwood East
Addition No. 2 Subdivision.

Project name:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Property Address/TKN:

Aldermanic District:

Zoning District:

Staff Planner:

Anhalt - Fence and shed installation within planting strip

Anhalt, Mark and Sheryl

Anhalt, Mark

4107 W. Barnwood Court/ 880 0021 000

District 4

R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Principal Planner

Project Description/Analysis
This request is to allow for a fence and shed within the 30 foot "Planting Strip" upon Lot 2 in Southwood
East Addition No. 2 Subdivision. The Southwood East Addition No. 2 Subdivision Final Plat was
approved by the Common Council on March 3, 1987 by Resolution No. 87-2848 and contains a 30 foot
Planting Strip" for all lots abutting West Ryan Road. The property owner is proposing to install a fence
and a shed within this area and would like release of the plat restriction.

The applicant is proposing a 6-foot high wood fence approximately 9 feet from the rear lot line, as well
as a shed (10 ft by 10 ft) approximately 17 feet from the rear lot line. Both structures would encroach
into the planting strip indicated on the plat. It's worth noting that these structures would also encroach
into the required 42-foot building setback from the Ryan Road right-of-way line.

The recorded plat has a note that prohibits structures "between the highway and the setback line" (see
below). Wisconsin Administrative Code Hy. 33.08(1) (now Trans 233) states that "provided that the
local unit of government shall allow no variances or exceptions for platted areas abutting state trunk
highways without prior approval of the commission", the commission is the Wisconsin Department of
Transportation (DOT). Therefore, the city cannot authorize the installation of this shed encroaching into
the 42-foot building setback without a variance from DOT, this restriction doesn't apply to fences.

• Minimu building setback requirements as required by Wisconsin
Administrative Code Hy 33.08. Said code states: "There shall be no
structures placed between the highway and the setback line."

The Subdivision Development Agreement for Southwood East Addition No. 2 required that the City
Engineer approve the design of the planting screen.



The applicant has provided a narrative and photos of the area and has indicated that the proposed fence
would adjoin pre-existing fences of adjacent lots (4101 and 4113 W Barnwood Court). Staff notes that
the majority of the existing encroachments have not been permitted by the City, with the followingexceptions:

• Lot 1 (4101 W Barnwood Ct.): Permit P020060985 issued in 2006 for a 6-foot privacy fence.
• Lot 3 (4113): Permit P020071541 issued in 2007 for a 6-foot high wood fence.
• Lot 9 (4219): Resolution 2014-7013 to authorize installation of a fence .

57'
l'l9"E

• z 4l "v ·m:::: , ' 9I "> ], • - l [ 1 3 i±
,oo, ., g[ooowsr E:vooossr 'E ,..... ., .. = ,•.••• ' %[- ms a .. ,..... " :

] l ?] ?] .il z I N88°21'19"E.
, z 00· z esoo' esoo· e~oo 10000 S7 11110• ',8500

85
549.07' ·oN e8°21'19''E ·o , • " 8 1 8

-cr - ; [ 2 {g""':"-;:-- ·g -- 59703' .., s osss{ j#A cs yg vs sos i sp%%if
O "'C K _..,_ 22 1_ ,~

0
_..,_ ?l:.1 -~- ...,,:

6 ·- . 5 ·- 4 - 0 3 Gl6 .,, ••.•.
a::.,..___ -,:JJ""---~~!!!J!l.l!~= ''BL

STR!C n~, ~1: ~'-.,-'-....,.,e'r-0
ftESTRICTIO N HO o .« Ji wo ACC

-----;;""".1• ., (st H "_1 o_ o_"l -~-:: s,.: RESTRICROAD ~ ~Q~ C 1' t10 • • • - " ~ O (SE£ ACSTIUCTION NO IIw. RYAN . c- .,-s?« ' r s %

If') ----~\~tf.. 11- -- 2
~ -------~---------c;_; -- 157.7d

-----~;:--__,;;,b 871.54'

-- / S 88°21't9"W.-sun,sw 1/4,SEC. 24-5-21

1029.24'

it;l s us wor cnos»
;T6.TF" Pl 6HE COOPO!f,,IATES:

---··--------- ----··---------

UNPLATTEO ~~~P§

Detail of the Southwood East Add. No. 2 plat.
Planting strip in green, setback line in red.

Note that the planting strip is located on platted lots 1 through 9 while the berm is located on the Ryan
Road right-of way. The white fence in the picture below is located near the right-of-way line. Staff
acknowledges that the proposed fence and shed would be slightly visible from Ryan Road.

i;; ~/
.,., //ii
,,..,:;: '// /

/// ",
t,

View of the berm on the north side of Ryan Road, from sidewalk looking west.
Photograph by City Development staff.
Site compliance

2



City Development staffvisited the site on November 6 and didn't notice any site compliance issues with
the subject lot.

Staff Recommendation:
City Development staff recommends denial of this request to allow for the installation of a fence and a
shed within the 30-foot Planting Strip upon Lot 2 of the Southwood East Addition No. 2 Subdivision.

Should the Plan Commission wish to recommend approval of this request, the city cannot approve the
proposed shed location without a variance from the Department of Transportation (DOT), only the
proposed fence could be approved without such variance. The attached resolution is only to authorize
the proposed fence, not the shed.

It's worth noting that staff would not object to the installation of the proposed structures outside the
planting strip provided compliance with required building setbacks and other provisions of the Unified
Development Ordinance (UDO).

3



0

E-sl"c:,
0

Nc:,
0

Nc:,
0

~
0

55 0
0

:.-
X

0 "'0 ::;;
c.5a..g
w
en

5
0..
(!).-o
CV)

Q)CV)
(.)....CV) C'CIN 0..0

~ D.-.---N.-



APPLICATION DATE: oa/0112023

Planning Department

Franklin9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132

(414) 425-4024 .,
franklinwi.gov W I s C 0 N s I N

MISCELLANEOUS APPLICATION
PROJECT INFORMATION [print legibly]

APPLICANT (FULL LEGAL NAMES] APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON]

NAME: Mark G. Anhalt NAME:

COMPANY: COMPANY:

MAILING ADDRESS: 4107 w. Bamwood Court MAILING ADDRESS:

CIT/STATE prankdin ZIP: 53132 CITY/STATE: ZIP:

PHONE: 414-423-8108 PHONE:

EMAIL ADDRESS: mganhalt@wi.rr.com EMAIL ADDRESS:

PROJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 4107 w. Bamwood Court TAX KEY NUMBER: 8B0-0021--000

PROPERTY OWNER: Mark and Sheryl Anhalt PHONE; 414-423-8108

MAILING ADDRESS 4107 W. Bamwood Court EMAIL ADDRESS:
mganhalt@wi.rr.com

CITY/STATE: Franklin ZIP: 53132 DATE OF COMPLETION:

APPLICATION MATERIALS
The following materials must be submitted with this applicationform, incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed.

0 This application form accurately filled out with signature or authorization letters (see below).
$125 Application fee payable to the Cityof Franklin

word Document Legal description for the subject property.
Three (3) Project Narratives
other informationas may be deemed appropriate for the request
D Email or flashdrive with all plans/submittal materials.

Submitta l of Application for review is not a gu arantee of approval.
Plan Commission, Community Developme nt Authori ty and/or Common Council review and approval may be required.

SIGNATURES
The applicant and property owner{s} hereby certify that: (1) all statements andother information submittedas part of this application are true and correct to the best
ofapplicant's and property owner{s}' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application; and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s) agree that anyapprovals based on representations made by them in this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently issued
buildingpermits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval. By executionof
this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City ofFranklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00
p.m. daily for the purpose of inspectionwhile the application is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even ifthe property has beenpostedagainst
trespassing pursuant to Wis. Stat §943.13.

[The applicant's signature must be from a Managing Member ifthe business is an LL, orfrom thePresident or Vie President if the business is a corporation. A signed
applicant's authorization letter moy beprovided in lieu of the applicant's signature below, and a signedproperty owner's authorization letter may be provided In lieu
of the property owner's signature[s] below. lfmore than one, all of the owners oftheproperty must sign this Application]

ii I, the applicant, certify that I have read the above page detailingthe requirements for Miscellaneous approval and submittals and understand
that incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed.

ZR .0, , .gut
NAME & TITLE: - DATE: NAME &TITLE: DATE:Mark G. Anhalt 08/07/2023 Mark G. Anhalt 08/07/2023
PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE: APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE:

NAME & TITLE: DATE: NAME & TITLE: DATE:



Project Narrative - 4107 W. Barnwood Court, Franklin, WI

Application for Release

I am applying for a release of the planting strip restriction so I can place a fence at the back of my property at 4107 W.
Barnwood Court. This fence would adjoin the pre-exiting fences of my neighbors at 4101 and 4113 W. Barnwood Court
(both neighbors have already signed release forms allowing me to attach my proposed fence to theirs at the back of my
property.

Additionally, I am requesting permission to place a 10'x10' shed in the southwest corner of my property, to be placed at
least 8' from my neighbors (4113) property line to the west of my property, and at least 8' from the rear of my
property/the "planting strip".

Key reasons for wanting to place a fence in my backyard include:

• With crime moving out from the city, a fence would a least slow down anyone attempting to access my property
from Ryan Road.

• As I also wish to place a shed and a garden in my backyard, a fence would slow down potential vandals as well as
wildlife which could damage my garden and/or shed.



Key reasons for wanting to place a shed in my backyard include:

• To make more room in my garage for vehicles by removing equipment (lawn mower, snowblower, rototiller, air
compressor, bicycles, etc.), tools (shovels, rakes, lawn roller, etc.) and other miscellaneous non-automotive items
(ex., bags of lawn fertilizer, mulch, etc.)

• Once removed from my garage, I will need an enclosed, lockable shed to protect the equipment and tools
detailed above.

Specific plans for the fence and shed.

• Current plans for the fence will be to install a 6' high wood fence, very similar to the fences already installed on
the adjacent properties to the East and West of my property. This fence will only be placed at the rear of my
property. I have no current plans to construct or adjoin my neighbor's fences near the front of my property.

o If available at a reasonable price, I may also consider a 6' high wood "like" fence made from weather
resistant materials to decrease the need for maintenance.

• Current plans are to have constructed on sight a 10' x 10" wooden sided shed. This shed will be painted to
match the front siding of my home at 4107 W. Barnwood Court.

Planting Strip/Berm

Finally, I would like to mention...the "planting strip"/berm has been in place for approximately 20 years, and there has
been absolutely zero (0) maintenance of this strip during this time. (see picture below). In fact, it is currently overgrown
with weeds and poplar trees. The City of Franklin initially promised a wall, similar to what was placed on the properties
adjacent to Rawson Road when that road was widened, but that obviously never happened.



I had originally (prior to the widening of Ryan Road) planted 30+ arborvitaes along the back of my property (see pictures
below) to act as a fence of sorts, which at the time the berm was constructed were each 4' to 6" high. However, when
the berm was constructed, the city saw fit to cut down most of my arborvitae across the back of my lot, which a city
representative later admitted was "probably unnecessary". The other picture below shows the two remaining arborvitae
which were not cut down. As you can see in relation to my neighbor's fence (to the East), these arborvitaes are now
between 15'- 20" tall. If all my arborvitae had been left in place, this would have greatly reduced (but not eliminated)
any need or desire for a fence at the rear of my property.



Finally, it is clear from the "Plat of Survey" both of my neighbor's fences lie well within the planting strip and building
setback line as established in 1989 (long before either fence or shed were contructed). Since both neighbors were given
permits to place their fences after the 1989 Plat of Survey, and my neighbor to the West was also given a permit for a
wood shed structure, it makes little sense to me to have my request for a release from the planting strip restriction to
erect a fence and shed of my own.



$5i@CIIRIE]
ra a tap. n- t »

Parcol Number:

880-0021-000

Property Information

Physical Address:

4107 BARNWOOD CTW

PR@ORM
£JMP#HENSE

453£5Mr 4gr1WA#t

Municipality:

Franklin, City of

Owner Name:

ANHALT. MARK

4107 W BARNWOOD CT

FRANKLIN, WI 53132

Neighborhood: 2414-Franklin

Legal Description:

SOUTHWOOD EAST ADO NO 2 BLK
22 LOT 2

Land Use:

Residential

Date of Inspection:

Property Photograph: Property Sketch:

Parcel Sketch and Site Map obtained from lhe County GIS

uilding Description: 880-0021-000- 1



Year Built: 1989 ExteriorWall: 04-AlumMnyl

Building Type/Style 01-Rancn Bedrooms. 3
Story Height 1 Full Baths 2

Grade. C+ HaHBath!I 0

COU/Overall Condition. Very Good RoomCount-4

I nterlor Condition· Same Basement Description: Full Basement
KitchenCondition. Average Heating· Air Conditioning- Same Duels

Bath Condition· Average Type of Fuel: Gas

Type of System· Warm Air

Square Footage lAttachments:

Finished Basement LivingArea· O Total LivingArea.
First Story 1,688 1,588

Attachment Description(s) Area.
33-Concrele Patio 168
33-Concrete Pat 144

13-AFG 483

Fealure Descript lon(s). Area:
22-Additional Fixture 1
05-Melal Fireplace 1

Permit/ Construction History:

Date of Permit; Permit Number; PermitAmount: Details of Permit,

5/6/2014 14-0926 $504 ACREPLACE

Ownership/ Sales History

SaleTyne.
Purchase Land and

Date of Sale; SaleDocument. Amount, Sale.Validly: Conveyance.Typos. Improvements
6/1/1993 5137.100 Valid land and
6/111998 S149.900 Valid Improvements

Land Data - Land Item 1

Land Class A•Resldential Land Sub-Class· A-Residential Primary Site

Pricing / Unit of Measure Gross Acreage: 0.273
Square Footage 11,892 Frontage·

Depth· Width

Land value' $66 700

Total Improvement Value' $279,400

Total Land Value· $66700

Total AssessedValue. $346 100



woe

l!:NGH'<Hl:ICA ...G

17620 W National Ave.
New Berlin, Wisconsin 53146
414 784 7971

OF SURVEY

SCALE 1" =_3_o_'__

, ..n~Y -/NO/CATES ELEVATIONS TO CITYorFRANKLIN DATUM

PLAT

CHARLES BAUCH- GINNY BREEST
AGENT:BARKER HOMES

FOR:

SUBURBAN SURVEYS & ENGINEERING, INC.

5 $ %201 0%%

100.00·

al
vcir !@d

1
d
3

J
I,...

11<3
I

!:
I
0

BLOCK 22

85.00'

56 00

11 1.,o
\

% 2
{J">· PROPOSEDlJHELLl/16

AS STAKED

RESIOENCE

W. RYAN ROAD
(ST H "JOO")

B'i.00 • [,so .s\

'5S,\
, GARAGE..

~ ----- ~~~~--==--r~
J

VACANT

Lot 2, Block 22, Southwood East Addition No. 2 , being a subdivision of l
a part of the SW and the SE; of the SW; of Section 24, '!'own 5 North,
Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. ,

em2 pg%e- • -t? ~I \'-~661 I
6 % 6,» ]

-===,,;'~=-===;====c;;=====j='=~C~U~/1~1/=====~r,===== S~,~- ,\ '2- \
~ 1 ~$?

Recommended yard grade: 155.1

CERTIFICATION
±EK ":21Rt3%3: %%,%%C8"83X48#8/52%:#5.12 8#

2%?A%EI45%8%7%A'%31/'82,%,2kZIV#S re«eo recs.ear
THIS SURVEY IS MADE FOR THE EXCLUSIVE USE OF THE PRESENT OWNERS OF THE PROPERTY.

$'%\#%188%R88.¥8%3R%FT8?%"E#5{# 3#GR PX! 9:E
ABOVE MAP WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCEPTABLE PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS AND
THAT THE INFORMATION CONTAINED THEREON IS, TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, INFORMA
TION AND BELIEF A TRUE AND ACCURATE REPRESENTATION THEREOF ..

DRAFTED BY GREG I,.. BARL(JN
_JOB NO 89 230



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution conditionally approving a 1 lot
Certified Survey Map, being a redivision of Lot
2, Certified Survey Map No. 8318, Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No. 6313, and Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No. 5401 and lands all

being part of the Northwest 1/4 of the
Northwest 1/4 of Section 10, Town 5 North,
Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County
of Milwaukee, State ofWisconsin (by Poths
General LLC, Applicant, Initech LLC,

Property Owner) (approximately 7154 South
76th Street)

MEETING
DATE

1/3/24

ITEM NUMBER

4.3.

Aid. Dist.

5

At their December 21, 2023, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of a 1 Lot Certified Survey Map, such map being a redivision of all of Lot 2,
Certified Survey Map No. 8318, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 6313, and
Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 5401 and lands all being part of the Northwest
1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of
Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin (By Poths General LLC,
Applicant) (Initech LLC, Property Owner) (approximately 7154 South 76 Street).
The vote was 4-0-2, four 'ayes', no 'noes' and two absent.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution 2024- , conditionally approving a 1 Lot Certified
Survey Map, such map being a redivision of all of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No.
8318, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 6313, and Outlot 1 of Certified Survey
Map No. 5401 and lands all being part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of
Section 10, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of
Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin (By Poths General LLC, Applicant) (lnitech LLC,
Property Owner) (approximately 7154 South 76th Street).

Department of City Development. NJF



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 1 LOT CERTIFIED
SURVEY MAP, BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 2, CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 8318,

OUTLOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 6313, AND OUTLOT 1 OF
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 5401 AND LANDS ALL BEING PART OF THE

NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 10,
TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF

MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN
(BY POTHS GENERAL LLC, APPLICANT, INITECH LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

(APPROXIMATLEY 7154 SOUTH 76TH STREET)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for approval
of a certified survey map, such map being a redivision of all of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No.
8318, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 6313, and Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No.
5401 and lands all being part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10, Town 5
North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, which
is bounded and described as follows:

Commencing at Northwest comer of said Northwest 1/4 of said Section 1 O; thence South
00°15'45" East along the West line of said Northwest 1/4 Section 596.70 feet to a point; thence
North 89°59'53" East 60.00 feet to the East line of South 76th Street (C.T.H. U) and the point of
beginning oflands described hereinafter; thence North 89°59'53" East along the South line of
Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 8318 a distance of 228.57 feet to the East line of said Lot 1;
thence North 00°00'07" West along said East line 68.60 feet to a point; thence North 89°59'53"
East along said East line 52.02 feet to a point; thence North 00%00'07" West along said East line
144.04 feet to a point; thence North 22%40'40" West along said East line 56.53 feet to the
Southeast corner of Parcel 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 4828; thence North 26°53'02" West
along the East line of said Parcel 3 a distance of 178.51 feet to a point; thence North 00%15'45"
West along said East line 100.00 feet to a point on the South line of West Rawson Avenue
(C.T.H. BB); thence North 89°2654" East along said South line 50.00 feet to the Northwest
corner of Parcel 4 of Certified Survey Map No. 4828; thence South 00°15'45" East along the
West line of said Parcel 4 a distance of 110.74 feet to a point; thence South 26°53'02" East along
said West line 110.74 feet to the South line of said Parcel 4; thence North 89°26'36" East along
said South line 169.93 feet to a point on the West line of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No.
5689; thence South 0008'22" East along said West line 40.00 feet to the South line of said
Parcel 4; thence North 89°26'36" East along said South line 90.53 feet to the West line of said
Parcel 4; thence South 00°15'45" East along said West line 275.00 feet to the South line of Parcel
2 of Certified Survey Map No. 4483; thence North 89°26'36" East along said South line 270.00
feet to the East line of said Parcel 2; thence North 00°15'45" West along said East line 225.00
feet to the Southwest comer of Certified Survey Map No. 6811; thence North 89°26'54" East
along the South line of said Certified Survey Map 458.68 feet to the West line of Phase VII
Westminster Condominiums; thence South 0011'53" East along said West line and the West



POTHS GENERAL LLC- CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2024----
Page 2

line of Dover Hill Addition No. 1 Subdivision 946.39 feet to the North line of Carter Grove
Condominium; thence South 89°28'54" West along said North line 869.44 feet to the Southeast
comer of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 5401; thence North 00°31'06" West along the
East line of said Parcel 1 a distance of 90.00 feet to the North line of said Parcel 1; thence South
89°28'54" West along said North line 111.56 feet to a point; thence North 62°22'32" West along
said North line 63.59 feet to a point; thence South 89°28'54" West along said North line 230.00
feet to a point on the East line of South 76th Street (C.T.H. U); thence North 00°15'45" West
along said East line 603.29 feet to the point of beginning.

Property located at approximately 7154 South 76th Street, bearing Tax Key Nos. 7569993012,
756 9993 016, and 756 9993 021, Poths General LLC, applicant; said certified survey map
having been reviewed by the City Plan Commission and the Plan Commission having
recommended approval thereof pursuant to certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such proposed
certified survey map is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Certified Survey Map submitted by Poths General LLC, as
described above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions:

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and made by
the applicant, prior to recording.

2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this
Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9 of the Municipal
Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-5.0110 of the Unified Development
Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development and building
permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such Code and
Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time.

3. Each and any easement shown on the Certified Survey Map shall be the subject of
separate written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the City of
Frankln Design Standards and Constructon Specificatons and such form and content as
may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or designee to further and
secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to the approval of the Common
Council, prior to the recording of the Certified Survey Map.

4. Poths General LLC, successors and assigns, and any developer of the Poths Genreal LLC
one ( 1) lot certified survey map project, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all
development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin,
including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, within 30 days of invoice for same.
Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development



POTHS GENERAL LLC -- CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2024
Page 3

Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the
general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

5. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Poths General LLC and the 1 lot
certified survey map project for the property located at approximately 7154 South 76th
Street: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules,
codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals,
permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed
and as presented for this approval.

6. The applicant shall provide a Conservation Easement for natural resources to be
protected, to be recorded with the CSM.

7. The applicant must resolve any technical corrections required by the Engineering or
Planning Department, or the City Attorney's Office prior to the recording of the Certified
Survey Map.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner,
Initech LLC, be and the same is hereby rejected without final approval and without any further
action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than one of the above conditions is or are not
met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of adoption of this Resolution.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions within
180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval, and
pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and procedures for the
recording of a certified survey map, the City Clerk is hereby directed to obtain the recording of
the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner, Initech LLC, with the Office of the Register of
Deeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 3rd
day of January, 2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this 3rd day of January, 2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:



POTHS GENERAL LLC - CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
Page 4

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --



Egar?
Franklin

w 1SC O N S I N

CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Item D.2., 3., and 4.

Meeting of December 21, 2023

Certified Survey Map, Planned Development District Amendment, and Site Plan

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of the Certified Survey Map,
Planned Development District Amendment, and Site Plan applications related to the Poths General
mixed-use development.

Project Name:

Project Address/Tax Key:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Aldermanic District:

Zoning District:

Staff Planner:

Poths General Certified Survey Map, Planned Development
District Amendment, and Site Plan

Approximately 7154 South 76 Street / 756 9993 012, 756 9993
016, and 756 9993 021

INITECH, LLC, A WISCONSIN LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY

Emily Cialdini, Land By Label

District 5

Planned Development District No. 42

Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate

Introduction/Background
Please note:

• Recommendations are underlined, n talcs and are included in the draft resolution.

The applicant has filed a Certified Survey Map, Planned Development District Amendment, and Site
Plan applications for the Poths General development for properties located at approximately 7154
South 76" Street.

Certified Survey Map (CSM)
The CSM combines the three properties listedbelow, which comprise of the Poths General development.
Currently these properties consist of the existing Orchard View Shopping Center and the two vacant
properties to the east.

Address Tax Key Approximate Acreage
7154 South 76 Street 756 9993 021 IO.IO
0 West Rawson Avenue 756 9993 016 3.59
0 West Rawson Avenue 756 9993 012 10.88

24.57

Planned Development District (POD) Amendment Rationale
The PDD Amendment has been filed as the proposed quantity of plantings does not meet UDO
standards as required by Table 15-5.0302 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).



Staff's interpretation of PDD No. 42 is that it requires compliance with all UDO landscape and site
plan requirements; however, the applicant has noted in their narrative that they disagree with this
interpretation. With that said, a PDD Amendment Application was submitted by the applicant to move
the project forward.

It can be noted that PDD No. 42 requires:

"The applicant shall submit a landscape plan, as defined in the Unified Development Ordinance
as part of the Certified Survey Map or Preliminary Plat submittal. Such landscape plan shall
depict a 30-foot wide landscape buffer where the site abuts residential zoning districts,
specifically R-6 as well as Planned Development Districts nos. 11 and 17, and excluding any
natural resource area."

The UDO defines Landscape as follows:

LANDSCAPE PLAN
(See Division 15-7.0301 of this Ordinance.)

Section 15-7.0301 of the UDO lists requirements and information to be included as part of a Landscape
Plan submittal; however, does not reference specific standards or Division 15-5.0300.

With that said, the PDD also requires that:

"The applicant shall be responsible for filing Site Plans and/or Special Uses consistent with all
regulations of the Unified Development Ordinance and Municipal Code, as may be amended, for
each individual lot resulting from the eventual Certified Survey Map or subdivision plat."

Site Plans are regulated by Division 15-7.0100. Below are two sections within this Division of the UDO
that reference Division 15-5.0300, which includes the quantity standards of Table 15-5.0302.

Section 15-7.0102H.
Required Landscaping and Landscape Bufferyards. Adverse effects of the proposed development
and activities upon adjoining residents or owners are minimized by design and installation of
landscape bufferyards to provide for appropriate screening, fencing, or landscaping as required
in Division 15-5.0300 of this Ordinance. Where required, a "Landscape Plan" meeting the
requirements set forth in Division 15-5.0300 has also been submitted for Plan Commission
review and approval.

Section 15-7.0103R.
"Landscape Plan" Required. Where landscaping as required in Division 15-5.0300 of this
Ordinance is to be installed on the site, a "Landscape Plan" meeting the requirements set forth in
Division 15-5.0300 of this Ordinance shall be submitted for Plan Commission review and
approval. An applicant may elect to only file a preliminary landscape plan generally depicting
the landscaping for the site at the time of Site Plan Review Application filing, with the later
submission of a Landscape Plan to be a condition of any final Application approval, except where
Department of City Development staff requires the filing of a Landscape Plan with the
Application or the Plan Commission requires the Landscape Plan submission during its review
of the Application, upon a determination that same is reasonably necessary in order to properly

2



review the visual impacts of the proposed development. Landscape Plans must be approved by
the Plan Commission.

Based upon these requirements for Site Plans, staff finds that Division 15-5.0300 must be adhered to or
the PDD amended to specifically state otherwise.

PDD Amendment
The proposed request would amend PDD No. 42 to revise landscaping requirements and to insert
language stating that the minimum quantity ofplantings to be provided, including in bufferyards, as part
of the Landscape Plan for PDD No. 42 shall be in conformance with the quantities shown in the provided
Landscape Plan.

The language within PDD No. 42 would also note that except for the minimum number of plantings
required within Table 15-5.0302, all other standards of Division 15-5.0300 of the UDO shall be met,
unless inconsistent with the quantities of plantings shown within the proposed Landscape Plan.

The exact language can be found in the attached draft ordinance and the quantities of plantings
provided is discussed further below under the Landscape Plan section of this report.

Note that this is being proposed as a Minor Amendment. Staff concurs that this should be a minor
amendment as it is not a change of use, exterior boundaries, or road network.

Site Plan
The proposed site plan generally consists of the following:

• apartments including a clubhouse, swimming pool, and leasing center and management offices;
• a 50-key boutique hotel with commercial tenant space;
• retail, restaurant, and commercial uses;
• the existing Harry's Ace Hardware; and
• a public square that includes a food truck plaza, pavilion, splash pad, ice-skating rink,

farmers/winter holiday market, and public restrooms

The site plan also includes associated parking, landscaping, trails/walkways, and a protected
conservation area. The applicant has provided a detailed project narrative, site and development plans, a
storm water management plan memo, and a Traffic Impact Analysis.

PDD No. 42 specifically permits the multi-family residential buildings, the hotel, and the hardware
store. Other commercial uses may be permitted, within the ground floor of Buildings A and B, as
allowed within the B-3 Community Business District. Buildings over four stories or 60-feet in height
require Special Use approval. The proposed buildings are four stories and under 60-feet, so a Special
Use is not needed.

It should also be noted that PDD No. 42 also specifically permits the pavilion, food truck plaza,
identity beacon, ice skating rink, restrooms, outdoor dining, splash pad, clubhouse, swimming pool,
and gill area as Accessory Uses.

The site plan is described in further detail below.

3



Note that complete details have not been provided for the Ace Hardware store and hotel. As such. those
modifications to the hardware store and development ofthe hotel are subject to separate revew and
approval of_a Ste Plan Applcation.

Project Description/Analysis
Upon review of the Plan Commission submittal, received on December 11, 2023, the attached plans
are in compliance with PDD No. 42 and UDO development standards, with the approval of the
amendment regarding landscaping quantities.

Site Plan
The development includes eight buildings and is accessed from South 76" Street and West Rawson
Avenue. The plan consists of 426 apartment units and other commercial uses as noted above. The total
site has an area of approximately 24.31 acres and is a combination of three existing parcels. One
property is currently home to the Orchard View Shopping Center and the other two properties are
vacant.

Dwelling unit sizes are listed below. Note that the PDD does not address dwelling unit sizes nor does it
reference any UDO requirements, such as the R-8 District. As such, there are no specific minimum and
the proposed sizes are permissible.

• One-bedroom units range in size between 588 square feet and 794 square feet
• Two-bedroom units range in size between 1,051 square feet and 1,237 square feet
• Three-bedroom units range in size between 1,380 square feet and 1,457 square feet

The applicant has provided Site Intensity and Capacity Worksheets as well as an exhibit, which
demonstrates compliance with PDD No. 42 standards for both the commercial area and residential area
of the PDD. The total greenspace throughout the entire development is about 42.4%.

Traffic Impact Analysis {TIA)
A TIA was completed as recommended by the City in the initial review and adoption of PDD No. 42.
The Executive Summary is attached. The TIA includes recommendations that, if followed, would
generally provide a Level of Service ofD or better.

Staffrecommends that the applcant comply wth all recommendatons ofthe Traffic Impact Analysts,
completed byAres, dated August 16, 2023.

The Department of City Development may be contacted to obtain a digital copy of the full TIA report.

Parking
PDD No. 42 requires parking to comply with Unified Development Ordinance parking standards, with
the maximum number of parking spaces not exceeding the amount shown on Exhibit A of the PDD
unless otherwise approved by the Plan Commission. Exhibit A of PDD No. 42 listed a total of 1,103
parking spaces anticipated.

The Site Plan includes 386 enclosed parking spaces and 694 surface parking spaces. This is a total of
1,080 parking spaces and includes 16 ADA accessible spaces. With over 694 exterior parking spaces
provided, 2% must be ADA accessible, which is a minimum of 14 ADA parking spaces. With 16 ADA
spaces provided, this standard is met.

4



Drive aisles are 24-feet in width and parking spaces are 9' x 20' (180 square feet) in compliance with
UDO standards. PDD No. 42 also requires a minimum 30-foot parking setback from residential areas
and 10 feet from commercial properties outside PDD No. 42. This standard is met as well.

For comparison purposes, Table 15-5.0203 of the UDO suggests minimum parking ratios. With a total
of236 one-bedroom units, 136 two-bedroom units, and 54 three-bedroom units, the UDO suggests a
minimum of 643 parking spaces for the proposed multi-family.

Using the ratio for shopping centers, 5/1,000 square feet of Gross Floor Area, about 225 parking
spaces are required for the commercial area. The hotel use is an additional 75 parking spaces
suggested. This is a total of 943 parking spaces. It should also be considered that the development will
include restaurants, which have a higher parking demand. Moreover, other uses, such as the seasonal
market, ice skating ribbon, the nature playscape, and other miscellaneous uses and events would add to
the parking demand of the development.

Based on the above, staff finds the parking provided is appropriate and does not object to the quantity
proposed.

Landscape Plan
PDD No. 42 requires that "The applicant shall submit a landscape plan, as defined in the Unified
Development Ordinance as part of the Certified Survey Map or Preliminary Plat submittal. Such
landscape plan shall depict a 30-foot wide landscape buffer where the site abuts residential zoning
districts, specifically R-6 as well as Planned Development nos. 11 and 17, and excluding any natural
resource area."

The 30-foot wide landscape buffer is shown and provided for on the plans. The applicant is proposing
a total of 227 Canopy/Shade trees, 260 Evergreens, 205 Decorative trees, and 1,524 Shrubs.

The Landscape Plan includes tables indicating required and proposed landscaping quantities for the
residential area and commercial area of the development. It does not, however, include the 20%
increase in plantings for bufferyards.

Based upon the information provided by the applicant, the Landscape Plan is deficient by 481
Canopy/Shade trees, 112 Evergreens, and 287 Decorative trees. The Landscape Plan includes 168
shrubs over the required minimum. Again, this does not include the 20% increase in plantings required
for bufferyards. It should also be noted that 53 trees with a caliper of 8" or greater are also being
preserved.

Overall, staff finds that the landscape plan provides a significant number of plantings, and there are
limited areas to provide additional plantings. Some of the remaining open space areas are intended for
that use, such as the open area adjacent to the food truck plaza as well as the central lawn area. These
areas are intended to serve as community and gathering type spaces, where landscaping would not
necessarily be appropriate.

Staff does not object to the quantity of landscaping proposed.

Regarding the landscaping, staff recommends that:

• Amnmum 2-year plant replacement guaranty for all landscaping_shall be provded
• Plantzngs located wzthzn bufferyards shall be mantaned and replaced n perpetuity

5



Lighting Plan
A Lighting Plan including a photometric layout and cut sheets of proposed fixtures has been provided.
The lighting is in in conformance with UDO standards. Light poles will have a peak height of 12-feet
and light levels are O footcandles at the property lines.

Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP)
A NRPP is attached. The applicant has revised the site plan to avoid impacts to protected natural
resources beyond what is allowed by the UDO. The site contains young woodlands, wetlands and
associated wetland buffers and setbacks, and steep slopes.

Young woodlands will be impacted, but again, within the disturbance limits allowed by the UDO.
Wetland setbacks will also be disturbed, but restored to their natural state.

A Conservation Easement required, and a draft has been provided for staff review. Site Plan approval
shall be contzngent upon the Common Council review and approval ofa Conservation Easement.

Architecture
Elevations and renderings are attached for Plan Commission review. The buildings consist of a variety
of vertical and horizontal metal and fiber cement siding. A masonry veneer is also included. Balconies
are included with a transparent railing on the apartment buildings.

Signage
Sign details have not yet been provided. Signage will require separate sign review and sign permits
prior to installation. All signage must comply with the City's sign regulations.

Storm water Management
It s recommended that final approval ofgrading, eroson control, storm water management, and
utltes, as may be applcable, be granted by the EngmneermngDepartmentpror to any land
disturbance actrvities.

StaffRecommendation:
City Development Staff recommends approval of the Certified Survey Map to combine the three
existing parcels bearing Tax Key Nos. 756 9993 021, 756 9993 016, and 756 9993 012.

City Development Staff recommends approval of the POD Amendment as a Minor Amendment.

City Development Staff recommends approval of the POD Amendment to amend landscaping
standards within POD No. 42.

City Development Staff recommends the approval of the Site Plan for the Poths General development,
subject to the conditions listed in the draft resolution.

6



gs;

Franklin
◄

WISCONSIN

7154 S. 76th Street
TKNs 756 9993 021, 756 9993 016 & 756 9993 012

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 210 420 840 Feet A
NORTH
2021 Aerial Photo

This map shows the approxamate relatve locaton ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared byaprofess1onal land surveyor
Thus map sprovidedfor formatonalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficent or appropratefor legal engneerng
or surveyingpurposes



--,,,,, Franklin
◄

WISCONSIN

7154 S. 76th Street
TKNs 756 9993 021, 756 9993 016 & 756 9993 012

fl
I\I l
i l

\

1
J-

GA7ES@

I
l
l

Property

\
\

l
\

\
\
\
'\

T
'i
J

J
/
/
I
I

/!
I

'l i
I
I

l
,\I

I l\
\ ·[.I. 4

@%
1 ! t.
I

i.

l l
I I I,(eaaI!Nh \

I \

h\
\ \ ,\
I\ J. \\!;

!

L
-milI I

!

This map shows the approximate re/alive locatwn ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared bya professwnal land surveyor
This map sprovdedfor formatonalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engineering
or surveyingpurposes

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 210 420 840 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.__

400

i

q~
8

I

J

200

I

r a:::l(J')I

I =1w1""'5t72e»lg
<Cl 101

I Ef:1~1~1'=g

Survey No 4192 02-lpm

LINE TABLE
LINE BEARING DIST.
L1 N00'00'07"W 68.60'
REC. NORTH
L2 N89"59'53"E 52.02'
REC. EAST
L3 N22"40'40"W 56.53'
REC. N22"40'33"E
L4 N26'53'02"W 178.51'
REC. N26'52'55"W
L5 S00'15'45"E 110.74'
REC. S00'15'38"E
L6 S26'53'02"E 110.74'
REC. S26'52'55"E
L7 S00"08'22"E 40.00'
REC. S00'08'15"E
LB N89"26'36"E 90.53'
REC. N89"26'43"E
l9 S89"28'54"W 111.56'
REC. S89"29'01"W
LIO N6X22'32"W 63.59'
REC. N62"22'25"W
L11 S89"28'54"W 230.00'
REC. S89"29'01"W

i
(REC N89"26'43"E)
N89"26'36"
270.00'

0031'06" 89"28'54"w 869.44'
90. 00, (REC S89°29 14"W)
; Date June 15 2023NOO"30 46 W) CARTER GROVE CONDOMINIUM '

This instrument was drafted Revised December 4, 2023
Sheet 1 of 8 Sheets

ZONING DISTRICT PDD-42

- -,~30 SIDE YARD SETBACK

~
.J!LSIDE YARD SETBACK I_

>a::
0
1-
(/)

a::w
1-z
w
(..)

(.!)
z
0...
0...
0·:::c
(/)

84.5' , .
30 6

PARCEL1
AREA

1,064,863 S.F
24 4459 Acres

All bearings are referenced to the Wisconsin State Plane Coordinate
System (South zone} NAD83, in which the North line of the NW 1/4,
Section 10, Township S North, Range 21 East bears N89°26'54"E

A red1v1sion of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 8318, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 6313, and Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No 5401 and lands all being part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10,
Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin ,,,,,,,11 111,,,,,,

,,,,, sCONs 111,

,,'~\••• •.•.•.••I~,,.,,.✓.,,,
s ·oNA c':. 
x¢; CHAPUT :z- . -
:: : S-1316 :: . . .::-
- ·. MILWAUKEE • .:-

#it,eds4k
Owner Note Parcel 1 is served by public sewer and water
lnitech, LLC VICINITY MAP
7044 South Ballpark Dnve Suite 305 NW 1/4 OF SEC. 10
Franklin, WI 53132 T 5 N, R 21 £

LEGEND w. ~WSO!...AVE.7
@lod;,ate, laM ded,~ted to the Oty l@j.·•. ·. ..
of Franklin for Public Road Purposes · •
• Indicates found 1" iron ppe , SITE • I
O Indicates set 1" iron pipe, 18" in j!: · ····· · - --

length, 113 lbs per lineal foot !el I Il
0 Indicates found 3/4" iron 1 I j I Graphic Scale 1" = 200'
/',. Indicates found PK nail 1·=~ CONC. MON. WITH BRASS CAP

CONC. MON. WITH BRASS CAP - - NE COR OF NW 1/4 SEC.~O, T5N, R21E
NW COR OF NW 1/4 SEC. 10, T5N, R21EL__ _

N 340,26283(REC. :89yotJ) w. RAWSONAVENUE rc.T.H. BB)
E2,501,74893N89'26'54 E e-- - - - - - - - - --=-~ - - ----
p O C 5 0o' - - NORTHLINE OF THE NW 1/4,SEC. 10 ;,.,

;2 "• N89"26'54"E r-.::
1
~~ I l~~..IO~. - - - IT ~I-~~· I ~- '."If, ..., SM NO. 4828 .e~Gll-1 I l~I'.2~ · IO C) I C.S.M. NO. 5689 il;:1 I
I i- C, I ~ :-- - N89"26'43"i_______ I I ;;:;1~1:::1 PARJJ!.2. I £8KC£.Ll
"',,. I " ..... • ' ·yegg]· u..,. ~ CSM NO 6811
8 s -s => %4{

Ii::~"' ~~ 0) w. ·•115101vi1
.,ic::: PARCEL 3 <- ••- ip,, L8 go o% aua94]
+ •r4_bi'g 5r'- '."'If- c:, '° '."'If- .... ui • l""1;,,~ ICS~N0--4828 -. 10 • ~ ~- <::,-- C) uow "E)

I ~c., ~ b Ill 83" ·rO- a- ?? .:.• z - ""' g~::j It .. c.J' ,._ ~ • ....,oo :i: "-""" GI ~ ., .___._..., ..._ 1
b5] oo g? 2ges nl°85 - ..,.. ....,""' - ..... ....= g1

2
z C:::, ... V PARCEL 2

I =, • NoGuss
IS, n@ #.$sa.o

1

....:1 Q.. Ns9•59•53•c;:::1 228.57' :::;

o'
~

'8 =.
l
!=IJ::11 ~
Ft g,
En
lt:1 ~..., ~
~ :-.f ~~40

gs,s
~11 bs°f!:.1

60'►-iii-Ji~~jiiiiiiijiillii;;~,..........iil
U 1'~/.

~°r/J.fs1ii WITH CHAPUT (REC
SW COR OF NW 1/4
SEC. 10, T5N, R21E LAND lj;l SURVEYS
N 337,621 67 234W Flo ,daSt<eet 414-224-8068 by Donald C Chaput
E 2,501,760 99 M waukee, WI 53204 _w,hap,tlands,~eys.comProfessmnal land Surveyor S-1316



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.__
A redivision of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 8318, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 6313, and Outfot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No 5401 and lands all being part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10,
Town 5 North, Range 21 East, m the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State ofW1sconsm

CONC. MON. WITH BRASS CAP_ _ --Ar- !!.._E COR OF ww /4 Sc. 10. rM, Rz1

1" = 200'

S-1316
.·, MILWAUKEE5" ·•. .. .•· "*
0 200 400

L)
Graphic ScaleCONC. MON. WITH BRASS CAP

NW COR OF NW 1/4 SEC 10, TSN, R21E
NL340,262.83 -
£2,501,748.93

1: 15' PLANTING STRIP PER CSM NO. 4828 AND 8318
2 NO ACCESS PER C.S M. NO. 4828
3· INGRESS EGRESS EASEMENT PER DOC. NO 9958980
4. PERMANENT SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC NO. 6374621
5 PERMANENT SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC NO. 6374622
6: 1 O' GAS EASEMENT PER DOC NO 6073733
7. 6' UTILITY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 3567794
8· ACCESS POINT PER DOC NO 6069228
9. ACCESS POINT PER DOC. NO 6302311
1 O· ACCESS POINT TO LEARNING CENTER PER DOC NO 6374286

RECORDED EASEMENTS FOR REFERENCE ONLY

1 7
I I
I I

Date June 7, 2023
Revised December4, 2023
Sheet 2 of 8 Sheets
Survey No 4192 02 1pm

11
11
11
"--l ~ 15'

11

7

1711
1 I I :

I I I I
_j I

G)
3

i
I
I

+

60'

4 11

\

II
117 ;

ii I I
11 ~120

... C6>i¥········jJJ···· 11_·········;b,. -_µ_
a ll ± ·y- so.e if or

{cok_ MON. WITH B~ CAP ~
4 5

~SM cOROFNT74sc. ' __,__
10, TSN, R2/E

CHAPUT
This instrumentwas drafted

LAND@SURVEYS b Donald c Cha ut
234 W Florida Street 414-224-8068 f Y I d S p 13 6
M lwaukee, WI 53204 ·ww.chaputlandsurv eys.com Pro ess1ona Lan urveyor 5- 1



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.__
A red1v1s1on of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 8318, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 6313, and Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No 5401 and lands all being part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10,
Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State ofWisconsin

RECORDED EASEMENTS FOR REFERENCE ONLY

CONG. MON WITH BRASS CAP__ -+ .!!_E COR OFw 1/4 Sc. 1o. 15M, R?IE«

wn,,
,,,, sCONs 11,,

,,'~'.••••·••••.I~.....,,.,.,.,,.
s ·ooAo c':.
; CHAPUT :.Z

- . -
• S-1316 : ::- . . -_ • MILWAUKEE • ~

- "·, w •

0 200 400

E I i
Graphic Scale 1" = 200'CONC MON WITH BRASS CAP

NW COR OF NW 1/4 SEC 10, TSN, R21E
N.\JjQJ 62.BJ... - - -
£.2,501,748.93

11: PERMANENT WATER MAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 6374620
12· 35' UTILITY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO 6385935
13: UTILITY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 6066152
14: SIGN EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 7298632
15: WATER MAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 9956356
16: 10' GAS EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 6400725
17: ROAD ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC NO 6374619 (HATCH)

7
I

I

i
I
I

T/tu
i I I :
I I I I
_j I

1T

I I
I I

®1l -1}rrr= -.,.,.,- -L------,.

'oI
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

I
I
I
l

1 I
!Sl1
\:a:'....:'G,....,,1
ttjll
le!
I~:i!:,f-----------ffl------'
s\i!:I
I~ 11
oll

I
I
I
I

'L
' I
CONG. MON WITH BRASS CHAPUT Date June7,2023
CAP, SW COR OF NW This instrument was drafted Revised December 4, 2023't3,%, LAND e SURVEYS by Donald c Chaput Sheet 3 of 8 Sheets
£2,501; 760.99 ;;i,i:::":~-::·~,s;;;~ !':::~t~~raodso~ey,.oomProfess1onal Land SurveyorS-1316 Survey No 4192 02-lpm



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.__
A reduson of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 8318, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 6313, and Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No 5401 and lands all being part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10,
Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County ofMilwaukee, State ofWisconsin

3]

I€ ~
«G....
0

lg +-{\o .\')

C>

I 8

N8926'54"E 458.$¥'

I

I
I

N89"26'36"E
27000'

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION EASEMENT

_ _J

L5 l6- L7 L8-·-

1 8 le
1 «a24 125 06_- "

") - --wvs cs.cs'?_!1o 722 coNsERAON EASEMENT

$89"28'54"w
L2

869 44' ~ Indicates Wetlands
J Delineated by Helainthus, LLC,
August 22, 2022

This instrument was drafted by Donald C Chaput
Professional Land Surveyor S-1316

300

i

S-1316

Graphic Scale
150

I

. .
- " MILWAUKEE ' _

bi@:&$4#
Date June 7, 2023
Revised December4, 2023
Sheet 4 of 8 Sheets
Survey No 4192 02-lpm

-LINE TABLE
LINE BEARING DISTANCE 0
L35 NOO15'27'E 73.99' iL36 N06'30'54"W 45.23'
L37 NO9'06'02w 61.77'
L38 NO534'33w 42.06'
L39 N21'22'55w 2.91'
L40 N84'53'09w 23.11' I
L41 SJ6'53'59"W 5.25'
L42 N65'54'40 46.57' l~KL43 NO831'03E 1210'
L44 $8435'25w 7116'
L45 N1219'58'E 30.31'
L46 N54'20'44w 30.42'
L47 S89'41'12w 17.32'

\L48 S8323'52w 59.94'
L49 N07"55'27"W 44.32'
L50 N8926'54"E 323.10'

LINE TABLE
LINE BEARING DISTANCE
L18 N34"02'44"E 3.26'
L19 N2738'45'E 3.03'
L20 N22'46'59"E 1.67'
L21 N19'03'31"E 199'
L22 N7TT49'29'E 31.08'
L23 N65'32'46'E 25.11'
L24 $89' 16'35'E 28.16'
L25 $89'55'53'E 77.76'
L26 N75"09'04"E 30.15'
L27 N5444'34'E 29.83'
L28 N90'O0'O0'E 50.76'
L29 N17"59'07"E 21.59'
LJO N10"08'45"E 311.74'
L31 N09"28'36"W 60.14'
L32 N11'25'41w 24.43'
LJJ N06'35'44"W 93.43'
LJ4 N2523'13w 43.95'

LINE TABLE
LINE BEARING DISTANCE
L1 S00'11'53"E 946.39'
L2 S89"28'54"W 833.29'
L3 NO2'06'55'E 17.61'
L4 NT724'55'E 35.19'
L5 $89'23'44"E 160.28'
L6 S7T41'28"E 81.87'
L7 N89'00'23'E 38.37'
LIi N8T'11'19'E 22.84"
L9 N87"56'01"E 74.48'
L10 $83'51'54E 14.67'
Ll 1 S85'17'38"E 1099'
L12 S83"27'42"E 6.94'
L13 $85'08'25'E 6.16'
L14 S89'55'06"E 6.19'
L15 N56'18'20"E 8.12'
L16 N58'00'42"E 20.48'
L17 N40'53'32"E 130'



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.__

S-1316Vertical datum Is based on North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (12)

Note Existing contours are shown

A redivision of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 8318, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 6313, and Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No 5401 and lands all being part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10,
Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin

1\\\\11 11,,,,
All bearings are referenced to the Wisconsin State Plane Coordinate ,,,,''sCON,s'',,,,
System {South zone) NAD83, in which the North line of the NW 1/4, ,'~\ •• • • • • • I,1-',,
Section 10, Township 5 North, Range 21 East bears orssw s io &.. <

Ext; CHAPUT :z
-= •- .:: . ..

#Ga,,,,,,,,,,,,~~
0 200

"l
400

Graphic Scale 1" = 200'

765
I

±Ats-- ~ <"-

Date June 15, 2023
Revised December 4, 2023
Sheet 5 of 8 Sheets
Survey No 4192 02 1pm

This instrument was drafted
LANDSURVEYS b Donald C Cha ut
234 W Flo da street 414-224-98068 f Y I L d S p S 1316
Miwaukee, w+ 53204 www chautlan4surv eys.com TO1eSS10fa an UIVeyOf 

CHAPUT

L__ ----------------r-- -[- f W. RAWSONAVE~j(f.T.H.!~1~
"-

I ' ' Al' I1 '"-----= 1 1v1 1
1 1

[ l 4um»uu"Pip,_
J



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.__

Vertical datum Is based on North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (12)

Note Proposed contours shown were provided by The Sigma Group Inc
Received November 27, 2023

A red1vis1on of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 8318, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 6313, and Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No 5401 and lands all being part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10,
Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County ofMilwaukee, State ofWisconsin ,

\\\\II I I/ I I I
All bearings are referenced to the Wisconsin State Plane Coordinate ,,,,''sCON,s'',,,,
System (South zone) NAD83, in which the North line of the NW 1/4, ,'~\ • •• • • • • a
Section 10, Township 5 North, Range 21 East bears orssre s Go:.. <

x¢; CHAPUT ;z: S-1316 - · ·sis ±«!e@}4e
0-- 200 400

LI
Graphic Scale 1"= 200'

I
I
[

' ,.Ravsoiavenucr.mi.es)z,~,
1,---- + '

I I I : I I
I I I I I I

_J '--------

CHAPUT
This instrumentwas drafted

LAND~ SURVEYS b Donald C Cha ut
234W Flo,;daSt,ee l 414-224-!!068 p f Y ( L d S p S 1316
Mlwaukee, W1 53204 www. chaputhan4surveys .cam fQ @SSloma af) U rveyor 

Date June 15, 2023
Revised December 4, 2023
Sheet 6 of 8 Sheets
Survey No 4192 02-lpm



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.
A redivision of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 8318, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 6313, and Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No 5401 and lands all being part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10,
Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State ofWisconsin

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF WISCONSIN}
ss

MILWAUKEE COUNTY}

I, DONALD C CHAPUT, Professional Land Surveyor, do hereby certify

THAT I have surveyed and mapped a redivision of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 8318, Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No 6313, and Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 5401 and lands all being part of the
Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County
of Milwaukee, State ofWisconsin, which 1s bounded and described as follows
Commencing at Northwest corner of said Northwest 1/4 of said Section 10, thence South 00"15'45" East along
the West line of said Northwest 1/4 Section 596 70 feet to a point, thence North 89°59'53" East 60 00 feet to the
East line of South 76th Street (CT H U} and the point of beginning of lands described hereinafter, thence North
89°59'53" East along the South line of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 8318 a distance of 228 57 feet to the
East line of said Lot 1, thence North 00°00'07" West along said East line 68 60 feet to a point, thence North
89°59'53" East along said East line 52 02 feet to a point, thence North 00°00'07" West along said East line 144 04
feet to a point, thence North 22°40'40" West along said East line 56 53 feet to the Southeast corner of Parcel 3 of
Certified Survey Map No 4828, thence North 26°53'02" West along the East line of said Parcel 3 a distance of
178 51 feet to a point, thence North 00"15'45" West along said East line 100 00 feet to a point on the South line
of West Rawson Avenue (CT H BB), thence North 8926'54" East along said South line 50 00 feet to the
Northwest corner of Parcel 4 of Certified Survey Map No 4828, thence South 0015'45" East along the West line
of said Parcel 4 a distance of 110 74 feet to a point, thence South 26°53'02" East along said West line 110 74 feet
to the South line of said Parcel 4, thence North 89"26'36" East along said South line 169 93 feet to a point on the
West line of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No 5689, thence South 0008'22" East along said West line 40 00
feet to the South line of said Parcel 4, thence North 89"26'36" East along said South line 90 53 feet to the West
line of said Parcel 4, thence South 00"15'45" East along said West line 275 00 feet to the South line of Parcel 2 of
Certified Survey Map No 4483, thence North 89"26'36" East along said South line 270 00 feet to the East line of
said Parcel 2, thence North 00"15'45" West along said East line 225 00 feet to the Southwest corner of Certified
Survey Map No 6811, thence North 89"26'54" East along the South line of said Certified Survey Map 458 68 feet
to the West line of Phase VII WestminsterCondominiums, thence South 00°11'53" East along said West line and
the West line of Dover Hill Addrtion No 1 Subdivision 946 39 feet to the North line of Carter Grove
Condominium, thence South 89°28'54" West along said North line 869 44 feet to the Southeast corner of Parcel 1
of Certified Survey Map No 5401, thence North 00"31'O6" West along the East line of said Parcel 1 a distance of
90 00 feet to the North line of said Parcel 1, thence South 89"28'54" West along said North line 111 56 feet to a
point, thence North 62"22'32" West along said North line 63 59 feet to a point, thence South 8928'54" West
along said North line 230 00 feet to a point on the East line of South 76th Street (CT H U), thence North
00°15'45" West along said East line 603 29 feet to the point of beginning

Said lands as described contains 1,067,878 square feet or 24 5151 Acres

THAT I have made the survey, land d1v1s1on and map by the direction of lmtech LLC, owner

THAT the map 1s a correct representation of all the exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land d1v1s1on
thereof made

Date June 7, 2023
Revised December 4, 2023
Sheet 7 of 8 Sheets
Survey No 4192 02 1pm414-224-8068

www_chaputlandsurv eys_com
234 W Flor'da Street
Milwaukee, WI 53204

LANDSURVEYS

THAT I have fully complied wth Chapter 236 34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Subdivision Regulations of the
City of Franklin Unified Development OrdinanceDIM9 15 and Milwaukee County mn surveying, dividing and
mapping the same "CON$ "o,

,,'~\ •• •········/1,,~ ..-\ ~
ans7,2023 S io»A c"·. Ck,k
Gm,,,=; CHAPUT :»6507WGeUT T

{ S-1316 ' PROFESSIONAL LANDSURVEYOR S 1316. .
', MILWAUKEE

- '· w ·s"·, .."'47····O,°, Supv e
Thus instrument{asduaftedby Donald C Chaput

Professional land SurveyorS-1316

CHAPUT



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.
A redivision of Lot 2, Certfied Survey Map No 8318, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 6313, and Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No 5401 and lands all being part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10,
Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State ofWisconsin

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

Inrtech LLC, do hereby certify that we caused the land described on this Certified Survey Map to be
surveyed, d1v1ded, mapped and dedicated as represented on this map mn accordance with the requirements of the
City of Franklin

ln1tech LLC, as owner, does furthercertify that this map is required by S 236 20 or 236 12 to be submitted
to the following forapproval orobJect1on City of Franklin, Milwaukee County

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Inrtech LLC, owner, has caused these presents to be signed by the hand of
______________, on this,day of ~2023

Owner:
lnitech LLC

By----------------
WITNESS

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE)

Personally came before me this day of2023, the above-named,as
the,whoexecuted the above instrument and acknowledged the same

TITLE

Name
NotaryPine,saneGrwna
My Commission _

CITY OF FRANKLIN COMMON COUNCIL

APPROVED AND DEDICATION ACCEPTED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN BY
RESOLUTION NO SIGNEDON THIS DAY OF ~2023

nu,,,,, CON ,,,
°'s ""r.···..2s ·'ox c':. 

?x; CHAPUT :?- -
• S-1316 •. . -

: ", MILWAUKEE ° 
,'· w s....,, ,<j ••• • ....

\ Iv, • • ~... ,.&All This instrument was drafted by Donald C Chaput
,, , Professional Land Surveyor S-1316

Date June 7, 2023
Revised December 4, 2023
Sheet 8 of 8 Sheets
Survey No 4192 02-1pm

JOHN NELSON, MAYOR

KAREN KASTENSON, CITY CLERK



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to amend Section 15-3.0447 of
the Unified Development Ordinance Planned
Development District No. 42 (Poths General) to
amend landscaping requirements as it pertains
to the quantity of plantings required (Poths
General LLC, Applicant) (at approximately

7154 South 76th Street)

MEETING
DATE

1/3/2024

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #5

At its December 21, 2023, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended approval
of an ordinance to amend Section 15-3.0447 of the Unified Development Ordinance
Planned Development District No. 42 (Poths General) to amend landscaping
requirements as it pertains to the quantity of plantings required (Poths General, LLC,
Applicant) (at approximately 7154 South 76th Street). The vote was 4-0-2, four 'ayes', no
'noes' and two absent.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2024- to amend Section 15-3.0447 of the
Unified Development Ordinance Planned Development District No. 42 (Poths General) to
amend landscaping requirements as it pertains to the quantity of plantings required (Poths
General, LLC, Applicant) (at approximately 7154 South 76th Street).

Department ofCity Development NJF



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2024

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 15-3.0447 OF THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 42

(POTHS GENERAL) TO AMEND LANDSACPING REQUIREMENTS AS IT
PERTAINS TO THE QUANTITY OF PLANTINGS REQUIRED

(POTHS GENERAL LLC, APPLICANT)
(AT APPROXIMATELY 7154 SOUTH 76TH STREET)

WHEREAS, Section 15-3.0447 of the Unified Development Ordinance
provides for and regulates Planned Development District No. 42 (Poths General),
same having been created by Ordinance No. 2023-2546, with such District primarily
being located at approximately 7154 South 76th Street, bearing Tax Key Nos. 756
9993 012, 756 9993 016, and 756 9993 021, and is more particularly described below;
and

WHEREAS, Planned Development District No. 42 (Poths General) currently
includes those lands legally described as follows:

PARCEL A:
Parcel 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 8318, recorded on January 6, 2011, as
Document No. 9956357, a division of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No.
6313, being part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section I 0,
Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County ofMilwaukee,
State of Wisconsin.
Property Address: 7154 South 76th Street, Franklin, WI 53132
Tax Key Number: 756-9993-021

PARCELB:
Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 6313, recorded on December 27, 1996,
on Reel 3956, Images 849 to 851 inclusive, as Document No. 7307525, being
a redivision of Parcel 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 4828, and Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No. 5689, being a part of the Northwest 1/4 of the
Northwest 1/4 of Section 10, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of
Franklin, County ofMilwaukee, State of Wisconsin.
Tax Key Number: 756-9993-016

PARCELC:
Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 5401, recorded on April 2, 1990, on
Reel 2434, Images 436 to 439 inclusive, as Document No. 6366765, a
redivision of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 4828, being a part of the



ORDINANCE NO. 2023
Page 2

Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 10, Town 5 North, Range 21
East, in the City ofFranklin, County ofMilwaukee, State of Wisconsin.
Tax Key Number: 756-9993-012

WHEREAS, Section 15-3.0447K. requires Conditions of Approval, including
the submission of a landscape plan and submission of site plans consistent with all
regulations of the Unified Development Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, Poths General LLC has requested to insert language to provide
quantities of planting less than that required by the Unified Development Ordinance;
and

WHEREAS, Poths General has provided a Landscape Plan illustrating a
specific number ofplantings to be provided; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Plan Commission on the 21st day of
December, 2023, having reviewed the proposed amendment to Planned Development
District No. 42 and thereafter having recommended to the Common Council that the
proposed amendment be approved subject to the conditions and restrictions included
herewith; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the petition and having
concurred with the recommendation of the Plan Commission, and having determined
that the proposed amendment to Planned Development District No. 42 (Poths
General) is consistent with the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, and that it will promote the health, safety and welfare of the
Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1:

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

Section 15-3.0447 of the Unified Development Ordinance of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended specifically and
only with regard to the Planned Development District No. 42
located at approximately 7154 South 76th Street.

Section 15-3.0447K. be renumbered to L. and a new Section 15
3.0447K. be inserted.

Section 15-3.0447K. of the Unified Development Ordinance of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended as follows:



ORDINANCE NO. 2023
Page 3

Landscaping. The minimum quantity of plantings to be
provided, including in bu:fferyards, as part of the Landscape
Plan for PDD No. 42 shall be in conformance with the following
minimums and in substantial conformance with the Landscape
Plans dated December 11, 2023:

• Canopy/Shade Trees: 225
• Evergreen Trees: 260
• Decorative Trees: 205
• Shrubs: 1,500

SECTION 4:

SECTION 5:

SECTION 6:

SECTION 7:

Except for the minimum number of plantings required within
Table 15-5.0302, all other standards of Division 15-5.0300 of
the Unified Development Ordinance shall be met, unless
inconsistent with the quantities ofplantings required above.

Plantings located within bu:fferyards shall be maintained and
replaced in perpetuity.

All other applicable terms and provisions of § 15-3 .0447, shall
apply to Planned Development District No. 42 (Poths General)
mixed-use development located at approximately 7154 South
76th Street, and all terms and provisions of §15-3.0447 as
existing immediately prior to the adoption of this Ordinance,
except as amended hereunder, shall remain in full force and
effect.

The terms and prov1sons of this ordinance are severable.
Should any term or provision of this ordinance be found to be
invalid by a court of competentjurisdiction, the remaining terms
and provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after
its passage and publication.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023
Page 4

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 3rd day of January, 2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 3rd day of January, 2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



gas»
Franklin

w 1 $ CO N S I N

CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Item D.2., 3., and 4.

Meeting of December 21, 2023

Certified Survey Map, Planned Development District Amendment, and Site Plan

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of the Certified Survey Map,
Planned Development District Amendment, and Site Plan applications related to the Poths General
mixed-use development.

Project Name:

Project Address/Tax Key:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Aldermanic District:

Zoning District:

Staff Planner:

Poths General Certified Survey Map, Planned Development
District Amendment, and Site Plan

Approximately 7154 South 76" Street / 756 9993 012, 756 9993
016, and 756 9993 021

INITECH, LLC, A WISCONSIN LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY

Emily Cialdini, Land By Label

District 5

Planned Development District No. 42

Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate

Introduction/Background
Please note:

• Recommendations are underlned, n talics and are included in the draft resolution.

The applicant has filed a Certified Survey Map, Planned Development District Amendment, and Site
Plan applications for the Poths General development for properties located at approximately 7154
South 76 Street.

Certified Survey Map (CSM)
The CSM combines the three properties listed below, which comprise of the Poths General development.
Currently these properties consist of the existing Orchard View Shopping Center and the two vacant
properties to the east.

Address Tax Key Approximate Acreage
7154 South 76 Street 756 9993 021 10.10
0 West Rawson Avenue 756 9993 016 3.59
0 West Rawson Avenue 756 9993 012 10.88

24.57

Planned Development District (POD) Amendment Rationale
The PDD Amendment has been filed as the proposed quantity of plantings does not meet UDO
standards as required by Table 15-5.0302 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).

1



Staff's interpretation of PDD No. 42 is that it requires compliance with all UDO landscape and site
plan requirements; however, the applicant has noted in their narrative that they disagree with this
interpretation. With that said, a PDD Amendment Application was submitted by the applicant to move
the project forward.

It can be noted that PDD No. 42 requires:

"The applicant shall submit a landscape plan, as defined in the Unified Development Ordinance
as part of the Certified Survey Map or Preliminary Plat submittal. Such landscape plan shall
depict a 30-foot wide landscape buffer where the site abuts residential zoning districts,
specifically R-6 as well as Planned Development Districts nos. 11 and 17, and excluding any
natural resource area."

The UDO defines Landscape as follows:

LANDSCAPE PLAN
(See Division 15-7.0301 of this Ordinance.)

Section 15-7.0301 of the UDO lists requirements and information to be included as part of a Landscape
Plan submittal; however, does not reference specific standards or Division 15-5.0300.

With that said, the PDD also requires that:

"The applicant shall be responsible for filing Site Plans and/or Special Uses consistent with all
regulations of the Unified Development Ordinance and Municipal Code, as may be amended, for
each individual lot resulting from the eventual Certified Survey Map or subdivision plat."

Site Plans are regulated by Division 15-7.0100. Below are two sections within this Division of the UDO
that reference Division 15-5.0300, which includes the quantity standards of Table 15-5.0302.

Section 15-7.0102H.
Required Landscaping and Landscape Bufferyards. Adverse effects of the proposed development
and activities upon adjoining residents or owners are minimized by design and installation of
landscape bufferyards to provide for appropriate screening, fencing, or landscaping as required
in Division 15-5.0300 of this Ordinance. Where required, a "Landscape Plan" meeting the
requirements set forth in Division 15-5.0300 has also been submitted for Plan Commission
review and approval.

Section 15-7.0103R.
"Landscape Plan" Required. Where landscaping as required in Division 15-5.0300 of this
Ordinance is to be installed on the site, a "Landscape Plan" meeting the requirements set forth in
Division 15-5.0300 of this Ordinance shall be submitted for Plan Commission review and
approval. An applicant may elect to only file a preliminary landscape plan generally depicting
the landscaping for the site at the time of Site Plan Review Application filing, with the later
submission of a Landscape Plan to be a condition of any final Application approval, except where
Department of City Development staff requires the filing of a Landscape Plan with the
Application or the Plan Commission requires the Landscape Plan submission during its review
of the Application, upon a determination that same is reasonably necessary in order to properly

2



review the visual impacts of the proposed development. Landscape Plans must be approved by
the Plan Commission.

Based upon these requirements for Site Plans, staff finds that Division 15-5.0300 must be adhered to or
the PDD amended to specifically state otherwise.

PDD Amendment
The proposed request would amend PDD No. 42 to revise landscaping requirements and to insert
language stating that the minimum quantity of plantings to be provided, including in bufferyards, as part
of the Landscape Plan for PDD No. 42 shall be in conformance with the quantities shown in the provided
Landscape Plan.

The language within PDD No. 42 would also note that except for the minimum number of plantings
required within Table 15-5.0302, all other standards of Division 15-5.0300 of the UDO shall be met,
unless inconsistent with the quantities of plantings shown within the proposed Landscape Plan.

The exact language can be found in the attached draft ordinance and the quantities of plantings
provided is discussed further below under the Landscape Plan section of this report.

Note that this is being proposed as a Minor Amendment. Staff concurs that this should be a minor
amendment as it is not a change of use, exterior boundaries, or road network.

Site Plan
The proposed site plan generally consists of the following:

• apartments including a clubhouse, swimming pool, and leasing center and management offices;
• a 50-key boutique hotel with commercial tenant space;
• retail, restaurant, and commercial uses;
• the existing Harry's Ace Hardware; and
• a public square that includes a food truck plaza, pavilion, splash pad, ice-skating rink,

farmers/winter holiday market, and public restrooms

The site plan also includes associated parking, landscaping, trails/walkways, and a protected
conservation area. The applicant has provided a detailed project narrative, site and development plans, a
storm water management plan memo, and a Traffic Impact Analysis.

PDD No. 42 specifically permits the multi-family residential buildings, the hotel, and the hardware
store. Other commercial uses may be permitted, within the ground floor of Buildings A and B, as
allowed within the B-3 Community Business District. Buildings over four stories or 60-feet in height
require Special Use approval. The proposed buildings are four stories and under 60-feet, so a Special
Use is not needed.

It should also be noted that PDD No. 42 also specifically permits the pavilion, food truck plaza,
identity beacon, ice skating rink, restrooms, outdoor dining, splash pad, clubhouse, swimming pool,
and gill area as Accessory Uses.

The site plan is described in further detail below.

3



Note that complete details have not been provided for the Ace Hardware store and hotel. As such, those
modficatons to the hardware store and development ofthe hotel are subject to separate revew and
approval ofa Site Plan Application.

Project Description/Analysis
Upon review of the Plan Commission submittal, received on December 11, 2023, the attached plans
are in compliance with PDD No. 42 and UDO development standards, with the approval of the
amendment regarding landscaping quantities.

Site Plan
The development includes eight buildings and is accessed from South 76 Street and West Rawson
Avenue. The plan consists of 426 apartment units and other commercial uses as noted above. The total
site has an area of approximately 24.31 acres and is a combination of three existing parcels. One
property is currently home to the Orchard View Shopping Center and the other two properties are
vacant.

Dwelling unit sizes are listed below. Note that the PDD does not address dwelling unit sizes nor does it
reference any UDO requirements, such as the R-8 District. As such, there are no specific minimum and
the proposed sizes are permissible.

• One-bedroom units range in size between 588 square feet and 794 square feet
• Two-bedroom units range in size between 1,051 square feet and 1,237 square feet
• Three-bedroom units range in size between 1,380 square feet and 1,457 square feet

The applicant has provided Site Intensity and Capacity Worksheets as well as an exhibit, which
demonstrates compliance with PDD No. 42 standards for both the commercial area and residential area
of the PDD. The total greenspace throughout the entire development is about 42.4%.

Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA)
A TIA was completed as recommended by the City in the initial review and adoption of PDD No. 42.
The Executive Summary is attached. The TIA includes recommendations that, if followed, would
generally provide a Level of Service of D or better.

Staff_recommends that the applcant comply wth all recommendatons ofthe Traffic Impact Analysts,
completed byAyres, dated August 16, 2023.

The Department of City Development may be contacted to obtain a digital copy of the full TIA report.

Parking
PDD No. 42 requires parking to comply with Unified Development Ordinance parking standards, with
the maximum number of parking spaces not exceeding the amount shown on Exhibit A of the PDD
unless otherwise approved by the Plan Commission. Exhibit A of PDD No. 42 listed a total of 1,103
parking spaces anticipated.

The Site Plan includes 386 enclosed parking spaces and 694 surface parking spaces. This is a total of
1,080 parking spaces and includes 16 ADA accessible spaces. With over 694 exterior parking spaces
provided, 2% must be ADA accessible, which is a minimum of 14 ADA parking spaces. With 16 ADA
spaces provided, this standard is met.

4



Drive aisles are 24-feet in width and parking spaces are 9' x 20' (180 square feet) in compliance with
UDO standards. PDD No. 42 also requires a minimum 30-foot parking setback from residential areas
and 10 feet from commercial properties outside PDD No. 42. This standard is met as well.

For comparison purposes, Table 15-5.0203 of the UDO suggests minimum parking ratios. With a total
of 236 one-bedroom units, 136 two-bedroom units, and 54 three-bedroom units, the UDO suggests a
minimum of 643 parking spaces for the proposed multi-family.

Using the ratio for shopping centers, 5/1,000 square feet of Gross Floor Area, about 225 parking
spaces are required for the commercial area. The hotel use is an additional 75 parking spaces
suggested. This is a total of 943 parking spaces. It should also be considered that the development will
include restaurants, which have a higher parking demand. Moreover, other uses, such as the seasonal
market, ice skating ribbon, the nature playscape, and other miscellaneous uses and events would add to
the parking demand of the development.

Based on the above, staff finds the parking provided is appropriate and does not object to the quantity
proposed.

Landscape Plan
PDD No. 42 requires that "The applicant shall submit a landscape plan, as defined in the Unified
Development Ordinance as part of the Certified Survey Map or Preliminary Plat submittal. Such
landscape plan shall depict a 30-foot wide landscape buffer where the site abuts residential zoning
districts, specifically R-6 as well as Planned Development nos. 11 and 17, and excluding any natural
resource area."

The 30-foot wide landscape buffer is shown and provided for on the plans. The applicant is proposing
a total of 227 Canopy/Shade trees, 260 Evergreens, 205 Decorative trees, and 1,524 Shrubs.

The Landscape Plan includes tables indicating required and proposed landscaping quantities for the
residential area and commercial area of the development. It does not, however, include the 20%
increase in plantings for bufferyards.

Based upon the information provided by the applicant, the Landscape Plan is deficient by 481
Canopy/Shade trees, 112 Evergreens, and 287 Decorative trees. The Landscape Plan includes 168
shrubs over the required minimum. Again, this does not include the 20% increase in plantings required
for bufferyards. It should also be noted that 53 trees with a caliper of 8" or greater are also being
preserved.

Overall, staff finds that the landscape plan provides a significant number of plantings, and there are
limited areas to provide additional plantings. Some of the remaining open space areas are intended for
that use, such as the open area adjacent to the food truck plaza as well as the central lawn area. These
areas are intended to serve as community and gathering type spaces, where landscaping would not
necessarily be appropriate.

Staff does not object to the quantity of landscaping proposed.

Regarding the landscaping, staff recommends that:

• Amnmum 2-yearplant replacement guaranty for all landscaping_shall be provded
• Plantngs located wthn bufferyards shall be mantamned and replaced mn perpetuty

5



Lighting Plan
A Lighting Plan including a photometric layout and cut sheets of proposed fixtures has been provided.
The lighting is in in conformance with UDO standards. Light poles will have a peak height of 12-feet
and light levels are O footcandles at the property lines.

Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP)
A NRPP is attached. The applicant has revised the site plan to avoid impacts to protected natural
resources beyond what is allowed by the UDO. The site contains young woodlands, wetlands and
associated wetland buffers and setbacks, and steep slopes.

Young woodlands will be impacted, but again, within the disturbance limits allowed by the UDO.
Wetland setbacks will also be disturbed, but restored to their natural state.

A Conservation Easement required, and a draft has been provided for staffreview. Site Plan approval
shall be contingent upon the Common Council revew and approval ofa Conservaton Easement.

Architecture
Elevations and renderings are attached for Plan Commission review. The buildings consist of a variety
of vertical and horizontal metal and fiber cement siding. A masonry veneer is also included. Balconies
are included with a transparent railing on the apartment buildings.

Signage
Sign details have not yet been provided. Signage will require separate sign review and sign permits
prior to installation. All signage must comply with the City's sign regulations.

Storm water Management
It s recommended that final approval ofgrading, eroson control, storm water management, and
utltes, as may be applcable, be granted by the Engineering Departmentprior to any land
disturbance actvtes.

Staff Recommendation:
City Development Staff recommends approval of the Certified Survey Map to combine the three
existing parcels bearing Tax Key Nos. 756 9993 021, 756 9993 016, and 756 9993 012.

City Development Staff recommends approval of the PDD Amendment as a Minor Amendment.

City Development Staff recommends approval of the PDD Amendment to amend landscaping
standards within PDD No. 42.

City Development Staff recommends the approval of the Site Plan for the Poths General development,
subject to the conditions listed in the draft resolution.

6



g a»
Franklin.,

WISCONSIN

7154 S. 76th Street
TKNs 756 9993 021, 756 9993 016 & 756 9993 012

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 210 420 840 Feet A
NORTH
2021 Aerial Photo

This map shows the approximate relative locatwn ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared by aprofesswnal land surveyor
This map sprovdedfor mformatonalpurposes only
andmay not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engneermg
or surveyingpurposes



Jg e
,,,,. Franklin
◄

WISCONSIN

7154 S. 76th Street
TKNs 756 9993 021, 756 9993 016 & 756 9993 012

A f +

l i

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

I •

0 210 420

l_
f--
1

- i
\
\,

\

!~-':
I \\
I \ i· il
%,
/;-,

__/

840 Feet

I

I
I
I

(

r
lt
I

I I
/
I J

A
NORTH
2021 Aerial Photo

This map shows the approximate relative locatwn ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared bya professwnal land surveyor
This map 1sprovidedfor mformatwnalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficent or appropriatefor legal engmeermg
or surveyingpurposes



□□0

NVld 3dV:::>SONV1 TI\ll:l3AO

1:£ ~£9 IM 'Nll>INVH:J
NOSMVH ONV H.L9L

.LN311'1d013A30 1Vl:13N38 SH.LOd
!!!!!!I

#~·
r?
11
i- i -~.
I:!
I
: l•: [
I

'I•
1-z

• w /
al>.=·."i.

w #2-evel7
: :3 (/)
• z
: w.
inmautge t6sp erma tai r r r muspq r

~
g

~nann•au••mnnaanaaa~maom~mnau■I, .

l,
'-
""~•3

~---------------------------------------------------------------_,



■

--------------~-------

LI l
J

i
1
l
j

1N31f,m)HV1N3 NVld 3dVOSONV1

C:E~ES IM 'Nn>INVH::I
NOSMVl:I ONV H.l9L

.lN31/1Jd073A30 7V!:13N30 SH.lOd



1.N3L-'1308VJN3 N\fld 3dV::JSON\fl

<':f:~£9 IM 'Nll>IN'o'l:1::1
NOSM'o'l:I ONV H.L9l

.LN31/11d013A30 1Vl:l3N30 SH.LOd I
g 11 ! I!!

C\I
0
T"""
_J

~~ } z238+S s 3

~8 ~i-.;_+~,.,,. 1'-' 1--r+I,,r-_:+:,il!i!,""'feii..,.f~!M:,~ z ~I
i '

$
~
":ii
I
I
I



lN3~3BllVlN3 NVld 3dV::>SONVl

C:€i€9 IM 'Nll>INVH:l
NOSMVH ONV H1-9L

1-N311\1d073A30 7Vl:l3N30 SH1-0d

■

(I......
I
I J
I
I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
Iy

I

·•
7

"'2g
5m
:;]

i
Iii
"'

□□lm□IIQ


~$
a.$ '
%%w
,., il;

#r,
j
1 I

7 -------------' i- --- %0ii)-~~ 1J1r1
1

---J-'., /

•.<gg

£01.-1 .l33HS lN3W39HVlN3 33S



il

3

Ia.,
JJ

lN31/1l3l'll!VlN3 NVld 3dV::>SONVl

iIM 'N ll>INVl::1.::1
NOSMVH ONV Hl9L

1N311\ld073A30 7VH3N30 SHlOd

EI

IVl3'M3iWWO:>

m
<!)z
9
5m
C
::l
?
gl



tL
9ii
iiiWit
TH E f ff.l

.LN3~3'clHVlN3 NVld 3dV::JSGNVl

ZIS IM 'Nll>INVH:I
NOSMVl:I ONV Hl9L

1N3Wd013A30 7Vl:l3N38 SHlOd I
g II! ! ! I

I

'
8 1 I 3

'a
±

I
i
j

I
j
j

i

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
!
\
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
\
I
i
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

-t---s,_.. - .. ·,.=. ,
901.l.l33HS lN3W39

21
»i
5- ~ II?
&I'i2»
I

~ I
I1.
i
I•
I

1.•

i
i I1 ........

tOt.1133HS
lN3~39~VlN3 33S I

I

•
J)

~ s'

1.
\1

1'r~ [11



~ -i] 1N3V'l3~lftflN3 NVld 3dV::>SONVl "'o ~ ~~oo, couh +# G€~€S IM 'Nll>INVH::I ,I., ;;y g
I i/; ,j b 0_,

a£ %6° " r-111! s; NOSMVH ONV H.L9L ,.,>. ;i, ! g _Jrm! !J ~~ ~~ w > •

TH E l .LN311\ld013/\30 lVH3N30 SH.LOd Q' ~~ ~ I ±l °!! ~!!!I! g ! ! ! ! ! 11 ~ ~ ~

l
i

j
! l

..
I
I
I
'i

,_
z
j
0..

>w
1/.



0

i7ul
iiil
!ml
THE!

.iN3~30~VlN3 NVld 3dV:JSONVl

IS IM 'Nll>INVl:1::1
NOSMVl:I ONV H.L9L

.LN3ll\ld073/\30 7Vl:13N30 SH.LOd

l
, f

J
l
I
I..±±

I

#
L__-=~~=,_____~~~~===-"' =----_L__ _L__ __.__l_L_ LL___,-.~._'>-.,____~::::::::;_~.z5.{;'_~~~'2:±l:.....,__::::::-:~:__u Ji



LNAW3EVIN3 NV4 38v3SONI

IS IM 'NFDNVUJ
NOSMVl:I ONV Hl9L

1N311\1d073A30 lVl:l3N38 SHlOd

co
0,-
_J

I



£u!
iii l
!
THE ;i

1N31,'113~lc!VlN3 NVld 3d\f::>SONVl

i:£~£9 IM 'Nfl>INVH::1
NOSMVH ONV Hl9L

1N3Vlld013A30 1Vl:l3N30 SHlOd 8#
i, 111 !

i
g I!!!! I I

8
t
I
j
l

l

I
Il

l

oo□

ii

-~

l -. I
! II ,
I l; II ,

I
' 'r

l
l l

,~ '. I
··. -I.I ,~··:;·
C, -
r
ge
r
lea ±

<I:
_J5 LIL~~~-~-~-~-~-~-~-~--~~-~~

g

(),::c.,, '-,,..a]--C,."C ,>(',--

1
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I•'-----



0
T"""
T"""

+±.±,'
+±4it+9 ! ! 11

lN311'13~l!VlN3 NVld 3dV::JSONVl

l f:~£9 IM 'Nll>INVH:I
NOSMVH ONV H.L9L

.LN311\ld013A3O 1Vl:l3N30 SH.LOd

II
II
II

Lr

□□1□11□:

r
-I.~.,____.

-=•----=.. ,. '-,

»I
I •I_
I
I
I
L
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
j
I
l

i
i
ii ➔i >I
l ➔ I '

'·ri
i - 't'}
: -> ~ I
I • I_
; ➔ I

I
L
irr
! )
j_
·tI
:- ➔

!r·
t ➔

i

0vO
31VAAd

~
z-0--cA',-- •O,-- -- ,-· -I ~-----
"

I



0 1-o0 -#] S37003H:>S lNVld ll \11:l3AO ~ ~

fi11i1
~,%, ,....

1:€ ~€9 IM 'Nll>INVH:l "I►. 0->' ~ 8 g
i ~ ~

,....
%%6.° " =j 0 ,....

Ill Ii;,: NOSMVl:I ONV H.L9L ">. ~ ~ ....J
I.mi,;,, %. 3 ~ ~ ; i
TH E i p!j£ .LN31'11d073A30 lv'l:13N38 SH.LOd O' ~ g ~1l1 ~I!! 11 !!!!!!! ~ [

• •



SllV130 3dV::>SON\fl

cf:tf:S IM 'Nll>INVl::1::1
NOSMVl:l ONV H.L9L

.LN31/1Jd073A3O 7Vl:13N30 SH.LOd
!!!!!!!

0
0
~

0000 0

lL

CD

w

111==111"311==111==rRUWhal1
311lkm'==111==111 iii,;
11 l=ill=ill=!!Jm f

HIE ?
I

Ill=
ITT~
=IllIla

0

3
16$
t-OoO
~ 0

0 0 0 0



0 S11Vl30 3dV::>SONVl 1-o ~ ~#. ~0o%., 0
1:sisg IM 'Nll>tNVl:l:l ~ ~ ~ " I i i 0%%6° " =I 0 C\J-J,, NOSMVl:I ONV H.L9L _J

"'r.m1U ">. :i,
.!JO .LN311'ld073A30 7Vl:13N30 SH.LOd

~~ #e
TH E J p~ Q'

; ~ 11 ! ! ! !!!!!!!

innnnnun
l lllllllllllll!
] ]HlHllH1H1

•l
1

it..
ii

II

00

i

I~
Io'

00 J
}

ia i

;/;I I\ :5 s 'z m, {
< l £• 4=# 1

VJ •
L_ ___..Jl



SNOllV:Jl=ll:J3dS 3dV:JSONV1

ZLS IM 'Nll>IN'v'H::l
NOSM'v'l:I ON'v' HJ.91

J.N311'ld073A30 l 'v'l:13N30 SHJ.Od

ggg
0 ~~~It

i
l

it?#?

'~

Jllill



wz
I :J
E-
O'.
il'
0

~\

z =O
I- ::J
<( ~>w LL

_J 'w 'z
Zw
015:
- 0I- ....J

±wwn g
H
Q_ w
w i'5
0 (9z g
0 l
o&

Cf)

2
0:r:
(L

z
0
i==
0

l

w

$
:g
z
'.I"8z
<nz
Ow
a.w
00'.
O'.U
a. <n

w
0

3
O'.
::,
in
0
LL.
0

I I I
I I



(")
N
0
N
(")

a:::w
ca
::;;;

- wng
(00

z =O2
f- ::::;
t
> i:2ill lL
_J

w 'z
Zw
Oi:l:
f- g
0~
Lu uu
Cf) ::
f- i:20... w
uu G
0z g
0 l
o ~

en

~:r:
{}_

z
0
i=
0z
0u
(9
z
5
><I

%

I
{}_
w
0z
0
0

<(

"'zg
al
8z
0
0

"'z
i;;
5J

wz
:::,

~
~
~
wz
:::,

wu
!
O'

~
0



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

1/3/24

REPORTS & A Resolution to amend Resolution Nos. 88
3175, 95-4217, 99-4875,

RECOMMENDATIONS 99-4933, 2004-5733 (not recorded), 2004-5736,
and 2015-7074 imposing conditions and

restrictions for the approval of a Special Use
Amendment for properties located at 6381,

6411, 6455 and 6421 South 108th Street to allow
for construction of a 15,360 square foot

expansion of the Hiller Ford parts warehouse
building and associated site paving

modifications upon property located at 6455
South 108th Street (Hiller Ford, Inc. and
Dealership Properties, Inc., Applicants)

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #6

At its December 21, 2023, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of the attached special use amendment resolution for construction of a
15,360 square foot expansion of the Hiller Ford parts warehouse building and
associated site paving modifications, upon property located at 6455 South Lovers Lane
Road (By Hiller Ford, Inc. and Dealership Properties, Inc., Property Owner). The vote
was 4-0-2, four 'ayes', no 'noes' and two absent.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2024- imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a special use amendment for construction of a 15,360 square foot
expansion of the Hiller Ford parts warehouse building and associated site paving
modifications, upon property located at 6455 South Lovers Lane Road (By Hiller
Ford, Inc. and Dealership Properties, Inc., Property Owner).

Department of City Development: NJF



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION NOS. 88-3175, 95-4217, 99-4875,
99-4933, 2004-5733 (NOT RECORDED), 2004-5736, AND 2015-7074 IMPOSING

CONDITIONS ANDRESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL
USE AMENDMENT FORPROPERTIES LOCATED AT 6381, 6411, 6455 AND 6421 SOUTH

108TH STREET TO ALLOW FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A 15,360 SQUARE FOOT
EXPANSION OF THE HILLER FORD PARTS WAREHOUSE BUILDING AND ASSOCIATED

SITE PAVING MODIFICATIONS UPON PROPERTY LCOATED AT 6455 SOUTH 108TH
STREET

(HILLER FORD, INC. AND DEALERSHIP PROPERTIES, INC., APPLICANTS)

WHEREAS, Hiller Ford, Inc. and Dealership Properties, Inc. having petitioned the City of
Franklin for the approval of an amendment to Resolution Nos. 88-3175, 95-4217, 994875, 99-4933,
2004-5733 (not recorded), 2004-5736, and 2015-7074 conditionally approving a Special Use, such
prior Resolutions authorizing an automobile display dealership upon properties located at 6381, 6411,
6455 and 6421 South 108th Street, such properties being zoned M-1 Limited Industrial District and C
l Conservancy District, more particularly described as follows:

Being a part of the Northeast 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section
6, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows:

Commencing at the southeast comer of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 6; thence
North 00°26'45" West along the east line of said Northeast 1/4, 1134.14 feet to the
west right of way line of South 108th Street- South Lovers Lane Road- State Trunk
Highway "100" and the point of beginning;

Thence South 89°30'4l" West along the north line Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No.
7721 and then Outlot A of Certified Survey Map No. 7435, 800.00 feet to the east line
ofParcel 2 ofCertified Survey MapNo. 4056; thence North 00°26'45" West along said
east line, 125.02 feet to the northeast comer of said Parcel 2; thence South 89°30'45"
West along the north line of said Parcel 2, 2.65 feet; thence North 00°26'45" West,
173.02 feet to the south right ofway line ofWhitnall Edge Road; thence North 87°52' 15"
East along said south right ofway line, 103.04 feet to the east right ofway line (terminus)
of said Whitnall Edge Road; thence North 00°26'45" West along said east right of way
line, 30.015 feetto the vacate centerlineofWhitnall Edge Road; thence North 87°52'15"
East along said vacated centerline, 355.79 feet; thence North 01°35'24" West, 200.21
feet; thence South 87°52'15" West, 479.57 feet to the southeast comer of Certified
Survey MapNo. 3988; thence North 03°41'31"



HILLER FORD, INC. AND DEALERSHIP PROPERTIES, INC. - AMENDMENT TO
SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-7074
Page 2

West along said east line, 299.98 feet; thence North 87°52'15" East, 782.57 feet to
aforesaid west right of way line of South 108th Street - South Lovers Land Road 
State Trunk Highway "100"; thence South 00°24'39" East, 119.23 feet to point of
curvature; thence southeasterly along the arc of said curve to the left and said west
right of way line 422.68 feet, whose radius is 2361.83 feet and whose chord bears
South 05°32'16" East, 422.12 feet; thence south 00°26'45" East along said westerly
right of way line, 185.78 feet; thence North 89°33'15" East along said westerly right
of way line, 24.75 feet; thence South 00°26'45" East along said westerly right of way
line, 124.04 feet to the point of beginning.

Containing in all 556,172 square feet (12.7678 acres) ofland, more or less;
Tax Key Numbers: 704-9974-000, 704-9975-000, 704-9976-002, 704-9976003,
704-9976-005, 704-9977-000 and 704-9998-004; and

WHEREAS, such proposed amendment being for the purpose of construction of a 15,360
square foot expansion of the Hiller Ford parts warehouse building and associated site paving
modifications upon property located at 6455 South Lovers Lane Road; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of $15-9.0103D.0fthe Unified Development
Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan Commission on the 21st day of
December, 2023, and the Plan Commission thereafter having determined to recommend that the
proposed amendment to Special Use be approved, subject to certain conditions, and the Plan
Commission further finding that the proposed amendment to Special Use upon such conditions, pursuant
to $15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in harmony with the purposes of the
Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive Master Plan; that it will not have an undue
adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it will not interfere with the development of neighboring
property; that it will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause
undue traffic congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendations and also having found that the proposed amendment to Special Use, subject to
conditions, meets the standards set forth under 15-3.0701 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Hiller Ford, Inc. and Dealership Properties, Inc. for the
approval of an amendment to Special Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to
this Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and
restrictions:



HILLER FORD, INC. AND DEALERSHIP PROPERTIES, INC. - AMENDMENT TO
SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2024
Page 3

I. That this amendment to Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by
Hiller Ford, Inc. and Dealership Properties, Inc., successors and assigns, for the Hiller Ford
building expansion, which shall be developed in substantial compliance with and constructed,
operated and maintained by Hiller Ford, Inc. and Dealership Properties, Inc., pursuant to those
plans City file-stamped December 13, 2023 and annexed hereto and incorporated herein as
Exhibit A.

2. Hiller Ford, Inc. and Dealership Properties, Inc., successors and assigns, shall pay to the
City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees
incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consultants to the City of Franklin, for
construction of a 15,360 square foot expansion of the Hiller Ford parts warehouse building
and associated site paving modifications project, upon property located at 6455 South
Lovers Lane Road, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall
be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to $15-9.0502 thereof
and $1-19. of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as
amended from time to time.

3. The approval grantedhereunder is conditional uponHiller Ford, Inc. andDealership Properties,
Inc. and the Hiller Ford 15,360 square foot expansion of the Hiller Ford parts warehouse
building and associated site paving modifications project, upon property located at 6455
South Lovers Lane Road: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws,
statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental
approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be
developed and as presented for this approval.

4. Final approval of grading, erosion control, storm water management, and utilities, as may
be applicable, shall be granted by the Engineering Department prior to any land disturbance
activities.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Hiller Ford, Inc. and Dealership Properties,
Inc., successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not complywith one or any of the
conditions and restrictions of this amendment to Special Use Resolution, following a ten (I 0) day notice
to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon notice and hearing,
may revoke the additional Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or restriction of this
Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the Unified Development
Ordinance, and pursuant to $15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19. of the Municipal Code, the penalty for such
violation shall be a forfeiture ofno more than $2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together
with such other costs and terms as may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such



HILLER FORD, INC. AND DEALERSHIP PROPERTIES, INC. - AMENDMENT TO
SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
Page 4

violation continues shall be a separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation
shall not be a waiver of that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be an amendment
to such Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance, and that all of the terms and conditions of Resolution Nos. 883175, 95-4217, 99-4875,
99-4933, 2004-5733 (not recorded), 2004-5736, and 2015-7074 not specifically and expressly
amended by or in direct conflict with this Resolution, shall remain in full force and effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.0103G. of the Unified Development
Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall be null and void
upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, unless the Special Use
has been established by way of completion of the construction of the 15,360 square foot expansion
of the Hiller Ford parts warehouse building and associated site paving modifications project, upon
property located at 6455 South Lovers Lane Road.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain the
recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee
County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 3rd day
of January, 2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 3rd day of January, 2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Chairman

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk
AYES_ NOES ABSENT



pg
Franklin

v I S C O N S 4 N

CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of December 21, 2023

Special Use Amendment

Item C.2

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed Special
Use Amendment application, subject to the conditions in the draft resolution.

Project Name:

Project Address:

Applicant:

Property Owner(s):

Current Zoning:

2025 Future Land Use:

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Applicant Action Requested:

Planner:

Introduction:

Hiller Ford- Special Use Amendment

6455 South 108 Street

Hiller Ford, Inc. & Dealership Properties, Inc.

Hiller Ford, Inc. & Dealership Properties, Inc.

M-1 Limited Industrial

Commercial

M-1 Limited Industrial uses to the north, south, and west;
South 108" Street (STH 100) and B-3 Community Business
District to east.

Approval of the Special Use Amendment for construction
of an addition for parts warehouse and truck loading docks
on west end of existing structure.

Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate

Please note:
• Staff recommendations are underlined, mn tales and are included in the draft

resolution.
• Staff suggestions are only underlined and are not included in the draft resolution.

On March 27, 2023, the applicant submitted a Special Use Amendment application to allow for a
building addition to the Hiller Ford car dealership on S. 108th Street.

This application is similar to a Special Use Permit granted in April 2015 via Resolution 2015-
7074, which approved a similar, but smaller, building addition. The property owner, however,
did not move forward with those improvements at that time, but would like to now move forward
with a larger building addition within the same location of the site. As such, the owner has
resubmitted a Special Use Application for Plan Commission and Common Council review.

The 2015 proposed addition was 64' x 100' (6,400 square foot). The currently proposed building
addition has an area of 15,360 square feet and would be used for parts warehousing. The addition
includes overhead doors on the west and north facades as well as a three-dock semi-truck
delivery wall on the west facade. The concrete pavement for the truck well would have an area of
2,800 square feet.



The applicant's submission of site and construction plans and operations plan are attached for
rev1ew.

Project Description/Analysis:
The subject property has an area of approximately 20 acres. The applicant is proposing a one
story, 15,360 square foot building addition on the west side of the existing 41,562 square foot car
dealership building. The building addition has a peak height of20'-8".

The vast majority of the subject property consists of buildings and impervious surfaces. There is
virtually no greenspace onsite, which does not conform to current UDO standards. Note Section
15-3.1008D. of the UDO does not allow for additions or enlargements with respect to yards,
floor area ratio, or any other element of bulk that would increase the degree or extent of its
nonconformity with respect to those bulk regulations. In this case, the proposed addition is
entirely over existing impervious surface. As such, the degree of nonconformity for the site is not
changing.

Generally, staff does recommend and encourage further compliance with standards in these
situations. As such, staff suggests that the applicant remove existing impervious surface located
within the Conservation Easement area on the southwest comer of the site that is outside of the
required area for the proposed truck maneuverability. This would not only add additional
greenspace to the site, but also remove pavement from the 75' Shore Buffer. The Conservation
Easement is discussed further below in this report.

According to the applicant, the proposed hours of operation for the Parts Department are 7:30
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 7:30 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. on Saturdays. It was noted
that employees are in the warehouse until 8:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday, but deliveries are
not accepted at that time.

Regarding the ste mprovements, staffrecommends that the development shall be subect to final
revew and approval by the Engineerng Department.

Landscaping

The applicant is not proposing any additional landscaping with this request.

Section 15-5.0301B.3. of the UDO requires that developments comply with landscaping
requirements, except where building additions adding 10% to 50% of building area may be
allowed an up to 30% reduction. It can be noted that minimal landscaping exists throughout the
property, as a whole, as approved and permitted from previous requests for building expansions
over the years.

Staff estimates 22 parking stalls provided for customer parking, and is not aware of employee
parking, which may occur on any of the Hiller properties. With that, and considering just the 22
spaces and the allowed reduction, 4 Canopy/Shade Trees, 4 Evergreen Trees, 4 Decorative Trees
and 4 Shrubs are required. It is preferred to add these plantings adjacent to Lovers Lane Road,

2



however, there is limited greenspace and areas for plantings. Alternatively, if pavement is
removed within the Conservation Easement area, native plantings could be provided at that
location.

Staff_ recommends that a landscape plan be submatted, for Department of Caty Development
review and approval. that zncludes a mznzmum of five canopy/shade trees. five evergreen trees.
five decoratve trees, and f@ye shrubs.

Lighting

Besides the relocation of one light pole to allow for the proposed truck turning movement, the
applicant is not proposing additional lighting.

Parking

The applicant has added eight parking spaces to the site based upon previous staff comments. As
the use is a car dealership, it appears the number of parking spaces onsite exceeds the parking
required by the UDO, even with the loss of parking due to the addition and potential loss if
pavement is removed within the Conservation Easement. It is up to the owner/operator of the site
to designate sufficient customer and employee parking while leaving the remaining balance of
parking for vehicle storage for the sales operations.

For reference, the UDO suggests a minimum parking ratio of 2 per 1,000 square feet of GFA for
Auto Sales and 0.5 parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of warehouse space.

Conservation Easement

Covenant No. 8 of the existing Conservation Easement document for Hiller Ford states, "The
Grantor hereby agrees that at such time as redevelopment in any form other than the present use
may occur on the subject property, Covenant 7 shall be considered null and void and the full
covenants, terms, conditions, and restrictions set forth in this grant shall become binding upon
the conservation easement lands".

Covenant No. 7 was intended to allow existing pavement/parking within the conservation
easement area to remain when Hiller Ford was remodeled and expanded in 2015 via Resolution
No. 2015-7074.

The Plan Commission should determine whether the proposed warehouse addition constitutes
"redevelopment in any form other than the present use" as contemplated in Covenant No. 8 of the
Conservation Easement and make a recommendation to the Common Council accordingly.

It can be noted that this is substantially the same project as proposed in 2015, which was not
being considered redevelopment as it was approved along with the Conservation Easement at that
time.

Architecture

3



The proposed building exterior consists primarily of painted smooth face concrete masonry unit
(CMU) block. The applicant is proposing continuing the existing building color on the north,
south, and west elevations. The applicant is proposing a grey color to match the existing facade
color.

According to the applicant, no rooftop mechanicals are proposed that would require screening.
Also, no additional dumpsters are proposed that would require enclosures onsite.

Signs

The applicant is not showing any signage detail on the building facade or any propose signage
changes/additions to account for additional warehouse and truck loading dock use. Chapter 210
of the Franklin UDO states that signs are subject to City review and approval.

The applicant will be responsible for obtaining a Sign Permit prior to any signage installation.

Staff Recommendation:
City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed Special Use Amendment, subject
to the conditions contained within this report.

4



,,,,.Franklin
f

WISCONSIN

6455 S. 108th Stret
TKN: 704 1014 000

I

ttllff Iii'

er4Ill"

:~ ~~- ~;J;ii~,_;r~--~-
s. 853~,

± 1..·r_
~f;J;._•

i..
43.

J ~~- 1.c' i\
"$$ + s

... ½
' ),,'

\
\
\
\

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 120 240 480 Feet A
NORTH
2021 Aerial Photo

This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared bya professwnal land surveyor
This map sprovidedfor mformallonalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engmeermg
or surveyingpurposes



,,,,.
,,,,, Franklin..,

WISCONSIN

6455 S. 108th Stret
TKN: 704 1014 000

--, \.-•~-~ arr .,J ,,, --
»g. artist -- .....-,-...-- -- • rec l e

I
•o- ta.. .r..az ·c.-

Property lI
\

I 'A

! \
\

l
\ I \t \ I

i \ i

I \ \ \
\

l \ \\

\\ \
\ \\\
l

I I \

- 4 \
\
\
i

\
\ \

I
\ \ \

' \
\ @ \ I

£ \ \ !
i \ \ !
t \ \

\
\

! !
\ \ \

s"
I
\

e@ \ \

\
\

' \

I
\

I

\ I\

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 120 240 480 Feet A
NORTH
2021 Aerial Photo

This map shows the approximate re/alive localton ofproperty
boundanes but was notprepared bya professwnal land surveyor
This map tsprovidedfor formatonalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropnatefor legal engmeermg
or surveyingpurposes



APPLICATION DATE:
Planning Department g

9229 West Loomis Road 1.,".a+ ' i ! F ! I I I U i

Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 Franklingeneralplanning@franklinwi gov
(414) 425-4024 ..,
franklmnwi gov w I s C 0 N s I N

COMMON COUNCIL REVIEW APPLICATION
PROJECT INFORMATION [print legibly]

APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES] APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON]
NAME

Jay Hiller NAME Justm L Johnson, P E

COMPANY
Hiller Ford, Inc & Dealership Properties, Inc COMPANY JSD Professional Services, Inc

MAILING ADDRESS 6455 South 108th Street MAILING ADDRESS W238N1610 Busse Road, Suite 100

CITY/STATE Franklin ZIP WI CITY/STATE Waukesha, WI ZIP 53188

PHONE 414-425-1000 PHONE 262-513-0666

EMAIL ADDRESS jay@hillerford com EMAIL ADDRESS justin johnson@Jsdmc com

PROJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION
PROPERTY ADDRESS 6455 South 108th Street TAX KEY NUMBER 704 1014 OOO

PROPERTY OWNER Hiller Ford, Inc & Dealership Properties, Inc PHONE 444-425-1000

MAILING ADDRESS 6455 South 108th Street EMAIL ADDRESS jay@hillerford com

CITY/STATE
Franklin, WI

ZIP
53132

DATE OF COMPLETION

APPLICATION TYPE

Please check the application type that you are applying for

□Concept Review D Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment D Planned Development District□ Rezoning

~ Special Use/ Special Use Amendment□ Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment

Most requests require Plan Commissmn review and Common Council approval
Applicant is responsible for providing Plan Commission resubmittal materials up to 12copies pending staff request and comments

SIGNATURES
The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this apphcation are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge, (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application, and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently issued
building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval By execution of
this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(es) between the hours of 7 00 a m and 7 00
p m daily for the purpose of inspection while the application is under review The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has been posted against
trespassing pursuant to Wis Stat $943 13
(The applicant's signature must befrom a Managing Member if the business is an LLC, orfrom the President or Vice President if the business is a corporation. A signed
applicant's authorization letter may be provided in lieu of the applicant's signature below, and a signed property owner's authorization lettermay be provided in heu
of the property owner's signature[s] below. lfmore than one, all of the owners of the property must sign this Application)

0 I, the applicant, certify that I have read the following page detailing the requirements for plan commission and common council approval and
submrttals and understand that incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed,, .

PR:~PERT~OWNER SIGNATUR~ APPLICJff SIGNATURE

7 -1• A /}
{

/\My & Tm Jay Hiller, President
DATE 3-24-23 I wwmud pa DATE 3-24-23Jay Hiller, resident

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE AICANT REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE~
r_ C ~,

NAME & TITLE DATE NAME &TITLE
Justin L Johnson, Associate

DATE 3-24-23



CITY OF FRANKLIN APPLICATION CHECKLIST
If you have questmns aboutthe application materials please contactthe planning department

CONCEPT REVIEW APPLICATION MATERIALS
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
□ $250 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include

□ Three (3) project narratives
□ Three (3) copies of the Preliminary Site/Development Plan of the subject property(ies) and immediate surroundings on 8"X11" or 11Xx

17 paper (i e., a scaledmap identifying thesubject propertyand immediate environs, including existing and proposed parcels, existmg and proposed
structures, existing and proposed land uses, existing andproposed zoning, existing and proposed infrastructure and ut1lities[approximate locations only],
and existing and proposed site conditions/site constraints [i e approximate locations ofpublic road access, rights-ofway, natural resources/green space
and drainage issues/concerns, etc]}

D Three (3) colored copies of building elevations 0n 11"X17paper ifapplicable
[] Emal or flash drive wrth all plans / submittal materials

COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN AMENDMENTAPPLICATION MATERIALS
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
□ $125 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin
□ Word Document legal description ofthe subject property
D Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include

[I Three (3) project narratives
D Three (3) folded copies of a Site Development Plan/ Map, drown to reasonablescale, at least 11"X 17 paper or as determined by the City Planner

or City Engmeer, identifying thesubject propertyand immediate environs, including parcels, structures, land use, zoning, streets and utilities, and natural
resourcefeatures, as applicable

□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials
D Additional information as may be required

• Requires a Class I Public Hearing Notice at least 30 days before the Common Council Meeting

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (PDD)
D This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
D Appl1cat1on fee payable to the City of Franklin [select one of the following]

D $6,000 New PDD
D $3,500 PDD Major Amendment
[J $500 PDD Mmnor Amendment

DWord Document legal description ofthe subject property
D Three (3) complete collated sets of apphcat1on materials to include

D Three (3) project narratives
D Three (3) folded full size, of the Site Plan Package, drawn to scale copies, on 24" x36"paper, including Building Elevations, Landscape Plan, Outdoor

Lighting Plan, Natural Resource Protection Plan, Natural Resource Protection Report, etc (SeeSections 15 7 0101, 15 7 0301, and 15 5 0402 of the UDOfor
mformat1on that must be denoted or included with each respective plan)

D One (1) colored copy of the building elevations on 11"X 17"paper, f applicable
D One (1) copy of the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations, ifapplicable (see d1v1sion 15 3 0500 ofthe UDO)
[] Email or flash drive with all plans / submittal materials

• PDD and Major PDD Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a pubhc hearing, and Common Council approval
• Minor PDD Amendment requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval

REZONING
D This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
DO Application fee payable to the City of Franklin [select one of the following]

D $1,250
[ $350 one parcel residential

□ Word Document legal description of the subject property
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include

[] Three (3) project narratives
D Three (3) folded copies of a Plot Plan or Site Plan, drawn to reasonable scale, at least 11"X 17 paper or as determined by the City Planner

or City Engineer, and fullyd1mens,oned showing the area proposed to be rezoned, its location, its dimensions, the location and classification of adjacent
zoning districts, and the location and existing use ofallproperties within 200 feet ofthe oreo proposed to be rezoned

[] Email or flash drive with all plans / submittal materials
Dl Additional information as may be required
• Additional notice to and approval required for amendments or rezoning in the FW, FC, FFO, and SW Districts
• Requires a Class II Pubhc Hearing notice at Plan Comm1ss1on



SPECIAL USE/SPECIAL USE AMENDMENTAPPLICATION MATERIALS
!!!!I This application form accurately completed with signatures orauthorzatton letters (see reverse side formore details)
!!!!I Application fee payable to the City of Franklin [select one of the following]

□ $1,500 NewSpecial Use>4000 square feet
$1,000 Special Use Amendment

LI $750 New Special Use < 4000 square feet
!!!!I Word Document legal descnption of the subject property
□ Word Document legal descnpt1on of the subject property
!!!!I One copy of a response to the General Standards, Special Standards, and Considerationsfound in Section 15 3 0701(4), (B), and (C} ofthe UDO available
at www.franklinwi qav
!!!!I Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include

!!!!I Three (3) project narratives
!!!!I Three (3) folded copies of the Site Plan package, drawn to scale at least 24" X 36", Thesubmittal should include only those plans/items as set
forth in Section 15-7 0101, 15-7 0301 and 15-5 0402 ofthe UDOthat ore impacted by the development (e g, Site Plan, Building Elevations, Landscape
Plan, Outdoor Lighting Plan, Natural Resource Protection Plan, Natural Resource Protection Report, etc

!!!!I One (1) colored copy of the building elevations on 11"X 17"paper, if applicable
Email or flash drivewith all plans / submittal materials

DJ Additional information as may be required

• Special Use/Special Use Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a Public Hearing and Common Council approval

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) TEXT AMENDMENT APPLICATION MATERIALS
[] Thus application form accurately completed with signatures orauthorization letters (see reverse side formore details)
□ $200 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin
D Three (3) project narratives, including description oftheproposed text amendment. Requires a Class II Public Hearing notice at Plan Comm1sson. The City's Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) ts available atwww franklinwi gov



JSD
MEMORANDUM

Milwaukee Regional Office
W238 Nl610 Busse Road, Suite 100

Waukesha, WI 53188
262 513.0666

Date:

To

From:

RE:

June 1, 2022

Department of City Development
Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Principal Planner

Justin L. Johnson, P.E., JSD Professional Services, Inc.

Staff Comments - Special Use Amendment- Hiller Ford, 6455 South 108th Street

1. Please provide a Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations worksheet. The "Site Intensity and
Capacity Calculation" worksheets are required under Division 15-3.0500 and are used for
determining the maximum site intensity, or development capacity, of the site. Please fill
out and document this by utilizing Table 15-3.0505 (see below for numbers to utilize when
filling out).

Table 15-3 0309

Type of Standard

M-1 Limited Industrial District Development Standards

Landscape Surface Ratio and Floor Area

I Standard

Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR) o 4
Alternative Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR) with Required Mitigation (See $ 15-5 0302E) 0 3

Maximum Gross Floor Area Ratro (GFAR) o 42(a)
Maximum Net Floor Area Ratio (NFAR) o 85(a)

Takung into consideration the multiple properties under Hiller Ford ownership in th1s
location, the proposed project complies with the coverage requirements of the M-1 zoning.
See attached Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations worksheet and plan

Lighting

1. Please provide a lighting plan for all exterior lighting (cut sheets, placement, etc.} in
accordance with Section 15-5.0402.
Lighting modifications mn thus proposed plan will consist only of the relocation of one light
pole, which Is mn conflict with the proposed truck turning movements Additional lighting Is
not proposed.

General Planning Comments

1. Parking (See 15-5.0203); For proposed parts warehouse use, please demonstrate there
would be an achieved a parking space standard of 0.5/1,000 square feet of GFA
(0.5/15,360sf = 8 spaces}.
Eight employee parking stalls have been added to the plan, as requested.

Wisconsin • Illinois • Idaho
www.jsdinc.com

Ee



JSD
Hiller Ford , 6455 South 108 Street

Franklin,WI
May 23, 2023

Page 2

2. Suggestion: Best Practice for Landscaping could include softening the view of the proposed
new building addition by placing foundation plantings (shrubs, grasses, perennials,
ornamental trees, etc.) along the north facade.
The north facade receives little sunlight and will see salt and constant vehicle operations.
Growing and maintaining plantings in that location will be problematic That said, the
owner is willing to add foundation planting beds along the north wall of the expansion if
required to do so.

3. Please submit truck turning movements for anticipated typical semi maneuvers.
Truck turning movements have been added to the revised plans.

4. Condition No. 8 of the existing Conservation Easement document for Hiller Ford states, "The
Grantor hereby agrees that at such time as redevelopment in any form other than the
present use may occur on the subJect property, Covenant 7 shall be considered null and
void and the full covenants, terms, conditions, and restrictions set forth in this grant shall
become binding upon the conservation easement lands". Based on the orientation of the
proposed building addition, truck turning movements will be partially located upon
pavement within the existing conservation easement area. Please submit an alternate
loading dock location to accommodate truck movements outside of conservation easement
areas for consideration per 15-5.0205.
The condition referenced in No. 8 of the Conservation Easement document was intended to
apply to the stte mn a srtuatton where the srte was being redeveloped for another use lt was
not intended to apply to an expansion of the current use. Condition No. 8 specifically and
intentionally states" .. redevelopment in any form other than the present use ... ". This
expansion 1s merely an extension of it's current use and 1s not a new use. In that regard, we
respectfully disagree with the premise that the lands within the conservation easement
area have to be restored to native condition at the present time. We continue to agree,
however, that said lands will be restored rf and when the property is redeveloped in the
future.

5. Please note that if the Plan Commission determines that this proposal constitutes
"redevelopment in any form other than the present use" as contemplated in Covenant No.
8 of the Conservation Easement, the applicant would need to submit a restoration plan of
the conservation easement area, including but not limited to the removal of existing
pavements and structures and natural resource restoration standards as prescribed m the
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 15-4.0103.
Understood.

6. If any mechanicals are proposed on the roof, please provide for adequate screening per 15
3.0355 (A)(7.).
There are no roof top mechanicals proposed for the building expansion



JSD
Hiller Ford , 6455 South 108" Street

Franklin,WI
May 23, 2023

Page 3

7. If any dumpsters are to be provide on the property, please provide for screening meeting
zoning code requirements per 15-3.0355 (A)(7.).
Understood. No add1t1onal dumpsters are proposed.

8. Please add information to the project narrative specifying delivery frequencies and hours of
operation for new parts warehouse use per 15-7.0101.
Narrative has been updated. There are no changes to delivery frequencies and hours of
operation for new parts warehouse facilities.

Engineering Department

1. See attached letter.
See attached responses.

Inspection Services Department

1. Structure shall be designed and constructed mn accordance with the Wisconsin Commercial
Building Code.
Understood.

2. Project will require separate Building, HVAC, Plumbing and Electrical Permits.
Understood.

Fire Department

1. Franklin Fire Department Construction and Alteration Requirements {2021-2022}
1. Follow all relevant WI DSPS and IBC code requirements for fire protection systems for
given occupancy, use, and construction types.

Understood.

2. Pre-existing fire alarm and fire sprinkler systems shall be maintamned mn compliance wrth
relevant code.

Understood.

FIre Extinguisher placement as per NFPA 10.
Understood

Fire Department Connection (FDC), and hydrant placement and density must be acceptable
to AHJ (applies to new construction).
Understood.



JSD
Hiller Ford , 6455 South 108 Street

Franklmn, WI
May 23, 2023

Page 4

3. At no time may any Hazardous, Combustible, or Flammable Materials exceed allowable
quantities.

Understood.

Master Key set required for placement in Knox Box (if required).
Understood.

Permitting and submittal instructions for fire protection system review and inspection can
be found at: https://www.franklinw.gov/Departments/Fire.htm
Understood.

Police Department

1. The PD has no comment regarding this request.
No response needed.



IIIIIJSD
Engineering Department

Hiller Ford , 6455 South 108" Street
Franklin , WI
May 23, 2023

Page 5

• See WDNR regulation (NR 151.125)-the impervious surface is not allowed within 50
feet of a delineated wetland.
Per the Wetland Delineation Report conducted for the 2015 site improvements (R.A.
Smith National, dated August 27, 2015), the subject wetland (designated W-3) should be
considered "moderately susceptible". Under NR 151.125(d, e, and f}, "less susceptible"
wetlands (those not deemed "highly susceptible") are subject to a wetland setback of
"10 percent of the average wetland width, but no less than 10 feet nor more than 30
feet". The existing pavement adjacent to the subject wetland Is approximately 20 feet
from the delineated wetland boundary. Furthermore, under NR 151.125(b) the SO-foot
setback requirement from an intermittent stream rs only applied if sad stream Is
1dent1f1ed on USGS or County Soil Survey mapping. The subJect wetland/stream Is not
shown on USGS mapping {see attached). All this considered, we respectfully disagree
with the premise that the existing pavement Is non-compliant with the requirements of
NR 151.

• This may also apply to the existing and proposed storm sewer discharging
directly to wetlands from impervious surfaces without being treated.
The 2015 improvements were exempt from MMSD Chapter 13 and City of
Franklin stormwater management regulations because they did not exceed the
disturbed area or new imperviousness thresholds whch would have triggered
those requirements. It was also exempt from NR151 because It had no
Increased imperviousness.

• If proposing to put the end wall in a wetland, WDNR approval/coordination is
required.
Understood We will pull back the end section so that rt srts outside the wetland
lmmrts

• The gravel area north of the building addition and the road appears to have been added
after 9/24/2001. It appears to be approximately 1 acre of new impervious surface added
since that date which requires a stormwater management plan per Milwaukee
Metropolitan Sewerage District Chapter 13.

• Based on aerials, it appears this may also have been gravel in 1980, but from
1990-2017 this was a grassed area. MMSD staff confirmed this is a new
impervious surface added and is subject to Chapter 13 rules and regulations.
This portion of the property has been gravel since at least 1970, although the
grainy aerial photographs from Milwaukee County GlS mndcate that the gravel
surface may extend as far back as 1963. Through the 195 and 1990 photos, the
subject area was still bemng used for trailer storage. By 2005, vegetation had



JSD
Hiller Ford , 6455 South 108 Street

Franklin, WI
May 23, 2023

Page 6

grown up through the gravel and rt was being mowed to prevent It from
becoming a nuisance. In 2018, the original gravel was refreshed, and in 2022 It
was paved over the existing compacted gravel surface. Given that this portion of
the site is documented as having been gravel for well over fifty years, we
disagree with the application of current MMSD Chapter 13 rules to this area of
the property.

• This area is also within 50 feet of a wetland.
Refer to the response to Engineering Department comment no. 1, above.

• City Design Standards - retaining walls higher than 3 feet required a licensed
professional engineer's approval, stamp, and signature. A guardrail/safety fence shall be
installed along any walls 3 feet in height or more.
A guardrail has been added along the top of the loading dock retaining walls.

• Separate engineering submittal required, application found here
- https · //www.fran kli nwI.gov/F1les/Engineering/Forms/Engineering--Storm-Water
Man agement-Plan-Review-Apphcation-2022. pdf
Understood

• Must submit a plat of survey for review and approval before issuing a building permit.
See required information for the plat of survey submittal
https://www.frankl1nw1 gov/F1les/Eng1neering/Plats-of-Survey-lnformational
Requirements-2022.pdf
Understood.



IIIUSGS
K#l>Ntor,,i,.,,,,;.grnr11

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ntE INT ERIO R
U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY HALES CORNERS QUADRANGLE

WISCONSIN
75-MlNlITESERIES

.s.:,. .-,,.,·0,1 k ·1
u . ' "' ' .._. l3'1

N$. 9s
...,, ,..._ "'°"' ' 0:,,, 0<11< L U IJ

M>:•0,-1 ,..,,., "" ....... •..... , ,;,i-

..,·11::,•
••u

.,,......., ..,DZH- - -..
~•CU T<D,-UllF!l-ff'

0

e,

SCALE 1 24 000

Afcu rte «g ii
Mcqrwtavpgnu2rye9g

1' · -•~wn_,.,.,._,.o coo....,, .,.
,.. ,.... ,. ,.. ...,., T..,.=-,,: S, . :a,.

~
.. ,_
ET
rt, t ee.........,.

-- .o<,.:...- ..« ,,.- _ _... ,...,.,.,~,,,, _

HAL ES CORNERS, WI
20 22



!J

i l
- r

/

I-r IRE CFA,-.,..._

I/-/ I
lk

• I,.

/
(

' +F I~~



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. S'

PREPARED FOR:
HILLER FORD, INC.

6381 S. 108TH STREET
FRANKLIN, WI 53132250'

FEETSCALE INr-~,.,
250' 0

BEING A PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 AND SOUlMEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 6,
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, 'MSCONSIN

PREPARED BY:
JIIJ~.,,.,,, llm.
o_,;.,. a a.;.;,,.: a ,,,,,__,,.

MILWAUKEE REGIONALOFFJCE
N22 W22931 NANCY'S COURT SUITE 3

WAUKESHA. WISCONSIN 53186
262.513.0&66 PHONE f 262 513.1232 FAX

r

I
I

$
6 5

SE CORNER OF
THE NE 1/4 OF
SEC 6-5-21

CONC MON W/
BRASS CAP
N 342,608 50
E 2,522,656 35

r
I

/

S00'24'39"E
119 .23'

800.

.1.QT_J_ /~IPO.B\
.!;Sl,LJIO,...Z721 ~
ZONED M-1 / 2

!,QT 2 \
/

.!;SIU!O~\.i
ZONED M-1

\

--------

S89'3041 W
S89'30'45"W (R

IQ\)1!.Q.T .A
g;t.U!_O,_L4~
ZONED M-1

1...L..kl,,J--1-==-=~
..l'l"-t-+- -WEll.AN D

r

il!L

""lee3%
N87'53'55"E (R) ~N

N87'52'15"E 500 .22'

e 3/4 REBAR
FOUND AS NOTED

LEGEND:
O 1" IRON PIPE FOUND &

ACCEPTEO

I
L

-,
-# ] "Ar
~o o ZONED M-1
~,~ N87'52'15"E 782.57'
"e
~ di:WEll.AN~lBACI\/:::= ~-
!!!:,'f - i/£1,l
r- '<if--eaoefi4--'32-/er,,o ---- '-- «n,IU7SQ.n!iil ;z: SB7"52'15"W (11.2182 ACRES)
\ 27 74' WEll.AND
,_.,.I"""'l \ '1~ i1-\ '1 170.28' """" "'"""'

UNPl&W)_ I.Jlf1! WEllAND - I
Nos. t0a.ass sa Fr. [ I WEll.AND !!llPWlfl!. 'r'
ZONED M-1 (2.112111 ACRES) BUFFER )ANllS.

587'52"15" ZONED M-1
3.01'

srsrs7aes.)t!snm+me#i,3#,1I4.,$215,"6' ;f 587'52 15 W 556.50N02'24'15"
IJ1CA 60.19'

!!!!PLATTED 111,787S2.FT.
.LAND;;- (2.5H3 ACRES)

ZONED M-I N00'26'45"W
173.02' \ \ r.-;;;.gegg',,nan,, au [
« u #333%:d < ?g°g o. oJ +Rea· gR

-- -- -- -- --z~

NE CORNER OF
THE NE 1/4 OF
SEC. 6-5-21

CAST IRON PLUG
W/ CROSS

__ __ __ __ __ _J ~,,,,,11mm111w,,,
1
i

Ns"" cOu",1 "+S ·8,%%.s'$ pi,s %: -} 4
l MILWAUKEE, J~< WI (r-fg

@ 3/4" X 18" REBAR SET ~'1A; · ,Q:$
WEIGHING 150 LBS/FT ¼ 'Vh·----- <:,-.. •

MAG ~..v SuR\Jv~~--,'
'•' MAG NAIL SET Sr,,,,., ,.,;.,;":Ill'",,, .,,,,I(~•'"
(R) RECOROEO AS DIMENSION

THE SUBJECT PROPERTIES ARE ZONEO M-1, LIMITED INDUSlRIAL TRICT AND lHE LJ\ND
IS SERVED BY SANITARY SEWER AND WATER

WETLANDS DELINEATED BY HEATHER PATTI OF RA. SMITH NATIONAL ON APRIL 22, 2015

DATED THIS 30th DAY OF JUNE, 2015
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W RILEY, S-2264 SHEET 1 OF 8



PREPARED FOR;
HILLER FORD, INC

6381 S. 1081H SlREET
FRANKLIN, WI 53132250'

SCALE IN FEETr-----,
250' 0

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No.
BEING A PART OF' lHE NORlHEAST 1/4 AND SOUlHEAST 1/4 Of lHE NORlHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 6,

TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, CITY Of F'RANKUN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

PREPARED BY:
$Sa.as.o..,..,,. 0 :a;;;.,.,. 0 ,..,,,. ,.

MU.WAUKEE REGIONALOFfJCE
N22 W22931 NANCY'S COURT SUITE J
WAUICESHA, WISCONSIN 53186

262.5f3.0888PHONE I 282.513.1232FNC

r

I

[
6 5

SHEET 2 OF 8

SE CORNER OF
lHE NE 1/4 OF
SEC 6-5-21

CONC. MON W/
BRASS CAP
N 342,608.50
E 2,522,656 35

r
IS00"24'39"E

119.23'

B00.00

.I.QT_!_ :! I P.O.B\
,l;!<M___t!O.....Z7Zl .;

zoo wu-1
.!.QT.2. \
/

Q;M_N0.__!!5~
ZONED M--1

\

--------
.l!HPJ.A.TT.IJ1

LANDS
ZONED M-1

NB7'52'15"E 7B2.57'

.!l\lM.T.A
CSMNO,7435
ZONED U-1

NE CORNER OF
THE NE 1/4 OF
SEC. 6-5-21

CAST IRON PLUG
W/ CROSS

r

-wa,luiiilosfli ACK I_ -.- r~ LQ[J_ HATCH INDICATES CONTRDL1.£D ACCESS PER-,--

e» l «• E%2%.%. 1%%% 2% {l, st-o "h (@zs4cs) 8770177 ,8770178. 8770179_9057019_ Ihj, !a 'e 1lse {Fe
«.;;)15 ;,, S"' la! 4 YolDE YolSCONSIN NAllJR=ll I!!
11..!~N OZ \-in GAS COMPANY EASEMENT PER a,I

Ne75395"E (R) 0oc. N0. 380+8 7, Ho
Ns752'15"E 500.22 - -] [

+ea, {Ti] £
"MAI" rs a»o/]1

LANDS '} }
ZONED M-1

MAG NAIL SET

LEGEND:
1 • IRON PIPE FOUND &
ACCEPTED

3/4" REBAR
FOUND AS NOTED

@ 3/4" x18" REBAR SET
WEIGHING 1 50 LBS/FT

MAGs

. 589'30 45 W 589.8B
5B9"J1'25"W (R)

l#g sf
L~---

s8752'15"w
15.46'

(R) RECORDED AS DIMENSION

THE SUBJECT PROPERTIES ARE ZONED M-1, LIMITED INDUSlRIAL DISlRICT AND THE LAND
IS SERVED BY SANITARY SEWER AND WATER

WETLANDS DELINEATED BY HEATHER PATTI OF RA SMllH NATIONAL ON APRIL 22, 2015

DATED THIS 30th DAY OF JUNE, 2015
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W RILEY. S-2264



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. &705

I \,on

i
6 5

1il•g• co
IO r-,.
f'l uiocoo..
(/)

[2 ,\-1-1
' , IO".q-

woo o+>0en

SE CORNER OF
THE NE 1/4 OF
SEC 6-5-21

CONC MON W/
BRASS CAP
N 342,608 50
E 2,522,656 35

800.00'
/

/
/

r.I
L"J

NE CORNER OF
lHE NE 1/4 OF I
SEC. 6-5-21 I

CAST IRON PLUG
W/ CROSS

I

PREPARED FOR;
HILLER FORD, INC.

6381 S 1081H STREET
FRANKLIN, WI 53132

\J7 ~..------,]
_I L __
I LOT2

I 248,574 SQ. FT.
(5. 7065 ACRES)

150'

sa9·30' 41 "wL56

@ 3/4" X 18" REBAR SET
WEIGHING 1 50 LBS/FT

I
LEGEND:

0 1" IRON PIPE FOUND &
ACCEPlED

e 3/4" REBAR
FOUND AS NOlED

(R) RECORDED AS DIMENSION

MAG
MAG NAIL SET

vi..-t-1h1"-:::;::::-:;::::;~ WETLAND
-;... SETBACK

n-t--t---WETLAND
50
1
2

N I,},,,...,

° jo
-=>u 1/)

11,Ji'.5 I>
' ...-~~~~~-;;;:;:;;-;:-;:~-:-]jT-j'C::~-.!,;78~2;.:.:-5TI7r-'---,w Iv-;... Itell N87'52'15"E L5 • -..._ "?

L29t/WETLAND SETBAC~K Lf!ft;
13
7Y'-:: L~~ ~~ :: ~ L

~~~128 f&TLAND m Cl2 1:i7v--c7 ~e ~;26 L30 L2~/ y·,\ o :r: •

~ 0L31 L21 ~L12 0.,.... 1-~
,£.rL32 L20 (I) LL '°

-1 iv»: 0$ 22 [
? { 1'-L2&_. - C14( ,- /',._r.._,_ L14WETLAND ~ 15 ~ I
;;:; ~c1s L:L37 __., c11"- 1~"-L15 LOT t <t ul

·~ ~ --'\~-~~L33 '- ~-X..,L ~J6 401,547 SQ. FT. ~ ~IS..i-\o uo\'%? ss , Ld' o.za3 AcEs) s.
O ' rL41 L35 WE AN !s! ~I~z , l't. c16 L36 BUFFER _ ol• I"

~~ «L~~7----8 T l E~STI:G I n 1 ~1~1~
L43 EXISTING UILQING I • I !Iii"'

WETLAND !l!fillll!ffi. \ t;; I '·1 i
c18 0

WETLAND I ~ ll::I O

l,_.,__I L44 BUFFER ~l~I~
Lu4s le
C19 Ill!
C20 , , j
L46 • ..,. ~
C21

3:::•• IO
¢o .• co

IO NN•..-0
0z

SCALE IN FEETr------,

L6
C2
L6
L6

..--1_co
0? ID
O, _l
Ol

(
\

150' 0

BEING A PART OF lHE NORlHEAST 1/4 AND SOUlHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 6,
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

PREPARED BY:
ff$'p..au»
0 _,._.,0 ........O ,,,,,.,,,,,,...

MILWAUKEE REGlONALOFRCE
N22W22931 NA.'VCYS COURTSUITE J
\'VAUKESJ,fl\,WJSCONSIN53188

m_5f3.0686 PHONEf282.513.1232 FAX

L69
L68
L67
L66
L65
C2
L6
C2
C2

I
~\\\\\11111111111//////J.

@ cOM, "»Ks ·,%.' i' 'A.,s "v ,s z

i* """'"'"· *l
2 v -s,a Os

,:,;:JA; -\ <'-'a.o ·"j%C,77»
TI-IE SUBJECT PROPERTIES ARE ZONED M-1, LIMl1£D INDUSTRIAL
DISTRICT AND lHE LAND IS SERVED BY SANITARY SEWER AND WAlER

DATED THIS 30th DAY OF JUNE, 2015
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W RILEY, S-2264 SHEET 3 OF 8



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No.
BEING A PART OF lHE NORlHEAST 1/4 AND SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORlHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 6,

TOWNSHIP 5 NORTI-1, RANGE 21 EAST, CllY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNlY, 'MSCONSIN

VICINITY MAP

NE 1/4 SEC. 6, T5N, R21E
SCALE 1" = 1,500'

SHEET 4 OF 8

LINE TABLE LINE TABLE LINE TABLE
LINE NO. BEARING DISTANCE LINE NO. BEARING DISTANCE LINE NO. BEARING DISTANCE

L1 s89'30'45"w 2.65' L26 N78"36'56"E 26.07' L48 S03"55'48"W 32.62'

L2 N89°33'15"E 24.75' L27 S88"22'01"E 26.71' L49 S00'58'13"W 38.31'

L3 $6809'08"E 75.00' L28 S8711'42"E 19.29' L50 S0216'42"w 32.80'

L5 N87'52'15"E 320.75' L29 N8652'28"E 39.03' L51 S18"47'44"E 11.93'
L6 S03"41'31"E 128.53' L30 S8646'05"E 26.27' L52 s3506'12"E 20.51'

L7 s0341'34"E 144.86' L31 S89"25'23"E 24.43' L53 S04"22'54"W 28.54'

LS N87'52'15"E 71.88' L32 S81'04'21"E 18.06' L54 S06"20'43"W 31.54'

L9 NO341'31"w 26.59' L33 S8124'17w 21.35' L55 S01'58'33"E 48.53'

L10 N02'07'45"W 65.64' L34 S8913'09"w 23.55' L56 s8930'41"w 35.88'

L11 S80'04'02"E 9.03' L35 $8749'32"w 25.23' L57 S89'30'45"w 59.86'

L12 S29'57'11 "W 7.92' L36 S8856'34"w 35.16' L58 N08'02'53"E 40.71'

L13 S5210'25"W 16.59' L37 N89'43'34"w 25.35' L59 N013721"E 24.80'

L14 $41'46'48"w 19.33' L38 S8902'14"w 24.96' L60 N01'46'41"W 29.43'

L15 $35'46'59"w 24.26' L38 N7819'07"W 24.14' L61 N00'35'20"W 45.84'

Lt6 s3o39'5s0"w 14.79' L40 $4207'56"E 6.81' L62 N03'03'25"E 33.83'

L17 S70"20'07"W 18.17' L41 s3734'23E 24.47' L63 N24'30'14"E 17.63'

L18 N86'48'25"W 21.04' L42 S19"47'45"E 50.14' L64 N20'05'07"W 21.95'

L19 N76'54'14"E 13.09' L43 S08"20'58"E 31.95' L65 NO2'59'18"w 22.29'

L20 N7510'42"E 5.76' L44 S00'01 '1 S"E 51.48' L66 N07"27'34"W 31.86'

L21 N3349'35"E 9.22' L45 s0532'20"w 31.14' L67 NO210'55"W 33.07'

L22 N37'01'33"E 22.45' L46 S20'34'04"E 20.62' L68 N1549'31"w 22.91'

L23 N3340'1"E 20.75' L47 S04'42'15"E 31.97' L69 N38'00'19"W 55.71'

L24 N48"55'21"E 28.72'

L25 N8618'29"E 31.12'
wwuuuumn,coNs"o.Zsa'-- /A:,ss ts» ,

s a
f sa
z

MILWAUKEE i
w ?

%,7 Oe.",gyp8"
so sAss "· "J
ALL BEARINGS ARE REFERENCED l J
EAST LINE OF lHE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF
SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21
EAST WAS USED AS NORTH 00"26'45" WEST.

ALL MEASUREMENlS HAVE BEEN MADE TO
THE NEAREST ONE-HUNDREDTH OF A FOOT.

ALL ANGULAR MEASUREMENTS HAVE BEEN
MADE TO THE NEAREST ONE SECOND

SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESlRICTIONS
OF RECORD.

DATED THIS 30th DAY OF JUNE, 2015
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W RILEY, S-2264



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No.
BEING A PART OF lHE NORlHEAST 1/4 AND SOUlHEAST 1/4 OF lHE NORlHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 6,

TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

CURVE DATA

CURVE NO. LENGTH RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

C1 239.56' 3744.83' 003'39'55" N10"03'17"E 239.52'
C2 157.63' 3759.83' 00224'08" N1301'53E 157.62'

C3 422.68' 2361.83' 01015'14" S05"32'16"E 422.12'

C4 190.10' 3744.83' 00254'31" N09'40'35"E 190.08'

C5 49.46' 3744.83' 000'45'24" N1130'32"E 49,46'

C7 57.61' 30.00' 11001'13" S25'03'26"E 49.16'

ca 11.63' 30.00' 022'13'15" S41"03'48"W 11.56'

C9 20.77' 30.00' 039'40'16" S50'29'59"W 20.36'

c10 11.97' 30.00' 022'51'28° S81'45'51"W 11.89'

C11 85.72' 30.00' 16342'39" N457'06"w 59.39'

C12 7.99' 30.00' 015'15'02" N4117'49"E 7.96'

C13 26.71' 30.00' 051'00'37" N7425'39"E 25.84'

C14 85.07' 30.00' 16228'38° S0"09'58"W 59.30'

C15 82.17' 30.00' 156'56'03" N0'08'55"E 58.79'

C16 9.31' 30.00' 01746'37° $2841'04E 9.27'

C17 5.99' 30.00' 011"26'47" S14'04'22"E 5.98'

C18 4.36' 30.00' 008'19'40" S411'08" 4.36'

C19 17.37' 30.00' 03311'01" S22'07'5D"W 17.13'

C20 12.48' 30.00' 02350'02" S32'29'05"E 12.39'

C21 6.31' 30.00' 015'51'49" S12'38'09"E 8.28'

C22 4.52' 30.00' 008"38'03" s023'13E 4.52'

C23 20.67' 30.00' 039'29'06" S15'21'39"E 20.27

C24 11.23' 30.00' 02126'49" N13'46'50"E 11.16'

C25 7.44' 30.00' 014'13'07" N31 '36'48"E 7.43'

C26 12.73' 30.00' 02418'59" N3214'37"w 12.64'

C27 8.95' 30.00' 017'05'49" N11'32'12"W 8.92'

VICINITY MAP
.ppwuutuu
%e.cos%e

EARING Ass s'al" '@%,
ALL BEARINGS ARE REFERENCED To s %
THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST jj ~
1/4 OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP s g }@
NORlH, RANGE 21 EAST WAS USED ~
NORTH 0026'45" WEST. E5 s

? o-=9e.#r, 6%
A FOOT, '•-%,;.,()SUD-~-&>-

, t •ALL ANGULAR MEASUREMENTS HAVE "tun Av?
BEEN MADE TO TiiE NEAREST ONE ,.v'\ .
SECOND. I
SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND
RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD.

DATED THIS 30th DAY OF JUNE, 2015
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W RILEY, S-2264

NE 1/4 SEC. 6, T5N, R21E
SCALE 1" = 1,500'

SHEET 5 OF 8



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No.
BEING A PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 AND SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 6

TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN '

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

State of Wisconsin )
}SS

County of Milwaukee )

I, Crag W Ruley, Professional Land Surveyor, do hereby certfy that I have surveyed, drvded and mapped a part of the
Northeast 1/4 and Southeast l/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Sect1011 6, Townslnp 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklm,
Milwaukee County, W1sconsm, bounded and descnbed as follows

Commencmg at the southeast comer of the Northeast 1/4 ofsa1d Sechon 6, thence North 00°26'45" West along the east
]me of said Northeast 1/4, 1134 14 feet to the west nght of way !me of South 108th Street. South Lovers Lane Road
State Trunk Highway "100" and the pomt ofbegmnmg,

Thence South 89°30'41" West along the north lme Lot l of Certified Survey Map No 7721 and then Outlot A of Certified
Survey Map No 7435, 800 00 feet to the east lme of Parcel 2 of Certified Survey Map No 4056, thence North 00°26'45"
West along said east !me, 125 02 feet to the northeast comer of saud Parcel 2, thence South 89°30'45" West along the north
!me of said Parcel 2, 2.65 feet, thence contumng South 89°3O45" West along the north lme of said Parcel 2, 589 68 feet to
a pomt on the east nght of way lne of West Forest Home Avenue and to pomt of curvature, thence northeasterly along the
arc of said curve to the nght and said east nght of way !me 239 56 feet, whose radms 1s 3744 83 feet and whose chord
bears North 10%03'17 East, 239 52 feet, thence South 8752'15" West along said east nght of way, 15 46 feet to pomt of
curvature, thence northeasterly along the arc of said curve to the nght and said east right of way !me 157 63 feet, whose
radms 1s 3759 83 feet and whose chord bears North 13°01'5311 East, 157 62 feet to the south lme of Parcel 2 of Certified
Survey Map No. 3988, thence North 87°52'15" East along said south line, 500.22 feet to the southeast corner of said Parcel
2, thence North 03°41'31" West along the east line of sad Parcel 2, 299 98 feet; thence North 87°52'15" East, 782 57 feet
to aforesaid west nght of way line of South 108th Street - South Lovers Land Road - State Trunk Highway "I 00", thence
South 00°24'3911 East, 119 23 feet to pomt of curvature, thence southeasterly along the arc of said curve to the left and said
west nght of way hne 422 68 feet, whose radius 1s 2361 83 feet and whose chord bears South 05°32'16" East, 422 12 feet,
thence South 00°26'45" East along said westerly nght of way lune, 185 78 feet, thence North 8933'15" East along said
westerly right of way !me, 24 75 feet, thence South 00°26'4511 East along said westerly nght ofway hne, 124 04 feet to the
pomt ofbegmmng.

Contammg mall 871,763 square feet (20 0129 acres) ofland, more or less

All subject to easements and restrcttons of record and potent1al future road wdenmng and government restrctons, 1f any

That I have made such survey, land drvaston and map by the direction of Huller Ford, Inc and Dealership Properties, Inc
owners of sad land

That such map 1s a correct representation of all extenor boundanes and the land surveyed and the land d1v1s10n thereof
made

That I have fully complied with the provsons of Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin Statutes and DIvs1on 15-7 0700 of the
City of Frankhn Umficd Development Ordinance mn surveymg, drvdmng and mappmg the same

DATED THIS 30th DAY OF JUNE, 2015

Professional Land Surveyor, S-2264

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W RILEY, S-2264 SHEET 6 OF 8



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No.
BEING A PART OF lHE NORlHEAST 1/4 AND SOUlHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 6,

TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

CORPORATE OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

Hiller Ford, Inc, a W1sconsm Corporation and existing under and by virtue of the Laws of the State of W1sconsm, as
owner, certifies that said corporation caused the land descnbed on this map, to be surveyed, drvded, and mapped as
represented on this map, m accordance with the prov1S1ons of Chapter 236 of the W1sconsm State Statutes and
D1V1s1on 15-7 0700 of the City ofFranklm Umfied Development Ordmance

Hiller Ford, Inc aW1sconsm Corporation

~ 0...-,, S~'/ \J,,lt•i< q,.,,,l,i,-------
state ofw;l/4,.Un~)

t ) ss
'{W~county )

Personally came before me thls _JP!!_ daykre% 2015, the above nameda · -~ ,
_______, and-=---~..----' \,L\\tr~~. , of the above na~rporat10n, to me
known to be sucby:'A!/;.f/tO&J>I, and of said corporation, and acknowledged that they
executed the foregomg instrument as such officers as the deed of said corporation by its authonty

Noracy Pobho, k.- cs.hull,o
My Corrumss10n Expires £ c> /·I{,

CORPORATE OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

Dealership Properties, Inc , a W1sconsm Corporation and existing under and by virtue of the Laws of the State of
W1sconsm, as owner, certifies that said corporation caused the land descnbed on thls map, to be surveyed, drvded,
and mapped as represented on tlus map, m accordance with tlte prov1S1ons of Chapter 236 of the WIsconsmn State
Statutes and DIvs1on 15-7 0700 of the City ofFranklm Unified Development Ordmance

Dealership Properties, Inc , aWisconsin Corporation

~ ,_,___:_· JJ
State ofW.kt<~✓ )

0»u.to '. County )
ss

Noury Pobho, jL.,,,~j Coo,ty.~
I WI.s e..t)l'}.5,ln

My Comrmss10n Expires §r fJ/ Ir,

Personally came before me di 3a day ofn=
, and._.l»ransea #eO7Gat"trcoreoranons, «o4 aetno»tease4 wt e»

executed the foregomg mstrument as such officers as the deed of said corporation by its authon~ill'I
•~\\\\\\\., ' 111//t!/lscows%%p,sw i

~ %#e ±%
E =
ES MIL KEE, sz<' w 2s
%%, Oas
N s$

-SU~/i;iiPJi;/4\\\\\\ \ I

SHEET 7 OF 8
DATED THIS 30th DAY OF JUNE, 2015
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W RILEY, S-2264



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No.
BEING A PART Of lHE NORlHEAST 1/4 AND SOUTHEAST 1/4 Of THE NORlHEAST 1/4 Of SECTION 6,

TOWNSHIP 5 NORlH, RANGE 21 EAST, CllY Of FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNlY, WISCONSIN

CITY OF FRANKLIN COMMON COUNCIL APPROVAL

This Certified Survey Map 1s hereby approved by the Common Council of the City of Frank.Im, on this~day of
li:Pl?IL. ,201s; ~esolu:hoh/V'o, rf<OIS- 70/S.

By &al<---~..._
St6lihen01, Mayor

»» do.haleaaaa
Sandra L Wesolowsla, City Clerk

DOC.# 10475730
RECORDED 07/01/2015 11 11AM

JOHN LAFAVE
REGISTER OF DEEDS

Milwaukee County, WI I
/\MOUNT 30.00
FEE EXEMPT#·

Date

Date b/4Jo/4?.01sl/

~\\\i\\llllllllf l////f/l •"coo.s "toeff ~v ff ~~s
$1 ~~~
§* l/4 i
\ < MILVJ~~KEE, 9:'J
% o,$-:<'1,1, ,;;:~ -~o smm

DATED THIS 30th DAY OF JUNE, 2015
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY CRAIG W RILEY, S-2264 SHEET 8 OF 8



STATE OF WISCONSIN
\1ILWAUKEE COUN1Y
l the undemgnetl Reg1Stcr of Deeds ofMilwaukee
County hereby certify that thus docment s a true
and correct copy of the orgnal on fiJe or record i
ny office Witness my and and ofncal seal this

--JUL 12015

RESISTER OF DEEDS
JOIIH LA FAVE

07/01/2015 11 1 JAIi

10475730 CERTIFIED SURVEY H8P40 00

CERTIFIED U!SC FEE $1 0¢

CERTIFIED toPV FEE $9 00
RECORDIHG FEE $30 00

TOrnL S40 00

CASH $40 00

PHONE# 278-4005
912123



w
I-
<
0

I-
iii
:::c><w
w
()
<a..en
z
w
w
0:::
(!)

Qen..,
r 1

J

I

j'
I
I

1111.__::__ i '"'111 I_ t ,_-.r ltfl I tr l I
: 1111111~I
I

. · 1111 II%lm
IrnAt t

-~~'1 J:f"1·r •-·
i:--;;i-....:, 1-:--~ ~,..~_,. .,,.'"...
----; gg

r-r

#y
;,«ce· i

. .

MM w.%°
";+a

----- -- ---- - --
,,.. .,,. ~~ ' d •n J., ij l h ,; '?"'Y..C· ' " :,



'
Q j z. "'' it V>• az

U) # 3+ f ~

--- # l1..., ~ 46i §• ;ri ,,,.
±±r1 I ' {)'.;

< ~~::e

l
I :11111111111111111
2 -1- 1-1- 1 ...1- 1 .. 1- 1-/.l:,l~l~l~I: :?I

0
T""><jW
i

,,--

rt I.,,.-..•

.,.

~

]-~a'7°

'

_,.,,-\ 1111 11
r: ~111111111116G

' le,-..,
'I
'.1
~-,,-

I
I-,a,.,:·
1
1
I
I
I
I

~~---_-_,we
_"rrren-4
( :

I
I

f '.fu:: c: 11·:\Ff. s I



JSD
Mark Carstensen Developments, LLC
9130 Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Hiller Ford Phase II
Legal Description of Lot 2, C.S.M. 8705

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 8705, recorded in the Waukesha County Register of
Deeds as Document No. 10475730, being part of the Northeast ¼ and Southeast ¼ of
the Northeast¼ of Section 6, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Southeast corner of said ¼ Section, thence N00"26'45"W along the
East line of said¼ Section 1134.23 feet to the Point of Beginning of lands to be described;
thence S89°30'41"W 800.00 feet, thence N00°26'45"W and parallel with said East line
125.02 feet, thence S89"30'45W 2.65 feet; thence N00°26'45"W and parallel with said
line 173.02 feet; thence N87°52'15"E 459.42 feet, thence N01"35'24W20.00 feet, thence
N87"52'15"E 249.79 feet; thence S68709'07E 75.00 feet to a point on the West line of
South 108" Street; thence S00"26'45"E along said Westerly line and parallel with the said
East line of said ¼ Section 185.78 feet; thence N89"33'15"E 24.75 feet to a point on said
East line; thence S00"26'45"E along said east line 124.04 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Lands containing 248,574 square feet or 5.7065 acres

L'\Planning Department\Property Files\108th Street\06455 Hiller Ford\2023 SU Amend\CC Packet 1 3-2024\12 Legal Descnpt1on (2023-03-24) docx



DIVISION 15-3.0700

SECTION 15-3.0701

SPECIAL USE STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

GENERAL STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES

A. General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to
this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following:

1. Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and
development will be in harmonywith the general and specific purposes for which this Ordinance
was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning district in question were established
and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan or
element thereof.

Response: Theproposed use is identical to the existing use.

2. No UndueAdverse Impact. The proposeduse and development will not have a substantial or undue
adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the area, or the
public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially diminish and impair
property values within the communityor neighborhood.

Response: The proposed use and development are consistent with the existing property use.
The vacation ofa portion of Whitnall Edge Road is essentially the completion of
a previous street vacation process. Several years ago, the City of Franklin
approved the vacation of this section of Whitnall Edge, however the documents
were never recorded. This project completes that process and cleans up titlefor
the properties adjacent to this section of roadway. By virtue of the proposed
exterior upgrades and interior remodel being proposed, this project should have
a positive effect on surrounding property values

3. No Interferencewith Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be
constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to interfere
with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning
district regulations.

Response: Existing traffic and access patterns in and around the property are being
maintained, and as such no negative impacts are expected to adjacentproperties.

4. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including
public water supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal, public
parks, libraries, schools, and other public facilities and utilities or the applicant will provide
adequately for such facilities.

Response: Public street access is provided to the separate interior property by the existing
Whitnall Edge Road public right-of-way connection to West Forest Home
Avenue. Saidproperty will also be allowed continued access to South 198/ Street
via proposed cross-access easement across the vacated Whitnall Edge Road
lands.

Page [1



5. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets. Adequate
measures will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic
congestion in the public streets.

Response: Because theproposal consists ofprimarily a building remodel, with only minor
building expansion, no significant traffic increases are expected.

6. No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in
the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant
importance.

Response: The entire project area currently consists ofpavement. No natural resource
impacts areproposed.

7. Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the
applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may,
in each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations of the
Plan Commission. The proposed use and development shall comply with all additional
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Division and Ordinance authorizing
such use.

Response: Theproposed improvements comply with all applicable standards.

B. Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations authorize
a special use in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as having special
standards, as set forth in Section 15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a Special Use
Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be recommended or granted unless the
applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards.

Response:Not applicable.

C. Considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the foregoing
standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall consider the
following:

1. Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the particular
location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is in the interest
of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or
community.

Response: Not applicable.

2. Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the location
of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that may be more
appropriate than the proposed site.

Response: Not applicable.

Page I 2



3. Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been taken
to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate vicinity
through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening.

Response:Not applicable.

4. Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area. Whether the
use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in the
surrounding area.

Response:Not applicable.

Page I 3



JSD
June 16, 2023

Mr. Regulo Martinez-Montilva
City of Franklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Milwaukee Regional Office
W238 NI610 Busse Road, Suite 100

Waukesha, WI 53188
262 513 0666

Subject Special Use PermitAmendment
HillerFord
South 108 street
Franklin, WI
JSD Project No. 22-11572

Dear Regulo:

Enclosed please find our submittal application for a Special Use Permit (SUP) Amendment at Hiller Ford
on South 108 Street in Franklin, Wisconsin. The purpose of the SUP Amendment Is to facilitate the
addrtton of a parts warehouse space mn the existing inventory parking lot at the west side of the existing
shop building The add1t1on will include overhead doors on the west and north faces of the building, and
a three-dock semi-truck delivery well on the west wall. The truck well has been intentionally placed m
thus west-facing location so as to shield its visibility from South 108" Street and customer areas Building
floor plans and elevations are designed to complement the existing building and are enclosed for review.

It should be noted that a smaller version of this add1t1on was included in the approved 2015 proJect,
however, this piece of the project was never built. Hiller Ford has now run out of interior storage space
and desperately needs the add1t1onal secure parts inventory square footage as soon as they can possibly
get 1t To that end, we respectfully request cons1derat1on of the enclosed submittal materials on the most
expedient approval schedule possible.

Should you have any questions or need add1t1onal mformat1on, please don't hesitate to call me Thank
you I

Sincerely,

JSD ProfessionalServices, Inc.

Justin L Johnson, P.E.
Assoc1ate

Enclosures

Wisconsin • Illinois • Idaho
www.jsdinc.com

imN Ee



~U£9 1M "UU)fUlfJ.::I 19LH0£\l>lt) WJ 081.1-'lOi:\Hi,) Rl.■B
l!iJ ~ z ± i9llf5 1M"IISO l2"\fi l?M t 3 <

CM h7JlSS 1"£ n S /\]!/\}~ h'lld ]IVlS £Yt2 11.0
198.QS lll&OI. tgn0S 991'9 3nu3 quoN H ,-

3 L1En s 1NE3LILI Ei!'/ t2 FCQ .i :::>Nl'N81S30 f wlii I ! I I-
,...., l p.1O::1 J811!H 3Al.l.:::>3dScl3d JW JI i4a ' Ag .....,.., ,....., l=i 11!

!:l ll ;,G,";1'?'J,¥JIM» m~~ iitluntul'11\ttla::i~ ;fttlJJB!illJ.,Wi.QWli0"1~ 3'..lNffllQtlO,l!OJ.,... .LQ'3Ml!illQlnGl.111'a::i~ J."IVt.l(li!ff~ DGGQP 'iUIO:l<Nr"Hit~ U'1ttcQll:N"l900 IIOJ..ll"t'GVll ' i;;,::,r...v d ;.'1;~ 9',n:11'71'Dllti=
3'-IO-a<Q/tf'l ,1~ 0 1iw?l'L'G!!1:l:i'J '::t't~ 311CJdi!Bd,¥J~ !W1~~ :illl!:NrffUIOIQltl!QtlnlB-NIM 81:> l.2IO:IJ..WN.LUIUG!tttlJ.l#01<1:N.Jt;Y81:> <JildO:)'CIZt,\'I0~ 31i011Qtiil'!llmlkl$'1'..l ~ i~ 1 1Vl"Qt•,t '/f;li:;(l:VJ~ :i.Qj:!cllH'.l' l:ildO:i

• g
~~-~
l

c:;.,.·<> '-"'",

u

V)

1-
z
<(

a..

Xw
0z
az
~
<(
O!:
0

js~NUlVHG oaj ll3ffll.nx.ti~U&ldnHITVhl

3S3H.L 3'IV3S .LON

w II Hn Iu . iii Iz ;, whn. l II 'w I! , _ I ii ,!,, di 'O!: t +f I
w 11 I 1 ,11 1£

i!li at ILL :x ! ; ii, 1' 'w a, +tt4 $ IO!:
w I ill: u: I ~ ! ,"" i
0 ill 11
0 i •! i d 1 · I
u }# i

•
t)!)
-0-co
(l)
u

0 tsl

>bcu
V)

..... C\I
(l) ('I)

0() (l) T'""
I.. ('I)..... I.!)(f)
.c. C

ti)
..... ·u;co C

Cl) 0 0
T'"" (.)

.c. Cl)- 5ro .....
::::,
0

ti) (f) c
I.!) $
I.!) C
-q- «i
(0 u::

-0
b
0u_ a..

<(

5
d.a
Cl) >-

,..,,.__ I-

"""""""0 3 zI u
>

, 't
V)

z
0

I

<
>
w
O!:
co
CQ

<(

lib i ! H,l!!Hll!,h!
#st &za!las:Mt+#,s9839

, i -,, l
.1 {7°-llil!lllllhihhllilillll

OMO"dJQ&nl('lOU. \NOISNYdX3 (11:1(}.f ll3llllf\al.3"\ld\<I':IN'ffl ;r7Y



NQ ;SS: l\ll /iS MJi\ } 11 li't'ld nns [l/ tl/W

1Vlll ll 8 flS !N]fll lll lN] [l/ tl/ ro i
IIOll.-i:JDQ UVll"IBIII f 'QI l.

Ul.891M"u!l)fUIU::I
IOGJIS~180llllf10999t9

p10.:1 J911!H
"l:J3 lK),liV ;a-!!JO L~ l"GllM~ ~ L'QUIIF 1raaov.te:n1a~ .KJ3lll"GII J..W~ 1'CJ-~ 31l~ IQUO ;ff)J.'ff .l ll iC'11.1901nGl l'l' liel~ J.."fl/l-lOIU~ 9Gd0 $1030 s3Gu s.AaNou qcant' 1oa to iron ' ¢zxt0tii931-2# 23ut 3I Gia

0.VJ.ill......~0.Lfl~L'G"l:l31.l ::t-l'N<li:-<J;ou:;,~ ,KJ~ Klll.RP~ 3'J.9WT1Go1911JIIQllr.l-..lllOl..!IOi J.ffltl .W,,J(ll!iftl.J.WOl.-ltCJCBdO:J 'CU!N'IO'~ llilOIIQI.SI-Qt1 ~ mflllll 1 .Y°f:('1(~ ":JN°N'.li""~ VJ.:J~ 3.j~ ,!j_J.d():J

~S!lNIM.VHa :ilS:ilH.L :il'IV::JS .LON oa II

I
i
I

I
I,

t I
~----j

I

I

DMO"dl0~ HVdX3 0 1K►-1~ '21M'N ;r11,1



C:et.£9 IM "UU)fUB.1:1 lSl--l0£~lt-)~.-l 08'11--?0£\t"U,)'PJ.■121
Im ::: ~ ~ I q!)ZZ(S (A\"l!SOll!Mn l!A\ ! k ~

NCSS1n HnS III.J~ ]lJ ~ ld liYlS tlhl/W I09JIS~l80ll!lflOS~ .lh!A•\ IIUUN ,\\ez!:'.I T""'"' :)NI N91S30 % ll X'"' 1VUU'16n'i1N]n ]ll ll /i] tlbl/ro i pJ0.::1 J811!H ts& ! i ~ ±i ! w;l,S",al:j - ....... ,..,. l 3Al.l :)3dScl3d ~ 9
·;::,;u,:::i,l".i-tJ.c¥)~ rGJ.l.M~ 3'.l ll"QtlnYIY<li!I0~ 3'.l clJllili!l,!:#~ i!IO•~ :itl/'tlltll~ 3'0.l,,WUl.i011-1"""1'1fil.;y:IIO~ ..IMl' l,!Gllj'.HSllff'DGQ!clJ~ 'iiu.1<Nl'S;;H,;..1.~ y ,;tean:Jt1' t'iiu.l&l'J.U,l lit'll"'i;,;,;,"..VO!-.Wl,.Gt,~ i~il ilt';;,n~ IG1Ctt

Oll11 £H..C-O-f0 l0~ 1/a7:)3'.l 7,1mrn~ n~ NlilRn~ 3'.l '.NNY1&01 QilJl!llHin~ -li!IOl,;iOJA.WNIJ.!Wd~ A.'II Ol~ i!IOG:kO:J'Cl?.MtO 'CB:r~ 3lilOIIQl.g ttr.'nlQAU ~ Sil'!l;QITIY'( (Q(~ •:::,:.,:~2(l~ ~ J.j.lJ1rul ...;::):)

!is !>NUlV<Ia 3S3H.L 3'IV::lS .LON oail

E (\I

~
.a.i'ivz2,
0
a:
(!)
!!!:

'!H0-.fg'!H1S9C~

~ I "',61:lii ·""'-: x
LU
....I

#Ai a
....I

A <a: .;LU> 3%..•

e,Y,OOIKU IBllarODll0\NOl9 NY c!X3 CIU O:I Y3111H\~ '3l'MI 371,1



HU -Zotf~ t-1 q_.f 08ll--Z0£1tlt"I l~.I■B ~
> M ~ ~ !Z19 "uJ1)1U8J:I 9Zll'Sl.\\'l!SOl'E!l>•D!M, I • $ q

3/ NC1$S :(1 Efi$ Mli\ :lll l,Yld l1Y1S £l/'ll/OJ 189JIS Qlllm tpllOS 59t9 ~nu.i VII.UON ,"Sl<-11 ~
'.JNI N91S30 ri 8 <Q/ 1V!lli'llli1S lNJIIJl1UN3 1. l/ tl/ [O i PJ0.:::1 J811!H J I ll J:.18".Qf - ...... , .. l. 3/\Ll'.J3dSH3d .!I i"i'll .!I 4

J.:Jl lltf:ll:,"/' 311 ,!JJ L~ ffiiW¥J i!jQ;ajd3tli/"Qflll "l' l"t'(laCl~ 31l.6J~ J..W~ ao•J.:Jmai,, 31J.rfi"l(I. IBU03Gl.'W M1;cor.1.Q'<ll1 9':!lll."iJ'liCl~ J.lft UOilol~ iadm6J~l9(7.JCNrfntC.~ ll"l' '!:N CIIT.lN"lw:J2'0 ".IJflCM1 "i~"....a.wt~~1, :.1111-;;,,Jt i!fl o-a,
O>VllN..:-0-10 1il3!j'};".L/o!"l;l3\i 7-!"),F,iil(I J.\1~ 6J~ relll!n~ 311 '.NN'l' J&Ol'illilIU"OtlPzatfT.l llCl121DiJ.Jf/1K.llllird ellil'llJ..WOl-llCl~ •<Ji9M0•~ 3110lJQti1~ 911.1 ~ 'Wl'JRl7 1't'(ll11 1J1".lQ!.ldO'. ' '.)l',l'l,<;W"~ l,\,il:l~ ¼IL't';l~

lls !>NIMVMa 3:S:ilH.L :il'IV::>s .LON oa II

d 'I+9!x 1
,IY!.: .(J,g

GI CC3Gom1
.Gl·.e?.

I\ I\

/c '\ /~ \ rt/
'd 'H H

} i

,p/ \\! // ~ /' \~
\ I \ I ,

+#[
I
' 11 ' ..
Ii I!!

nlMIOlfO::I IBTllltOOl\'\HOINdX3 ClllC►-1~ """"\:d :;!NYN 371,1



~£l£9 IM \J!pjUIU~ l9l...a)£{1rlH~.i 08!1-lOtltil>)PJ.■121 fit lili $ ~ ~ I9Zll'S IM "llSOlt!A\01!,\\
1e,u1s ~ 18(11 IOIIOS 99>'9 ~~\, IJIJON' •"'!Z!"JI He ~ T";

2 +4 NOtSS1AB1S ,11]~ 3)1 P.Yld llYIS IT/tr,/90 :)NI N91S30 <30 lYlll l'IErJS 1N1'131U!Nl il/tl./ro i pJ0.::1 J811!H ! i j i,..,..A311 - 3lWl7al , .. l 3ALl:)3dSH3d ,!!

Qi!IJIO!l'\l3'U.i!Jl.'iia-17.)N31!.t!n~ :i1J.UQ{J.P;",VCl80wr-YHCl.t'.lD""611J.."fl' I.IOll,IW, '~ ;at1Nlntl~ ;itr03Ql.'fVJ.'li iQ".{QClllRil l'l' :!IO~ JSII.IG!l,l~ :&GB::J.JJJg ,;o:iQfi'Giit;.~ y '!N<llt:Nl'iO:JVO'J..U'i011 ' ii91'..11 ClJ..'rTl,,Gl,j~ ln l~ il!10UI
Q,';IJ.~ (l!i 3i!!WL"1311:l3-U ~W.::-alN~ D~ Nllli!n~ ~-,&01QUUOUP:taM'.,l801.2iOl .lN'IN..IJlfl'clQj.!IJ.J.WOl~ 80(1ildl:T.l'~ ·o:DlOCl!lol3Mlll01IIONill-Cltl ~ Ql1'llll,T,V"(tai~ ·?N~-<ll,l,JQ~ ldl.~<!J.d0:l

ils!lNUlVMa 3S:3:H .L :,i:,v:::>s .LON oail

,I

oz '
0 ,r~~· -----i-t-----i-~•,.... sa"t=~.t'

~ ..·-==si 0

I ~

0

0

'T
%

3 ii
I

I ! i
0

DMOUHO,IIBTW"lOIY\Nol8 H'l'dX3 (lljc>.J1:13Tl1H\~ 7,:d '3N'tll :fll:I



19!-«£1\o t} ~--i 09H-l1ltlt t,} Rl■121
~

. ~ ~ ~ Ii£1.£S 1M \JO)fUBJ.::I 9ZZ ~ (A\"eSO l0\ lfl llA\ l • $ T"';l88JISQ190ltnnoS59t9 ~U~ \ ljUUN •"-~•J ( z sMM h:l!SSJ~ens /\]Ii\)~ !Wld] II s 2r2rs
:)NJ 'N81S30 f &-a C\I- 111u 1;.ens1 N:: :.1J1 111.rtJ Wti! /OI i. pJO.::J J81J!H 3sq ± ~ I ii ! <

u·Alll - ,.,.,... •-l 3/\11-:)3dScl3d & mw m a ! & Jj

1?3.!~ ilt!P l.'GSW?1Gl !W,1Wllll,,l 3t11lallllll'l'l'Olll:)~ 3tlJ:>1'!li!!IJ.Y1~ -, latoff 31l. flnl!QtlD3t:IJ..W.111:iGnlQIOll~ -Y.::i'o;<;tMOJ.Wl,e;!lt~ 3alJGCJD'il9:T.ICM''olii f.~ llV~ 'Dl •l'91T.la:l •.141 'N1ll 'nVn.7 <1.l.'li'~ i'll~ J.:lau?GM
:i!"JO-alGtt.U"-aCN'OliB>W>'llGIT.l~ ::MlaGO Wl~ :li D001!151:.:ie.l!Gl!iZl'ICl~ 311.-.l&Ol9'1JUQI IJUBtr.UtCli.alO,I J..WRJ.llfV.dG!lt!J..l.~ OJ.(li!DW;p'il0(Sd0;) '~ •~ 311011Q1111 '.M7tltelnu~~-~mt·~~"°J.1,.11.:13.l,;!l:ild!HmUdi,;o

~S!JNL\lVHa :?IS:?IH.L :?l'IV::>S .LON oa]

t±¥

~-r
_:[c.___

0
....
z, 0
OR :)#i
I~•W,....
"'ws:

>---rt I -

3r t-
y

aMll'dJGI IB'T-.r"'An3IIX\NOI BH't dlGl mtO:I IBTI IH\8l~ '3NVN ;rllal



it:l.&9 1M \IIJllU9J.::1 Ull.1--lll'.O'l'llnJ. OOl.l--lll'.l)Hl~.l■121 l!il ' ~ !9lztslA\'eiOll!M.ne,\\ • C\I
'"" ~o ,ss,,., g nsoo1~3 ~ ,.....,d liYJ.S 2nus

IH'ISIA90Llfl'IOS9"'9 .onu~'Vl!J.ION: N.SZS I ~ i~..... C\i'.JNl'N81S303084 lYill/lQC.SJ.~;;.,:;;111'0 Wtl ltO i PJ0.:1 J81J!H I #as1 .i! !JI i ~ j <(
:J,B " i\31:1 ""'"""' ...... ''"" l 3Al.l '.J3dScl3d .! ~ .!i '!.,

1 ::l3 1Ln:llJV3<i.01"39m N3i!Qin_,., il't.l lllOtuP'l1Wllt0~ 3tJ.-0~ J."W~ a:,1 ::U:.H3lll/3tJ.-tBIIO-WAllljC.'11.,190J.1l'lllil!,'(z;!Ji¥-ffflOJ..'IV~ 9Ci:M'~ D<;J.<;O:>Oft/-i-A~ ll'l9COO:>l•1 <;0:>a:,~ 1 1WV1i·~~V<JJ.N1~ 'n3 "\-:Wtll~il..atl'
"'1 <1"010..'lkl~ O<IOi~~ JJ,3rt.l3<!-,.li91GOY-l!::Jlcili!l3d,tQ~ ..:tr3d'8ilW1~ 3tJ.'!l<;N'l1&o1 911 ~ illCIUlll:8f,/fl.fll01-21CHJ..¥/NJ.llff'olCRallJNII01~ a:l<J3olO::>.~ "~ N01104 '919r.YtlCl9" 1 ~ 4!11~ 1 1'"N{ •::t,1~ 3Ni:l-3dl/i~ .i.,;,XI

S9N:IM.Vl:10 3S3H.L 3:'IV:::>S .LON00 II

•z
i
I
¥

i %
5 I
@©

0

®
0
i~
!I



0

~ I •' •~
---

I •• ~[:1 i ~0:
<( ' '" ~ ~:c i !0zw ~ ""' ~ !• ~I #.

g h! %as £

__f

I..;±?I a! ii

illlll 1111111111111
$ -4.1.41-4.L.1 L--let.-ltzt:lzl

'-
~

., -,:-,..,,,, '\."\."4-:;;~--__J

--+ -{- L
I u

\ \ \
~ ;: ~...

--. ---r--- ,-- i I I
I Uh I I ! !Iiia%= glI

' -i- t- w,

"''I

'3,_ '53'.INO!i~ OSI' JO llOSNCXI IQU- »II Jl'CINl-. lW,I,_ 1Nt :r(Jlffjl Ill IJl!iQ Jg !OH ~VN ~ Oll::lliO!ld IMOIHldX> l!rt SHOISld OMV SN'Wld JSJlU

n
I

f,

7233

,$$%%
49,8,

)r- '):'r!;-~-ttt21
>$4.rd

t111
£~~ 1\t/2,;i:;.
i

zs..
--'0
0:
I-z
0
0
z
0
in

>< 0
0:

w w
C0 zz z"32o

(!) a.o=
z ~~~§: cnc,c

~ 830 000

Q
ti)...,
!



0.
N

,0
!
i

~ ; ~'~~ f- -+-
I •• ~"' i ~"'"'"' . .

" ; 3:c ± ±0z ' ¥w ±m

£ $.
I 8

!i•A, ·•
Si I:

z
::i..
-'
0

"'I-ozzo«o
C>Zzo
OU>
$g
C>WHi

I
\
2$
i
i

I
I

l

\ '
i

I
I

I
I

I
i
i

I
I
I

-·-s%2
33±$
la¢

1L________;

Q
ti)...,
lr"J



Q
ti)...,

(1]51'1 lll ION J.Vn()ffOll~ll Oll<I J l(IQ:U dJO llf"' SN:llSl<J ONV SM''d lSJ,:"

...J

...J

~
0a;
:,:
0z

~
U)
z
0
I=
0w
~ ~L----------7zw:;;
w

?



I
l! :::I ;::.c ~ _:v.... ~ -~ls

~'S):,wo;;'IWMlll!lS3JOll,IQUJOIIOSND:>N,eeserer ,_,

!
~ j ! i
~ •I 1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1,1,1



____J I
L



u
t
w

UI
1-
u
w
1-

:c
u
o
ci:

' .r .



"'NN....,
L/'l

3:
G
Vl,, .8ros:t. :::iro u,s: f--

u
w

gJ f--
C -±c
.c ct'.<z

_Js: <!

a5
"'"",-<,...w

::E
.::Eo
+- O
e
Ol·v;
QJ
Cl
QJ
;,-
tl
QJ
Cl.e
QJ
a..

C
0

3;,-
OJ

a iii
.c ~0. t::s 0 .,

on z.5
0 -15 •.c o-
0.. a3on ;,- "'C OJ U)
:§ iii:::; OJ
o:l tJ
on c;;
5
t,
,;:
fl



jj'

i,

I
I

n

C
0

~>
C

<1)

l3 G:i

0

3

~
t, 3:

>

<1)

(I)

"
:3::~

G:i

0g
8 _>

t,

0 C B
:d

,.c:

(I)

a-,
0 -

:3:: 3:

0.
£

0. ~

9

< :§
(I) C/l

C >

'E ~ 'q"

Q

0

3

5 8

&: ~ ~ ~
::Q

;;

> t3

CJ) ~

2 n

!i:; ~:;: M "

u:i

:::: ~ N tU
;::::

;;

s?
er,x

2

u:i

#.

...

l
ru
3:
::,s

u
OJ w
::, 1-
c-
!j; I
<( u
.c er:1s <(
z
3;::;;:
u '
y
2e
rl w

.:Eo
y

c'
.2'
ID
0

g
t:J
QJ

8
QJa.





APPROVAL

Reports and
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Motion to approve the Director ofHealth and Human
Services to accept the 2024 Division of Public Health
Consolidated Grant Contracts.

MEETING DATE

1/3/2024

ITEM NUMBERM. ,
Background: The Wisconsin Department of Health Services Division of Public Health awards
grants in a variety of programs to local health departments. The Franklin Health Department
(FHD) has again been awarded grant funding for the continuation of the following grants that
run from January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024:

• Childhood Lead Grant: $1,263
• Immunization Grant: $7,583
• Maternal Child Health: $6,861

These grants support the FHD in offering programming and services to residents
based upon analysis and assessment of community needs in addition to the services
required of us by State and Municipal codes. In 2024, the focus of the aforementioned grants
include: 1. Provide services which support the elimination of childhood lead poisoning, 2.
Delivery of Public Health Services to citizens consistent with best practices for immunization
services, 3. Collaborate with community partners to improve maternal and child health

Fiscal Note: The grant funds support Franklin Health Department programs and services.

The contract has been sent to the City of Franklin legal counsel for review in December 2023
with no changes recommended.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Director of Health and Human Services requests a motion to approve the Director of
Health and Human Services to accept the 2024 Division of Public Health consolidated grant
contracts.

Health Department: LG



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

Wisconsin Department of Health Services
Contract Centralization Legal Review

Agreement Number: 435100-G24-DPHCC24-26

Bureau of Procurement and Contracting (BPC) Review:

@ This agreement uses a BPC template with Office of Legal Counsel (OLC) approved
language.

D This agreement uses intergovernmental cooperative purchasing.

OLC Review Required:

D This agreement does not use a BPC template with Office of Legal Counsel (OLC) approved
language or uses a BPC template with requested language changes.

Description:
NA

Office of Legal Counsel (OLC) Review and Approval:

~ This agreement has been reviewed for form and approved by the Wisconsin Department of
Health Services Office of Legal Counsel.

a8aywoener
Title: Office of Legal Counsel

12/20/2023

Date Signed

Revis1on 8/2/2022 (previous versions obsolete)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE 1-94E656408017

GRANT AGREEMENT
between the

State of Wisconsin Department of Health Services
and

Franklin HD
for

2024 DPH LPHD Consolidated Contract

OHS Grant Agreement No 435100-G24-DPHCC24-26
DPH Contract No 62118
Agreement Amount $15,707
Agreement Term Perod: 10/01/2023 to 09/30/2025
GEARS Pre-Packet No 24668

DHS DIv1s1on: DIvIs1on ofPublic Health
OHS Grant Admmistrator Anna Benton
DHS Emal: DHSGACMal@dhs.w1sconsin gov

Grantee Grant Admmistrator Ms Lauren Gottlieb
Grantee Email· LLube@frankhnwi gov
Grantee Umque Entity Identifier (UEI) Name
Grantee Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) Number

OHS and the Grantee acknowledge that they have read the Agreement and the attached documents, understand them and
agree to be bound by theu terms and conditions. Further, OHS and the Grantee agree that the Agreement and the exhibits
and documents mcorporated herem by reference are the complete and exclusive statement ofagreement between the
parties relating to the subject matter of the Agreement and supersede all proposals, letters of intent or prior agreements,
oral or wntten and all other commumcat10ns and representat10ns between the parties relatmg to the subject matter of the
Agreement. OHS reserves the nghts to reJect or cancel Agreements based on documents that have been altered This
Agreement becomes null and void if the time between the earher dated signature and the later dated signature exceeds
sixty (60) days, unless waived by OHS

State ofWisconsin
Department ofHealth Services

Authonzed Representative

Name

Grantee
Entity Name

Authorized Representative
Lauren Gottlieb

Name

Title

Signature

Date

Title

Signature

Date.

Drector ofHealth and Human Services

Page I of 19
Template Rev1s10n 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. DEFINITIONS 3
2. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 4
3. PARTIES 4
4. PURPOSE AND SCOPE 4

4.1 List of Exhibits 4

5. CONTACT INFORMATION 4
6. PAYMENT FOR GRANT AWARD 5
7. REPORTING 5
8. FEDERAL AND STATE RULES AND REGULATIONS 5
9. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION 6
10. CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE 6
11. CONFIDENTIAL, PROPRIETARY, AND PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE INFORMATION 7
12. HIGH-RISK IT REVIEW 9
13. SUBGRANT or SUBCONTRACT 9
14. GENERAL PROVISIONS 9
15. ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS 10
16. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PERIOD 10
17. PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS 10
18. AUDITS 10
19. OTHER ASSURANCES 12
20. RECORDS 13
21. CONTRACT REVISIONS AND/OR TERMINATION 13
22. NONCOMPLIANCE AND REMEDIAL MEASURES 14
23. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 14
24. FINAL REPORT DATE 15
25. INDEMNITY 15
26. CONDITIONS OF THE PARTIES' OBLIGATIONS 15
27. GOVERNING LAW 15
28. SEVERABILITY 15
29. ASSIGNMENT 16
30. ANTI-LOBBYING ACT 16
31. DEBARMENT OR SUSPENSION 16
32. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 16
33. MULTIPLE ORIGINALS 16
34. CAPTIONS 16
35. SPECIAL PROVISIONS, IF APPLICABLE 16
36. NULL AND VOID .. . 17
37. FUNDING CONTROLS . . . .. .. .. . . 17
38. FEDERAL AWARD INFORMATION 18
39. GEARS PAYMENT INFORMATION 19

Page 2 of 19
Template Revus1on 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C80278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

1. DEFINITIONS

Words and terms will be defined by thetr ordmary and usual meanmgs Unless negotiated otherwise by the parties,
where capitalized, the followmg words and terms will be defined by the meanmgs md1cated The meanmgs are
applicable to the smgular, plural, masculme, femmine and neuter of the words and terms

Agency: an office, department, agency, mstrtution ofhgher education, association, society or other body in State of
Wisconsin government created or authorized to be created by the W1sconsm State Constitution or any law, which 1s
entitled to expend momes appropnated by law, mcludmg the Legislature and the courts

Assistance Listing: refers to the publicly available hstmg ofFederal assistance programs managed and administered
by the General Services Adm1mstration, formerly known as the Catalog ofFederal Domestic Assistance (CFDA),
pursuant to2CF R $ 200 1

Business Associate: pursuant to 45 CF R. § 160.103, a business associate mcludes

(i) A health 1format1on organ1zat1on, e-prescrbmng gateway, or other person that provides data transmuss1on services
with respect to protected health information to a covered entity and that reqmres access on a routme basis to such
protected health mformat1on.

(11) A person that offers a personal health record to one or more individuals on behalfof a covered entity

(i) A subcontractor that creates, receives, mamtams, or transmits protected health mformation on behalf of the
business assoc1ate

Business Day: any day on which the State ofW1sconsm 1s open for business, generally Monday through Fnday
unless otherwise specified m this Agreement

Confidential Information: all tangible and intangible informat10n and materials being disclosed in connect10n with
this Agreement, in any form or medium without regard to whether the mformat1on is owned by the State ofW1sconsm
or by a thtrd party, which satisfies at least one (1) of the following cntena (1) Personally Identifiable Information, (i1)
Protected Health Information under HIPAA, 45 CF R $160 103, (ii) non-public mnformaton related to OHS'
employees, customers, technology (mncludmng databases, data processmg and communications networkmg systems),
schematics, specifications, and all mformat10n or matenals denved therefrom or based thereon, or (rv) information
expressly designated as confidential in wrrtmng by OHS Confidential Information mcludes all information that is
restricted or prohibited from disclosure by state or federal law.

Day: calendar day unless otherwise specified m thus Agreement

DHS: Department ofHealth Services

Grant Administrator· md1v1dual(s) responsible for ensurmg all steps in the grant admmistration process are
completed, mcludmg draftmg grant language, negotatmng grant terms, and momtonng the granted entity's
performance

Personally Identifiable Information: an mndrvdual's last name and the mndrvdual's first name or first 1mt1al, m
combmat10n with and lmked to any of the followmg elements, 1f that element 1s not publicly available mformat1on
and 1s not encrypted, redacted, or altered many manner that renders the element unreadable (a) the mdrvdual's
Soc1al Security number, (b) the mndrvdual's driver's license number or state 1dentificatron number, (c) the number of
the mndrvdual's financial account, mcludmg a credit or debit card account number, or any secunty code, access code,
or password that would perm1t access to the mndrvdual's financ1al account, (d) the mdrvdual's DNA profile, or (e) the
mndrv1dual's unique b1ometrc data, including fingerprint, voice print, retina or 1rs Image, or any other unique phys1cal
representation, and any other mformat10n protected by state or federal law

Protected Health Information (PHI) health mnformat1on, mncludmng demographic mnformat1on, created, received,
mamtained, or transmitted many form or media by the Business Associate, on behalfof the Covered Entity, where
such mformat1on relates to the past. present. or future physical or mental health or condrt1on of an mdvdual, the

Page 3 of 19
Template Rev1s1on 06/23/2023 (prev10us templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656408017

prov1s1on ofhealth care to an mndrvdual, or the payment for the prov1s1on ofhealth care to an mndrvdual, that
1denttfies the individual or provides a reasonable bass to believe that 1t can be used to 1dentfy an mndrv1dual

Publicly Available Information: any mformation that an entity reasonably beheves 1s one of the followmg· a)
lawfully made widely available through any media, b) lawfully made available to the general pubhc from federal,
state, or local government records or disclosures to the general pubhc that are reqmred to be made by federal, state, or
local law

2. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

This Agreement and the following documents incorporated by reference mnto the Agreement constitute the ent!fe
agreement of the parties and supersedes all pnor commumcat10ns, representat10ns or agreements between the parties,
whether oral or written Any conflict or mnconsistency wll be resolved by gvmng precedence mn the following
descending order
1. The Busmess Associate Agreement (BAA) 1fapplicable
2 The terms of this Agreement.
3 Any and all exhibits or appendices to thus Agreement

3. PARTIES

This 1s a grant agreement between the state agency responsible for overseemng the coordination and mntegrat1on of
social service programs and the Grantee listed below
A. The Wisconsin State Agency rs: The State of Wisconsmn Department ofHealth Services (DHS)

DHS' principal business address 1s I West Wilson Street, Room 672, Madison, W1sconsm 53703
B The Grantee 1s: Franklm Hd

The Grantee's principal busmness address 1s 9229 W LOOMIS RD, FRANKLIN, WI, 531330000

4. PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This Grant Agreement (Agreement) and Exhib1t(s) descnbe the terms and cond1t10ns under which the Grantee
receives an award from OHS to carry out part ofa state and/or federal program

The Grantee agrees to provide goods and/or care and services cons1stent wth the purposes and conditions of the
obyectves that 1t has agreed to attamn wthn the Agreement period as referred to in the attached exhibit(s)

4 1 List of Exhibits
Exh1b1t I Contract Agreement Addendum - Program Quahty Cntena
Exhibit II Contract Agreement Addendum - Program Objectives
Exhibit III Boundary Statements for all 2024 DPH Consolidated Contract Fundmg
Exhibit IV: 2024 Maternal Child Health Program Parameters

5. CONTACT INFORMATION

OHS Grant Adm1mstrator
Grant Admm1strator Name Anna Benton
Email DHSGACMail@dhs.wisconsin.gov

Grantee Grant Admm1strator
Grant Admm1strator Name Ms Lauren Gottlieb
Email. LLube@franklinwi.gov

OHS will mail legal notices to the Grantee's Grant Adm1mstrator at the address 1dent1fied m Sectton 3, unless
otherwise notified by the Grantee

Page 4 of 19
Template Rev1s1on 06/23/2023 (prev10us templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-A4FEF 9EE1-94E656A408017

6. PAYMENT FOR GRANT AWARD

A All payments to non-mun1cmpalitres, non-profits, and UW departments wall be made as electron1c funds transfers
(EFT), by the 1ofthe month or the 1st bankmg day followmg the scheduled payment date, whichever 1s later All
payments to municipal1t1es wll be made as electronic fund transfers (EFT) by the 5" of the month or the 1
bankmg day followmg the scheduled payment date, whichever 1s later GEARS agency reports are available not
less than five (5) days prior to the scheduled payment date at the followmg website and should be reviewed and/or
printed each month for each agency type for account reconcihation GEARS Data Queries
https ://health wsconsmn gov/cars/GetIndexServlet

B OHS will assign a GEARS agency number to the Grantee
C The Grantee shall report all allowable costs plus any required matchmg funds stipulated in the reportmg

111struct10ns for this Agreement, which are mcorporated by reference mn the Allowable Cost Pohcy Manual
https //www.dhs wisconsin.gov/business/allow-cost-manual htm

D The Grantee shall submit expenditures on the form reqmred by OHS to the followmg email
DHS600RCARS@dhs.w1.gov

E Payments to the Grantee will be made on a monthly basis per the GEARS Processmg Dates schedule and based
on expenditures submitted by the Grantee on the fonn reqmred by OHS

F. Expense reports received timely in accordance with the GEARS Processmg Dates schedule will be reviewed and
processed per the GEARS Processmg Dates schedule

G. Payments to the Grantee shall not exceed the total Agreement award
H If OHS determmes, after notice to the Grantee and opportunity to respond, that payments were made that

exceeded allowable costs, the Grantee shall refund the amount determmed to be in excess w1th111 thirty (30) days
ofnotification by OHS OHS may, at its sole d1scret10n, make such refund by w1thholdmg money from future
payments due the Grantee, at any time durmg or after the Agreement penod OHS reserves the right to recover
such excess funds by any other appropnate legal means

7. REPORTING

A The Grantee shall comply with OHS' program reportmg reqmrements as specified m the Scope of Work
B The required reports shall be forwarded to OHS Grant Adm1mstrator accordmg to the schedule estabhshed by

OHS

8. FEDERAL AND STATE RULES AND REGULATIONS

A. The Grantee agrees to meet state and federal laws, rules, regulations, and program policies applicable to this
Agreement

B The Grantee will act solely m its mdependent capacity and not as an employee ofOHS. The Grantee shall not be
deemed or construed to be an employee ofOHS for any purpose

C The Grantee agrees to comply with Pubhc Law 103-227, also known as the Pro-Children Act of2001, which
prohibits tobacco smoke 1n any portion ofa facility owned, leased, or granted for or by an entity that receives
federal funds, erther directly or through the state, for the purpose ofprovding services to children under the age
of 18.

D Pursuant t0 2021 Wisconsmn Executive Order 122, use of state funds for conversion therapy 1s expressly
disallowed 'Conversion therapy' does not mclude any practice or treatment that provides acceptance, support, or
understanding to an mndrv1dual, or any practice or treatment that facilitates an 1ndrvidual's coping, soc1al support,
or 1denhty explorat10n and development, so long as such practices or treatments do not seek to change sexual
onentat10n or gender identity, any prachce or treatment that 1s neutral with regard to sexual or1entat1on or gender
identity and that seeks to prevent or address unlawful conduct or unsafe practices, or any practice or treatment that
assists an mdividual seekmg to undergo a gender transition or who 1s mn the process ofundergomg a gender
trans1t1on.

E. Pursuant to 2023 Executrve Order 184, grantee agrees 1t does not sell any products prohibited in the Order In
add1ton, grantee agrees that in fulfillment of 1ts responsibilities under the Contract that no subcontractor
relationship exists that would violate the prohibitions outlined mn the Order

F If federally funded, pursuant to 2 CF R. §200 322, the requirements of2 CF R. $200 322 must be mcluded m
this award The followmg clauses are hereby mcorporated mto this Contract and are enforceable as 1f restated
herem mn their entirety by reference to the followmg lmk https.//www govregs.com/regulations/2/200.322

Page 5 of 19
Template Revis1on 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F 3CE0-4FEF 9EE1-94E656A08017

9. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

Pursuant to 2019 Wisconsin Executive Order I, contractor agrees 1t will hire only on the basis ofment and will not
d1scnmmate agamst any persons performing a contract, subcontract or grant because ofmilitary or veteran status,
gender identity or expression, manta! or familial status, genetic mnformat1on or pol1t1cal affiliatron

As requred by Wisconsin's Contract Compliance Law, Wis Stat $ 16 765 and WIs Admmn Code $ Adm 50 04, the
Grantee must agree to equal employment and affirmative action pohc1es and practices in its employment programs

The Grantee agrees to make every reasonable effort to develop a balance in either its total workforce or in the proJect
related workforce that 1s based on a ratio ofwork hours performed by handicapped persons, minont1es, and women
except that, 1f the department finds that the Grantee 1s allocating its workforce in a manner which circumvents the
mtent ofth1s chapter, the Department may reqmre the Grantee to attempt to create a balance in its total workforce
The balance shall be at least proport10nal to the percentage ofminont1es and women present m the relevant labor
markets based on data prepared by the Department oflndustry, Labor and Human Relat10ns, the Office ofFederal
Contract Comphance Programs or by another appropnate governmental entity In the absence of any rehable data, the
percentage for qualified handicapped persons shall be at least 2% for whom a Grantee must make a reasonable
accommodatton

The Grantee must submit an Affirmative Act10n Plan within fifteen (15) working days of the signed Agreement
Exemptions exist, and are noted in the Instructions for Grantees posted on the following website under DOA-3021P
https ·//doa.w1.gov/Pages/SBOPForms.aspx

The Grantee must submit its Affirmative Act10n Plan or request for exemption from filing an Affirmative Act10n Plan
to

Department ofHealth Services
Drvrston ofEnterprse Services
Bureau ofProcurement and Contracting
Affirmative Action Plan/CRC Coordinator
1 West Wilson Street, Room 672
PO Box 7850
Madison, WI 53707
dhscontractcomplmnce@dhs.w1sconsin.gov

10. CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE

As reqmred by Wis Stat § 16 765, in connect10n with the performance ofwork under this Agreement, the Grantee
agrees not to discriminate against any employee or apphcant for employment because ofage, race, religion, color,
handicap, sex, phys1cal condrtron, developmental disablrty as defined m WIs Stat $ 51 01(5), sexual orientation or
national origin This prov1s10n shall mclude, but not be hm1ted to, the following employment, upgrading, demot10n or
transfer, recruitment or recrmtment advertising, layoff or terminat10n, rates ofpay or other forms of compensation,
and selection for traming, mcluding apprenticeship Except with respect to sexual onentatlon, the Grantee further
agrees to take affirmative act10n to ensure equal employment opportunities The Grantee agrees to post m conspicuous
places, available for employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contractmg officer
setting forth the provis1ons ofthe nondiscrimination clause

In accordance wth the provisions of Section 1557 of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 (42
USC § 18116), Title VI of the CIVIi Rights Act of 1964 (42 U SC § 2000d et seq), Sect10n 504 of the
Rehabihtat10n Act of 1973(29 US C § 701 et seq), the Age Discnmmation Act of 1975 (42 U S C $ 610 I et seq),
and regulat10ns unplementmg these Acts, found at 45 CF R. Parts 80, 84, and 91 and 92, the Grantee shall not
exclude, deny benefits to, or otherwise discriminate agamst any person on the basis of sex, race, color, national ongm,
drsability, or age mn admission to, partc1pat1on mn, m ad of, or mn receipt of services and benefits under any of its
programs and act1v1t1es, and m staff and employee assignments to patients, whether carried out by the Grantee d1rectly
or through a Subgrantee or any other entity with which the Grantee arranges to carry out its programs and act1v1t1es

In accordance with the prov1s10ns ofSect10n 11 of the Food and Nutnt10n Act of2008 (7 USC § 2020), the Age
D1scnmmation Act of l 975 (42 US C § 6101 et seq), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U S C §

Page 6 of 19
Template Rev1s10n 06/23/2023 {previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSgn Envelope ID 1 C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

701 et seq.), the Amencans with D1sabihties Act of 1990 (42 U S.C § 12101 et seq.), and Title VI of the Crl Rights
Act of 1964 (42 U.S C § 2000d et seq), and the regulations 1mplementmg these Acts, found at 7 CF R Parts 15, 15a,
and 15b, and Part 16, 28 C F .R Part 35, and 45 C F R Part 91, the Grantee shall not discnmmate based on race, color,
national orgmn, sex, rehgous creed, disability, age, or political beliefs or engage m repnsal or retaliation for pnor
civil rights activity in any program or activity conducted or funded by the Unrted States Department ofAgriculture

The Grantee must file a Civil Rights Comphance Letter ofAssurance (CRC LOA) for the current compliance penod,
w1thm fifteen (15) working days ofthe effective date ofthe Agreement If the Grantee employs fifty (50) or more
employees and receives at least $50,000 m fundmg, the Grantee must complete a C1v1l Rights Compliance Plan (CRC
Plan) unless the grantee meets one ofthe hm1ted except10ns The current Civil Rights Compliance Reqmrements and
all appendices are hereby mcorporated by reference mto this Agreement and are enforceable as 1f restated herem in
ther entirety The Crvl Rughts Compliance Requirements, mncludmng the CRC LOA form and the template and
mstruct10ns for the CRC Plan can be found at https.//www dhs wisconsm.gov/c1vil-nghts/requirements.htm or by
contactmg

Department ofHealth Services
Crvl Rights Compliance
Attn Crl Rights Complance Officer
1 West Wilson Street, Room 651
P.O Box 7850
Madison, WI 53707-7850
Telephone (608) 267-4955 (Vo1ce)

711 or 1-800-947-3529 (TTY)
Fax (608) 267-1434
Emal DHSCRC@dhs.w1sconsmn gov

The CRC Plan must be kept on file by the Grantee and made available upon request to any representative ofDHS
Civil Rights Comphance Letters ofAssurances should be sent to

Department ofHealth Services
Drvis1on ofEnterprise Services
Bureau ofProcurement and Contractmg
Affirmative Action Plan/CRC Coordmator
I West Wilson Street, Room 672
P.O Box 7850
Madison, WI 53707
dhscontractcompliance@dhs.w1sconsm gov

The Grantee agrees to cooperate with DIS mn any complamnt investigations, monitoring or enforcement related to c1vtl
nghts compliance of the Grantee or its Subgrantee(s) under this Agreement OHS agrees to coordmate with the
Grantee m 1ts efforts to comply with the Grantee's respons1bltres under these nondiscrmmmnat1on prov1s1ons

11. CONFIDENTIAL, PROPRIETARY, AND PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE INFORMATION

In connection with the performance of the work prescribed mn thus Agreement, 1t may be necessary for OHS to
disclose to the Grantee certam mformation that 1s cons1dered to be confidential, propnetary, or contammg Personally
Identifiable Information (Confidential Information) The Grantee shall not use such Confidential lnformat10n for any
purpose other than the hm1ted purposes set forth m this Agreement, and all related and necessary act10ns taken m
fulfillment of the obligat10ns herem The Grantee shall hold all Confidential lnformat10n m confidence, and shall not
disclose such Confidential Informat10n to any persons other than those d!fectors, officers, employees, and agents who
have a business-related need to have access to such Confidential lnformat10n m furtherance of the limited purposes of
this Agreement and who have been appnsed of, and agree to mamtam, the confidential nature of such mformat1on m
accordance with the terms of ths Agreement

The Grantee shall mstJtute and mamtam such secunty procedures as are commercially reasonable to mamntam the
confidentiality of the Confident1al Information whle 1n tts possess1on or control including transportation. whether

Page 7 of 19
Template Revs1on 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C80278F-3CEO4FEF-9EE 1-94E656A408017

physically or electronically OHS may conduct a compliance review ofthe Grantee's security procedures to protect
Confident1al Information under Section 17 (Audits) of thus Agreement

The Grantee shall ensure that all mdicatlons ofconfident1ahty contamed on or mcluded in any item ofConfidential
Information shall be reproduced by the Grantee on any reproduction, modification, or translatron of such Confidential
Informatwn If requested by OHS, the Grantee shall make a reasonable effort to add a proprietary notice or mndtcat1on
ofconfidentiality to any tangible matenals w1thm its possession that contam Confidential Information ofOHS, as
directed

The Grantee or its employees and Subgrantees will not reuse, sell, make available, or make use m any format the data
researched or compiled for this Agreement for any venture, profitable or not, outside this Agreement

The restrictwns herein shall survive the termmation of this Agreement for any reason and shall contmue m full force
and effect and shall be bindmg upon the Grantee or its agents, employees, successors, assigns, Subgrantee, or any
party claimmg an mterest in this Agreement on behalfofor under the nghts ofGrantee followmg any termmnat1on
Grantee shall advise all of their agents, employees, successors, assigns and Subgrantee which are engaged by the State
of the restnctions, present and contmumg, set forth herein Grantee shall defend and mcur all costs, if any, for act1ons
that anse as a result ofnoncompliance by Grantee, its agents, employees, successors, assigns and Subgrantee
regardmg the restncttons herein

A Reporting to DHS Grantee shall 1mmed1ately report withm five (5) busmess days to OHS any use or disclosure of
Confidential Informat10n not provided for by this Agreement, ofwhich it becomes aware Grantee shall cooperate
with DHS' 1vest1gaton, analysis, notification and mitigation activities, and shall be responsible for all costs
Incurred by DHS for those activities.

B Indemnficaton To the extent authorized under State and Federal Laws, the parties agree that they each
shall be responsible for any losses or expenses (mcluding costs, damages, and attorney's fees)
attributable to the acts or omissions of their own employees, officers, subcontractors, or agents.

C Equztable Relzef The Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the unauthorized use, disclosure, or loss of
Confidential Information may cause mmmed1ate and irreparable injury to the indrv1duals whose information 1s
disclosed and to DHS, which mnyury will not be compensable by money damages and for whuch there 1s not an
adequate remedy available by law Accordmgly, the parties specifically agree that OHS, in its own behalf or on
behalf of the affected 1ndivduals, may seek injunctive or other equatable reliefto prevent or curtatl any such
breach, threatened or actual, without postmg secunty and without prejudice to such other nghts as may be
available under this Agreement or applicable law

D Lqdated Damages The Grantee agrees that an unauthorized use or disclosure ofConfidential Informatwn may
result m damage to the State's reputation and ability to serve the public mterest m its administration ofprograms
affected by this Agreement Such amounts ofdamages which will be sustamed are not calculable with any degree
of certainty and thus shall be set forth herem Assessment under this prov1s10n 1s in addition to other remedies
under this Agreement and as provided mn law or equity DHS shall assess reasonable damages as appropnate and
notify the Grantee m wnting ofthe assessment The Grantee shall automatically deduct any assessed damages
from the next appropnate monthly mvoice, 1temizmg the assessment deductions on the invoice Liquidated
Damages shall not exceed the followmg
1 $1,000 for each mndrvdual whose Confident1al Information was used or disclosed,
2 $2,500 per day for each day that the Grantee fails to substantially comply with the Corrective Action Plan
under this Sect1on

E HfPAA The Grantee IS NOT a •·Busmess Associate" pursuant to the defimt10n under the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountablty Act (HIPAA) and the regulations promulgated thereunder specifically 45 CF R
$ 160 103 If the parties are Business Assoc1ates, then the parties shall comply wth DHS' Business Assoc1ate
Agreement

If the Grantee 1s a Busmess Associate, the Grantee agrees to comply with the Health Insurance Portab1hty and
Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Indrvdually
ldent1 fiab le Health Information, 45 C F R. Parts 160 and 164 applicable to Busmess Associates As defined
herem, '·Busmess Associate'' shall mean the Grantee and Subgrantee and agents ofthe Grantee that receive, use or
have access to protected health mformat10n under this Agreement and "Covered Entity'" shall mean the State of
W 1sconsm, Department ofHealth Services.

Page 8 of l 9
Template RevJSion 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F 3CE0-4FEF-9EE 1-94E656A408017

In agreements for the prov1s1on of services, actrvrtres, or functions covered by the Health Insurance Portablty
and Accountability act of 1996 (HIPAA), the Grantee as a Busmess Associate must complete a Business
Associate Agreement (BAA) F-00759. This document must be fully executed before Agreement performance
begms

This Section shall survive the termmat10n of the Agreement

12. HIGH-RISK IT REVIEW

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. 16.973(13), Contractor is required to submit, via the contracting agency, to the
Department of Administration for approval any order or amendment that would change the scope of the
contract and have the effect of increasing the contract price. The Department of Administration shall be
authorized to review the original contract and the order or amendment to determine whether the work
proposed in the order or amendment is within the scope of the original contract and whether the work
proposed in the order or amendment is necessary. The Department of Administration may assist the
contracting agency in negotiations regarding any change to the original contract price.

13. SUBGRANT or SUBCONTRACT

A. OHS reserves the nght of approval of any Grantee's further contracts, grants, contractors, or grantees
under this Agreement, and the Grantee shall report information relating to any further contract, grants,
contractors, or grantees to OHS. A change in any further contractor or grantee or a change from a direct
service provision to a further contractor or grantee may only be executed with the prior written approval
of OHS. ln addition, OHS approval may be required regarding the terms and conditions of any further
contracts or grants and the further contractor or grantee selected. Approval of any further contracts,
grants, contractors, or grantees will be withheld if OHS reasonably believes that the intended further
contractor or grantee will not be a responsible contractor or grantee in terms of services provided and
costs billed.

B. The Grantee retains responsibility for fulfillment of all terms and conditions of this Agreement when it
enters into any further contract or grant and will be subject to enforcement of all the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

14. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A Any payments ofmomes to the Grantee by OHS for goods and/or services provided under this Agreement shall
be deposited m a Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC") 1sured bank Any balance exceeding
FDIC coverage must be collaterally secured

B The Grantee shall conduct all procurement transact10ns ma manner that provides maximum open and free
competition

C If a state public official (see Wis Stat § 19 42), a member of a state pubhc official's 1mmed1ate family, or any
organ1zat1on mn which a state publc official or a member of the official's mmmed1ate family owns or controls at
least a 10 percent (10%) mterest 1s a party to this Agreement and ifth1s Agreement involves payment ofmore
than $3,000 withm a 12-month period, this Agreement is vmd unless appropnate wntten disclosure 1s made,
according to WIs Stat $ 19.45(6), before signing the Agreement Written disclosure, 1f required, must be made to
the State of Wisconsm Ethics Comm1ss1on at

Wisconsmn Ethes Comm1ss1on
PO Box 7125
Madison, WI 53707-7125
Fax· (608) 264-9319

D. If the Grantee or Subgrantee 1s a corporat10n other than a Wisconsin corporat10n, 1t must demonstrate, pnor to
providing services under this Agreement, that it possesses a Certificate ofAuthority from the State of W1sconsm
Department of Financial Institutions, and must have and continuously mamntam a registered agent, and otherwise
conform to all reqmrements ofWis Stat chs 180 and 181 relating to foreign corporat10ns

Page9ofl9
Template Rev1s1on 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF 9EE1 94E656A08017

E The Grantee agrees that funds provided under this Agreement shall be used to supplement or expand the
Grantee's efforts, not to replace or allow for the release of available Grantee funds for alternative uses

15. ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS

A The Grantee's accountmg system shall allow for accountmg for mndrvdual grants, permit timely preparation of
expenditure reports required by OHS as contamned mn Sect1on 6 of thus Agreement, and support expenditure reports
submitted to OHS

B The Grantee shall reconcile costs reported to OHS for reimbursement or as match to expenses recorded in the
Grantee's accountmg or simplified bookkeepmg system on an ongoing and penodrc basis The Grantee agrees to
complete and document reconciliation at least quarterly and to provide a copy to OHS upon request The Grantee
shall retain the reconc1hat10n documentat10n accordmg to approved records retent10n reqmrements

C Expenditures of funds from this Agreement must meet the Department's allowable cost defirnt10ns as defined in
the Department's Allowable Cost Policy Manual (https.//www dhs wisconsm.gov/busmess/allow-cost-
manual htm).

16. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PERIOD

A The Grantee shall notify OHS ofany change mn 1ts accounting period and provide proofof Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) approval for the change.

B Proofof IRS approval shall be considered venfication that the Grantee has a substantial business reason for
changmg its accounting penod

C A change in accounting period shall not relieve the Grantee of the reporting or audit reqmrements ofth1s
Agreement An audt meeting the requirements of this Agreement shall be submitted wthm ninety (90) days after
the first day of the start of the new accountmg penod for the short accountmg penod and within one hundred and
eighty ( 180) days of the close ofthe new accountmg penod for the new penod For purposes ofdetermining audit
reqmrements, expenses and revenues mcurred durmg the short accountmg period shall be annualized

17. PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS

A Property insurance coverage will be provided by the Grantee for fire and extended coverage of any eqmpment
funded under thus Agreement which DHS retains ownership ofand whch Is in the care, custody, and control of
the Grantee

B. OHS shall have all ownership rights many computer hardware supplied by OHS as a result ofthrs Agreement
OHS shall have all ownership rights mn any software or mod1ficat10ns thereofand associated documentat10n that 1s
designed and installed or developed and mstalled under this Agreement The Grantee shall have all ownership
rights in any computer hardware funded under this Agreement and will have a nonexclusive, nontransferable
license to use for 1ts purposes ofthe software or modifications and associated documentation that 1s designed
and/or mnstalled under thus Agreement

C The Grantee agrees that 1fany matenals are developed under this Agreement, OHS shall have a royalty-free,
nonexclusive, and mevocable nght to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use and to authonze others to use such
matenals Any discovery or mventlon arrsmg out of, or developed in the course of, work aided by this Agreement
shall be promptly and fully reported to OHS

18. AUDITS

A Requzrement to Have an Audt Unless waived by OHS, the Grantee shall submit an annual audit to DHS 1f the
total amount of annual funding provided by DHS (from any and all of 1ts D1vs1ons or subunits taken collectively)
through this and other Grants rs $100,000 or more In detennmmg the amount of annual funding provided by
OHS, the Grantee shall consider both (a) funds provided through drrect Grants with OHS, and (b) funds from
OHS passed through another agency which has one or more Grants with the Grantee

B Audt Requirements The audit shall be performed m accordance wth generally accepted audrtmng standards, WIs
Stat $ 46.036, Government Audrtmng Standards as issued by the US Government Accountab1hty Office, and
other prov1sons specified mn thus agreement. In addrt1on, the Grantee Is responsible for ensuring that the audit
comphes with other standards and gmdelmes that may be apphcable dependmg on the type of services provided

Page 10 of 19
Template Revs1on 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1 94E656A408017

and the amount ofpass-through dollars received Please reference the following audit documents for complete
audit requirements
• 2Code ofFederal Regulations (C F R ), Part 200 - Un1form Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,

and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Subpart F - Audits The gmdance also includes an Annual
Compliance Supplement that details specific federal agency rules for accepting federal subawards

• The State Single Audit Gmdelines (SSAG) expand on the reqmrements of2 C.F R Part 200 Subpart F by
identifying additional conditions that requ1re a state single audit Sect10n 1 3 of the SSAG ltsts the required
conditions

• DHS Audit Gude is an append1x to the SSAG and contamns add1tonal DIS-specific audit guidance for those
ent1t1es who meet the SSAG reqmrements It also provides guidance for those entitles that are not reqmred to
have a Smgle Audit but need to comply with OHS subrecip1ent/contractor audit reqmrements An audit report
1s due to DHS ,fa subrec1pient/contractor receives more than $100,000 in pass-through money from OHS as
determined by Wis Stat $ 46.036.

C Source ofFundzng DHS shall provide funding mnformat1on to all subrecmprent/contractors for audit purposes,
mcluding the name ofthe program, the federal agency where the program originated, the Assistance Listing
number and the percentages offederal, state and local funds constituting the agreement

0 Reportzng Package The subrec1pent/contractor that rs required to have a Single Audit based on 2 C.F R Part 200
Subpart F and the State Single Audit Guide 1s required to submit to DHS a reporting package which mncludes all
of the following
l General-purpose financial statements of the overall agency and a schedule of expenditures of federal and state

awards, including the independent auditor's op1mon on the statements and schedule
2 Schedule of findings and quest10ned costs, schedule ofprior audit findings, corrective action plan and the

management letter (1f Issued)
3 Report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting based on an audit performed in

accordance with government auditing standards
4 Report on compliance for each mayor program and a report on internal control over compliance
5 Report on compliance with reqmrements applicable to the federal and state program and on internal control

over compliance in accordance with the program-specific audit option.
6 * OHS Cost Reimbursement Award Schedule This schedule is required by OHS 1fthe subrec1p1ent/contractor

1s a non-profit, for-profit, a governmental unt other than a tnbe, county, Chapter 51 board or school d1stnct,
if the subrec1p1ent/contractor receives funding directly from OHS; if payment 1s based on or limited to an
actual allowable cost basis; and if the auditee reported expenses or other activity resulting in payments
totalmg $100,000 or more for all of its grant(s) or contract(s) with DHS

7 *Reserve Schedule 1s only required 1f the subrec1pent/contractor 1s a non-profit and paid on a prospectively
set rate

8 * Allowable Profit Schedule 1s only required if the subrec1p1ent/contractor 1s a for-profit entity
9 * Additional Supplemental Schedule(s) reqmred by funding agency may be reqmred Check with the fundmg

agency
NOTE: These schedules are only reqmred for certain types ofentitles or specific financial conditions
For subrecip1ent/contractors that do not meet the federal audit requirements of2 C.F R Part 200 and SSAG, the
audit reportmg package to OHS shall include all ofthe above items except items 4 and 5

E Audt Due Date Audits that must comply with 2 C F R. Part 200 and the State Single Audit Gmdelines are due to
the granting agencies nine months from the end ofthe fiscal penod or thirty (30) days from completion of the
audit, whichever 1s sooner For all other audits, the due date is six months from the end of the fiscal penod unless
a different date 1s specified wthmn the contract or grant agreement

F Sendzng the Reportzng Package Audit reports shall be sent by the auditor via email to
DHSAuditors@Wisconsin gov with "cc" to the subrecrp1ent/audntee The audit reports shall be electronically
created pdf files that are text searchable, unlocked, and unencrypted (Note To ensure that pdf files are unlocked
and text-searchable, do not scan a physical copy of the audit report and do not change the default secunty settings
mn your pdf creator)

G Access to Subrecpent Records The aud1tee must provide the auditor with access to personnel, accounts, books,
records, supporting documentation, and other information as needed for the auditor to perform the reqmred audit
The audrtee shall permit appropnate representatives ofOHS to have access to the audrtee's records and financial
statements as necessary to review the audtee's complance with federal and state reqmrements for the use of the
funding Having an independent audit does not limit the authonty ofOHS to conduct or arrange for other audits or

Page 11 of I 9
Template Rev1s1on 06/23/2023 (prevmus templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F 3CE0-4FEF 9EE1-94E656A08017

review offederal or state programs OHS shall use mformat10n from the audit to conduct the1r own reviews
without duplication ofthe independent audrtor's work

H Access to Audtor's Work Papers The auditor shall make audit work papers available upon request to the audrtee,
DHS or their des1gnee as part ofperforming a quality review, resolving audit findings, or carrymng out overs1ght
respons1b1ht1es. Access to workmg papers mcludes the rght to obtam copies ofworkmg papers
Falure to Comply with the Audzt Requzrements OHS may impose sanct10ns when needed to ensure that audttees
have complied with the requirements to provide OHS with an audit that meets the applicable standards and to
admimster state and federal programs mn accordance with the apphcable reqmrements Examples of situations
when sanct10ns may be warranted mclude
1 The audrtee did not have an audit
2 The auditee did not send the audit to OHS or another grantmg agency withm the ongmal or extended audit

deadline
3 The auditor did not perform the audit mn accordance with applicable standards, mcludmg the standards

descnbed m the SSAG
4 The audit reporting package 1s not complete, for example, the reportmg package 1s m1ssmg the corrective

action plan or other reqmred elements
5 The audrtee does not cooperate with OHS or another grantmg agency's audit resolution efforts, for example,

the audrtee does not take corrective action or does not repay disallowed costs to the grantmg agency
J Sanctzons OHS will choose sanct10ns that smt the particular circumstances and also promote compliance and/or

corrective act10n Possible sanctions may mclude·
1 Requiring modified monutormng and/or reporting prov1sons,
2 Delaying payments, w1thholdmg a percentage ofpayments, w1thholdmg or d1sallowmg overhead costs, or

suspendmg the award until the aud1tee 1s m compliance;
3 D1sallowmg the cost of audits that do not meet these standards,
4 Conductmg an audit or arrangmg for an mdependent audit ofthe aud1tee and chargmg the cost of completmg

the audit to the auditee,
5 Chargmg the audrtee for all loss offederal or state aid or for penalties assessed to OHS because the aud1tee

did not comply with audit reqmrements,
6 Assessmg financial sanctions or penalties,
7 DIscontinuing contracting with the aud1tee; and/or
8 Takmng other action that OHS determines 1s necessary to protect federal or state pass-through fundmg

K Closeout Audts: An agreement specific audit of an accountmg penod of less than 12 months 1s required when an
agreement 1s termmated for cause, when the aud1tee ceases operations or changes its accountmg penod (fiscal
year). The purpose of the audit 1s to close-out the short accounting penod The required close-out agreement
specific audit may be waived by OHS upon wntten request from the subrecipent/contractor, except when the
agreement 1s termmated for cause The required close-out audit may not be waived when an agreement is
terminated for cause
The auditee shall ensure that its auditor contacts OHS pnor to begmmng the audit. OHS, or its representative,
shall have the opportunity to review the planned audit program, request add1t1onal comphance or internal control
testing and attend any conference between the aud1tee and the auditor Payment ofmcreased audit costs, as a
result of the additional testing requested by DHS, Is the responsibility of the aud1tee
OHS may reqmre a close-out audit that meets the audit reqmrements specified m 2 C.F R Part 200 Subpart F In
add1ton, DHS may requure that the auditor annualize revenues and expenditures for the purposes of applymg 2
CFR Part 200 Subpart F and determmnmng mayor federal financial ass1stance programs Thus information shall be
disclosed mn a note wthin the schedule of federal awards All other prov1s10ns m 2 C F R Part 200 Subpart F
Audit Requirements apply to close-out audits unless mn conflict with the specific close-out audit requirements

19. OTHER ASSURANCES

A The Grantee shall notify DHS mn writing, wthmn thirty (30) days of the date payment was due, of any past due
habihtJes to the federal government, state government, or their agents for mncome tax withholdmg, Federal
Insurance ContnbutJons Act (FICA) tax. worker's compensation, unemployment compensation, garnishments or
other employee related liab1litres, sales tax, income tax of the Grantee, or other momes owed The wntten notice
shall mclude the amount owed, the reason the momes are owed, the due date, the amount of any penalties or
mterest (known or estimated), the umt ofgovernment to which the momes are owed, the expected payment date,
and other related mformat10n

Page 12 of 19
Template Revis1on 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

B The Grantee shall notify OHS m writmg, w1thm thirty (30) days ofthe date payment was due, ofany past due
payment 111 excess of$500 or when total past due habihttes to any one or more vendors exceed $1,000 related to
the operation of thus Agreement for which DHS has reimbursed or will reimburse the Grantee The written notice
shall mclude the amount owed, the reason the momes are owed, the due date, the amount ofany penalties or
mterest (known or estimated), the vendor to which the momes are owed, the expected payment date, and other
related mformation. If the hab1hty is 111 dispute, the wntten notice shall contam a discussion of facts related to the
dispute and the mformation on steps bemg taken by the Grantee to resolve the dispute

C OHS may requre written assurance at the time ofentenng mto this Agreement that the Grantee has in force, and
will maintam for the course ofth1s Agreement, employee dishonesty bondmg ma reasonable amount to be
determined by OHS up to $500,000

20. RECORDS

A The Grantee shall mamtam wntten and electromc records as reqwred by state and federal law and required by
program pol1c1es

B The Grantee and its Subgrantee(s) or Subcontractor(s) shall comply with all state and federal confidentiality laws
concernmg the mformat10n m both the records 1t mamntamns and many ofOHS' records that the Grantee accesses
to provide services under ths Agreement

C The Grantee and its Subgrantee(s) or Subcontractor(s) will allow inspect10n of records and programs, msofar as 1s
permitted by state and federal law, by representatives ofDHS, its authonzed agents, and federal agencies, 111 order
to confirm the Grantee's compliance with the specifications ofths Agreement

D The Grantee agrees to retam and make available to OHS all program and fiscal records for six (6) years after the
end of the Agreement penod

E The use or disclosure by any party ofany information concerning eligible mndrv1duals who recerve services from
the Grantee for any purpose not connected with the admmnustraton of the Grantee's or DHS' responsibilities under
this Agreement is prohibited except with the mformed, wntten consent of the eligible mdiv1dual or the
mndrvdual's legal guard1an

21. CONTRACT REVISIONS AND/OR TERMINATION

A The Grantee agrees to renegotiate with OHS the terms and condit10ns of this Agreement or any part thereof m
such circumstances as
1 Increased or decreased volume of services
2 Changes reqmred by state and federal law or regulations or court action.
3. Increase or reduct10n m the momes available affecting the substance ofthis Agreement

B. Failure to agree to a renegotiated Agreement under these cIrcumstances 1s cause for OHS to termmate this
Agreement

C Non-Appropraton DHS reserves the nght to cancel this Agreement mn whole or 1n part without penalty 1f the
W1sconsm Legislature, Umted States Congress, or any other direct funding entity contributmg to the financial
support ofth1s contract fails to appropnate funds necessary to complete the contract

D Termnatonfor Cause. OHS may termmate this Agreement after provdmng the Grantee with thirty (30) calendar
days wntten notice ofthe Grantee's nght to cure a failure of the Grantee to perform under the terms ofthis
Agreement, 1f the Grantee fails to so cure or commence to cure
The Grantee may termmate the Agreement after prov1dmg OHS a wntten notice, w1thm one hundred and twenty
(120) calendar days, ofOHS' nght to cure a failure to perform under the terms ofthus Agreement
Upon the terminat10n ofth1s Agreement for any reason, or upon Agreement exp1rat10n, each party shall be
released from all obhgat10ns to the other party ansmg after the date oftermmation or exp1rat1on, except for those
that by their terms survive such termination or expiration
Upon term111at10n for cause, the Grantee shall be entitled to recerve compensation for any deliverables' payments
owed under the Agreement only for deliverables that have been approved and accepted by OHS

E Termnatonfor Convenence Either party may terminate this Agreement at any tmme, without cause, by providing
a wntten notice. OHS must notify the Grantee at least forty-five (45) calendar days pnor to the desJred date of
termmatJon for convemence The Grantee must notify OHS at least one hundred and twenty ( 120) calendar days
pnor to the desired date oftermination for convenence- during this notification period, the Grantee will contmue
prov1dmg services m accordance with the Agreement reqmrements

Page 13 of 19
Template Rev1s10n 06/23/2023 (prev10us templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1 C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

In the event oftermmat10n for convemence, the Grantee shall be entitled to receive compensat10n for any fees
owed under the Agreement and shall also be compensated for partially completed services In this event,
compensation for such partially completed services shall be no more than the percentage ofcomplet10n of the
services requested, at the sole discret10n ofOHS, multiphed by the corresponding payment for complet10n of such
services as set forth mn the Agreement Alternatively, at the sole d1scret10n ofOHS, the Grantee may be
compensated for the actual service hours provided. OHS shall be entitled to a refund for goods or services paid for
but not received or implemented, such refund to be paid withmn thirty (30) days ofwritten notice to the Grantee
requestmg the refund

F Cancellaton DHS reserves the nght to immediately cancel this Agreement, mn whole or mn part, without penalty
and without an opportunity for Grantee to cure ifthe Grantee

1 Files a petition mn bankruptcy, becomes Insolvent, or otherwise takes action to dissolve as a legal entity;
2 Allows any final Judgment not to be satisfied or a hen not to be disputed after a legally-imposed, thirty

(30)-day notice,
3 Makes an assignment for the benefit ofcreditors,
4 Fails to follow the sales and use tax certificat10n reqmrements of Wis Stat $ 77 66,
5 Incurs a dehnquent Wisconsm tax liabihty,
6 Fails to submit a non-discnmination or affirmative action plan as requtred herem,
7. Fails to follow the non-d1scrminaton or affirmative act1on requirements of subch II, Chapter 111 of the

Wisconsin Statutes (Wisconsin's Faur Employment Law),
8 Becomes a federally debarred Grantee,
9 Is excluded from federal procurement and non-procurement Agreements,
l O Fails to maintain and keep mn force all required Insurance, permits and hcenses as provided in this

Agreement,
II Fauls to mamntamn the confident1alty ofDHS? 1format1on that 1s cons1dered to be Confident1al

Informaton, proprietary, or contamnmng Personally Identifiable Information, or
12 Grantee performance threatens the health or safety ofa state employee or state customer

22. NONCOMPLIANCE AND REMEDIAL MEASURES

A Fa1lure to comply wnth any part of thus Agreement may be considered cause for rev1s1on, suspens1on, or
termination ofthis Agreement Suspension mcludes w1thholdmg part or all ofthe payments that otherwise would
be paid to the Grantee under this Agreement, temporanly havmg others perform and receive reimbursement for
the services to be provided under this Agreement, and any other measure OHS detennines is necessary to protect
the interests of the State

B The Grantee shall provide wntten notice to OHS ofall instances ofnoncompliance with the terms of this
Agreement by the Grantee or any of its Subgrantees or Subcontractors, mcluding noncompliance with allowable
cost provis10ns Notice shall be given as soon as practicable but m no case later than thirty (30) days after the
Grantee became aware ofthe noncomphance. The written notice shall mclude mnformat1on on the reason for and
effect of the noncompliance The Grantee shall provide OHS with a plan to correct the noncompliance

C IfOHS determmes that noncomphance with this Agreement has occurred or contmues to occur, it shall demand
immediate correct10n ofcontmuing noncomphance and seek remedial measures it deems necessary to protect the
interests of the State up to and mcluding termmat10n ofthe Agreement, the imposmg of add1t10nal reporting
requirements and momtormg of Subgrantee or Subcontractors, and any other measures 1t deems appropriate and
necessary

0. lf requtred statistical data, reports, and other reqmred mformat10n are not submitted when due, OHS may
withhold all payments that otherwise would be paid the Grantee under this Agreement until such time as the
reports and mnformaton are submitted

23. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

If any dispute anses between OHS and Grantee under this Agreement, mcludmg OHS' findmg of noncomphance and
1mpost1on of remedial measures, the following process wll be the exclusrve administrative review

A Informal Revew DHS' and Grantee's Grant Administrators wall attempt to resolve the dispute If a dispute ts not
resolved at this step, then a wntten statement to this effect must be signed and dated by both Grant
Admm1strators The written statement must include all of the following

Page 14 of 19
Template Revs1on 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1 C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

A brief statement of the issue
2 The steps that have been taken to resolve the dispute
3. Any suggested resolution by either party

B Drvuson Admunstrator 's Revew If the dispute cannot be resolved by the Grant Admm1strators, the Grantee may
request a review by the Administrator of the drvrs1on mn whch DHS Grant Admmnstrator s employed, or 1f the
Grant Administrator is the Administrator of the divs1on, by the Deputy Secretary ofDHS The Division
Admmrstrator (or Deputy Secretary) must receive a request under this step within fourteen ( 14) days after the date
of the signed unresolved dispute letter mn Step A. The D1v1s10n Administrator or Deputy Secretary wll review the
matter and 1ssue a written determination wIthm thirty (30) days after recervmng the review request

C Secretary 's Revew If the dispute is unresolved at Step B, the Grantee may request a final review by the Secretary
ofOHS. The Office of the Secretary must receive a request under this step withm fourteen (14) days after the date
of the wntten determmation under Step B The Secretary will issue a final determination on the matter w1thm
thirty (30) days after recervmng the Step B review request

24. FINAL REPORT DATE

A The due date of the final fiscal reports shall be 45 days after the fundmg ends per the appropnate profile
Expenses mcurred durmg the profile performance penod but reported later than 45 days after the funding ends per
the appropnate profile will not be recognized, allowed, or reimbursed under the terms of this Agreement unless
determmed as allowable by OHS In the event this occurs, an alternate payment process as determined by OHS
would occur Please reference the GEARS mformation box for specified profile performance penod end dates

B Expenses incurred outside of the Agreement penod would be considered not allowable

25. INDEMNITY

To the extent authonzed under state and federal laws, OHS and the Grantee agree they shall be responsible for any
losses or expenses (mcludmg costs, damages, and attorney's fees) attnbutable to the acts or om1ss1ons of their
employees, officers, or agents

26. CONDITIONS OF THE PARTIES' OBLIGATIONS

A This Agreement 1s contmgent upon authonty granted under the laws of the State ofW1sconsm and the Umted
States ofAmenca, and any material amendment or repeal ofthe same affectmg relevant fundmg or authonty of
OHS shall serve to revise or termmate this Agreement, except as further agreed to by the parties

B OHS and the Grantee understand and agree that no clause, term, or condition ofthis Agreement shall be construed
to supersede the lawful powers or duties of either party.

C It 1s understood and agreed that the enttre Agreement between the parties is contained herein, except for those
matters mcorporated herem by reference, and that this Agreement supersedes all oral agreements and negotiations
between the parties relatmg to the subject matter thereof

27. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State ofW 1sconsm The venue for any act10ns brought under this
Agreement shall be the C1rcmt Court ofDane County, W1sconsm or the US D1stnct Court for the Western Distnct of
Wisconsm, as applicable

28. SEVERABILITY

The mnvaldty, 1llegaluty, or unenforceability of any prov1s1on of thus Agreement or the occurrence of any event
rendering any port1on or prov1s1on of this Agreement void shall mn no way affect the val1duty or enforceability of any
other port1on or provs1on ofthus Agreement Any void prov1s1on shall be deemed severed from thus Agreement, and
the balance of this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as 1f 1t did not contamn the particular portion or
prov1s10n held to be vod The parties further agree to amend this Agreement to replace any stncken provision with a
vald provts1on that comes as close as poss1ble to the intent ofthe stricken provision The provisions of thus Article
shall not prevent this entire Agreement from bemg v01d should a provision, which 1s of the essence of this Agreement,
be determined void

Pagel5ofl9
Template Rev1s10n 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSgn Envelope ID 1C80278F-3CE0-4FEF 9EE1-94E656A08017

29. ASSIGNMENT

Neither party shall ass1gn any rghts or duties under thus Agreement without the prior written consent of the other
party.

30. ANTI-LOBBYING ACT

The Grantee shall certify to OHS that 1t wll not and has not used federal approprated funds to pay any person or
orgamzat1on for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress,
officer or employee ofCongress, or an employee ofa member ofCongress in connection with obtaining any federal
contract, grant or any other award covered by 31USC 1352 The Grantee shall also disclose any lobbying with non
federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award

The Grantee shall use Standard Form LLL for Disclosure of Lobbymg Activates available at
https://www gsa.gov/portal/forms/download/116430 A completed disclosure must be provided upon Department
request

31. DEBARMENT OR SUSPENSION

The Grantee certifies that neither the Grantee organization nor any ofts principals are debarred, suspended, or
proposed for debarment for federal financial assistance (includmg, but not hmited to, General Services
Admin1strat10n's hst ofparties excluded from federal procurement and non-procurement programs) The Grantee
further certifies that potential Subgrantees or Subcontractors and any of their prnc1pals are not debarred, suspended,
or proposed for debarment

32. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE

The Grantee, agents, employees, Subgrantees or Subcontractors under this Agreement shall follow the guidelines
established by the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988

33. MULTIPLE ORIGINALS

This Agreement may be executed in multiple onginals, each ofwhich together shall constitute a single Agreement

34. CAPTIONS

The parties agree that m this Agreement, captions are used for convemence only and shall not be used mn mterpretmng
or construmng thus Agreement

35. SPECIAL PROVISIONS, IF APPLICABLE

The following spec1al provisions are required

A Match Requirements
Local MCH/CYSHCN Match

Federal Maternal and Child Health regulations reqmre the state to provide 75% match Contracts must include
match as mndcated below:
• Local orgamzat10ns are reqmred to provide local match in an amount not less than 75% of the requested grant

funds Tnbal agencies, federally designated commumty health centers and migrant health centers are exempt
from this reqmrement

• Local match rs funding, resources, contributions, provided by the local agency, to further the objectives of the
MCH Program, outside ofthe MCH grant funds

• Program costs, mncludmng match rs generally considered elg1ble 1f 1t 1s budgeted for, complies with Federal
regulations, and if 1t is not charged agamst any other grant Match may consist of cash match and mn-kmd

Page 16 of 19
Template Rev1son 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSgn Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF 9EE1-94E656408017

donations An orgamzat10n may not claim as match any costs used to match any other federal grant, award, or
contract No federal dollars may be used for match of thus grant except Title XIX and Title XX
reimbursements recerved by the organization for services when such are used to further the objectives of the
MCH Program.

• An organ1zat1on may count as match any local expense which meets the qualifications outlmed above and
which contributes to the project For example, the local share of staff costs related to the project, and the value
of supplies purchased with local funds and used mn the project, may be used as match

• An orgamzat1on may also use as match any local share which meets the quahficat10ns outlined above and
which cons1sts of effort on the organ1zaton's part to pursue the objectives ofthe MCH Program For
example, 1f an orgamzat10n receives funds for a child health program, it may count as match not only the local
effort which is directly related to the child health program, but local effort devoted to any other relevant
maternal and child health activity.

Grantees wall comply with year-end program reporting requirements set by the State of Wisconsmn
MCH/CYSHCN Program mcluding documentat10n of75% local match ($0 75 local contnbution for every
$1 00 federal), mcludmg program mcome Grantees report through the GEARS system on the OHS/DES F-
00642 Grant Enrollment, Apphcat10n and Reportmg System (GEARS) Expenditure Report form. In the current
net expense column, use profile 193002 for reportmg MCH match and profile 193001 for reportmg CYSHCN
match The or1gnal DHS/DES F-00642 form 1s e-mailed to GEARS (dhs600rcars@wi gov) with a copy to the
State MCH/CYSHCN Contract Admimstrator/Negotmtor

Reference Pubhc Health Service (PHS) Grants Pohcy Statement, US DHHS, 1/1,2007

36. NULL AND VOID

Thus Agreement becomes null and void 1f the time between the earl1er dated signature and the later dated s1gnature of
DHS' and Grantee's Authorzed Representatives on thus Agreement exceeds stxty (60) days mnclusrve of the two
signature dates

37. FUNDING CONTROLS

Funding Control Explanation
3-month Payments through Jun 30 of the contract year are hmited to 3/12th of the Grant Agreement with

the balance paid after Jul 1 of the contract year based on reported costs up to the contract level

4-month Payments through Jun 30 of the contract year are hmited to 4/12th of the Grant Agreement with
the balance paid after Jul I of the contract year based on reported costs up to the contract level.

5-month Payments through Jun 30 of the contract year are hm1ted to 5/12th of the Grant Agreement with
the balance paid after Jul 1 of the contract year based on reported costs up to the contract level.

6-month Payments through Jun 30 of the contract year are hm1ted to 6/12th of the Grant Agreement with
the balance paid after Jul l of the contract year based on reported costs up to the contract level

9-month Payments through Jun 30 of the contract year are hmited to 9/12th of the Grant Agreement with
the balance paid after Jul I of the contract year based on reported costs up to the contract level

NIA Profile does not reqmre fundmg control

Page 17 of 19
Template Revs1on 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE 1-94E656A08017

38. FEDERAL AWARD INFORMATION

DHS Profile 159320 155020Number

FAIN B0447455 NH23IP922611

Federal Award Date 8/29/2023 7/12/2023

Sub-award penod of
Performance Start 1/1/2024 1/1/2024
Date

Sub-award penod of
Performance End 12/31/2024 12/31/2024
Date
Amount of Federal
Funds obligated $6,861 $7,583(committed) by th1s
act1on
Total Amount of
Federal Funds $6,861 $7,583obligated
(committed)

Federal Award Maternal and Child Immumzat10n and
Project Descnption Health Services Vaccmes for Children

Federal Awardmg Department ofHealth Department ofHealthAgency Name and Human Services and Human Services(Department)

DHS Awardmg Debra K Standndge Debra K StandridgeOfficial Name

DHS Awardmg
Official Contact 608-266-9622 608-266-9622
Informat1on

Ass1stance Listing 93 994 93 268Number

Ass1stance Lasting Maternal and Child Immun1zat1onHealth Services BlockName Grant to the States Cooperative Agreements

Total made available
under each Federal $11,026,744 $6,411,281award at the time of
disbursement

R&D? No No

Indirect Cost Rate 79% 79%

Page 18 of 19
Template Rev1s10n 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE 1-94E656A08017

39. GEARS PAYMENT INFORMATION

DHS GEARS STAFF INTERNAL USE ONLY
GEARS PAYMENT INFORMATION

The mnformaton below is used by DHS Bureau ofFiscal Services, GEARS Unut, to facltate the processing and
recording of payments made under thus Agreement

GEARS Contract year 2024

Agency# Agency Name Agency GEARS Contract GEARS Program Total Contract
Type Start Date Contract End

Date·

472787 Franklin HD 60 1/1/2024 12/31/2024 $15,707

Profile Profile Name Profile Profile Current Profile Change Profile Total Funding
ID# Note Amount Amount Amount Controls1

157720 CONS - $1,263 $1,263 6-month
CONTRACTS

CHHDLD
159320 CONS - $6,861 $6,861 NIA

CONTRACTS
MCH

155020 CONS - $7,583 $7,583 NIA
CONTRACTS

IMM
$15,707

'See 'Funding Controls "

Page 19 of 19
Template Rev1ston 06/23/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C80278F-3CEO4FEF-9EE1-94E656A408017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit I

Program Quality Criteria

Generally hgh program quality crtera for the delrvery of quality and cost-effective admm1stration of
health care programs have been, and will contmue to be, required m each public health program to be
operated under the terms of this contract

This Exhibit contamns only applicable qualty crtera for thus contract

11/30/2023 11 23 AM DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1 C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit I

Contract#: 62118 Agency: Franklm Health Department Contract Y ear: 2024

Program: Childhood Lead Consohdated
Program Quahty Cntena

I) Assessment and surveillance ofpubhc health to identify commumty needs and to support systematic, competent program
planning and sound policy development wth actrvrtres focused at both the mnduv1dual and community levels

A) Grantee must assess local blood lead surveillance data for lead potsonmg prevalence and nsk factors
2) De IIvery of pubhc health services to c1t1zens by quahfied health profess10nals m a manner that 1s fam Ily centered,

culturally competent, and consistent with the best practices, and delivery ofpubhc health programs for commu111t1es for
the improvement of health status

A) Grantees must provide services that support the elmmnat1on of childhood lead po1sonmg and the early
detect10n and treatment of children with lead potsomng mcludmg compliance with
( 1) WI Statute and Admmmustratve Rules
- WI Stat 254 (Environmental Health, http l/docs legs wa gov/statutes/statutes/254 pdf),
- WI Admmn Rule 181 (Reporting of Blood Lead Test Results,

http //docs leg1s w1sconsm gov/code/admm_code/dhs/110/181 pdt), and
- WI Admm Rule 163 (Certification for the Identification, Removal and Reduction of Lead-Based Pamnt

Hazards, http l/docs legs wsconsm gov/code/admun_code/dhs/1 10/163 pdf) and

(2) Practice standards presented 111

- CDC's Blood Lead Reference Value and Recommended Actions (Oct 2021)
https //www cdc gov/nceh/lead/data/blood-lead-reference-value.htm

- Low Level Lead Exposure Harms Children A Renewed Call for Pnmary Prevention*
(https //www cdc gov/ncch/lead/docs/final_document_030712 pdf, CDC, January 4, 2012),

- Wisconsm Chldhood Lead Posonmg Prevention and Control Handbook
(https //www dhs w1sconsm gov/lead/ph-mtervent10n htm, under the Handbook tab, rev 2014), and

- U S Dept ofHousmg and Urban Development, Gmdelmes for the Evaluation and Control of Lead
Based Pamt Hazards m Housmng (2012 Edition,
https //www hud gov/program_offices/healthy_homes/lbp/hudgmdelmes)

B) Grantees must assure the availab1hty and access1b1hty of blood lead tests for children under age 6, as
referenced m the boundary statement

C) Grantees must provide a nurse home vast and environmental investigation wrthmn two weeks of the referral
date for children with an elevated blood lead level A note must be added to the patient and/or address
record m the Healthy Homes and Lead Pmsonmg Surveillance System (HHLPSS) regardmg any delay For
mstruct10ns, use HHLPSS Job Aids 3 13 Patient Notes and 4 2 Enterg Property Notes
(https //www dhs w1sconsm gov/lead/hhlpss-Job-aids htm)

D) Grantees must not discrmmnate on the bas1s of the child or guardian's race, ethmcty, relgton, sex, gender
1dentuty and express1on, sexual orientation, primary language, disablrty, martal status or nattonal or1gin in
any of 1ts activates related to thus grant

3) Record keeping for mdrv1dual focused services that assures documentation and tracking of client health care needs,
response to known health care problems on a timely basis, and confidentiality of client mformat1on

A) Grantee must have a system for mamtammg records to track follow-up of children with blood lead levels
greater than or equal to 3 5 µg/dL and all properties associated with elevated blood lead levels, mcludmg
the findmgs and outcomes of mterventons and environmental mnvestgations

4) Informat10n, education, and outreach programs mtended to address known health nsks m the general and certam target
populat10ns to encourage appropnate dec1s10n makmg by those at rsk and to affect pohcy and environmental changes at

11/30/2023 11 23 AM DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuSgn Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A408017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit I

Contract #: 62118 Agency: Franklm Health Department Contract Year: 2024

the commu111ty level
A) Grantee must provide mnformaton within the community about lead hazards, lead hazard reduct10n

methods, pnmary prevention of lead potsonmng, and blood lead testmg, as referenced m the boundary
statement.

5) Coordmat10n with related programs to assure that identified pubhc health needs are addressed ma comprehensive, cost
effective manner across programs and throughout the commumty

A) Grantee must bmld partnerships with local health care providers and agencies mvolved m health, social
services, housmg, and childcare to mcorporate lead hazard awareness mto ther actrvtres wth, or services
to, fam1hes at nsk for lead exposure

B) Grantee must provide mformat10n, consultation and techmcal assistance to health care providers or other
programs to assure that treatment of children with lead p01sonmg 1s efficient and effective, and to assure
that lead-safe environments are available to children with lead po1sonmng

6) A referral network sufficient to assure the access1bulty and timely prov1s1on of services to address 1dent1fied publ1c
health care needs

A) Grantee must assess the need for, and provide timely and appropnate referrals for, supportive services to
families of lead poisoned children

7) Provis1on of guidance to staff through program and policy manuals and other means sufficient to assure quality health
care and cost-effectrve program admmustrat1on

A) Grantee must assure that local childhood lead p01sonmg prevention program staff has access to, are
knowledgeable of and m compliance with the state statutes and admimstrattve rules and practice standards
listed m Number 2 Delvery of Pubhc Health Services

8) Fmnanc1al management practices sufficient to assure accurate elig1b1lity determmat10n, appropnate use of state and
federal funds, prompt and accurate bllmng and payment for services provided and purchased, accurate expenditure
reporting, and, when required, pursuut of third-party insurance and Medical Assistance Program coverage of services
provided

A) Grantee must pursue third party payment and/or other fundmg sources for service prov1s10n to children who
are elgtble for third party payment Thus mcludes bllmng Medcaud fee-for-service or the appropriate
managed care orgamzatton for blood lead testmg ofMed1cmd-enrolled chiidren This also includes biihng
Med1card for nurse home vs1ts and environmental investigations for children with blood lead levels greater
than or equal to 5 µg/dL

9) Data collect1on, analysts, and reportmg to assure program outcome goals are met or to 1dent1fy program management
problems that need to be addressed

A) Grantee must regularly collect and analyze local data to determme the adequacy of blood lead testmg for
children, timely follow-up of lead p01soned chtldren, timely completion of environmental mvest1gat1ons
and lead hazard reduct10n work, and commumty lead p01somng prevent10n education

B) Grantee must complete the followmg nursmg and environmental reports Template forms can be found at
https //dhs w1sconsm gov/lead/ph-mtervent1on htm, under the Forms and Templates tab When you chck on
a template, 1f a wmdow appears askmg you to log m, chck on the "y" mn the nght hand comer to go to the
document
- Nursmg Case Management Report (F-44771A)
- Nursmg Case Closure Report (F-44771B)
- Property Invest1gat10n Report (F-44771C)
- Property Invest1gat1on Closure Report (F-44771D)
- Risk Assessment Report (template)

1 1 / 3 0 / 2 0 2 3 1 2 3 A M DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1 C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit I

Contract#: 62118 Agency Franklm Health Department Contract Y ear: 2024

11/30/2023 1 I 23 \M

- Work Specification Language for Lead Hazard Reduction (hst of work spec options)
- Work Orders Letter (template)
- Scope of Work (template)
- Clearance Report (template)

C) Grantee must promptly attach the completed forms and documents above to the pertment patient or address
record m HHLPSS For mstruct1ons use HHLPSS Job Aids 3 14 Patent Attachments and 4 3 Addmg
Attachments (https.//www dhs wisconsmn gov/lead/hhlpss-job-a1ds htm)

DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CEO4FEF-9EE1 94E656408017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit I

Contract#: 62118 Agency: Franklm Health Department Contract Year: 2024

Program: ImmumzatJon
Program Quality Cntena

I) Assessment and surveillance of public health to identify commumty needs and to support systematic, competent program
planning and sound policy development with activities focused at both the mndrv1dual and community levels

A) Grantees must assure reported vaccme preventable diseases (VPD) are mvest1gated and controlled as
detaled mn the most current eduton of the Wisconsin DIsease Surveillance Manual (EPINET) and/or written
d1sease-spec1fic gmdance from DPH (e g Pertussis Gmdelmes) Local health departments (LHDs) should
mamtam regular contact with local reqmred reporters ofVPDs to encourage and assure prompt reportmg
Grantees should sohc1t the help of the W1sconsm Immumzatrnn Program when needed to help assure that
an adequate system 1s mn place to report and investigate VPD This includes the follow-up of mfants born to
HBsAg-positive women The LHD where the woman res1des 1s responsible for follow-up actrvt1es

B) Grantees must annually and formally evaluate 1mmumzat1on delivery and the use ofvaccme preventable
disease surveillance systems and improve the use of those systems (e g, the Wisconsmn Electron1c Disease
Surveillance System (WEDSS)) m their Jurisd1ct10ns, where needed

C) Grantees must work m collaboration with the Wisconsin Immunuzat1on Program to mcrease the use of
exIstmng electron1c data collecton systems for vaccme record keepmg and vaccme preventable disease data
systems

2) Delivery of public health services to c1t1zens by qualified health profess10nals ma manner that 1s famly centered,
culturally competent, and consistent with the best practices, and dehvery ofpubhc health programs for commumt1es for
the improvement of health status

A) Grantees must assure the delivery of1mmumzat1on services in a safe, effective, and efficient manner, as
detailed m the W1sconsm Immumzat10n Program Policy and Procedure Manual and m Chapter 252, Wis
Statutes and Chapter DHS 145, Wis Admm Code Grantees must assure the mmmun1zatton of children 1s
consistent with Healthy People 2020 goals

3) Record keeping for individual focused services that assures documentat10n and trackmg of client health care needs,
response to known health care problems on a timely basis, and confidentiality of client mformat1on

A) Grantees must use the Wisconsin Immunization Registry (WIR) or an electronic Immunization population
based data system that Imks with the WIR The data system must have a trackmg and recall function to
1dent1fy children whose mmmun1zat1on records are behmd schedule accordmg to the ACIP
recommendat10ns Trackmg and recall shall be conducted at least every other month as reqmred by the
W1sconsm Immumzat1on Policy and Procedure Manual

B) Grantees' 1mmumzat10n practice must assure the 1mmumzat1on of children and share children's
1mmumzat10n records with parents or guardians, schools and childcare centers and other healthcare
providers as provided by the Wisconsm School Immumzaton Law (Chapter 252, Wis Statutes, Chapters
DHS 144 and 145, Wis Admm Code)

4) Informat10n, educat10n, and outreach programs mtended to address known health nsks m the general and certam target
populations to encourage appropnate dec1s10n makmg by those at rsk and to affect policy and environmental changes at
the commumty level

A) Grantees must engage m commumty partnerships to identify and address the needs ofh1gh-nsk
populations, reduce racial and ethnic health disparities and to educate families and the communtty on the
Importance of mmmum1zat1ons

B) Grantees should engage mn mmprovmg health literacy for the public and for the healthcare personnel
workmng with mmmunuzattons to better understand, evaluate, and communicate mmmun1zat1on mnformat1on

5) Coordmat1on with related programs to assure that 1dent1fied pubhc health needs are addressed ma comprehensive, cost-

11 30/2023 11 23 AM DPl-l Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF 9EE1-94E656A08017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit I

Contract#: 62118 Agency: Franklm Health Department Contract Year: 2024

effective manner across programs and throughout the commumty
A) Grantees must coordmate public and pnvate 1mmumzat1on services with local child healthcare (service)

providers [e g., Women, Infants, and Chldren (WIC) projects, Med1cal Ass1stance programs, and other
local public health programs] to assess the 1mmumzat1on status of, refer, and provide 1mmumzatton
services to under-mmmun1zed children

6) A referral network sufficient to assure the access1blty and timely prov1s1on of services to address dent1fied publ1c
health care needs

A) Grantees must develop relat1onsh1ps among pubhc and pnvate healthcare providers to fac1htate access by
children and families to immunization services Grantees should work wth these provders to assure that
current 1mmumzat10n gmdelmes are followed

B) The LHD should promote the medical home concept by referrmg vaccme rec1p1ents to their medical home
provider for subsequent immunizations and coordinate with thus med1cal provider to assure adherence to
the recommended 1mmumzat10n schedule

C) LHDs should promote the exchange and sharing of mmmunzat1on data usng mmmunrzat1on regrstr1es
D) The LHD will assure adequate surveillance, prompt reportmg and epidemiolog1c follow-up ofvaccme

preventable diseases When prompt reportmg of a vaccme preventable disease does not occur, the LPHD
will formally address the issue with the reportmg agency to assure that reports are made accordmg to the
latest EPINet Manual

7) Prov1s10n of gmdance to staff through program and policy manuals and other means sufficient to assure quality health
care and cost-effective program admm1strat10n

A) Grantees will ensure program staff is competent m current immunization program policy and processes,
mcludmg that provided through the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) distance learnmg
course and CDC updates

B) The LHD will follow the Immumzatmn Policy and Procedure Manual developed and d1stnbuted by the
W1sconsm Immumzatmn Program, unless otherwise agreed upon, as well as mmmun1zat1on pol1cy memos
penod1cally issued by the Program The LHD must have wntten policies on the proper handling and
storage of state-supplied vaccmes as reqmred by the Vaccmes for Children (VFC) Program These policies
must be reviewed with all immumzatmn program-related staff on at least an annual basis.

C) Grantees will reqmre at least one staff member to view the permatal hepatitis B trammng webinar
8) Fmancial management practices sufficient to assure accurate eligibility determmatmn, appropriate use of state and

federal funds, prompt and accurate billmg and payment for services provided and purchased, accurate expenditure
reportmg, and, when required, pursunt of third-party Insurance and Medical Assistance Program coverage of services
provided

A) Bllmng for payment of chldhood mmmun1zat1on services 1s not required under thus sect1on
B) LHDs must assure that parents of children who are on Medical Assistance will not be charged a vaccme

admmistratmn fee or be requested to make a donatmn for vaccme or vaccme-related services
Admimstratmn fees cannot be mandatory, and clients must be mformed that failure to pay the
admmistrat1on fee or make a donation does not preclude them from receivmg state-supplied vaccme This
mnformat1on must be added to 1mmumzat10n advert1smg matenals used by the LHD for state-supplied
vaccmes The message must be given to the chent m a way and 111 a language the client understands

C) Grantees must screen for msurance elgb1lty mn accordance with current DPH gudelmnes for state-supplied
vaccmes

9) Data collection, analys1s, and reportmg to assure program outcome goals are met or to 1dent1fy program management
problems that need to be addressed

11/30/2023 11 23 AM DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuSgn Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A408017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit I

Contract#: 62118 Agency: Frankln Health Department Contract Year: 2024

11 30/2023 11 23 AM

A) Grantees must collect and analyze agency and available private provider immunization data for children
12-35 months of age, school 1mmumzat10n law reports and other avmlable population-based mformat1on
needed to 1dentfy strengths and weaknesses m local dehvery systems and plan improvements Only
children who have moved out of the agency's JUnsd1ction may be removed from the cohort for analysis

B) LHDs wIll ut lze the WIR for 1mmun1zaton-level data analys1s
C) LHDs and Tribes will assure staff competence with the WIR system LHD and Tribal health staff must

attend at least one Regional WIR User Group Meetmgs Attendance at these meetmngs 1s necessary for staff
to mamtam a thorough workmg knowledge of the funct10nahty of the WIR

DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE04FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit II

Program Objectives

(A) Contract Funds, Program/Objective Values, and Other Contract Details

(B) Objective Details

11/30/2023 11 23AM DP! I Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656408017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit II(A)

Contract#: 62118

Source

Franklm

Franklm

Franklm

•\gency: Franklm Health Department

Contract Source of Funds
Program

Childhood Lead - Consol1dated

Immumzatmn - Consohdated IAP

Maternal Child Health - Consohdated

[coract 4moon« [

Amount

$1,263

$7,583

$6,861

$15,707

Contract Y ear: 2024

Contract Match Requirements

Program

Childhood Lead - Con

Immum1zat1on

MCH

Amount

$0

$0

$5,146

Program Sub-Contracts

Program

Childhood Lead - Con

Immunzat1on

MCH

11/30/2023 11 23 AM

Sub-Contractee

None Reported

None Reported

None Reported

Sub-Contract Amount

$0

$0

$0

DPI-I Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1 C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1 94E656A08017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit II(A)

Contract#: 62118

Childhood Lead - Con

Agency: Franklm Health Department

Program Total Value $1,263

Contract Year: 2024

Objective 2 Comprehensive Follow-up for Low Level Lead Exposure

Throughout the 2024 contract penod, residents from the Junsd1ct10n of the City of Franklm Health Department

will receive comprehensive follow-up services, mncludmng

- A nurse home v1s1t at a confirmed blood lead level greater than or equal to 5 0 micrograms per dec1hter, and

- An environmental lead hazard mvestigat10n at a confirmed blood lead level greater than or equal to I 0

micrograms per dechter

$1,263

Immunization Program Total Value $7,583

Objective I By December 31, 2024, 84% children res1dmng in City of Franklmn Health Departmentyurtsdcton

who tum 24 months of age dunng the contract year will complete 4 DTaP, 3 Polio, 1 MMR, 3 Hib, 3 Hepatitis B,

1 Vancella and 4 Pneumococcal ConJugate (PCV) vaccmatmn by then second birthday

MCH Program Total Value $6,861

Objective 7 Soc1al Connect1ons

By December 31, 2024, the City ofFranklm Health Department, m collaborat10n with community partners, will

implement and evaluate strategy 2 to improve social connect10ns in our commumty

Total of Contract Objective Values

Total of Contract Statement OfWork Values

$7,583

$6,861

$0

$15,707

11 30/2023 I I 23 AM DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE 1-94E656408017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit 11(8)

Contract#: 62118
Program: Childhood Lead Consohdated

Agency: Franklm Health Department
Objectrve #: 1 of I

Contract Year: 2024
Objective Value: $1,263

Objective: Primary Details
Objective Statement

Objective 2 Comprehensive Follow-up for Low Level Lead Exposure
Throughout the 2024 contract perod, residents from the yursduct1on of the City of Franklin Health Department wll recerve
comprehensive follow-up services, mcluding
- A nurse home visit at a confirmed blood lead level greater than or equal to S O micrograms per dec1hter, and
- An environmental lead hazard mvest1gat10n at a confirmed blood lead level greater than or equal to IO micrograms per deciliter

Deliverable Due Date: 01/31/2025
Contract Deliverable (Evidence)

A report to document the extent to whch the two components of thus objective were provided, specifically
1 The number of children with a confirmed blood lead level greater than or equal to S O micrograms per deciliter and the number
who received a nurse home vs1t to provide mnformaton on lead po1sonmng prevent1on, and
2 The number of children with a confirmed blood lead level greater than or equal to 10 micrograms per dec1ltter and the number of
environmental lead hazard mvest1gat10ns conducted on their pnmary residence and all secondary properties, mcludmg
accompanymg nsk assessment reports, work orders and property clearance

For reportmg purposes, those children whose fam1hes are non-responsive to outreach or moved from the JUnsd1ctlon before
appropnate follow-up services could be provided can be removed from this cohort but should be reported separately

This report should be faxed to the Childhood Lead Pmsonmg Prevent10n Program (confidential fax lme 608-267-0402) or emailed
to DHSLeadPorsonmgPreventon@w1 gov by February 1, 2025

Programs Providing Funds for this Objective
Childhood Lead Consolidated $1,263

Agency Funds for this Objective:
Data Source for Measurement

An agency-generated report
Baseline for Measurement

Confirmatory venous blood draw with a readmg of 5 0 micrograms per dec1hter or higher

In 2019 Franklm had 3 children with confirmed venous test blood lead level greater than or equal to Smcg/dL

In 2020 Franklm had O children with confirmed venous test blood lead level greater than or equal to Smcg/dL

In 2021 Franklm had I child with confirmed venous test blood lead level greater than or equal to 5mcg/dL

In 2022 Franklm had 2 children with confirmed venous test blood lead level greater than or equal to Smcg/dL
Context

There 1s no designated value range for thus objective Thus objective Is intended to assure that the local health department 1s
providing nursmng and environmental interventions for children wth low level lead exposure Providing these Interventions for
children with lower level lead exposure 1s mtended to prevent ongomg lead exposure and more severe lead po1sonmg

Context Continued

Input Activities
I NURSING For tlus objective, a home v1s1t must be conducted for all children with one or more confirmed blood lead levels
greater than or equal to S O micrograms per deciliter After the mutual home vis1t, the Nursmg Case Management Report must be
completed The Nursmg Case Closure Report must be completed when the case Is closed Lmks to report forms can be found at
https //www dhs wsconsmn gov/lead/ph-mtervent1on htm under the Forms and Templates tab

Completed nursmg forms must be promptly attached to the pertment patient record mn the Healthy Homes and Lead Po1sonmg
Surveillance System (HHLPSS) See HHLPSS Job Aid 3 14 Patient Attachments (https //www dhs wsconsmn gov/lead/hhlpss-job
a1ds htm) A note must be added to the patient record m HHLPSS regardmg any delay See HHLPSS Job Aid 3 13 Patient Notes

11/30/2023 11 23 AM DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF 9EE1-94E656408017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit II(B)

Contract#: 62118
Program: Childhood Lead Consohdated

Agency: Franklm Health Department
Objective #: I of I

Contract Year: 2024
Objective Value: $1,263

2 ENVIRONMENTAL For thus objective, a full environmental lead hazard mvestugaton meeting the requirements of DHS 163
and usmng the DHS templates must be completed for all chJ!dren with one or more confirmed blood lead levels greater than or equal
to 10 micrograms per decuhter Thus includes, within 10 workmg days after recervmng all sample results, completion of the Property
Invest1gaton form, a risk assessment report, issuance of a property owner work order letter with work spec1ficat1ons to address the
1dent1fied lead hazards and a scope of work Also, when the work orders are fimshed, this must mclude w1thm 10 workmg days
after recervmng all sample results completion ofthe Property Invest1gat1on Closure form and a clearance report md1catmg that the
hazards have been controlled Lmks to forms, reports and templates can be found at https //www dhs w1sconsm gov/lead/ph
mtervention htm under the Forms and Templates tab

The completed environmental forms and documents above must be promptly attached to the pertment address records m HHLPSS
See HHLPSS Job Atd 4 3 Addmg Attachments (https //www dhs wIsconsmn gov/lead/hhlpss-job-ands htm) A note must be added
to the address record m HHLPSS regardmg any delay See HHLPSS Job Aid 4 2 Entenng property Notes

The environmental lead hazard mvest1gaton must include a child,s primary residence and all pertinent secondary residences, and
other areas where the child may be exposed to lead hazards The procedure for the mvestlgatlon 1s outlmed m Chapter 7 and
Appendix B of the WCLPPP Handbook for Local Health Departments https //www dhs wisconsmn gov/lead/ph-intervention htm
under the Handbook tab

Local health departments must seek third party reimbursement for nurse home vis1ts and environmental lead hazard investigations
and clearances for Medicaid-enrolled children by bllmng Medcad for these services

100%95%90%85%80%70%60%50%40%20%10%0%

For more mformat1on vusut https //www dhs wsconsmn gov/lead/med1card-reimbursement.htm

Objective: Risk Profile

Percent of Ob 'ective Accom

Corresponding Percentage Recoupment

I I I I I
Corresponding Potential Recoupment Amounts

I I I I I I
Definition of Percent Accomplished

Conditions of Eligibility for an Incentive

11/30/2023 11 23 AM DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE 1-94E656A408017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit II(B)

Contract #: 62118
Program: Immumzat10n

Agency: Franklm Health Department
Obyectrve #: 1 of I

Objective: Primary Details

Contract Year: 2024
Objective Value: $7,583

Objective Statement
Objective 1 By December 31, 2024, 84% children res1ding mn City of Franklin Health Department jursdiction who turn 24 months
of age dunng the contract year will complete 4 DTaP, 3 Polo, 1 MMR, 3 Hub, 3 Hepatitis B, I Vancella and 4 Pneumococcal
Conjugate (PCV) vaccmnaton by their second birthday

Deliverable Due Date: 01/31/2025
Contract Deliverable (Evidence)

l A W1sconsm Immumzat1on Registry (WIR)-generated population-based standard benchmark report, documentmg the number of
children in City of Franklin Health Department Junsdict10n who turned 24 months of age m 2024 contract year The end-of-year
report should be run with a 30-day buffer to ensure that all updated data have been received by the WIR With the end-of-year
report, mnclude a summary of the accountability targets and the progress achieved, Including the actvntres and mntervent1ons
conducted Include any barners that may have been 1dentufied A template to be used has been provided by the program

Cntena for the Mid-Year Report
BJrthdate Range O I /0 l /2022- 06/30/2022
Evaluation date 07/01/2024
Run date 07/01/2024

Cntena for the 2024 End-of-Year Report
B 1rthdate Range O 1/01/2022- 12/31/2022
Evaluation date O I /01/2025
Run date 02/01/2025

2 An estimated 1tem1zed budget must be submitted dunng the negot1atton phase of the contracting process A template to be used
for thus budget 1s provided by the Immunization Program

Programs Providing Funds for this Objective
Immumzat1on $7,583

Agency Funds for this Objective:
Data Source for Measurement

W1sconsmn Immunization Registry Records
Baseline for Measurement

The 2022 end-of-year population-based standard benchmark report will be used to determme the baseline for the 2024 population
based objective

For the baseline measurement, the followmg parameters will be used to run the benchmark report
Birthdate Range 01/01/2020 - 12/31/2020
Evaluation Date 01/01/2023
Run Date After 01/01/2023

Context
Children will be assessed using the standard benchmark report for havmg 4 DTaP, 3 Polio, I MMR, 3 HIb 3 Hepatitis B, 1 vancella
and 4 Pneumococcal ConJugate (PCV) vaccmatton by 24 months of age Progress towards reaching 80% wll be measured usmng a
WIR Benchmark report Only children who have moved out of the agency's Junsd1ct1on may be removed from the cohort for
analysts Unless you can prove that a child has moved out of your Jurisdiction, you cannot remove him/her from your cohort

Gmdelines for detern1inmg increase needed for progress towards 2024 goals, usmg the 2022 end-of-year coverage rate as the
baseline (see Section E)

Reqmred Increase
Greater or equal to 59% - 5% Above Baselme
60-69%- 4% Above Baselme
70-79%- 3% Above Baselme

11/30/2023 I I 23 AM DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit II(B)

Contract#: 62118
Program: Immumzat1on

Agency: Franklm Health Department
Objectrve #: 1 of I

Contract Year: 2024
Objective Value: $7,583

80-85%- 2% Above Baselme
86-89%- 1% Above Baselme
Greater or equal to 90 - Mamtamn

A hst of accountability targets, or activities that will be conducted m order to achieve the obJect1ve goal, MUST be provided by or
at the time of contract negotiation Agencies should consult the Addendum of the Immumzat1on Program Boundary Statement or
the1r regional Immunization Program advisor for ass1stance mn determmnmng actvrtres and Interventions that will help them achieve
the reqmred mcrease for thelf population assessment

Context Continued

[nput Activities
The W1sconsm Immumzatlon Program recommends the followmg act1V1t1es to help ensure success ofth1s obJect1ve
- Contacting parents of mfants without mmmunrzaton h1stores
- Trackmg
- Coordmnatton of 1mmum1zat1on services with other LHD and tnbal programs
- Sharing mnformatton with area phys1crans
- Requesting that mnformatron 1s entered mto the WIR
- Remmder/recall
- Workmg with schools and daycare centers to promote 1mmumzat10n among attendees

The W1sconsm Immu111zat1on Program reqmres a mmnmmum of3 attempts to personally contact a responsible party

Only children who have moved out of the agency's JUnsd1ct10n may be removed from the cohort for analysis Unless you can prove
that a child has moved out of your JUnsd1ct10n you cannot remove hmm/her from your cohort.

Remmder/recall activity 1s not hsted m a particular order and we suggest you use the method that 1s the most successful for your
commumty
- Letter
- Phone call
- Home vusrt
-Email
- Text message

In addition, funds may be utlzed to enhance mnfluenza vaccination coverage rates Example actrv1ties mnclude but are not h1muted to
- Staff time
- Vaccme storage supplies
- Influenza chmc plannmg
- Partner outreach to populations of low coverage rates

Activ1t1es that are not allowed
- Case follow up and contact tracmg should not be mcluded m these activities
- Funds cannot be used to purchase vaccmes
- CO VTD-19 and Monkeypox act1V1tles are not mcluded at this time

100%95%90%85%80%70%60%50%40%20%10%0%

Addit10nal mtervent1ons/act1v1t1es are m an addendum to the Immumzation Program Boundary Statement These are suggested
Interventions/activities that LHDs are strongly to cons1der mn order to achieve thus objective

Objective: Risk Profile

Percent of Ob· ective Aecom

Corresponding Percentage Recoupment

11/30/2023 11 23 AM DP!-! Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F 3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit II(B)

Contract#: 62118

Program: Immunization
Agency: Franklm Health Department

Objectrve #: l of I

Contract Year: 2024

ObJectrvc Value: $7,583

Corresponding Potential Recoupment Amounts

I I I I I I
Definition of Percent Accomplished

Conditions of Eligibility for an Incentive

11/30/2023 11 23 AM DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A408017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit II(B)

Contract#: 621 I 8 Agency: Franklin Health Department
Program: Maternal and Child Health Block Grant ObJecttve #: I of l

Contract Year: 2024
Objective Value. $6,861

Objective: Primary Details
Objective Statement

Objective 7 Soc1al Connections
By December 31, 2024, the City of Franklin Health Department, in collaborat10n with commumty partners, will implement and
evaluate strategy 2 to improve social connect1ons 111 our commumty

Deliverable Due Date: 0 l/3 l/2025
Contract Deliverable (Evidence)

Data 1s submitted quarterly 111 Alchemer to document activity progress, successes, barriers, outcomes, Learning Community Call
attendance, and other techmcal assistance sess10ns

Programs Providing Funds for this Objective
Maternal and Child Health Block Grant $6,861

Agency Funds for this Objective:
Data Source for Measurement

Quarterly Alchemer reports and learnmng community attendee lust
Baseline for Measurement

Baseline mformat1on as 1dent1fied mn the 2024 MCH Objectives Supplement
Context

This work wll address the
- Title V State Performance Measure for Social Connect10ns Percent of Wisconsin adults who report that they "usually" or
"always" get the social and emotional support that they need
- Title V State Performance Measure for Representative Part1c1pat10n Percent of performance measures with family, youth, and
commumty engagement embedded into programs and pohc1es

Context Continued
Anticipated Budget
Personnel 4000
Fringe
Travel
Eqmpment
Supplies 2861
Contractual
Other

A detailed budget outlmnmg your expenses should be completed us111g an excel template your contract momtor will send to you and
submitted to your contract momtor no later than 90 days from the date your contract 1s finalized Your contract momtor will send an
email confirmmg they have received 1t Any budget category changes should be communicated with your contract monitor If you
plan to make any maJor changes to your budget, you must mform your contract momtor

Input Activities
I Implement and evaluate the selected strategy as outlmed below with act1v1ty details that your agency identified m the 2024
Maternal Child Health (MCH) Objectives Supplement

Strategy \ Assess need for improvement with social connections w1thm commumty
Core Actrvrt1es
- Assess need for improvement for social connections w1th111 commumty may be related to

- Environment
- Safe, Stable Housmg
- Commumty Connections
- Soc1al Support
- Soc1al Isolation
- Schools & Childcare
- Commumty Development
- Neighborhood Safety

I I 30/2023 I I 23 AM DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuS1gn Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF 9EE1 94E656A08017

Contract Agreement Addendum: Exhibit II(B)

Contract #: 62118 Agency: Franklm Health Department
Program: Maternal and Child Health Block Grant ObJechve #: I of I

Contract Year: 2024
Objective Value: $6,86l

- Use the results from needs assessment (commumty health assessment or commumty health improvement plan can be used) to
develop an action plan
- Conduct outreach, recruut, and support sustamed partnerships

Strategy 2 Implementat10n of action plan and practice change
Core Actrvates
- Implement action plan and practice change.
- Conduct outreach, recrurt, and support sustained partnerships

2 Enhance community engagement to mform, develop, and Implement socal connections and actrvut1es
3 Collaborate with community partners to promote soc1al connections throughout the community
4 Partuc1pate mn all Learning Community Calls to support progress on the Title V State Performance Measure related to Social
Connections

Objective: Risk Profile

Percent of Ob'ective Accom lished

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 85% 90% 95% 100%

Corresponding Percentage Recoupment

I I I I I
Corresponding Potential Recoupment Amounts

I I I I I I
Definition of Percent Accomplished

Conditions of Eligibility for an Incentive

11/30/2023 11 23 AM DPH Grants and Contracts



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F 3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

Boundary Statements
for 2024 DPH

Consolidated Contract
Funding

Note Thus attachment includes Boundary Statements for funding associated with the
DPH 2024 Consolidated Contract. Individual agencies may not recerve all funding.



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C80278F-3CEO4FEF-9EE1 94E656A08017

2024 Program Boundary Statement
Wisconsin Immunization Program

For each performance-based contract program, the D1v1s1on of Public Health has 1dent1f1ed a boundary
statement The boundary statement sets the parameters of the program w1thm which the local health
department (LHD), tribe or agency will need to set ts objectives The boundaries are intentionally as
broad as federal and state law permit to provide maximum flex1b1lity

However, If there are objectives or program directions that the program Is notwilling to consider or
spec1f1c programmatic parameters, those are included in the boundary statement LHDs, tribes and
agencies are encouraged to leverage resources across categorical funding to achieve common program
goals The Wisconsin Immunization Program aligns well with the boundaries ofthe Women, Infants, and
Children (WIC) and Maternal and Child Health (MCH) programs

Program Boundary Statement
The LHD's mmmunuzatton program s expected to administer vaccines primarily to children from birth
through 18 years of age The LHD will assure the development and maintenance of a Jurisd1ct1on-w1de
1mmunIzatIon infrastructure necessary to raise ImmumzatIon levels for universally recommended
vaccines. The LHD Is expected to maintain ImmumzatIon levels for the clients served by the agency
based on the current Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (ACIP) recommendations In
add1t1on, the LHD will assure adequate surveillance, prompt reporting and ep1dem1olog1c follow-up of
vaccine preventable diseases LHD's will provide perinatal HepatIt1s B case management services as
outlined in the Wisconsin Perinatal Hepat1tIs B Prevention Program Manual In add1t1on, every LHD must
have a least one staff member watch the perinatal hepat1t1s B tramIng webmnar The LHD will follow the
Immunization Policy and Procedure Manual developed and distributed by the Wisconsin Immunization
Program, unless otherwise agreed upon Itwill also assure that community wide systems are in place to
preventvaccine preventable diseases such as diphtheria, tetanus, pertussis, polio, measles, mumps,
rubella, Haemophlus influenzae B, varcella, pneumococcal disease, menmngococcal disease, influenza,
rotavrus, human papillomavrus (HPV), and hepatrtIs A and B To ensure that funds provided for this
program through the consolidated contract are used effectively, the contractee will be required to
measure the outcome of its efforts to achieve goals The LHD will establish and maintain partnerships
wIth all mmmun1zaton providers mn rt jurisdictions

Long-term Program Goals
The Wisconsin Immunization Program has reviewed and analyzed HealthiestWisconsin 2020 and CDC's
Healthy People 2020, the plans available at the time of review, to ensure that its program goals are
aligned The Program will continue to evaluate progress towards the 2020 goals on an annual basis

The annual Consolidated Contract process rs an important component ofthe Wisconsin Immunization
Program's efforts to use evidence-based practices and data-driven activities to improve immunization
rates To that end, state, regional and local public health entItIes have a leadership role in educating for,
implementing, assessing and assuring population-based mmmunzaton actrvrtes to meet local, state and
federal immunization goals and objectives Due to limited resources, high leverage actrvrtes need to be
prioritized, thus having the greatest impact on programmatic functions and stated goals within the
defined public health functions of assessment, policy development, and assurance

Currently, Wisconsin's rate for the 4 3 1 3 3 14 series for children aged 19-35 months 1s 69 2% (NIS
2017 data) Through performance-based contracts, we can execute population-based 1mmun1zat1on



DocuS1gn Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CEO4FEF-9EE1-94E656A08017

activities to achieve local, state and federal immunization goals ammed at having 80% percent of
Wisconsin children aged 19-35 months who received all universally recommended vaccines (4 DTaP, 3
Polio, 1 MMR, 3 Hib, 3 Hep B, 1 Varicella and 4 PCV [4 3 1 3 3 14]) The 2019 Wisconsin lmmunIzat1on
Registry (WIR) statewide coverage rate for children 24 months of age Is 72 13% for 4 DTaP, 3 Polio, 1
MMR, 3 H1b, 3 Hep B, 1 Varcella and 4 PCV[4 3:1 3 3 14]

The 2020 NIS-Teen estimated Tdap, MCV4, and HPV coverage rates among Wisconsin adolescent males
and females aged 13-17 years are Tdap (greater than or equal to 1), 91 6%, Meningococcal (greater than
or equal to 1), 90 2%; HPV (greater than or equal to 1), 77 8%; and HPV (up to date), 61.5% The 2021
Wisconsin Immunzaton Registry (WIR) adolescent statewide immunization coverage rates for both
males and females aged 13-18-year-olds are HPV (1) 60 43%, HPV Complete 48 4%, Meningococcal (1)
71 9%, Tdap (1) 76 95%.

The percentage of students who met the minimum 1mmunizatIon requirements was 91 9% for the 2020
2021 school year Noncomphant students were comprised of 2 9% who were behind schedule and O 4%
who had no record The percentage of students with a waiver (personal conv1ct1on, religious, or medical)
for one or more Immunizat1ons increased from 5 1% during the 2019-2020 school year to 9 1% during
the 2020-2021 school year

Annual Wisconsin Immunization Program Goals
For 2023, increase the percent ofWisconsin children ages 19-35 months who receive all the universally
recommended vaccines of4 DTaP, 3 Pollo, 1 MMR, 3 H1b, 3 HepB, 1 Varcella and 4 Pneumococcal
(PCV13) to the Healthy People 2020 goal of 80% for 4 31·3:3 1 4 An additional goal will be to increase
the effective use of the Wisconsin Immunization Registry (WIR) or an immunzaton registry capable of
Interfacing with the WIR Effective use Is evidenced by an increase mn the overall jurisdictional rise mn
ImmunIzatIon levels LHDs must explore Jurisd1ct1on-spec1fic practices to increase the number and
effectve use of regstres as described above

For 2023, increase the percent ofWisconsin adolescent children ages 11-12 that receive Tdap and MCV4
and are HPV Complete to the Healthy people 2020 goal Also, an add1t1onal goal will be to increase the
HPV inItIatIon and completion ofthe series in adolescents by strongly recommending adolescent
vaccines to parents of 11 through 18-year-old children

For 2023, achieve 100% timely reporting ofthe School Report to Local Health Department (F-04002),
according to DHS 144 07(4), Wis Admin Code

Target Populations
The Immunization Program primarily serves Wisconsin children ages 0-18 years

References
Federal Regulat1ons/Gu1dehnes·
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Grant Award Terms & Condrtions, Federal Regulations
and Polices
CDC Current ACIP Recommendations
CDC Vaccines for Children (VFC) Program Operations Guide
CDC "Pink Book"
CDC Healthy People 2020



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CEO4FEF-9EE1-94E656A408017

CDC National Immunization Survey (Note Use interactive menus on Vaxew pages )

State ofW1sconsIn Statutes/Guidelines·
WI Statute 252
WI Administrative Rule DHS 144
WI Admin1strat1ve Rule DHS 145
WI State Health Plan "HealthiestWisconsin 2020", including the Implementation Plan
Wisconsin Immunization Program Pohc1es Immunization Polley and Procedure Manual, 2010
Wisconsin Immunization Registry (WIR) User Manual

Core Competencies for Public Health Professionals
(http://www phf org/resourcestools/pages/core_pubhc_health_competenc1es aspx)
Note: Chck "Cancel" 1f login credentials are requested after following the hnk Then chck "Download this
File" on the Public Health Foundation's website to access the core competencies PDF file
Optimal or Best Practice Guidance
Contractees must use the WIR or an electronic ImmunizatIon population-based data system that links
with the WR
Contractees should make every effort to identify and link immunization outreach and promotion
actIvItIes with existing local health department efforts targeted at high nsk families These may include
but are not limited to perinatal care coordination (PNCC), WIC programming and education, new-baby
mailings and home vIsIts, LHD health check programming, Birth to 3 programming, developmental
screening programs, safe and healthy home inspections, Preparedness education for families, lead
screening programs, school and daycare efforts, and reproductive health programming, etc
Contractees must engage and foster community partnerships to 1) 1dent1fy and address the needs of
high-risk populations in a culturally competent and hngu1st1cally appropriate manner and 2) educate
families and the community on the importance ofon-schedule immunization of children
Contractees should make every effort to share information on vaccine preventable diseases,
ImmunizatIon, and local assessment data with local private health care providers and key community
stakeholders to include community based organizations in an effortto increase ImmunizatIon coverage
rates wrthin their jurisdictions.
Unacceptable Proposals
The Wisconsin Immunization Program will not accept any obJect1ves other than the template obJect1ves
in effect for the contract year Once a population-based template obJect1ve has been negotiated, the
addrt1on of a unique objective may be considered through consultation with your Immunization Program
representative.
Past programmatic template obJect1ves may not fit into the new framework in which we are trying to
achieve these goals. Use of past objectives will require negotiation and does not guarantee acceptance.
Relat1onsh1p to State Health Plan: HealthiestWisconsin 2020

The vIsIon of Healthiest Wisconsin 2020 (HW2020) Is "everyone living better, longer" This was chosen to
stress the importance of living a quality hfe from birth to old age, and to be inclusive of all communities
and regions

Complementing HW2020's vIsIon are two goals The first goal Is to improve health across the lifespan
This preventative approach emphasizes the importance ofstarting healthy practices at a young age mn
order to avoid acute and chronic disease and mnyury, and continuing them until the end of life The
second goal of HW2020 Is to eliminate health d1spant1es and achieve health equity



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1 94E656A08017

Communicable Diseases
Immunize
Prevent disease, including strategies to reduce disparities min high risk populations

Communicable disease prevention and control protect both md1v1duals and entire populations Effective
ImmunizatIons have drastically reduced many, once common communicable diseases. Prompt
1dent1f1cat1on and control of communicable diseases reduce illness and premature deaths, health costs,
and absenteeism

Objective 1
By 2023, protect Wisconsin residents across the life span from vaccine preventable diseases through
vaccinations recommended by the U S Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (ACIP)

Objective 2
By 2023, implement strategies focused to prevent and control reportable communicable diseases and
reduce d1spant1es among populations through higher ImmurnzatIon rates.

Addendum

ActIvItIes should focus on both individual/family-based interventions and community/system-based
interventions where an 1mmunizat1on intervention might be used to reach high risk persons for
increasing 1mmun1zat1on rates Examples include

Community/System Activities

Registry
Promote the use of and enrollment in 1mmurnzat1on registries and electronic health records that
interface with WIR with private providers in your community

Work with private medical doctors to utilize registries

Contact private providers not currently using a registry to help facilitate in any way possible the use of
WIR or a registry capable of interfacing with WIR (e g, arrange a demonstration ofWIR, coordinate with
WIR Implementation Coordinator for trammg, offer to assist in fac11itat1on of data entry)

Work with private providers to best utilize WIR when necessary to assure that ImmunizatIon data will be
entered accurately and in a timely manner

Tracking and recall shall be conducted at least every other month as recommended by the Wisconsin
Immunization Program's Immunization Policy and Procedure Manual

Media
Expand ImmunIzat1on media coverage to include "expert" guest columns

Share stones on the benefits of 1mmun1zat1on

Implement media outreach strategies in support of childhood mmmunuzaton mn the community



DocuSgn Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE04FEF-9EE 1-94E656A08017

Market Immunizat1ons through social networks (e g Twitter, Facebook, websites, texting, etc )
Marketing must be in compliance with HIPAA and confidentiality rules and regulations

Community Outreach
Use zip-code level data to inform outreach in areas of low vaccination coverage

Identify strategies to outreach under-immunized populations in your 1urisd1ct1on, e g church bulletin
inserts, community newsletter mformat1on, "School Friday Folder" or backpack inserts to promote
Immunizations.

Ensure resources are culturally appropriate for ethnic groups in your community (1 e correct language)

Work with community based organizations such as local food banks, to educate the community and
promote mmmun1zattons

Meet with local meducal societies, Rotary and/or Kiwanis clubs to gain support for local public health
population based efforts in the county or 1urisd1ct1on

Work with parish nurses at congregations to promote on-schedule 1mmunizat1on

Partner with pharmacies to help vaccinate patients during clinic off-hours and promote 1mmunIzat1ons

Provide education to child health care center providers on the importance of keeping 1mmunizat1ons up
to-date (UTD) for children in their care

Promote 1mmunIzat1ons by having an informational flyer at the Department ofMotor Vehicles (DMV)
office in your jurisdiction

Ask the county board chairperson to set one day during the school year as "Check Your Child/Adolescent
Immunization Record Day"

Community prevention and preparedness strategies should also include emphasis on UTD
Immunizations

Provider Outreach
Share current Immunizat1on information or provide an annual 1mmunizat1on update with providers in
your community

Plan an immunization workshop for mmmunuzat1on providers

Promote chldhood/adolescent mmmun1zatons by routinely measuring your jurisdiction's immunization
coverage levels and share the results with staff and the medical community

Meetwith department head of ped1atncs, nursery, OB or family medicine at local hospitals to promote
on-schedule 1mmunizat1on of children, including birth dose of Hepat1t1s B

Work with hospital perinatal educators to promote on-schedule 1mmunizat1on of infants, including birth
dose Hepat1tIs Band Tdap and Influenza vaccine for new mothers and close contacts of infants



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656408017

School Outreach
Work with schools to promote the importance of mmmunzaton and school requirements

Work with schools that have high waiver rates or decreasing compliance rates.

Work with school staff to provide education for parents choosing personal convIctIon waivers

Work with schools to garner compliance with the school ImmunizatIon law, DHS 144 Wis Admm Code

Work with schools to ensure t1melmess and accuracy of the School Report to Local Hea Ith Department

Promote adolescent ImmurnzatIons at school sporting events (e g, signs at the concession stands)

Provide promotional materials to school health classes to promote the adolescent platform

Coalitions
Share ImmurnzatIon assessment data with local private providers and local coalitions

Actively seek new community coalition members (non-trad1t1onal)

Create, Join, or support an ImmurnzatIon coalition

Outline a community mmmunzaton action plan wrth coalition members to mmprove immunization
coverage

Partner with a nearby coalition to help raise HP Immunization rates m your jurisdiction

Indvudual/Famtly Activities Check immunization records at lead screening sites.
PNCC clients - have an immunization education module and follow birth with appointment for the
1111vaccination seres

Check records of children of women being followed for inter-conception counseling

Follow breast feedmg mothers at 1-2 months and check on first Immun1zatIon appointment

Include Immunization teaching mall Health Education Act1vItIes targeted to MCH populations

Promote the public access component ofWIR

Partner with WIC to promote ImmurnzatIons

Assess and provide any needed ImmurnzatIons atWIC appointments

Use early intervention developmental profile (EIDP) education to assure that young women are fully
immunized and/or referred for Immuntzat1ons

Provide accurate information to parents regardmg vaccine safety



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F 3CE0-AFEF 9EE1 94E656A08017

Provide adolescent 1mmun1zat1on information at sexually-transmitted disease (STD) clinics (during follow
up), family planning, and pre-natal classes (especially those who might have pregnant teens in them)

Use teach-back methods for parents to understand the importance of 1mmun1zat1on and to understand
what 1mmun1zat1ons are recommended the first time they hear 1t
Keep message short
Use active voice
Frame ideas in the here and now
Avoid jargon and define unfamiliar terms
Write as you would speak



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656408017

Wisconsin Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program
Program Boundary Statement

For each performance-based contract program, the Division of Public Health has identified a
boundary statement. The boundary statement sets the parameters of the program within which
the local public health agencies (LPHA) will need to set its objectives.

Program Boundary Statement:
Local childhood lead poisoning prevention programs are to implement objectives that will
protect children against lead poisoning and eliminate it as a major childhood disease. The impact
of LPHA activities should result in decreasing lead hazards in the environment(s) of children and
increasing early detection and treatment of lead poisoning in children up to age 16. All children
up to age 16 who have an elevated blood lead level should receive environmental and nursing
interventions.

Education activities are to be targeted at community members who play a role in preventing lead
exposure, eliminating lead hazards, providing blood lead testing, or providing medical or
environmental follow-up to children who are lead poisoned (greater than or equal to 3.5
micrograms per deciliter [µg/dL]).

Long-term Program Goal:
To eliminate childhood lead poisoning in Wisconsin.

Annual Program Goals:
• Increase the involvement of community members in childhood lead poisoning prevention

activities.
• Increase the availability of lead-safe housing for families with young children.
• Educate parents so they have the knowledge and skills necessary to protect their children from

lead hazards.
• Increase blood lead testing of children across Wisconsin.
• Provide interventions for children with blood lead levels greater than or equal to 3.5 µg/dL.
• Provide comprehensive environmental investigations for children up to age 16 with elevated

blood lead levels, including adequate documentation of environmental lead sources, work
orders and property clearance.

High Risk Populations:
Highest-risk children for blood lead testing include those 0-5 years of age who meet one or more
of the following criteria:

• live in high-risk neighborhoods,
• live, or spend significant time, in a house built before 1950.
• live in a house built before 1978 with recent or ongoing renovations
• are enrolled in the Medicaid or WIC program,
• have a sibling or playmate with lead poisoning.

Acceptable Program Objectives:
• Objectives that involve increasing blood lead testing for children under 6 years of age ..

o Local health departments must seek Medicaid reimbursement for blood lead
testing of Medicaid-enrolled children. This may require establishing contracts
with the managed care organizations within their community.

Chtldhood Lead Program Boundary Statement CY2024 Page I of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F 3CE0-4FEF-9EE1-94E656A408017

• Objectives that involve direct provision of services to families with children at high risk for,
or with, lead poisoning.

• Objectives that build capacity in a community to prevent lead poisoning and increase the
availability of lead-safe housing to families of young children.

o This involves going beyond the one-to-one transfer of information to building
partnerships with targeted organizations or groups that can assist in maximizing
community resources to meet the goal of eliminating lead poisoning. For
example, reaching out to child care regulators, child care providers, home visitors,
and housing agencies who provide service to or work with the target population,
parents or caregivers of young children.

Unacceptable Program Objectives:
• Objectives for general educational outreach, such as health fairs or public service

announcements, will not be accepted.

State of Wisconsin Statute and Administrative Rules:

• WI Statute Chapter 254: Environmental Health (http://docs legis.w1 gov/statutes/statutes/254.pdf)
• WI Administrative Rule DHS 163: Certificatonfor the Identificaton, Removal and

Reducton ofLead-Based Pant Hazards
(http://docs.legis wisconsin.gov/code/admin code/dhs/110/163.pd:f)

• WI Administrative Rule DHS 181: Reporting ofBlood Lead Test Results
(http://docs.legs.wisconsmn gov/code/admin code/dhs/1 10/181 pdf

Program Policies and Guidance Documents:
• WI Blood Lead Testing Recommendations
• WCLPPP Handbook for Local Health Departments (Revised 2014;

https://www dhs.w1sconsin.gov/lead/ph-intervenhon htm, under the Handbook tab)
• Nursing and environmental investigation forms and templates;

(https://www dhs wisconsm.gov/lead/ph-mtervent10n.htm, under the Forms and Templates tab)
• Nursing Case Management Report (F-44771A)
• Nursing Case Closure Report (F-44771B)
• Property Investigation Report (F-44771C)
• Property Investigation Closure Report (F-44771O)
• Risk Assessment Report (template)
• Work Specification Language for Lead Hazard Reduction (list of work spec

options)
• Work Orders Letter (template)
• Scope of Work (template)
• Clearance Report (template)

• How to Do A Lead Risk Assessment video (https //www.youtube.com/watch?v=QOrhcnyKUwU)
• Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Surveillance System (HHLPSS) Job Aids

(https //www dhs wisconsmn.gov/lead/hhlpss-1ob-aids htm)
• Medicaid reimbursement for lead-related services (https.//dhs wisconsmn gov/lead/med1cad

reimbursement htm)

Childhood Lead Program Boundary Statement CY2024 Page 2 of4



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C80278F-3CEO4FEF-9EE1 94E656A08017

Relationship to the Wisconsin Health Improvement Plan and its Priorities
Lead exposure can cause permanent brain damage and negatively affect learning, behavior, and
health throughout the child's hfe Lead exposure can have an impact on each of the Division of
Public Health's Health Improvement Plan Priorities.
• Alcohol and Opioid Abuse. Many studies have found strong associations between higher

blood lead levels and aggressive behavior, impulsivity, hyperactivity, and attention
impairment. Children exposed to even moderate amounts of lead are more likely to exhibit
behavior problems in childhood, to engage in risky behavior, such as alcohol or drug abuse,
in the teenage years, or engage in violent or criminal behavior in young adulthood.

• Tobacco. Tobacco smoke continues to be a substantial source of exposure to lead in the U.S.
population in general. There is a linear relationship between smoke exposure and blood lead
levels (BLLs) in youth and adults. Youths with secondhand smoke exposure have BLLs
suggestive of the potential for adverse cognitive outcomes.

• Nutrition and Physical Activity.
A) Nutrition Children with an adequate amount of calcium, iron, and zinc in their diets
absorb less lead than children with dietary deficiencies. In addition, a compromised
nutritional state makes one more susceptible to the damaging effects that result from
increased absorption of ingested lead.
Adults who have calcium deficiency and simultaneously experience other conditions that
would normally mobilize calcium from the bones may mobilize lead that has been stored
in bone tissue into the blood. For example, a pregnant woman who has a low dietary
calcium intake may release stored lead from her bones into her blood, where it becomes
available to the fetus.
B) Physical activity: Lead exposure in childhood has been shown to adversely affect the
child's ability to mamtain upright balance and other neuromotor performance
capabilities, such as bilateral coordination, upper-limb speed and dexterity, and fine
motor coordination. Teens and adults who were lead-poisoned as young children are
more likely to experience poor upright balance, coordination, and motor skills, and
increasing long-term injury risk.

• Suicide. Researchers have found that men and women in their 20s and 30s with the highest
levels of lead in their blood were more than twice as likely to suffer from major depression as
their peers with the lowest blood lead levels, while their risk of panic disorder was nearly
five times greater. Research has also shown that teens that were lead-poisoned as young
children are more likely to develop depression and panic attacks.

• ACEs. It has been documented that many of the same youth who are at risk of lead exposure
are also at an increased risk for experiencing Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs), which
have similar consequences. The neurological consequences of both lead exposure and ACEs
contribute not only to medical disability but also to behavioral challenges, affecting youths'
interaction with the education system, employment opportunities, and other parts of their
community during their development.

References:
Federal Regulations and Guidelines:
• Educational Services for Children Affected by Lead Expert Panel, Educatonal interventon
for chzldren affected by lead Atlanta: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (Apnl
2015,
https.//www cdc.gov/nceh/lead/publications/Educational Interventions Children Affected by Lead
pdf)

Childhood Lead Program Boundary Statement CY2024 Page 3 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE 1-94E656A08017

• CDC's Blood Lead Reference Value and Recommended Actions (Oct 2021)
https://www.cdc.gov/nceh/lead/data/blood-lead-reference-value.htm

• CDC Advisory Committee on Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention, Low Level Lead
Exposure Harms Children A Renewed Callfor Pnmary Prevention. Atlanta: U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
(https://www.cdc gov/nceh/lead/docs/final document 030712 pdf, CDC, January 2012)

• U.S. Dept of Housing and Urban Development, Gudelnesfor the Evaluaton and Control of
Lead-Based Pant Hazards mn Housing. (2012 Ed1ton,
https //www hud gov/program offices/healthy homes/lbp/hudguidehnes).

• Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, State Medcad Manual, Part 5 Early and
Perode Screening, Dagnoss and Treatment Section 5123.2, page 5-15,
https ://www.ems.gov/Regulations-and-Guidance/Guidance/Manuals/Paper-Based-Manuals
I tems/CMS021927

Childhood Lead Program Boundary Statement CY2024 Page 4 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1 94E656A08017

2024 Program Boundary Statement
Radon Program

For each performance-based contract program, the Dvs1on ofPubhc Health has identified a boundary
statement The boundary statement sets the parameters of the program w1thm which the local pubhc
health department (LPHD), Tribe or agency will need to set its obJectives The boundanes are
mntent1onally as broad as federal and state law perm1t to provide maximum flexibility. However, 1f there
are objectives or program directions that the program 1s not willing to consider or specific programmatic
parameters, those are included in the boundary statement

Program Outline:

Ob1ect1ves for reducmg exposures to elevated mdoor radon m homes are funded for two classes of
agencies:

Radon Inforrnat10n Centers (RICs). Seventeen local health or environmental agencies will be funded to
delver eight services of a single objective, each agency to multiple counties (a region) Services include
outreach, public consultation, proficiency training, coordination with DPH, database, and field srte visits

Local health agencies other than RICs will not be funded m 2024

Long-term Program Goals: The Outcome Goal is reduct10n of lung cancer incidence by reducmg
exposures of the pubhc to indoor radon An Output Goal 1s that every home with ground contact be
tested for radon, identifying those with exposures to res1dents averaging higher than 4 pC/L in occupied
spaces, and reducing those to far below 4 pC/L with the mitigation method recommended by US EPA
Another Output Goal 1s that new homes be bmlt with features recommended as effective in helpmg to
keep radon out ofthe indoor air.

Target Populations:
• Residents of all homes m W1sconsm having ground contact
• Residents m reg10ns of the Wisconsm radon nsk map where higher percentages have elevated

radon

Every home with ground contact should be tested, because
• Homes with elevated radon have been found in virtually every zip code m Wisconsin,
• The radon mn any particular home 1s not predictable,
• Neighboring homes tend to have greatly dissimilar concentrations,
• Radon screenmg tests may be made for as little as $10 and radon mrtgat1on 1s available at

reasonable cost
• The only way for homeowners to know If ther radon 1s elevated 1s to test

References:

Federal Gu1delmes and state statute
• USEPA: Citizen's Guide to Radon
• US EPA Home Buyers and Sellers Gude to Radon
• US EPA Consumers' Gude to Radon Reduct1on
• State ofW1sconsm Statutes s 254 34



DocuS1gn Envelope ID 1C8C278F 3CE0-4FEF 9EE1-94E656A08017

Program Policies
• Pohc,es of the US EPA regarding measurement, mt1gat1on, and rsk reduct1on for radon in

homes, as reflected in the three EPA documents above, should be recommended No others have
been specified in state leg1slat1on

Unacceptable Proposals:
• Radon measurement for building types other than homes wll not be funded Advising them 1s

done only by DPH in coordinat10n with RICs, because measurement protocols, mterpretat10n of
results mn terms ofrisk, and methods ofm1t1gat10n can differ from those for vanous bmldmg
types

• Funds wll not be provided to pay for radon mutugatuon 1tself

Relationship to Division of Public Health Strategic Plan
Practice Expand the Understanding ofWhat Creates Health
1 I Build a Shared understanding for advancmg health eqmty and social determinants ofhealth

Strategy. Housmng 1s a soc1al determmnant ofhealth. Engaging communities across the state 1n
understanding that the cond1t10ns m which people hve have a wide range ofhealth outcomes
Testing and mitigating for radon can lower lung cancer risks for both smokers and non-smokers.

Methodology
• Use indicators to show mcrease the percentage ofhomes with healthy, safe environments

mall commumtJes with a focus on mmonty, low income, and underserved areas.
Indicators for the radon program mnclude number oftest results returned and number of
radon m1t1gat10ns performed.

• Updatmg online mapping tools regularly can show nsk potential for radon 1n areas across
the state.

• Move state and local pohcy toward radon resistant new construction for all new homes
being bult

2



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CEO-4FEF 9EE 1-94E656A08017

2024
Maternal Child Health Program Parameters

The Title V Maternal and Child Health (MCH) Services Block Grant creates Federal-State-Local
partnerships to develop state and local systems to meet the critical challenges facing women,
children, youth, fam1l1es, children with special health care needs (CYSHCN) and commun1t1es
Local health departments (LHD) and Tribal agencies are encouraged to work with community and
state partners to achieve common program goals as well as to assure coordination with all the
CYSHCN programs that serve children and youth with special health care needs (1e, the
Regional Centers for CYSHCN and others) as appropriate States must use at least 30% of Title
V Block Grant funds for preventive and primary care programs serving children, and 30% to
support programs for CYSHCN

Target Populations
The populations to be served are all infants, children, and youth, including children and youth with
special health care needs, and pregnant women and their families, with a special focus on those at risk
for poor health outcomes

State MCH Priorities and Performance Measures
The 2020 MCH Needs Assessment led to the identification of MCH prortues and performance
measures for 2021-2025

MCH program pnonty needs
• Advance Equtty and Racial Justice
• Assure Access to Quality Health Services
• Cultivate Supportive Social Connectons and Community Environments
• Enhance ldent1ficat1on, Access and Support for lnd1v1duals with Special Health Care

Needs and their Families
• Foster Positive Mental Health and Associated Factors
• Improve Perinatal Outcomes
• Promote Optimal Nutriton and Physical Activity

National and state performance measures by population domain
• Women/Maternal Health

o Annual Preventive Visit
• Perinatal/Infant Health

o High Quality Perinatal Care
o African American Infant Mortality
o Breastfeeding

• Child Health
o Developmental Screening
o Physical Activity - Ages 6 through 11

• Adolescent Health
o Injury Hospitalization - Ages 10 through 19
o Adolescent Well-Being

• Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs
o Medical Home
o Transition - from pediatnc to adult health care

• Cross-cutting/Life course
o Social Connections
o Representative Participation

1
August 22 2023 - Final



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F 3CE0-4FEF 9EE1-94E656A08017

Maternal Child Health (MCH) Program Parameters:
Required Activities

Local health departments (LHD) and Tribal agencies receive Title V MCH funds for strategies
supporting select Title V National and State Performance Measures The objectives and strategies
outlined for agencies help measure and accomplish the Title V MCH program's overall goals related
to adolescent well-being, breastfeeding, child development, high quality perinatal care, physical
activity and nutrition, health equity, representative participation, and social connections LHDs and
Tribal agencies can use local community health assessments, surveillance data, and other data
sources to assist with strategy selection, systematic program planning, and policy development to
implement and evaluate each selected strategy

See the "2024 MCH Template Objective" document with specific strategies for each area of focus
A copy of the "2024 MCH Template Objectives" can be found on the D1v1s1on of Publtc Health Grants
and Contractmg (GAG) System page under "2024 Program Informaton" m the "Maternal and Child
Health" tab

Required activities across all objectives include
1 Implement and evaluate the selected objective(s) with activity details your agency identified mn the

2024 MCH Objectives Supplement
2 Collaborate with community partners to promote selected obJect1ve(s) throughout the community
3 Part1c1pate in quarterly Learning Community Calls to support progress on the selected obJect1ve(s)
4 Participate mn training and technical assistance opportunities to support strategies for implementing

health equity and community engagement within selected objective(s)
5 Well Badger Resource Center

a Confirm agency Is listed and agency information Is updated in the Well Badger Resource
Center searchable directory found at www wellbadger org

b Promote the Well Badger Resource Center using their tools for professionals and partners
through the following strategies

1 Print and/or order Well Badger Resource Center materials, such as flyers and
posters, and display in areas where clients are served

11 Include theWell Badger Resource Center phone number and email on agency's
voicemail for clients calling outside normal business hours

1 Call 1-800-642-7837 or Text 608-360-9328
2 Email help@wellbadger org

111 Incorporate the Well Badger Resource Center social media posts and/or newsletter
messages into agency's communication methods

6 Submit data quarterly in Alchemer to document act1v1ty progress, successes, barriers, outcomes,
Learning Community Call attendance, and other technical assistance sessions

7 Utilize data and prevention recommendations from the local Fetal Infant Mortality Review (FIMR) and
Child Death Review (CDR) teams to inform and align the work of selected MCH obJect1ve(s) This
item does not apply to agencies that do not have a local F/MR or CDR team

8 Request technical assistance as needed from the agency's assigned MCH contract monitor
9 All materials for public d1stribut1on developed by a grantee funded by the Title V MCH Block Grant

must identify the funding source as follows "Funded m part by the MCH Title V Services Block
Grant, Maternal and Child Health Bureau, Health Resources and Services Admm1strat1on, U S
Department of Health and Human Services "

10 Work with your MCH contract monitor to develop and submit a budget to the Title V MCH program
Discuss any changes to your approved budget with your contract monitor Changes across budget
categories that exceed 10% will need to be approved by your contract monitor

11 Expenditure Report and FEDERAL MCH MATCH Report expenses monthly with 75% local match
in GEARS using the Grants Enrollment form Form can be found here Use profile ID #159320 for

2
August 22 2023 - Final



DocuS1gn Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1 94E656A08017

MCH expenses and profile ID #193002 for MCH match expenses and copy your MCH contract
monitor on all expense report submissions. Grantees receiving federal funds must provide 75%
match ($0 75 local contribution for every $1 00 federal) for all Title V MCH Block grant funds
Agencies that do not meet their MCH match requirements may be subject to repayment of grant funds
(Tribal Agencies are not required to report match)

Ltt'MHNtNf llf tUAl hi

'INSTRUCTIONS

wtoe doll3r 3 o rt;

GRANTS ENROLLMENT APPLICATION A REPORnNC SYSTEM (CEARSJ
E.XPENOITIJRE REPORT

f4,Mr»ta
tr an« t«al otdr

h1qh to I-Ow1

August 22 2023 - Final

of, tcrt
N.o:un-c

}aw a « icif»tar»al
l. •pcr.,.c-s. .=c'1 l_c,nc-ctic,..'\'~

3

ntratt f»at toe
l xp-cn-...c-s <n•-"""



DocuSgn Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE1 94E656A08017

Professional and Workforce Development Information and Resources

Trauma Informed Care
• https //www samhsa gov/nctic/trauma-mtervent1ons

Quality Improvement Concepts and Terminology
Basic understanding of the Model for Improvement Institute for Healthcare Improvement
Resources - How to Improve pages describe the Model for Improvement
http //www 1h1 org/resources/Pages/Howtolmprove/default aspx
Dr Mike Evans Video An Illustrated Look at Quality Improvement in Health Care (8 09)
http //www 1h1 org/resources/Pages/Aud1oandVIdeo/M1keEvansV1deoQIHealthCare aspx
National Institute for Children's Health Quality - Model for Improvement
http //static rnchq org/guality-improvement-101/

• Population Health Improvement Partners' Toolbox of e-modules and videos on quality
improvement
https //Improvepartners org/toolbox/toolbox-deta1ls/g1-v1deos-tools/

•

•

•

Family Engagement and Leadership
• Core Competencies of Family Leaders A Gude for Famlies and Organizations

http //mofamlytofamily org/wp
content/uploads/CORE%20COMPETENCIES%20f0r%20family%20leaders pdf

• Patient and Family Engagement A Framework For Understanding The Elements And Developing
Interventions And Policies https //www healthaffairs org/do/10 1377/htthaff 2012 1133

• AUCD Family Competencies
https //www aucd org/template/news cfm?news 1d=114&parent=1 19&parent title=Family&url=/te
mplate/page cfm?id%3D119

• DHS Civil Rights Compliance
https //www dhs wisconsmn gov/cvl-rights/index htm

• National MCH Workforce Development Center https //mchwdc unc edu/wp-.
content/uploads/2022/1 O/Successful-Engagement-w1th-People-who-have-L1ved-Expenence
October-2022 pdf

Health Equity
•
•

•

•

HRSA Office of Health Equity https //www hrsa gov/about/orgamzat1on/bureaus/ohe/
NACCHO Health Equity and Social Justice http //www naccho org/programs/pubhc-health
mfrastru ctu re/health-equity
HRSA Foundational Practices for Health Equity
www health state mn us/commurnt1es/pract1ce/resources/egu1tylibrary/co11n-hrsa-foundat1onal html
Resource Library for Advancing Health Equity in Public Health
https //www health state mn us/commumt1es/pract1ce/resources/egu1tylibrary/mdex html

Cultural Competence
• National Center for Cultural Competence https //nccc georgetown edu/index php

Life Course Theory and Application
• AUCD Life Course Perspective http //www aucd erg/template/page cfm?1d=768

Population Health
• David Kmndg's 2003 population health article

http I/www ncbr nlm nth gov/pmc/articles/PMC1447747
4

August 22 2023 - Final



DocuSgn Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF 9EE1-94E656A08017

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The undersigned certufies, to the best ofhs or her knowledge and belief, that

( 1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalfof the undersigned, to any person for

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member ofCongress, an officer or

employee ofCongress, or an employee of a Member ofCongress in connect10n with the awarding of any Federal

Contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entenng into ofany cooperative

agreement, and the extens1on, contmnuatton, renewal, amendment, or mod1ficat10n of any Federal Contract, grant, loan, or

cooperative agreement

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropnated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for mnfluencmng or

attemptmg to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member ofCongress, an officer or employee of Congress,

or an employee of a Member ofCongress m connect10n with this Federal Contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement,

the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure ofLobbying Activities," m accordance with

its mstructions Disclosure ofLobbying Activities (Standard Form-LLL)

(3) The undersigned shall requre that the language ofthus certification be included mn the award documents for all

subawards at all tiers (mcludmg Subcontracts, subgrants, and Contracts under grants, loans and cooperative agreements)

and that all subrec1prents shall certify and dsclose accordingly

Thus certification 1s a mater1al representation of fact upon which rehance was placed when this transaction was made or

entered mnto Submss1on of this certification 1s a prerequisite for making or entering mnto this transaction imposed by

Sect1on 1352, title 31, US Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a crv1l penalty

of not less than $10,000 and not more than$ 100,000 for each such failure

(Signature ofOfficial Authonzed to Sign Applicat10n)

Lauren Gottheb

(Print Name)

(Agency I Contractor Name)

(Date)

Dtrector ofHealth and Human Services
(Title)

(Title ofProgram)



DocuSign Envelope ID 1C8C278F-3CE0-4FEF-9EE 1-94E656A08017

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES
DIston of Enterprise Servces
F-01788 (03/2022)

STATE OF WISCONSIN

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

Federal Executive Order (E O) 12549 "Debarment" requires that all contractors receiving Indrvdual awards, using
Federal funds, and all subrec1p1ents certify that the organization and its principals are not debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared mehg1ble, or voluntarily excluded by any Federal department or agency from doing
business with the Federal Government By signing thus document you certify that your organization and its principals
are not debarred Failure to comply or attempts to edit this language may d1squahfy your bid Information on debarment
IS avallable at www sam gov

Your signature certifies that neither you nor your prmc1pal 1s presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared mehg1ble, or voluntarily excluded from part1c1pat1on m this transaction by any Federal department or agency

SIGNATURE - Official Authorized to Sign Apphcat1on

For (Name of Vendor)

Date Signed

Unique Entity Identifier (UEI), tf appltcable

INTERNAL USE ONLY
Contract#

Contract Descnpt1on

The Office/DIv1s1on of has searched the above named Vendor against the System for Award Management
system (SAM) and has confirmed as of Date the Vendor 1s not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared 1nel1g1ble, or voluntarily excluded by any Federal department or agency from domg business with the Federal
Government

SIGNATURE - Contract Administrator Date Signed



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id 1C8C278F3CE04FEF9EE194E656A08017
Subject MP Franklin HD 2024 DPH Consolidated Contract - 435100 G24-DPHCC24-26
Source Envelope
Document Pages 57
Certificate Pages 5
AutoNav Enabled
Envelopeld Stamping Enabled
Time Zone (UTC-06 00) Central Time (US & Canada)

DocuSign

Status Sent

Envelope Ongmnator
Yvette Smith
1West Wilson St
Madison WI 53703
yvettea sm1th@dhs wIsconsm gov
IP Address 165 189 255 23

Signatures
Initials 0

Record Tracking
Status Original

12/20/2023 10 42 30 AM
Security Appliance Status Connected
Storage Appliance Status Connected

Signer Events
Cody Wagner
CodyWWagner@dhs wsconsmn gov
Office of Legal Counsel
Wisconsin Department of Health Services
Security Level Email Account Authentication
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure.
Not Offered va DocuSign

Lauren Gottlieb
LLube@franklinw gov
Director of Health and Human Services
Security Level Email Account Authentication
(None)
Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure
Accepted 12/20/2023 2 20 32 PM
ID 5dc0cf4(5-433b-47fb-ae67-3759b0cb2c81

Anna Benton
anna benton@dhs wsconsmn gov
Security Level Email Account Authent1cat1on
(None)
Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure·
Accepted 12/19/2023 3 27 24 PM
ID 4ebe457e-468e-4b62-8ec1-2df98ac6c1a6

Holder Yvette Smith
yvettea sm1th@dhs wisconsm gov

Pool StateLocal
Pool OHS

Signature

[

DocuSigned by·

f t

31F480246CE C464.

Signature Adoption Uploaded Signature Image
Using IP Address 107 208 176 202

Location DocuSign

Location DocuSign

Timestamp
Sent 12/20/2023 10 44 58 AM
Viewed 12/20/2023 2 00 43 PM
Signed 12/20/2023 2 10 36 PM

Sent 12/20/2023 2 10 39 PM
Viewed 12/20/2023 2 20 32 PM

In Person Signer Events

Editor Delivery Events

Agent Delivery Events

Intermediary Delivery Events

Certified Delivery Events

Carbon Copy Events

Signature Timestamp

Status Timestamp

Status Timestamp

Status Timestamp

Status Timestamp

Status Timestamp



Carbon Copy Events
CARS Contracts
DHSCARSContracts@dhs wIscons1n gov
Wisconsin Department of Health Services
Security Level Email Account Authentication
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure
Not Offered va DocuSign

DPH Contracts
DHSDPHContracts@dhs wsconsin gov
DPH Contracts Shared Account
Wisconsin Department of Health Servces
Security Level Email Account Authentication
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure·
Not Offered va DOcuSign

Witness Events

Notary Events

Envelope Summary Events
Envelope Sent

Payment Events

Status

COPIED

COPIED

Signature

Signature

Status
Hashed/Encrypted

Status

Timestamp
Sent 12/20/2023 10 44 58 AM

Sent 12/20/2023 10 44 59 AM

Timestamp

Timestamp

Timestamps
12/20/2023 10 44 59 AM

Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure



Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on 12/19/2018 8 24 51 AM

Parties agreed to Lauren Gottlieb Anna Benton

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE

From time to time, Wisconsin Department of Health Services (we, us or Company) may be
required by law to provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the
terms and conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the
DocuSign system. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can
access this information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and
Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to
I agree to use electronc records and signatures' before clicking 'CONTINUE' within the
DocuSign system.

Getting paper copies

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available
electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send
to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you
elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time
(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to
send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a
$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the
procedure described below.

Withdrawing your consent

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time
change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures
only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and
disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures
electronically is described below.

Consequences of changing your mind

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the
speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to
you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format,
and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such
paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to
receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents
from us.

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide
electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures,
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made
available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you
inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required
notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given
us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through
the paper mail delivery system. Ifyou do not agree with this process, please let us know as
described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the
consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures
electronically from us.

How to contact Wisconsin Department of Health Services:

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically,
to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to
receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows:
To contact us by email send messages to: DHSContractCentral@dhs.wisconsin.gov

To advise Wisconsin Department of Health Services of your new email address

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures
electronically to you, you must send an email message to us
at DHSContractCentral@dhs.wisconsin.gov and in the body of such request you must state: your
previous email address, your new email address. We do not require any other information from
you to change your email address.

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your
account preferences.

To request paper copies from Wisconsin Department of Health Services

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided
by us to you electronically, you must send us an email
to DHSContractCentral@dhs.wisconsin.gov and in the body of such request you must state your
email address, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at
that time, if any.

To withdraw your consent with Wisconsin Department of Health Services

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic
format you may:



i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page,
select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may;

ii. send us an email to DHSContractCentral@dhs.wisconsin.gov and in the body of such request
you must state your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need
any other information from you to withdraw consent.. The consequences of your withdrawing
consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process..

Required hardware and software

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The
current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide
signing-system-requirements.

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to
other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have
read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for
your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address
where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further,
if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described
herein, then select the check-box next to 'I agree to use electronic records and signatures' before
clicking 'CONTINUE' withmn the DocuS1gn system

By selecting the check-box next to I agree to use electron1c records and signatures', you confirm
that:

• You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and
• You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send

this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future
reference and access; and

• Until or unless you notify Wisconsin Department of Health Services as described above,
you consent to receive exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures,
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided
or made available to you by Wisconsin Department of Health Services during the course
of your relationship with Wisconsin Department of Health Services.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports and
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A motion to approve the Director of Health
and Human Services to sign the Medical
College of Wisconsin affiliation agreement to
host a volunteer student intern in 2024.

MEETING DATE
1/3/2024

ITEM NUMBER

Background: The City of Franklin Health Department finds value in educational partnerships
for student internship and volunteer experiences benefiting both students and the city directly.
This education affiliation agreement outlines the Franklin Health Department to serve as the
host site for an 80 hour Medical College of Wisconsin student internship experience. The
internship will take place in January of 2024 through May of 2024.

The student workplan focuses on and will lend enhancement to Franklin Health Department
priorities as identified in the Franklin Community Health Improvement Plan.

Fiscal Note: The student internship will consist of 80 volunteer hours by a Medical College of
Wisconsin student enrolled in the Master of Public Health program.

The affiliation agreement has been sent to the City of Franklin legal counsel for review with
no changes recommended.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve the Director of Health and Human Services to sign the Medical College of
Wisconsin affiliation agreement to host a volunteer student intern in 2024.

Health Department: LG



MASTER EDUCATIONAL AFFILIATION AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

CITY OF FRANKLIN HEALTH DEPARTMENT
AND

THE MEDICAL COLLEGE OFWISCONSIN, INC.

This Agreement is made as of the 15th day of January, 2024, by and between the City of
Franklin Health Department, ("Site") and The Medical College ofWisconsin, Inc. ("MCW"). The
purpose of this Agreement is to provide learning and practical experiences for the students of
MCW as listed in the attached Program Memoranda and to establish and operate Education
Programs at Site.

GENERAL
1. Program Memorandum. Each educational program ofMCW which places students

at Site (each, a "Program") is subject to this Agreement and is identified in a Program
Memorandum accompanying this Agreement. If more than one educational program of MCW is
or becomes subject to this Agreement, there will be a separate Program Memorandum for each
such program, signed by the parties, and each such program will be considered the "Program" for
purposes of this Agreement. The Program Memorandum:

(a) Indicates the representatives ofMCW and Site responsible for maintaining
liaison between the parties for purposes of the Program (hereafter, the "MCW Designee"
and the "Site Designee," respectively);

(b) Indicates the number of students from MCW who will be permitted to
participate in the Program at Site during any one rotation;

(c) Provides such other information as may be required under this Agreement
or as may be appropriate for the operation of the Program at Site; and

(d) Refers to this Agreement.

In the event of any discrepancy between the Program Memorandum and this Agreement, the
provisions of this Agreement shall prevail.

2. Term and Termination. This Agreement is for a term of one year beginning on the
date first written above, and it shall be automatically renewed for subsequent one-year terms unless
terminated by either party upon six months prior written notice to the other party, provided that
either party may terminate any individual Program under the same terms without terminating all
the Programs. Notwithstanding any such termination, any student already enrolled and
participating in the Program which is being terminated shall have the right to complete in full the
placement at Site unless cancellation ofplacement occurs pursuant to the terms herein.

3. Number of Students; Placement Dates. The number of students eligible to
participate in the Program and the specific dates for the placement of each student in the Program
will be mutually determined by agreement of the parties in writing in the Program Memorandum.

4. Student Prerequisites. MCW will assign to Site only those students who have
satisfactorily completed the prerequisite didactic portion of MCW's applicable educational
program.

5. Cancellation of Individual Placement. Site may cancel, by notice in writing to the
MCW Designee for the applicable Program and to the MCW registrar, the placement of any student



2

whose performance is unsatisfactory, whose personal characteristics prevent desirable
relationships within Site or non-Site-owned premises in which Site's faculty conduct their practice,
or whose health status is a detriment to the student's successful completion of the placement or the
safety of others. Site will provide the student, the MCW registrar, and the MCW Designee for the
Program with a written justification for the proposed cancellation of a placement. Except in
emergencies, Site shall consult with the MCW registrar and the MCW Designee for the Program
prior to any such cancellation.

6. Compliance with Applicable Laws. Regulations and Ordinances; Non-
Discrimination. The parties agree to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws,
regulations and ordinances. Both parties specifically agree not to discriminate unlawfully against
any individual on the basis of race, creed, national origin, color, sex, religion, age, marital status,
veteran status, or disability.

7. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is not a third-party beneficiary
contract and confers no rights upon students or employees of the parties.

8. Status of Students. Students are not employees ofMCW or Site and are therefore
ineligible to receive Worker's Compensation or Unemployment Compensation benefits from
either party.

9. Site Requirements for Students. The Site Designee for each Program shall forward
a list ofrequirements, including immunizations, titers, special training, and any other requirements,
as well as any applicable deadlines, to the MCW Designee for that Program. The MCW Designee
for each Program shall inform the students of Site's requirements and instruct the students to send
information indicating completion dates of those requirements to Site. Each student will be
responsible for providing accurate and timely documentation ofthe completion of all requirements
to Site. The failure to provide accurate and timely documentation of fulfillment of all requirements
shall be sufficient justification under Section 5 above for Site to cancel or postpone, at its option,
the placement of such student.

10. Insurance. In order to insure against potential liability arising out of the activities
performed under, or in any manner related to, this Agreement, MCW and Site each agree to obtain
and maintain, in force and effect, comprehensive general liability insurance with minimum limits
of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate. Both MCW and Site agree that such
insurance may not be revoked, reduced or changed in a material way without at least thirty (30)
days prior written notice to the other party.

11. Indemnification. MCW shall be responsible for the negligent acts or omissions of its
officers, and employees acting within the scope of their employment and for the negligent acts or
omissions of its students acting within the scope oftheir responsibilities in their educational program.
Site shall be responsible for the negligent acts or omissions of its officers, employees, and agents
acting within the scope of their employment or agency, respectively. Neither of the parties agree
to indemnify the other party for any such act or omission, provided, however, that this Agreement
shall not constitute a waiver by either party of any rights to indemnification, contribution or
subrogation which such party may have by operation of law.

12. Amendment. This Agreement may be revised or modified only by written
amendment signed by authorized representatives ofboth parties.

13. Superseding Agreement. This Agreement, including the Program Memoranda,
supersedes all prior agreements between the parties hereto relating to Education Programs at Site
for MCW students.



3

RESPONSIBILITIES OFMCW
14. MCW Designee. The MCW Designee for each Program shall be a MCW faculty

member who shall coordinate with the Site Designee the program for each student assigned to Site.
15. Notification to Students. MCW Designee for each Program shall notify each

student that he or she is responsible for:
(a) Reporting to Site on time and following the administrative policies,

standards, and practices of Site and any other institution in which the placement is
conducted;

(b) Providing his or her own transportation and living arrangements;

(c) Maintaining his or her own health records and providing his or her own
health insurance coverage and documentation as required by Site;

(d) Conforming to the standards and practices established by MCW while
training in Site;

(e)
clients.
16. Disciplinary Action. MCW shall handle all student disciplinary problems,

considering recommendations ofpersonnel of Site.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF SITE
17. Provision ofPlanned, Supervised Program. Site shall provide a planned, supervised

program of practical experience as specified in the most recent outline of its Education Program
supplied in writing to MCW Designee.

18. Student Records. Site shall maintain complete records and reports on each
student's performance, providing evaluations and grades to MCW Designee on forms provided by
MCW within thirty (30) days of completion of said student educational experience at Site.

19. Responsibility for Patients. If Student provides clinical care or is involved in
clinical care under this Agreement, Site shall retain ultimate responsibility for the care of its
patients.

20. Inspection of Premises and Records. Site shall, on reasonable notice, permit
inspection of its facilities and records of MCW's students by appropriate MCW or accreditation
agency representatives charged with the responsibility for approval of the site or accreditation of
MCW's curriculum.

21. Designation ofResponsible Site Personnel. Site shall designate in writing to MCW
Designee in each Program the name ofthe person responsible for Site's Education Program in that
Program and shall also submit to MCW Designee the curriculum vitae of Site's professional staff
participating in the Education Program. Site agrees to notify MCW Designee of any change or
proposed change in its designation of the person responsible for the Training Program in each
Program.

22. Student Compliance. Site shall require the students' compliance with their
responsibilities as set forth in Sections 15((a)) through ((e)) above. MCW agrees to assist Site in
obtaining students' compliance upon request.

23. No Student Support. MCW acknowledges that Site has no obligation to provide
any portion of the room and board, and/or stipend during the term of any student's placement.

Maintaining confidentiality of information relating to Site's patients or



4

24. Orientation. Site shall, at the commencement ofa student's placement, provide the
student a thorough orientation as to Site's administrative policies, standards, and practices relevant
to the placement.

25. Student Absences. Except in emergencies, Site shall not grant leaves of absence
from regular duties to students during their placements without prior approval from MCW
Designee. In the event that a student with a placement in one of Site's Education Programs
accumulates absence due to illness in excess of three days during the placement, Site shall
promptly arrange for the student to make up the lost time or shall inform MCW Designee of its
inability to make such arrangements.

26. Supplies and Support. Site shall make available to students for educational
purposes use of such supplies and equipment as are commonly available and standard reference
material suitable to the learning experience of the student.

27. Compliance. Site shall comply with applicable MCW policies and procedures.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their duly
authorized representatives as of the date first written above.

City of Franklin Health Department

By: _

Name:---------------
Title: ---------------

The Medical College ofWisconsin, Inc.

By:--------------

Joseph E. Kerschner, MD
Dean of the Medical School & Executive
Vice President



5

PROGRAMMEMORANDUMMASTEROF PUBLIC HEALTH PROGRAM
UNDERMASTEREDUCATIONAL AFFILIATIONAGREEMENT BETWEEN

CITYOF FRANKLIN HEALTH DEPARTMENT
AND

THE MEDICAL COLLEGE OFWISCONSIN, INC.

This Program Memorandum for the Master of Public Health Program pertains to the
Master Educational Affiliation Agreement (the "Agreement") effective 1/15/24 between the City
of Franklin Health Department ("Site") and The Medical College of Wisconsin, Inc. ("MCW").
This Program Memorandum is an integral part of the Agreement, and all terms used in both
documents are intended to have the same meanings unless the context clearly indicates
otherwise. If more than one Program is subject to the Agreement, however, the term the
"Program" as used in this Program Memorandum is intended to refer only to the particular
program identified in paragraph 1, below. This Program Memorandum supersedes all prior
agreements for the Program named below.

1. Program. The Program to which this Program Memorandum applies: Master of Public
Health Program

2. Site Department/Division which will conduct the Education Program: City of
Franklin Health Department

3. Date of Implementation. Experiences under the Program will begin on the following
date: January 15, 2024

4. Length of Educational Experience: 80 hours

5. Site and MCW Designees.
(a) Name, title and telephone number of the Site Designee responsible for maintaining
liaison with MCW for purposes of this Program:

Lauren Gottlieb, Director of Health and Human Services, City of Franklin Health
Department

Phone: 414-427-7526

(b) Name, title and telephone number of the MCW Designee responsible for maintaining
liaison with Site for purposes of this Program:

Dr. David Nelson, Master of Public Health Program Director
Phone: 414-955-4386

6. Maximum number of Students who will be permitted to participate in the Program at the
facility during any one semester or rotation: 1

City of Franklin Health Department

By: ----------
Name: -----------
Title: -----------

The Medical College of Wisconsin, Inc.

By: -----------
Name: Joseph E. Kerschner, MD
Title: Dean of the Medical School and Executive

Vice President



APPROVAL

Reports and
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Motion to approve the Director ofHealth and Human
Services to accept the 2024 Strategic Prevention
Framework - Partnerships for Success Grant contract.

MEETING DATE

1/3/2024

ITEM NUMBER

9.9.

Background: Community Advocates Inc (CA) is a substance misuse prevention partner in
Milwaukee County that awards annual grants known as the Strategic Prevention Framework
Partnerships for Success (SPF-PFS) to organizations with the goal of targeting priority issues
related to alcohol, marijuana, and e-cigarettes/tobacco by raising awareness about the dangers
of their use and abuse among young adults. These project funds also allow for education to
schools, communities, and parents.

The goals of the SPF-PFS grant are:
• Enhance the infrastructure to increase capacity to implement effective substance abuse

prevention services.
• Decrease behavioral health disparities that lead to differences in access, service use and

outcomes of substance use in Milwaukee County
• Increase capacity at the community-level to boost protective factors and mental health

wellness.

CA has awarded the Franklin Health Department (FHD) a SPF-PFS grant in the amount of
$21,000.

Analysis: The SPF-PFS grant would enhance FHD and Volition Franklin efforts around
substance misuse prevention already in place with the Drug Free Communities (DFC) grant.
This funding allows FHD the opportunity to increase prevention and education efforts to
include marijuana and tobacco use/misuse whereas the DFC grant scope of work is focused
specifically on alcohol and opioids usage.

Fiscal Note: The SPF-PFS grant funds support Franklin Health Department programs and
services.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Director of Health and Human Services requests a motion to approve the acceptance and
execution of the 2023-2024 Strategic Prevention Framework - Partnership for Success (SPF
PFS) grant.

Health Department: LG



GRANT AGREEMENT
between

Community Advocates, Inc. (CA)
and

Franklin Health Department
for

Strategic Prevention Framework - Partnerships
for Success 2019 (SPF-PFS)

Agreement Amount $21,000
Agreement Term Penod 9/30/2023 to 9/01/2024

Community Advocates Grant Admmistrator Hannah
Lepper
Community Advocates Telephone 920-209-7750
Grant Admm1strator Email: hlepper@commumtyadvocates net

Grantee Grant Admmistrator Lauren Gottlieb
Grantee Telephone 414-427-7537
Grantee Emal llube@franklmnwi gov

CA and the Grantee acknowledge that they have read the Agreement and the attached documents, understand them and
agree to be bound by thelf terms and conditions Further, CA and the Grantee agree that the Agreement and the exhibits
and documents mcorporated herein by reference are the complete and exclusive statement ofagreement between the
parties relating to the subject matter ofthe Agreement and supersede all proposals, letters ofmtent or prior agreements,
oral or written and all other communications and representations between the part1es relating to the subject matter of the
Agreement. CA reserves the rights to reJect or cancel Agreements based on documents that have been altered This
Agreement becomes null and void 1f the tmme between the earlier dated signature and the later dated signature exceeds
sixty (60) days, unless waived by CA

Community Advocates, Inc.
Authonzed Representahve Andi Elhott

Title ChefExecutive Officer

· at, 'bot'12[a[yr€'

Date· 19/12/2023

Franklin Health Department

Authorized Representative Lauren Gottlieb

Title: Health Officer

Signature

Date



1. DEFINITIONS

Words and terms wJ!l be defined by their ordmary and usual meanmgs. Unless negotiated otherwise by the parties,
where capitalized, the followmg words and terms will be defined by the meanmgs md1cated The meamngs are
applicable to the smgular, plural, masculme, femmine and neuter of the words and terms

Agency: an office, department, agency, institution ofhigher education, assoc1at1on, society or other body mn State of
Wisconsm government created or authonzed to be created by the Wisconsin State Constitution or any law, whch 1s
entitled to expend momes appropnated by law, mcluding the Legislature and the courts

Business Associate: pursuant to 45 CF R. § 160 103, a busmess associate mcludes·

(a) A health information organ1zaton, e-prescribing gateway, or other person that provides data transmrss1onservces
with respect to protected health information to a covered entity and that reqmres access on a routme basis to such
protected health information

(Ii) A person that offers a personal health record to one or more mdividuals on behalfof a covered entity.

(11) A subcontractor that creates, receives, mamtams, or transmits protected health informat10n on behalf ofthe
business associate

Business Day: any day on which Commumty Advocates 1s open for busmess, generally Monday through
Friday unless otherwise specified m this Agreement

Confidential Information: all tangible and mtangible informat10n and matenals being disclosed m connection with
this Agreement, many form or medium without regard to whether the mnformat1on s owned by Community
Advocates or by a thlfd party, which satisfies at least one (1) of the followmg cnteria (i) Personally Identifiable
lnformat10n; (ii) Protected Health Informat10n under HIPAA, 45 CF R $160 103; (in) non-pubhc mformation
related to CA's employees, customers, technology (mcludmg databases, data processmg and commumcatlons
networking systems), schematics, specifications, and all mnformat1on or materials derived therefrom or based thereon,
or (1v) information expressly designated as confidential m wnting by CA. Confidential Information mcludes all
mnformat1on that 1s restricted or prohibited from disclosure by state or federal law

Day: calendar day unless otherwise specified m this Agreement

DHS: Department ofHealth Services.

Grant Administrator mndrv1dual(s) responsible for ensuring all steps mn the grant administration process are
completed, including draftmg grant language, negotiatmg grant terms, and momtonng the granted entity's
performance.

Personally Identifiable Information: an mndrvdual's last name and the mndrvidual's first name or first m1t1al, m
combmation with and hnked to any of the followmg elements, 1f that element 1s not publicly available mfonnat10n
and 1s not encrypted, redacted, or altered many manner that renders the element unreadable: (a) the md1v1dual's
Soc1al Security number, (b) the mndrvdual's drver's license number or state 1dent1ficat1on number, (c) the number of
the mdiv1dual's financial account, mcludmg a credit or debit card account number, or any secunty code, access code,
or password that would perm1t access to the mdrvdual's financial account, (d) the mndrvidual's DNA profile, or (e) the
mndrv1dual's unique biometnc data, Including fingerprint, voice print, retina or 1rs Image, or any other unique phys1cal
representat10n, and any other mformat1on protected by state or federal law

Protected Health Information (PHI) health mnformat1on, mncludmng demographic 1format1on, created, received,
maintamed, or transmitted many form or media by the Busmess Associate, on behalfof the Covered Entity, where
such infonnation relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condrt1on of an mndiv1dual, the

2



provrs1on ofhealth care to an mdrv1dual, or the payment for the prov1s1on ofhealth care to an mdrv1dual, that
1dent1fies the indrv1dual or provides a reasonable basts to believe that 1t can be used to identify an mndrv1dual

Publicly Available Information: any mformat10n that an entity reasonably belreves 1s one of the following a)
lawfully made widely available through any media, b) lawfully made available to the general public from federal,
state, or local government records or disclosures to the general public that are reqmred to be made by federal, state, or
local law

2. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

This Agreement and the followmg documents mcorporated by reference into the Agreement constitute the ent1re
agreement of the parties and supersedes all pnor commumcatlons, representations or agreements between the parties,
whether oral or wntten Any conflict or inconsistency will be resolved by grvung precedence in the followmg
descending order
1. The Busmess Associate Agreement (BAA) 1fapplicable
2 The terms of this Agreement
3 Any and all exhibits or appendrces to thus Agreement

3. PARTIES

A. Community Advocates (CA) is the organzat1on responsible for overseetng the coordination and integration of the
SPF-PFS 2019 grant CA's principal busmess address is 728 N James Lovell Street, Milwaukee, WI 53233

B. Franklin Health Department (Grantee), the Grantee's pnnctpal business address is 9229 W Loomis Road,
Franklin, WI 53132

4. PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This Grant Agreement (Agreement) and Exhibit(s) descnbe the terms and conditions under which the Grantee
receives an award from CA to carry out part ofa state and/or federal program.

The Grantee agrees to provide goods and/or care and services consistent with the purposes and condit10ns of the
obJectlves that it has agreed to attam withm the Agreement penod as referred tom the attached appendices

Sect1on 4.1 of this Agreement allows the user to provide a list ofadditional Exhub1ts to the Agreement. Please provde
the scope ofwork for the work bemg conducted by the Grantee as Exhibit 1

4 I List of Exhibits
Exhibit I Workplan
Exhibit II Budget
Exhibit III Special Reqmrements

5. CONTACT INFORMATION

CA Grant Administrator
Grant Admmistrator Nmne Hannah Lepper
Telephone 920-209-7750
Emal hlepper@communityadvocates.net

Grantee Grant Admm1strator
Grant Admmistrator Name Lauren Gottlieb
Telephone: 414-427-7537
Emal llube@franklinwi.gov

CA will mail legal notices to the Grantee's Grant Admm1strator at the address identified m Sect10n 3, unless
otherwise notified by the Grantee

3



6. PAYMENT FOR GRANT AWARD

A. All payments to non-mumc1paht1es, non-profits, and UW departments will be made by check, mailed at the
begmnnmng of the month following the submission of mvo1ces All mnvo1ces need to be submitted by the 10 of the
month to ensure payment being mailed at the begmnmg of the month For example, a January mv01ce would need
to be submitted by February 10" to ensure the check 1s mauled at the beginning ofMarch

B The Grantee shall report all allowable costs plus any required matchmg funds stipulated in the reportmg
mstructions for this Agreement, which are incorporated by reference mn the Allowable Cost Policy Manual
https //www dhs.wisconsin.gov/business/allow-cost-manual htm

C The Grantee shall submit expenditures on the form reqmred by CA to the followmgemail address
hlepper@commumtyadvocates.net

D Payments to the Grantee will be made on a monthly basis per the CA Processmg Dates schedule and based on
expenditures submitted by the Grantee on the form reqmred by CA

E Expense reports recerved tamely mn accordance with the CA Processing Dates schedule wll be reviewedand
processed per the CA Processmg Dates schedule

F Payments to the Grantee shall not exceed the total Agreement award.
G. IfCA determmes, after notice to the Grantee and opportumty to respond, that payments were made that

exceeded allowable costs, the Grantee shall refund the amount determmed to be m excess w1thm 30 days of
notification by CA CA may, at its sole discret10n, make such refund by withholdmg money from future
payments due the Grantee, at any time durmg or after the Agreement penod CA reserves the right to recover
such excess funds by any other appropriate legal means

7. REPORTING

A. The Grantee shall comply with CA's program reportmg reqmrements as specified m the Scope ofWork
B The required reports shall be forwarded to CA Grant Admm1strator accordmg to the schedule established by

CA

8. FEDERAL AND STATE RULES AND REGULATIONS

A The Grantee agrees to meet state and federal laws, rules, regulat10ns, and program policies applicable toth1s
Agreement

B. The Grantee will act solely m its mdependent capacity and not as an employee ofCA The Grantee shall not be
deemed or construed to be an employee ofCA for any purpose.

C The Grantee agrees to comply with Pubhc Law 103-227, also known as the Pro-Chtldren Act of 2001, which
prohibits tobacco smoke mn any portion ofa facility owned, leased, or granted for or by an entrty that recerves
federal funds, either dlfectly or through the state, for the purpose ofprovidmg services to children under the age
ofl8

9. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

Pursuant to 2019 Wisconsmn Executrve Order l, contractor agrees it will hre only on the basis of merit and will not
d1scnminate agamst any persons performmg a contract, subcontract or grant because ofmilitary or veteran status,
gender 1dent1ty or expression, mantal or famhal status, genetc mnformaton or poltucal affihaton

As required by Wisconsin's Contract Compliance Law, Wis Stat } 16 765 and Wis Admm Code $ Adm 50 04, the
Grantee must agree to equal employment and affirmatrve act1on polc1es and practices mn 1ts employment programs

The Grantee agrees to make every reasonable effort to develop a balance m either its total workforce or m the proJect
related workforce that 1s based on a ratio ofwork hours performed by handicapped persons, mmoritles, and women
except that, 1f the department finds that the Grantee 1s allocatmg its workforce ma manner which Circumvents the

4



mtent ofth1s chapter, the Grantor may reqmre the Grantee to attempt to create a balance mn 1ts total workforce The
balance shall be at least proportional to the percentage ofmmorities and women present mn the relevant labor markets
based on data prepared by the Department of Industry, Labor and Human Relat10ns, the Office of Federal Contract
Comphance Programs or by another appropnate governmental entity In the absence ofany rehab le data, the
percentage for qualified handicapped persons shall be at least 2% for whom a Grantee must make a reasonable
accommodation

10. CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE

As reqmred by Wis Stat § 16 765, in connection with the performance ofwork under this Agreement, the Grantee
agrees not to d1scnmmate agamst any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, rehg10n, color,
handicap, sex, physical condition, developmental disability as defined 1n WIs Stat $ 51 01(5), sexual orientation or
nattonal origin Thus provus1on shall include, but not be l1muted to, the following employment, upgrading, demotion or
transfer, recruitment or recrmtment advertising, layoff or termmat10n; rates ofpay or other forms of compensation,
and selection for training, mcludmg apprent1cesh1p Except with respect to sexual orientat10n, the Grantee further
agrees to take affirmative action to ensure equal employment opportunities The Grantee agrees to post m conspicuous
places, available for employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contractmg officer
settmng forth the prov1sons of the nondiscrmnaton clause

[FOR US DHHS (CMS/FDA/HRSA/CDC/NIH) GRANT ]In accordance with the prov1sons of Section 1557 of the
Patient Protect10n and Affordable Care Act of2010 (42 U.S.C $ 18116), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42
U.S C § 2000d et seq.), Section 504 of the Rehab1htation Act of 1973 (29 U.S C § 701 et seq ), the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 USC.$6101 et seq), and regulations 1mplementmg these Acts, found at 45 CFR.
Parts 80, 84, and 91 and 92, the Grantee shall not exclude, deny benefits to, or otherwise d1scnminate against any
person on the bas1s of sex, race, color, national or1gin, disablty, or age mn admission to, part1c1pat1on mn, mn aid of, or
m receipt of services and benefits under any of its programs and activities, and m staff and employee assignments to
patients, whether earned out by the Grantee directly or through a Subgrantee or any other entity with which the
Grantee arranges to carry out its programs and act1v1ties

[FOR USDA/FNS GRANT:]In accordance with the prov1sons of Sect1on 1l ofthe Food and Nutrition Act of 2008 (7
U.S C. § 2020), the Age Discnmmahon Act of 1975 (42 U S.C § 6101 et seq), Section 504 ofthe Rehabihtat10n Act
of 1973 (29 USC.§ 701 et seq.), the Amencans with Disabihtles Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C $ 12101 et seq), and Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U S C $ 2000d et seq), and the regulat10ns implementing these Acts, found at
7 C F R. Parts 15, 15a, and 15b, and Part 16, 28 C F R Part 35, and 45 C.F .R Part 91, the Grantee shall not
discrimmate based on race, color, national ongin, sex, rehg10us creed, disability, age, or political behefs or engage in
repnsal or retahaton for prior crvl nghts actrvty mn any program or activity conducted or funded by the United States
Department ofAgnculture

The Grantee agrees to cooperate with CA in any complaint mvestJgat10ns, momtonng or enforcement related to civil
nghts compliance of the Grantee or its Subgrantee(s) under this Agreement CA agrees to coordmate with the Grantee
mn its efforts to comply with the Grantee's responsibilities under these nondiscrmmmnaton prov1s1ons

11. CONFIDENTIAL, PROPRIETARY, AND PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE INFORMATION

In connection with the performance of the work prescnbed m this Agreement, it may be necessary for CA to disclose
to the Grantee certamn mnformaton that 1s considered to be confidential, proprietary, or contamnmng Personally
Identifiable Information (Confidential lnformat10n) The Grantee shall not use such Confidential Information for any
purpose other than the hmited purposes set forth m this Agreement, and all related and necessary act10ns taken m
fulfillment of the obhgat1ons herem. The Grantee shall hold all Confidential Information mn confidence, and shall not
disclose such Confidential lnformat10n to any persons other than those directors, officers, employees, and agents who
have a business-related need to have access to such Confidential Informat10n in furtherance of the hm1ted purposes of
this Agreement and who have been apprised of, and agree to mamtam, the confidential nature of such mformat10n m
accordance w1 th the terms ofthis Agreement

5



The Grantee shall mnstrtute and mamntamn such security procedures as are commercially reasonable to mamntamn the
confidentiality of the Confidential Informat1on while m its possession or control including transportatton, whether
physically or electronically CA may conduct a compliance review ofthe Grantee's secunty procedures to protect
Confidential Informat10n under Section 17 (Audits) of this Agreement

The Grantee shall ensure that all md1cations ofconfidentiality contamed on or mcluded m any item ofConfidential
Informat1on shall be reproduced by the Grantee on any reproduction, mod1ficat10n, or translat10n of such Confidential
Information Ifrequested by CA, the Grantee shall make a reasonable effort to add a proprietary notice or mnd1cat1on
of confidentiality to any tangible matenals within its possession that contam Confidential Information ofCA, as
dtrected.

The Grantee or its employees and Subgrantees will not reuse, sell, make available, or make use many format the data
researched or compiled for this Agreement for any venture, profitable or not, outside this Agreement

The restnct10ns herein shall survive the termination ofthis Agreement for any reason and shall continue in full force
and effect and shall be bindmg upon the Grantee or its agents, employees, successors, assigns, Subgrantee, or any
party claimmg an mterest m this Agreement on behalfof or under the nghts ofGrantee followmg any termmation
Grantee shall advise all of ther agents, employees, successors, assigns and Subgrantee which are engaged by the State
of the restrictions, present and continuing, set forth herem Grantee shall defend and incur all costs, 1f any, for actions
that arise as a result ofnoncomphance by Grantee, its agents, employees, successors, assigns and Subgrantee
regardmg the restnctions herein

A Reporting to CA· Grantee shall immediately report w1thm five (5) busmess days to CA any use or disclosure of
Confidential lnfonnat10n not provided for by this Agreement, ofwhich 1t becomes aware. Grantee shall cooperate
with CA's Investigation, analysts, notficat1on and mtgat1on actrvrt1es, and shall be responsible for all costs
Incurred by CA for those actvties

B Indemnzficatzon In the event ofa breach ofth1s sect10n by Grantee, Grantee shall mndemnfy and hold harmless
CA and any of its officers, employees, or agents from any claims ansmg from the acts or om1ss1ons of the
Grantee, and its Subgrantee, employees and agents, m v10lat1on of this section, mncludmng but not l1muted to, costs
ofcredit monitormg and identity theft restorat1on coverage for one (1) year ofcoverage from the date the
ind1v1dual enrolls, ofall persons whose Confidential Infonnat10n was disclosed, disallowances or penalties from
federal oversight agencies, and any court costs, expenses, and reasonable attorney fees, incurred by CA in the
enforcement of thus sect1on

C Equztable Relief The Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the unauthonzed use, disclosure, or loss of
Confidential Information may cause immediate and irreparable inury to the individuals whose mformat1on 1s
disclosed and to CA, whch injury wll not be compensable by money damages and for which there 1s not an
adequate remedy available by law. Accordmgly, the parties specifically agree that CA, in its own behalforon
behalf of the affected mdrv1duals, may seek mnyunctrve or other equrtable relief to prevent or curtail any such
breach, threatened or actual, without postmg secunty and without preJudice to such other nghts as may be
available under this Agreement or applicable law

D. Lqudated Damages The Grantee agrees that an unauthonzed use or disclosure ofConfidential Information may
result m damage to the CA's reputation and ability to serve the publc mterest mn 1ts admmistratron of programs
affected by this Agreement Such amounts ofdamages which will be sustamed are not calculable with any degree
of certamty and thus shall be set forth here Assessment under this provision is in addition to other remedies
under this Agreement and as provided mn law or equity CA shall assess reasonable damages as appropnate and
notify the Grantee m wntmg of the assessment The Grantee shall automatically deduct any assessed damages
from the next appropriate monthly mnvo1ce, 1tem1zing the assessment deductions on the mvotce LIqu1dated
Damages shall not exceed the followmg
I $1,000 for each md1v1dual whose Confidential Information was used or disclosed,
2 $2,500 per day for each day that the Grantee fails to substantially comply with the Corrective Action Plan
under this Section

E HIPAA The Grantee IS NOT a "Busmess Assoc1ate" pursuant to the defimt10n under the Health Insurance
Portabihty and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and the regulations promulgated thereunder specifically 45C FR
$ 160 103 If the parties are Business Assoc1ates, then the parties shall comply with CA's Busmness Assoc1ate
Agreement

6



If the Grantee 1s a Business Assoc1ate, the Grantee agrees to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountab1hty Act, Pubhc Law 104-191 and with the Standards for Pnvacy and Secunty of Indrvidually
Identifiable Health Informat10n, 45 CF R Parts 160 and 164 apphcable to Busmess Associates As defined
herem, "Busmess Associate" shall mean the Grantee and Subgrantee and agents of the Grantee that receive, use or
have access to protected health mformatJon under this Agreement and "Covered Entity" shall mean Community
Advocates.

In agreements for the provus1on of services, actrvrtres, or functions covered by the Health Insurance Portab1lty
and Accountablty act of 1996 (HIPAA), the Grantee as a Busmess Associate must complete a Busmess
Associate Agreement (BAA) F-00759 Thus document must be fully executed before Agreement performance
begins

Thus Section shall survive the termination ofthe Agreement.

12. SUBGRANT or SUBCONTRACT

A CA reserves the nght ofapproval of any Grantee's further contracts, grants, contractors, or grantees under this
Agreement, and the Grantee shall report mformat10n relating to any further contract, grants, contractors, or
grantees to CA A change m any further contractor or grantee or a change from a direct service provision to a
further contractor or grantee may only be executed with the pnor wntten approval of CA In addit10n, CA
approval may be reqmred regardmg the terms and cond1hons ofany further contracts or grants and the further
contractor or grantee selected. Approval ofany further contracts, grants, contractors, or grantees will be withheld
f CA reasonably believes that the mtended further contractor or grantee will not be a responsible contractor or
grantee in terms ofservices provded and costs bulled.

B The Grantee retams respons1b1hty for fulfillment ofall terms and cond1hons ofthis Agreement when t enters mto
any further contract or grant and will be subJect to enforcement of all the terms and conditions of this Agreement

13. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A Any payments ofmonies to the Grantee by CA for goods and/or services provided under this Agreement shall
be deposited ma Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC") Insured bank Any balance exceedmg
FDIC coverage must be collaterally secured

B The Grantee shall conduct all procurement transactions mn a manner that provides maximum open and free
competition.

C If the Grantee or Subgrantee 1s a corporat10n other than a W1sconsm corporation, 1t must demonstrate, prior to
providmg services under thus Agreement, that 1t possesses a Certificate ofAuthority from the State of W1sconsm
Department ofFinancial Institutions, and must have and continuously maintamn a registered agent, and otherwise
conform to all requirements ofWis Stat chs. 180 and 181 relating to foreign corporations

D. The Grantee agrees that funds provided under this Agreement shall be used to supplement or expand the
Grantee's efforts, not to replace or allow for the release of available Grantee funds for alternatrveuses

14. ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS

A The Grantee's accountmg system shall allow for accountmg for mdividual grants, permit timely preparation of
expenditure reports required by CA as contamned mn Sect1on 6 of this Agreement, and support expenditure reports
submitted to CA

B The Grantee shall reconcile costs reported to CA for reimbursement or as match to expenses recorded mn the
Grantee's accountmg or s1mphfied bookkeepmg system on an ongomg and penod1c basis The Grantee agrees to
complete and document reconc1hat10n at least quarterly and to provide a copy to CA upon request The Grantee
shall retam the reconchat1on documentation according to approved records retention requirements

C Expenditures of funds from this Agreement must meet the Department's allowable cost definitions as defined m
the Department's Allowable Cost Pohcy Manual (https //www dhs w1sconsm gov/busmess/allow-cost-
manual htm)

7



15. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PERIOD

A. The Grantee shall notify CA ofany change m its accountmg penod and provide proofof Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) approval for the change

B Proof of IRS approval shall be considered verificat10n that the Grantee has a substantial busmess reason for
changmg its accountmg penod

C A change m accountmg period shall not relieve the Grantee ofthe reportmg or audit reqmrements ofth1s
Agreement An audit meeting the requirements of ths Agreement shall be submitted wthmn 9O days after the first
day of the start of the new accounting period for the short accountmg penod and withm 180 days of the close of
the new accountmg period for the new period For purposes ofdetermming audit reqmrements, expenses and
revenues mcurred dunng the short accountmg penod shall be annualized

16. PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS

A Property msurance coverage will be provided by the Grantee for fire and extended coverage of any eqmpment
funded under thus Agreement which CA retains ownership ofand whch ts mn the care, custody, and control of
the Grantee

B CA shall have all ownership nghts many computer hardware supplied by CA as a result of this Agreement. CA
shall have all ownership rights mn any software or modifications thereofand associated documentaton that1s
designed and mstalled or developed and installed under this Agreement The Grantee shall have all ownership
nghts in any computer hardware funded under this Agreement and will have a nonexclusive, nontransferable
license to use for its purposes ofthe software or modificat10ns and associated documentation that is designed and
mstalled or developed and installed under this Agreement

C. The Grantee agrees that ifany materials are developed under this Agreement, CA shall have a royalty-free,
nonexclusive, and mevocable nght to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use and to authonze others to use such
materials Any discovery or mventlon arismg out of, or developed in the course of, work aided by this Agreement
shall be promptly and fully reported to CA

17. AUDITS

A. Requirement to Have an Audt Unless waved by CA, the Grantee shall submit an annual audit to CA 1f the total
amount ofannual fundmg provided by CA (from any and all of its Divisions or subumts taken collectively)
through this and other Grants is $100,000 or more In determinmg the amount ofannual fundmg provided by CA,
the Grantee shall consider both: (a) funds provided through direct Grants with CA, and (b) funds from CA passed
through another agency which has one or more Grants with the Grantee

B Audzt Requzrements The audit shall be performed mn accordance with generally accepted aud1tmg standards, Wis
Stat. § 46.036, Government Auditmg Standards as issued by the U.S Government Accountability Office, and
other provisions specified in thus agreement In addition, the Grantee 1s responsible for ensuring that the audit
complies with other standards and gmdelmes that may be applicable depending on the type of services provided
and the amount of pass-through dollars received Please reference the following audit documents for complete
audit reqmrements:
• 2 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.), Part 200 - Umform Admmistrattve Requirements, Cost Principles,

and Audit Reqmrements for Federal Awards, Subpart F- Audrts The guidance also mcludes an Annual
Compliance Supplement that details specific federal agency rules for acceptmg federal subawards

• The State Smgle Audit Gmdelines (SSAG) expand on the reqmrements of2 CF R Part 200 Subpart F by
1dent1fymng additional conditions that require a state smngle audit Section 1 3 ofthe SSAG lists therequired
conditions.

C Source ofFundng CA shall prov1de funding mnformat1on to all subrecip1ent/contractors for audrt purposes,
mcludmg the name ofthe program, the federal agency where the program ongmated, the CFDA number and the
percentages of federal, state and local funds constitutmg the agreement

D Reporting Package The subrecpient/contractor that 1s required to have a Smgle Audit based on 2 C.F R Part 200
Subpart F and the State Smgle Audit Gmde is reqmred to submit to CA a reportmg package which mcludes all of
the followmg
1 General-purpose financial statements of the overall agency and a schedule of expenditures of federal and state

awards, mcludmg the mdependent auditor's opimon on the statements and schedule
2 Schedule of findmgs and questioned costs, schedule ofpnor audit findmgs, corrective action plan and the

8



management letter (1f 1ssued)
3. Report on compliance and on mtemal control over financial reportmg based on an audit performed in

accordance with government aud1tmg standards.
4 Report on compliance for each mayor program and a report on mternal control over compliance
5 Report on compliance with reqmrements applicable to the federal and state program and on mternal control

over complance mn accordance with the program-specific audit opt1on
6 CA Cost Reimbursement Award Schedule Thus schedule 1s requured by CA 1f the subrec1prent/contractor is a

non-profit, for-profit, a governmental umt other than a tnbe, county, Chapter 51 board or school district, if the
subrec1pient/contractor receives funding directly from CA, ifpayment 1s based on or limited to an actual
allowable cost basis; and 1f the auditee reported expenses or other activity resulting m payments totalmg
$100,000 or more for all of 1ts grant(s) or contract(s) with CA

7 *Reserve Schedule rs only required 1f the subrecrprent/contractor 1s a non-profit and paid on a prospectively
set rate

8. *Allowable Profit Schedule 1s only required 1f the subrecipient/contractor 1s a for-profit entity
9. Additional Supplemental Schedule(s) required by funding agency may be reqmred Check with the fundmg

agency
*NOTE These schedules are only reqmred for certam types ofent1t1es or specific financial conditions.
For subrecipent/contractors that do not meet the federal audit reqmrements of2 C F.R Part 200 and SSAG, the
audit reportmg package to CA shall mclude all of the above items except items 4 and 5.

E Audt Due Date Audits that must comply with 2 CF R. Part 200 and the State Smgle Audit Guidelines are due to
the granting agencies nme months from the end ofthe fiscal period or 30 days from completion ofthe audit,
whichever is sooner. For all other audits, the due date is six months from the end ofthe fiscal period unless a
different date 1s specified within the contract or grant agreement

F Sendmng the Reportng Package Audit reports shall be sent by the auditor va emaul to
ksouthern@communityadvocates net with "cc" to the subrec1pient/auditee The audit reports shall be
electronically created pdf files that are text searchable, unlocked, and unencrypted. (Note To ensure that pdf files
are unlocked and text-searchable, do not scan a physical copy ofthe audit report and do not change the default
secunty settings mn your pdfcreator)

G. Access to Subrecpent Records The audutee must provide the auditor with access to personnel, accounts, books,
records, supporting documentation, and other mnformaton as needed for the auditor to perform the reqmred audit
The aud1tee shall permit appropnate representatives ofCA to have access to the audrtee's records and financial
statements as necessary to review the aud1tee's compliance with federal and state reqmrements for the use of the
funding. Havmg an independent audit does not lmut the authonty ofCA to conduct or arrange for other audits or
review offederal or state programs CA shall use information from the audit to conduct thelf own reviews without
duplication of the independent auditor's work.

H. Access to Auditor's Work Papers The auditor shall make audit work papers available upon request to the auditee,
CA or their des1gnee as part ofperformmg a quality review, resolvmg audit findmgs, or carrymg out oversight
responsibilities. Access to workmg papers mcludes the rght to obtam copies ofworking papers

I. Fazlure to Comply wth the Audt Requirements CA may impose sanct10ns when needed to ensure thatauditees
have complied with the reqmrements to provide CA with an audit that meets the applicable standards and to
admm1ster state and federal programs 1n accordance with the applicable requirements. Examples of situations
when sanct10ns may be warranted mclude
1 The auditee dud not have an audrt

2 The auditee dd not send the audit to CA or another granting agency within the orgmnal or extended audit
deadline

3. The auditor did not perform the audit m accordance with apphcable standards, mcludmg the standards
descnbed in the SSAG

4 The audit reportmg package 1s not complete, for example, the reportmg package 1s m1ssmg thecorrective
action plan or other reqmred elements

5 The audttee does not cooperate with CA or another granting agency's audit resolution efforts, for example,
the aud1tee does not take corrective action or does not repay disallowed costs to the grantmgagency

J Sanctzons CA will choose sanct10ns that smt the particular circumstances and also promote compliance and/or
corrective act1on Poss1ble sanctions may mclude
I Requiring modified mon1tormng and/or reporting prov1s1ons,
2 Delaymg payments, w1thholdmg a percentage ofpayments, withholding or d1sallowmg overhead costs, or

suspending the award untl the aud1tee 1s mn compliance,
9



3 D1sallowmg the cost of audits that do not meet these standards,
4. Conducting an audit or arranging for an mndependent audit of the aud1tee and charging the cost ofcompleting

the audrt to the aud1tee,
5 Chargmg the auditee for all loss of federal or state aid or for penalties assessed to CA because theaud1tee

did not comply with audit reqmrements,
6 Assessmg financial sanct10ns or penalties,
7 Discontinuing contracting with the audrtee, and/or
8 Takmg other action that CA determmes is necessary to protect federal or state pass-through fundmg.

K Closeout Audits An agreement specific audit ofan accounting penod of less than 12 months 1s requ!fed when an
agreement 1s termmated for cause, when the audtee ceases operations or changes its accountmg period (fiscal
year) The purpose ofthe audit 1s to close-out the short accounting perod The required close-out agreement
specific audit may be waived by CA upon written request from the subrec1p1ent/contractor, except when the
agreement is termmated for cause The reqmred close-out audit may not be waived when an agreement 1s
terminated for cause
The auditee shall ensure that its auditor contacts CA prior to begmnmg the audit CA, or its representative, shall
have the opportumty to review the planned audit program, request addit10nal comphance or mtemal control
testmg and attend any conference between the auditee and the auditor Payment ofmcreased audit costs, as a
result of the add1tonal testing requested by CA, 1s the responsibility of the audrtee
CA may reqmre a close-out audit that meets the audit requirements specified 1n 2 C F.R Part 200 Subpart F In
addition, CA may require that the auditor annuahze revenues and expenditures for the purposes ofapplymng 2
CF R. Part 200 Subpart F and determinmg maJor federal financial assistance programs This mformation shall be
disclosed in a note withm the schedule of federal awards. All other prov1s10ns in 2 C F R Part 200 Subpart F
Audit Reqmrements apply to close-out audits unless m conflict with the specific close-out audit reqmrements

18. OTHER ASSURANCES

A The Grantee shall notify CA m wntmg, w1thm 30 days of the date payment was due, ofany past due hab1hties to
the federal government, state government, or their agents for income tax w1thholdmg, Federal Insurance
Contnbutions Act (FICA) tax, worker's compensat10n, unemployment compensat10n, garnishments or other
employee related liabiht1es, sales tax, mcome tax ofthe Grantee, or other monies owed The wntten notice shall
include the amount owed, the reason the momes are owed, the due date, the amount ofany penalties or mterest
(known or estimated), the umt ofgovernment to which the momes are owed, the expected payment date, and other
related mnformat1on

B The Grantee shall notify CA m writmg, w1thm 30 days of the date payment was due, of any past due payment m
excess of $500 or when total past due habihties to any one or more vendors exceed $1,000 related to the operat10n
of this Agreement for which CA has reimbursed or will reimburse the Grantee The wntten notice shall mclude
the amount owed, the reason the momes are owed, the due date, the amount ofany penalties or interest (known or
estimated), the vendor to which the monies are owed, the expected payment date, and other related mformation If
the liablrty 1s in dispute, the written notice shall contain a discuss1on of facts related to the dispute and the
mformation on steps being taken by the Grantee to resolve the dispute

C CA may require wntten assurance at the time ofentenng mto this Agreement that the Grantee has mn force, and
will mamtam for the course ofthis Agreement, employee dishonesty bondmg ma reasonable amount to be
determined by CA up to $500,000

19. RECORDS

A. The Grantee shall mamtam wntten and electromc records as reqmred by state and federal law and reqmred by
program pole1es

B The Grantee and its Subgrantee(s) or Subcontractor(s) shall comply with all state and federal confidenhahtylaws
concernmng the information mn both the records it mamtams and mn any ofCA's records that the Grantee accesses
to provide services under thus Agreement

C The Grantee and its Subgrantee(s) or Subcontractor(s) will allow mspect10n of records and programs, msofar as 1s
permitted by state and federal law, by representatives ofCA, its authonzed agents, and federal agencies, morder to
confirm the Grantee's compliance with the specifications ofth1s Agreement

D The Grantee agrees to retam and make available to CA all program and fiscal records for s1x(6) years after the
end of the Agreement penod

10



E The use or disclosure by any party ofany information concerning elg1ble drvduals who receive services from
the Grantee for any purpose not connected with the admimstratlon of the Grantee's or CA's responsibilities under
thus Agreement is prohibited except with the mnformed, written consent of the elgble mdrvdual or the
mndrv1dual's legal guard1an

20. CONTRACT REVISIONS AND/OR TERMINATION

A The Grantee agrees to renegotiate with CA the terms and conditions of this Agreement or any part thereofm
such circumstances as
I Increased or decreased volume of services
2 Changes required by state and federal law or regulations or court action
3. Increase or reduction in the monies available affecting the substance ofth1s Agreement

B Failure to agree to a renegotiated Agreement under these circumstances is cause for CA to termmateth1s
Agreement.

C Non-Appropriation
CA reserves the rght to cancel thus Agreement mn whole or mn part without penalty 1f the Legislature fails to
appropriate funds necessary to complete the Agreement

D. Termmaton for Cause
CA may terminate this Agreement after providmg the Grantee with thirty (30) calendar days wntten notice of
the Grantee's nght to cure a failure of the Grantee to perform under the terms ofthis Agreement, 1f theGrantee
fads to so cure or commence to cure
The Grantee may termmate the Agreement after providmg CA one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days
wntten notice of CA's rght to cure a failure ofCA to perform under the terms of this Agreement
Upon the termmatton of this Agreement for any reason, or upon Agreement expiration, each party shall be
released from all obligations to the other party arsmng after the date of termmation or expiration, except for those
that by their terms survive such termination or expiration.
Upon termmat10n for cause, the Grantee shall be entitled to receive compensation for any deliverables' payments
owed under the Agreement only for deliverables that have been approved and accepted by CA

E. Termination for Convemence
Either party may termmate this Agreement at any time, without cause, by providing a wntten notice CA must
notify the Grantee at least forty-five (45) calendar days pnor to the desired date of termination for convemence.
The Grantee must notify CA at least one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days pnor to the desired date of
termmat1on for convemence. During this notification penod, the Grantee will contmue providmg services in
accordance with the Agreement requirements.
In the event of termination for convemence, the Grantee shall be entitled to receive compensation for any fees
owed under the Agreement. The Grantee shall also be compensated for partially completed services In this event,
compensation for such partially completed services shall be no more than the percentage ofcompletion of the
services requested, at the sole discretion ofCA, multiplied by the corresponding payment for completion of such
services as set forth in the Agreement Alternatively, at the sole discretion ofCA, the Grantee may be
compensated for the actual service hours provided CA shall be entitled to a refund for goods or services paid for
but not received or implemented, such refund to be paid withm thirty (30) days ofwntten notice to the Grantee
requestmg the refund

F Cancellation
CA reserves the nght to immediately cancel this Agreement, in whole or m part, without penalty and without an
opportumty for Grantee to cure ifthe Grantee

I Files a petition in bankruptcy, becomes msolvent, or otherwise takes act1on to dissolve as a legal entity,
2 Allows any final Judgment not to be satisfied or a hen not to be disputed after a legally-imposed, 30-day

notice,
3 Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors,
4 Fails to follow the sales and use tax certification reqmrements ofWis Stat § 77 66,
5 Incurs a dehnquent Wtsconsm tax habthty,
6 Fa1ls to submit a non-discrimination or affirmative act1on plan as requured here,
7. Fads to follow the non-discrimination or affirmative action requirements of subch II, Chapter 111 ofthe

Wisconsmn Statutes (WIsconsmn's Faur Employment Law),
8 Becomes a federally debarred Grantee,
9 Is excluded from federal procurement and non-procurement Agreements,

11



10 Fails to mamtam and keep m force all required msurance, permits and licenses as provided 10 this
Agreement,

11 Fa1ls to mamntamn the confident1al1ty ofCA's mnformat1on that 1s cons1dered to be Confident1al
Information, proprietary, or contammg Personally Identifiable Information, or

12 Grantee performance threatens the health or safety ofa CA employee or CA customer

21. NONCOMPLIANCE AND REMEDIAL MEASURES

A Fa1lure to comply wth any part ofthus Agreement may be cons1dered cause for revs1on, suspens1on, or
termmnat1on of thus Agreement Suspens1on mncludes withholdmng part or all ofthe payments that otherwisewould
be paid to the Grantee under this Agreement, temporanly havmg others perform and receive reimbursement for
the services to be provided under this Agreement, and any other measure CA determmes 1s necessary to protect
the mterests of Commumty Advocates

B The Grantee shall provide wntten notice to CA ofall mstances ofnoncompliance with the terms of this
Agreement by the Grantee or any of its Subgrantees or Subcontractors, mcluding noncompliance with allowable
cost prov1s1ons Notice shall be given as soon as practicable but mn no case later than 30 days after the Grantee
became aware of the noncompliance The wntten notice shall include information on the reason for and effect of
the noncomphance The Grantee shall provide CA with a plan to correct the noncompliance.

C. IfCA determmes that noncomphance with this Agreement has occurred or contmues to occur, 1t shall demand
immediate correct10n ofcontinumg noncompliance and seek remedial measures 1t deems necessary to protectthe
mterests of the State up to and mcludmg termmat10n ofthe Agreement, the 1mposmng ofadditional reporting
reqmrements and momtonng ofSubgrantee or Subcontractors, and any other measures it deems appropnate and
necessary

D If reqmred statistical data, reports, and other reqmred mformat10n are not submitted when due, CA may
withhold all payments that otherwise would be pad the Grantee under thus Agreement until such time as the
reports and mformahon are submitted

22. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

If any dispute anses between CA and Grantee under this Agreement, mcludmg CA' s finding of noncompliance and
Imposition of remedial measures, the following process will be the exclusive admmn1stratrve review

A. Informal Revew CA's and Grantee's Grant Admmistrators will attempt to resolve the dispute Ifa dispute 1snot
resolved at this step, then a wntten statement to this effect must be signed and dated by both Grant
Admmistrators The wntten statement must mclude all of the following
1 A brief statement ofthe issue
2 The steps that have been taken to resolve the dispute
3 Any suggested resolution by erther party.

B. ChzefExecutve Officer 's Revew If the dispute cannot be resolved by the Grant Admm1strators, the Grantee may
request a review by the CEO ofthe agency m which the CA Grant Admm1strator 1s employed The CEO must
receive a request under thus step wthmn 14 days after the date ofthe signed unresolved dispute letter mn Step A
The CEO wall review thematter and Issue a written determination withmn 30 days after recervmng the review
request

23. FINAL REPORT DATE

A Expenses mcurred dunng the Agreement penod but reported later than 20 days after the penod endmg date will
not be recogmzed, allowed, or reimbursed under the terms ofthis Agreement unless determined as allowable by
CA In the event this occurs, an alternate payment process as determmed by CA may occur.

B Expenses mcurred outside ofthe Agreement penod would be considered not allowable

24. INDEMNITY

To the extent authonzed under state and federal laws, CA and the Grantee agree they shall be responsible for any
losses or expenses (mcluding costs, damages, and attorney's fees) attnbutable to the acts or om1ss10ns ofthe1r
employees, officers, or agents

12



25. CONDITIONS OF THE PARTIES' OBLIGATIONS

A. This Agreement 1s contingent upon authonty granted under the laws of the State of Wisconsin and the Umted
States ofAmenca, and any matenal amendment or repeal of the same affecting relevant funding or authontyof
CA shall serve to revise or terminate this Agreement, except as further agreed to by the parties

B CA and the Grantee understand and agree that no clause, term, or cond1t10n ofth1s Agreement shall be construed
to supersede the lawful powers or duties ofeither party.

C It 1s understood and agreed that the enttre Agreement between the parties 1s contained herein, except for those
matters incorporated herein by reference, and that this Agreement supersedes all oral agreements and negotiations
between the parties relating to the subject matter thereof

26. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws ofthe State ofWisconsin. The venue for any actions brought under this
Agreement shall be the Circmt Court ofDane County, Wisconsin or the US District Court for the Western D1stnct of
Wisconsin, as applicable

27. SEVERABILITY

The mnvaldrty, Illegal1ty, or unenforceablity of any provision ofthus Agreement or the occurrence of any event
rendering any port10n or provis10n of this Agreement votd shall in no way affect the vahdrty or enforceability of any
other port10n or prov1s10n of this Agreement Any void prov1s10n shall be deemed severed from this Agreement, and
the balance ofthis Agreement shall be construed and enforced as 1f 1t did not contain the particular port10n or
provision held to be vo1d. The parties further agree to amend thus Agreement to replace any stricken prov1s1on wth a
val1d prov1s1on that comes as close as poss1ble to the intent ofthe stricken prov1s1on. The prov1s1ons of this Article
shall not prevent this entire Agreement from bemng void should a prov1s1on, which 1s of the essence of this Agreement,
be determmed void.

28. ASSIGNMENT

Neither party shall assign any rights or duties under this Agreement without the pnor wntten consent of the other
party.

29. ANTI-LOBBYING ACT

The Grantee shall certify to CA that 1t will not and has not used federal appropriated funds to pay any person or
organizat10n for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee ofany agency, a member ofCongress,
officer or employee ofCongress, or an employee ofa member ofCongress in connect10n with obtaining any federal
contract, grant or any other award covered by 31U S C 1352. The Grantee shall also disclose any lobbying with non
federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award

The Grantee shall use Standard Form LLL for Disclosure ofLobbying Actrvties available at
https://www.gsa gov/portal/forms/download/116430 A completed disclosure must be provided upon Department
request

30. DEBARMENT OR SUSPENSION

The Grantee certifies that neither the Grantee orgamzation nor any of its prmc1pals are debarred, suspended, or
proposed for debarment for federal financial ass1stance (mncluding, but not h1muted to, General Services
Admin1strat10n's hst ofparties excluded from federal procurement and non-procurement programs). The Grantee
further certifies that potential Subgrantees or Subcontractors and any oftheir pnnc1pals are not debarred, suspended,
or proposed for debarment

31. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE

13



The Grantee, agents, employees, Subgrantees or Subcontractors under this Agreement shall follow the guidelines
established by the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988

32. MULTIPLE ORIGINALS

This Agreement may be executed m multiple ongmals, each ofwhich together shall constitute a smgle Agreement

33. CAPTIONS

The parties agree that in this Agreement, captions are used for convemence only and shall not be used mn mterpretmng
or construmng thus Agreement

34. SPECIAL PROVISIONS, IF APPLICABLE

The following spec1al provisions are required

A Match Reqmrements NIA
B. Performance Reporting· Grantee will provide CA a Performance Report no later than 30 days past mid-pomnt of

the contract penod and a CA Performance Report no later than 30 days past contract end date unless otherwise
stipulated in wrtmng by CA.

35. NULL AND VOID

Thus Agreement becomes null and void fthe time between the earlier dated signature and the later dated signature of
CA's and Grantee's Authonzed Representatives on this Agreement exceeds 60 days mclusive ofthe two signature
dates

36. FEDERAL AWARD INFORMATION

Subaward penod of
Performance Start 9/30/2023
Date

Subaward penod of
Performance End 9/01/2024
Date
Amount ofFederal
Funds obligated $21,000(committed) by thus
action

Strategic Prevention
Federal Award Framework
Project Description Partnerships for

Success

Federal Awardmg U S Department of
Agency Name Health & Human
(Department) Services

CAAwardmg Kan Southern
Offic1al Name

CA Awardmg
Official Contact 262-424-4119
Informat1on

CFDANumber 93 243

14



EXHIBIT Ill: Services Funded with Strategic Prevention Framework Partnerships for
Success Grant Project Funds

A. Expectations

The Strategic Prevention Framework Partnerships for Success, 2019 (SPF-PFS) program
provides an opportunity to target the pnonty issues of alcohol, manJuana and e
c1garettes/tobacco
The program Is designed to raise awareness about the dangers of use and abuse among
young adults SPF-PFS will also raise community awareness and bnng drug prevention
activities and education to schools, communities, and parents

The goals of the SPF-PFS grant program are outlined below

1) Enhance the infrastructure to increase capacity to implement effective substance abuse
prevention services

2) Decrease behavioral health d1spant1es that lead to differences in access, service use and
outcomes of substance use in Milwaukee County

3) Increase capacity at the community-level to boost protective factors and mental health
wellness

B. Required Activities

1. Grant Activities:
•

•

•

•

•

•

Use the Strategic Prevention Framework to identify and select
comprehensive, data-dnven substance abuse prevention strategies to
accomplish goals
Build capacity to address underage drinking, marijuana and e
c1garettes/tobacco among persons aged 9-20
Collect and report community-level data to determine progress toward
addressing SPF-PFS prevention efforts across the community
Utilize community coalition building strategies to advance substance abuse
prevention efforts
Develop prevention messaging and other prevention strategies and ensure
dissemination of these messages
Share effective resources with Region 5 Prevention Technology Transfer
Center (PTTC) to enhance dissemination/adoption of best practices

C. Data Collection and Performance Measurement

All grantees are required to collect and report certain data so that SAMHSA can meet its
obligations under the Government Performance and Results (GPRA) Modern1zat1on Act of
2010 As SAMHSA has not issued guidance on what reporting measures will required, we
are anticipating grantees will be required to report performance on the followmng process
measures

• Number of active collaborators/partners supporting the grantee's comprehensive
prevention approach,

• Number of people served and/or reached by IOM category (universal, selective,

15



Indicated), snx strategies, demographic group and targeted population,
• Number and percent of evidence-based programs, pohcIes, and/or practices

Implemented by subreciprent communities,
• Number of prevention activities at the subrecrprent level that are supported by
collaboration and leveraging of funding streams, and

• Number, type and duration of evidence-based interventions by prevention
strategy implemented at the community level

D. Terms and conditions for continued funding

Failure to comply with the remarks, terms, conditions, or reporting requirements may
result in award termination, or denial of future funding.

Acceptance of the Terms of an Award: By requesting repayment from Community
Advocates, the recIpIent acknowledges acceptance of the terms and condItIons of the
award and is obligated to perform in accordance with the requirements of the award If the
recIpIent cannot accept the terms, the recIpIent should notify Community Advocates

Certification Statement By requesting reimbursement, the grantee certifies that the
grantee and any subcontractors have proper financial management controls and accounting
systems, to include personnel policies and procedures, have been established to adequately
adm1nIster state and federal awards and funds drawn down

Rec1p1ents and subrec1p1ents of Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS) grants
or cooperative agreement awards must comply with all terms and cond1t1ons of their
awards, including (a) terms and cond1t1ons included in the HHS Grants Polley Statement In
effect at the time of a new, non-competing continuation, or renewal award
(http //www hhs gov/s1tes/default/files/grants/grants/pohc1es-regulat1ons/hhsgps107 pdf),
Including the requirements of HHS grants administration regulations, (b) requirements of the
author1zing statutes and implementing regulations for the program under which the award Is
funded, (c) applicable requirements or hm1tat1ons in appropnat1ons acts, and (d) any
requirements specific to the particular award

The funding for thus grant is subject to the admmnstratrve requirements, cost principles, and
audit requirements that govern federal monies associated with ths award, as applicable, In
the Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Part 200 as cod1f1ed by HHS at 45 CFR Part 75
(http //www ecfr gov/cgi
b1n/retneveECFR?gp=&SID=Oddb69baec587eeea4ab7e6a68c4acbO&mc=true&r=PART&n
=pt45 1 75)

1. Executive Pay: For FY 2016, the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016 (Pub L
113-76) signed into law on January 10, 2016, restrcts the amount of direct salary to
Executive Level II of the Federal Executive Pay scale The Executive Level 11 annual
salary Is $185,100

2. Data Collection and Performance Measurement: Government Performance and
Results (GPRA) Modernization Act of 2010 All requirements specified around
performance data collection must be followed Recipients and sub recipients must
comply with the performance goals, milestones, and expected outcomes

3. Non-Supplant: Federal funds must supplement, not replace (supplant) non-federal

16



funds All grantees who receive funding from Community Advocates must ensure
that federal funds do not supplant funds that have been budgeted for the same
purpose through non-federal sources Applicants or award recIpIents may be
required to demonstrate and document that a reduction in non-federal resources
occurred for reasons other than the receipt of expected receipt of federal funds

4. Future Funding: Funding Is subject to the ava1lab1hty of federal funds, and that
matching funds, (1f applicable), are verifiable, and progress of the grant Is
documented and acceptable

5. Reporting Program Income: Program income accrued under the award must be
accounted for in accordance with 45 CFR Part 75 307, as applicable

Grantees must exercise proper stewardship over federal funds and ensure that costs
charged to awards are allowable, allocable, reasonable, necessary, and consistently
applied regardless of the source of funds

CA may disallow the costs 1f It Is determined, through audit or otherwise, that the costs do
not meet the tests of allowab1hty, allocab1hty, reasonableness, necessity, and consistency

Changes in Key Personnel: The recipient is required to notify the CA contract
administrator mn writing rf the Project Director (PD)/coordinator or key personnel specifically
named mn the annual apphcaton wll withdraw from the project entirely, be absent from the
project during any continuous perod of three months or more, or reduce time devoted to the
project by 25 percent or more from the level that was approved at the time of award (for
example, a proposed change from 40 percent effort to 30 percent or less effort) CA must
approve any alternate arrangement proposed by the grantee

Acknowledgement of Federal Funding As required by HHS appropriations acts, all
grantees and subgrantees must acknowledge federal funding when issuing statements,
press releases, requests for proposals, bid inv1tat1ons, and other documents descnbmg
projects or programs funded in whole or in part with federal funds Rec1p1ents are required
to state (1) the percentage and dollar amounts of the total program or project costs
financed with federal funds, and (2) the percentage and dollar amount of the total costs
financed by nongovernmental sources

Conferences: When a conference is funded by a grant or cooperative agreement, the
recipient must include the following statement on all conference matenals (Including
promotional materials, agenda, and Internet sites)

Fundmg for this conference was made possible (in part) by (insert grant or cooperative
agreement award number) from SAMHSA The views expressed m wntten conference
matenals or pub/Jcations and by speakers and moderators do not necessanly reflect the
official policies of the Department of Health and Human Services, nor does mention of trade
names, commercial practices, or orgamzat1ons imply endorsement by the U S Government

Mandatory disclosures: Consistent with 45 CFR 75 113, applicants and recipients and
subrectpents must disclose in a timely manner, in wntmg to CA and the HHS OIG, all
Information related to violations of federal criminal law Involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity
violations potentially affecting the federal award

17



Failure to make required disclosures can result m any of the remedies described in 45 CFR
75 371 remedies for noncompliance, 1ncludmg suspension or debarment (see 2 CFR parts
180&376and31 USC 3321)

Confidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records: The regulations (42 CFR
2) are applicable to any 1nformat1on about alcohol and other drug abuse patients obtained
by a "program" (42 CFR 211), if the program is federally assisted in any manner (42 CFR
2 12b) Accordingly, all project patient records are confidential and may be disclosed and
used only mn accordance with 42 CFR 2 The rec1pIent Is responsible for assuring
compliance with these regulations and pnnc1ples, mcludmg respons1b1hty for assuring the
security and confidentiality of all electronically transmitted patient material.

THIS AWARD IS SUBJECT TO REQUIREMENTS AS SET FORTH IN 2 CFR 25.110
CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION (CCR) (NOW SAM) AND DATA UNIVERSAL
NUMBER SYSTEM (DUNS) NUMBERS. 2 CFR Part 25 -Appendix A

Administrative and National Policy Requirements Awards issued through SAMHSA
Funding Opportunity Announcements are subject to the uniform admInistratIve requirements
and cost principles of 45 CFR Part 75 - Uniform Adm1nistrat1ve Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for HHS Awards

The grantee and all subcontractors are responsible for complying with all requirements of
the federal award For all federal awards, this includes the provIsIons of FFATA, which
includes requirements on executive compensation, and also requirements ImplementIng
the Act for the non-federal entity at 2 CFR part 25 and 2 CFR part 170 See also statutory
requirements for wh1stleblower protections at 10 U S C 2324 and 2409, and 41 U S C
4304, 4310, and 4712

An appl1cat1on funded with the release of federal funds through a grant award does not
constitute or imply compliance with federal regulations Funded organizations are
responsible for ensuring that their activities comply with all applicable federal regulations

Drug-free workplace The recIpIent and any subcontractors, must comply with drug-free
workplace requirements in Subpart B (or Subpart C, If the recipient is an mndrvdual) of part
382, which adopts the government-wide ImplementatIon (2 CFR part 182) of sec 5152
5158 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D, 41
USC 701-707)

Accessibility Provisions for All Grant Application Packages and Funding Opportunity
Announcements: Rec1p1ents of federal financial assistance (FFA) from HHS must
administer their programs mn compliance with state and federal cl nghts law This means
that recIpIents of HHS funds must ensure equal access to their programs without regard to
a person's race, color, national origin, d1sab1hty, age, and in some circumstances, sex and
religion Thus includes ensuring your programs are accessible to persons with Immuted
English proficiency HHS provides guidance to recipients of FFA on meeting their legal
obligation to take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to their programs by
persons with lmmrted English proficiency Please see
http //www hhs gov/ocr/c1v1lnghts/resources/laws/rev1sedlep html

The HHS Office for Crl Rights also provides guidance on complying with civil rights laws
enforced by HHS Please see
http //www hhs gov/ocr/c1v1lnghts/understanding/sect1on1557/1ndex html, and

18



http //www hhs gov/ocr/c1v1lrights/understanding/index html
Recipients of FFA also have specific legal obligations for serving qualified individuals wrth
disabilities Please see
http //www hhs gov/ocr/c1v1lrights/understanding/d1sab1hty/index html

Please contact the HHS Office for C1v1I Rights for more information about obligations and
prohibitions under federal civil rights laws at http //www hhs gov/ocr/offlce/about/rgn
hqaddresses html or call 1-800-368-1019 or TDD 1-800-537-7697 Also note that It Is an
HHS Departmental goal to ensure access to quality, culturally competent care, 1nclud1ng
long-term services and supports, for vulnerable populations

For further guidance on providing culturally and linguistically appropriate services, recipients
should review the National Standards for Culturally and LinguIst1cally Appropriate Services
In Health and Health Care at http //minorityhealth hhs gov/omh/browse asp?lvl=2&/vlid=53

Grantees must also comply with the adm1rnstrat1ve requirements outlined in 45 CFR Part
75 For more 1nformat1on see the SAMHSA website at http //www samhsa gov/grants/grants
management/pol1c1es-regulat1ons/regu1rements- principles

Grant funds cannot be used to supplant current funding of existing activities.
"Supplant" is defined as replacing funding of a recipient's existing program with
funds from a federal grant.

E. Funding Restrictions

Grant funds must be used for purposes supported by the program and may not be used to

• Pay for any lease beyond the proJect period

• Provide services to incarcerated populations (defined as those persons In Jail, prison,
detention fac1ht1es, or in custody where they are not free to move about In the
community)

• Pay for the purchase or construction of any building or structure to house any part of
the program (Applicants may request up to $75,000 for renovations and alterations
of existing facilities, If necessary and appropriate to the project )

• Pay for housing other than res1dent1al mental health and/or substance abuse
treatment

• Provide res1dentIal or outpatient treatment services when the facility has not yet
been acquired, sited, approved, and met all requirements for human habItat1on and
services provision (Expansion or enhancement of existing residential services Is
permissible )

• Provide inpatient treatment or hosprtal-based detoxification services Residential
services are not considered to be inpatient or hospital-based services

• Only allowable costs associated with the use of federal funds are permitted to fund
evidence-based practices (EBPs) Other sources of funds may be used for
unallowable costs (e g , meals, sporting events, entertainment) Other support Is

19



defined as funds or resources, whether federal, non-federal or inst1tut1onal, In direct
support of activities through fellowships, gifts, prizes, or in-kind contributions

• Make direct payments to 1nd1v1duals to induce them to enter prevention or treatment
services However, SAMHSA discretionary grant funds may be used for non-clinical
support services (eg,bus tokens, child care) designed to improve access to and
retention in prevention and treatment programs

• Make direct payments to ind1v1duals to encourage attendance and/or attainment of
prevention or treatment goals However, SAMHSA d1scret1onary grant funds may be
used for non-cash incentives of up to $30 to encourage attendance and/or
attainment of prevention or treatment goals when the incentives are built into the
program design and when the incentives are the minimum amount that Is deemed
necessary to meet program goals SAMHSA policy allows an ind1v1dual partIcIpant to
receive more than one incentive over the course of the program However, non-cash
incentives should be limited to the mm1mum number of times deemed necessary to
achieve program outcomes A grantee or treatment or prevention provider may also
provide up to $30 cash or equivalent (coupons, bus tokens, gifts, child care, and
vouchers) to individuals as incentives to participate in required data collection follow
up This amount may be paid for participation in each required Interview

• Meals are generally unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference
grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense 1n the FOA Grant funds may be
used for light snacks, not to exceed $2 50 per person

• Funds may not be used to distribute sterile needles or syringes for the hypodermic
Injection of any illegal drug

• Pay for pharmacologies for HIV antiretroviral therapy, sexually transmitted diseases
(STD)/sexually transmitted illnesses (STI), TB, and hepat1t1s Band C, or for
psychotropic drugs

• Outside ind1v1duals or companies that prepare or part1c1pate m the preparation of
grant applications may not be contractors on those grants per 45 CFR 75 328, which
addresses full and open compet1t1on

• CA will not accept a "research" md1rect cost rate The grantee must use the "other
sponsored program rate" or the lowest rate available

• Grant funds may not be used, directly or 1nd1rectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide
manJuana or treatment using mariJuana Treatment 1n this context includes the
treatment of op101d use disorder Grant funds also cannot be provided to any
mndvdual who or organization that provides or permits marijuana use for the
purposes of treating substance use or mental disorders See, e g,45 C F R §
75 300(a) (requmng HHS to "ensure that Federal funding Is expended mn full
accordance with US statutory requirements"), 21 USC §§ 812(c)(10) and 841
(prohibiting the possession, manufacture, sale, purchase or distribution of
manJuana) This proh1b1t1on does not apply to those providing such treatment mn the
context of clinical research permitted by the DEA and under an FDA-approved
Investigational new drug application where the article being evaluated rs marijuana
or a constituent thereof that 1s otherwise a banned controlled substance under

20



federal law
F. Subcontractors

Requirements herein stated apply to any sub-grants or sub-contractors The contracting
agency has primary responsibility to take constructive steps to ensure the compliance of its
subcontractors The contractors must inform the sub-grantees of the federal award
Information set forth herein and provide the sub-contractor the appropriate CFDA number

21



CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The undersigned certifies, to the best ofhrs or her knowledge and belief, that

(1) No Federal appropnated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalfof the undersigned, to any person for

mfluencing or attempting to mfluence an officer or employee ofany agency, a Member ofCongress, an officer or

employee of Congress, or an employee ofa Member ofCongress m connect1on with the awardmg of any Federal

Contract, the making of any Federal grant, the makmg ofany Federal loan, the entermg mto ofany cooperative

agreement, and the extens10n, contmuat10n, renewal, amendment, or mod1ficat10n ofany Federal Contract, grant, loan, or

cooperative agreement

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropnated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for mfluencmg or

attempting to mfluence an officer or employee ofany agency, a Member ofCongress, an officer or employee ofCongress,

or an employee of a Member ofCongress mn connection with thus Federal Contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement,

the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure ofLobbymg Act1v1t1es," m accordance with

its mstructions Disclosure ofLobbying Activities (Standard Form-LLL)

(3) The undersigned shall reqmre that the language of this certification be mcluded m the award documents for all

subawards at all tiers (mcludmg Subcontracts, subgrants, and Contracts under grants, loans and cooperative agreements)

and that all subrecip1ents shall certify and disclose accordingly

Thus certification 1s a mater1al representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when ths transact1on was made or

entered 1to. Submission of this certification 1s a prerequustte for making or entering into thus transact1on 1mposed by

Section 1352, title 31, US Code Any person who fails to file the requ1red certification shall be subject to a CIVIi penalty

of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure

S1gnature

Prmt Name

Agency

Date

Title

Strategc Prevent1on Framework -Partnerships for Success
Title ofProgram



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES
DIsion of Enterpnse Services F-01788 (05/2017)

STATEOFWISCONSIN

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

Federal Executive Order (E O ) 12549 Debarment' requires that all contractors receiving md1v1dual awards usmg Federal funds and all
subrec1p1ents certify that the organization and its principals are not debarred suspended proposed for debarment declared ineligible or voluntarily
excluded by any Federal department or agency from domg business with the Federal Government By s1gmng this document you certify that your
orgamzat1on and its principals are not debarred Failure to comply or attempts to edit this language may d1squahfy your bid Information on
debarment 1s available at the following websites www sam gov and https.//acquisit1on gov/far/index html (see section 52 209 6)

Your signature certifies that neither you nor your principal 1s presently debarred suspended proposed for debarment declared ineligible or voluntarily
excluded from part1c1pat1on 1n this transaction by any Federal department or agency

SIGNATURE - Official Author1zed to Sign Application

For (Name of Vendor)

Date Signed

DUNS Number (Dun & Bradstreet tf appltcable)



Strategic Prevention Framework - Partnerships for Success 2019
WorkPlan Template

Please use this template to document the strategies that you choose from the strategy menu On the next page please share details of your
planned acliv1t1es resources needed, etc If you need more seclions for each of the strategies you are proposmg simply copy and paste a
new page Once you have completed the work plan, please complete the budgetworkbook and submit both documents via email to
hlepper0icommumtyadvocates.net

PFS19 Project Goals

Goal l
Increase the capacity and mfrastructure oflocal coahtmns
m Milwaukee County to align and coordmate
comprehensive evidence-based strategies to reduce useof
alcohol manJuana, and e-c1garettes/tobacco among youth
ages 9-20

Goal 2
Decrease behavioral health dusparties that lead to
differences m access, service use and outcomes of
substance use m Milwaukee County

Goal 3
Increase capacity at the communtty level to boost
protecllve factors and mental health wellness

Soc1o-Ecologcal
Model Level

Individual

Community

Society

Strategy Menu
Grant Acliv1lies

Strategies

Botvm LufSkills Tramnmg

Youth Wellness Crrcle
Small Talks Campaign

Awareness Rmsmg
Youth Mental Health First Aid
Question Persuade - Refer Trammg
De-escalation Techmques Trammgs
Youth protective & nsk factor trammgs
Substance Use and Trauma Trammngs

Alcohol Age Compliance Checks
Retail Assessments
Mumc1pal Policy Assessment



Strategy Awareness Rasng
Socio Ecological Model Level Commumty

Planned Activates
II kPlease descnbe the steps that VO WI ta eto work on this strategv

Action step Timehne Person Responsible Potential Partners Needed
Increase utul1zatton of Small l alks branded matenals m Throughout FY5 Coordmator Parent Acton Group School
outreach efforts via social media and handouts available at Sector Reps Local Library
commumtv sites Busmess Sector Reps
Small Talks Campaign for Alcohol Awareness Month Apnl 2024 (Alcohol Coordmator Coahllon Action Groups
(D1stnbut1on of Small Talks branded Yard Signs City Awareness Month)
Newsletter msert, banner at youth baseball game rad1o
advertisement with Audacy etc)

Small Talks tabling at commumty events Throughout FY5 Coordinator Coalton Parent Groups, Local Sports
members Teams, youth-servmg Grouus

Small Talks survey- Learn Franklm parents atlttudes Apnl, 2024 Coordmator, Commumty School D1stnct, Parent
towards alcohol Assessment Act10n Group Orgamzaltons

Resources '\ceded
What other resources do you need to tackle this goal? Thmk about potential partnerships trammg and techmcal assistance, ood other resources beyond cost

• Mamntamn partnership wth local school dustr1ct
o School Soc1al Worker and District Wellness Committee

• TmmeStaffTime and Volunteer Time
o Stafftume devoted to tablmg opportrm1tles
o Volunteer tmme for coalition members (Parent Act10n Group pnmarily)

Data Collect1on
What mnformaton would be helpful for you as you work on this strategy? How would you measure the process? What does success look hke and how will :you
know when you ve aclueved 1t?

• lvhxed Quahta\Jve/Quant1tat1ve Survey on parental alcohol attitudes
• Metnc trackmg related to various social media posts

o People reached. Post Engagements Reactions Overall Impress1ons
Metnc trackmg from Rad10 advertisements

Planned Actrvrtes
llak k thPlease descnbe the steps that you w1 t e to wor on 1s strategy

Acton step Immel1ne Person Responsible Potential Partners Needed
Social Media postmgs across all platforms on subJect areas Ongomg Coordmator Parent Act10n Group
mcluded In SPF-PIS Workplan (underage drinking,
vamng/electromc cigarettes_ mar]Juana, youth mental



health promot10n) Social Media Platforms racebook Community Outreach Action
lnstagram, & YouTube Group Commumty

Assessment Action Group
Awareness Rausing va local receiptsP1ck & Save Ongomg Coordmator Local Busmess commumty
Receipts (contract w/ RTUI). Inclus1on of coalition advertisement about

underage drmnkmng on back of local Pick & Save
receipts mcludes QR code hnkmg back to website

Ongomg Coordmator Coal1t1on members
Commumty Tablmg Events Host S1tes
• Local Grocery Stores Busmess Owners
• Franklm Summer Concerts mn the Park PTO s
• Elementary School Faus

May 2024 Coordmator and Health Health Department
Help support Franklmn s Annual Spnng Commumty Department Pubhc Health Coalition members
Wellness Walk /Mental Health Resource Fair Spec1al1st Health Department Partners
• Provide support and offer mental health resources and
mncentuves for walk part1c1pants. Sunglasses for first l 00 part1c1pants. S1gnage and advertlsmg for the event

• Colored Powder for color run
Creat1on of a Billboard PSA designed by Volt1on Franklin January-June 2024 Coordmator Youth Sector Volunteers
Youth Students for alcohol orevent10n
Mental Health Awareness PSA collaborat10n with Summer2024 Coordmator Commumty
Community Alhance at Franklm Milky Way Dnve-In Alhance/Greendale Health
Move Theater, preview between movies and tabling Department Partners
opportunities

Summer 2024 Coordmator Youth Sector Volunteers and
Updated 'Know the I-acts' sheets--educat10nal handouts Parent Sector Volunteers
on top1cs such as vaping underage drnkmng maryuana,
and youth mental health for parents and youth m Franklm
commumtv
Discover Wellness planning Participation Event Summer2024 Coordmator Collaboratuon across multiple

orgam1zatons/Commumty
Advocates

Resources '\ceded
What other resources do you need to tackle this goal" Thmk about potential partnerships trarrung and techmcal assistance and other resources beyond cost

Mamtam partnership with local school d1stnct. commumty busmess partners local law enforcement, local F1re Department, etc

0 School Soc1al Worker and District Wellness Committee
o Board of Health Support

• Time - StaffTime and Volunteer
o Staff time devoted to tablmg opportumues



o Volunteer time for coalition members (Parent Acton Group pnmardy)
Data Collect1on
What mformat1on would be help fol for you as you work on tlus strategy? How would you measure the process? What does success look like and how will you
know when you've achreved 1t?
• !Vhxed Quahtal!ve/Quanlitat1ve Survey on commumty mental health attitudes at Wellness Walk & Mental Health Resource Far
• Metnc trackmg related to varwus social media posts

o People reached Post Engagements, Reactons Overall Impress1ons
• Metnc trackmg for grocery store receipt engagement
• Metre tracking from Drive-In movre theater adverusements



<;trategy Compliance Checks
Socio-Ecological Model Level Society

Planned Actlv1hes
Please descnbe the steps that you will take to work on this strategy

Strategy Youth Mental Health Frst Ad Queston Persuade Refer Tranungs
Soc1o-Ecological Model Level Community

Acton step Tunelme Person Responsible Potential Partners Needed
Connect with local PD to reestablish annual complance Ongomg (dependmg on PD Coordmator Local Law Enforcement
checks capacily)

Detenmne t1meline for compliance checks l month (Sprmg & Summer) Local Law Enforcement Youth Volunteers

Completion of compliance checks I round of summer checks Local LawEnforcement Youth Volunteers

Outreach to local elected officials (mayor, council After complelion ofchecks Coordmator Local Health Officer
members licensmg committee board of health etc) to
provide update of compliance check status

After update to elected Coordmator Coahlion membership
Release names of establishments that did not sell to mmors officials
(Soc1al med1a posts signed certificate for passmng check,
etc)

Resources ",ceded
What other resources do you need to tackle this goal? Thmk about potenlial partnerships trammg and techmcal assistance and other resources beyond cost
Mamtam partnership with local PD

o PD provides trammg for youth volunteers
o PD outreach to MATC Cnmmal Justice program to recruut volunteers

• Establish working relationship wIth l1censmng committee
o Present report of compliance checks to hcensmng committee upon completion

Data Collect1on
What information would be helpful for you as you work on thus strategy? How would you measure the process? What does success look like and how wll you
know when you ve achieved Jt?
Compliance Check pass/fal rate collected and compared to past compliance check results

o Track mformatuon on repeat failures
o Mamntaun (or improve) past 83 5% pass rate

Planned Actvut1es
Please descnbe the ste s that ou wll take to work on this strate

Acton ste Tmeline Person Res ons1ble Potentual Partners Needed



Partner with Commumty Advocates Pubhc Policy Institute Throughout FY5 Coordrnator Coalition members
to coordinate trammngs for mnterested coalition members Commumty Advocates PP!
Partner wth Franklmn School District to provide mn-person Throughout TY5 Coordrnator School D1stnct Parents
Youth Mental Health First Aid trammg for local parents

Resources '\eeded
What other resources do you need to tackle this goal? Thmk about potential partn erships trammg and techmcal assistance and other resources beyond cost

Contmued partnership with PP! Franklm School D1stnct to support trammgs

Data Collect10n
What mformat1on would be helpful for you as you work on this strategy? How would you measure the process? What does success look hke and how will you
know when you've achieved 1t?

Pre-Posttest mnformation (1f available) for mdrvduals registered for YMHFA
Post-trammng survey on how partucmpants hke the tramnmng

o Outcome evaluatuon

Actlon step Tmelune Person Responsible Potential Partners Needed
Retail assessment of Class A Alcohol retailers m the City Throughout FY5 Coordmator Youth and adult Coalition Volunteers
ofFranklm Coalitmn Volunteers Coal1tuon members Local

Busrnesses and Class A
Alcohol Retailers

Coordrnate 'Sticker Shock campaign with youth coahtmn Summer2024 Coordmator and Youth Coalition members local
members at local alcohol retailers pnor to summer break Coahtmn Members busmesses and Class A
ai1d graduatlon party season Alcohol retailers

Resources '\ceded
What other resources do you need to tackle this goal? Think about potential partnerships tramrng and techmcal assistance and other resources beyond cost

Contmued partnership wllh PP!, Alcohol Ad Hoc Committee Franklm Class A Alcohol Retailers

Data Collect10n

Strategy Retail Assessments
Soc1o-Ecological Model Level Society

What mformat10n would be helpful for you as you work on this strategy? How would you measure the process? What does success look like and how will you
know when you ve achieved 1t?

o Youth led-sticker shock calllpaign-also leads youth through how to complete a retail assessment ~\hde supervised be adult coaltuon volunteer



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution to Execute S. 116'H Street Trail Project
Change Order No. 5 to GRAEF-USA, INC. to

Prepare a Phase 2.5 Hazardous Materials Investigation for
$40,000

MTG. DATE
January 3, 2024

ITEM NO.
Aid. Dist. 6

BACKGROUND
On August 4, 2020, GRAEF-USA, Inc. was awarded a contract to design the "S. 116" Street Trail"
project. The intent to start construction in 2024 has been delayed because of review comments by
the various State and Federal agencies who must review the project. Unfortunately, the City was
recently notified that the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) will require
additional investigation and/or remediation within portions of the trail project.

ANALYSIS
WDNR is requiring that further hazardous materials investigation be performed to determine the
limits of potential arsenic contamination remnant from the former WI Electric Power Co. railroad
line. The investigation includes 25 additional soil samples from borings along the corridor, an
updated Site Investigation Work Plan, Materials Management Plan, and the preparation of a
Closure Report with WDNR.

The alternative to completing this Phase 2.5 Hazardous Materials Investigation would be to have
the potential contaminated soils removed from the site. The cost to have them removed and
properly disposed of at a licensed landfill is estimated to be $400,000.

OPTIONS
Approve or Deny the Change Order

FISCAL NOTE
Attached is the Change Order No. 5 from GRAEF for $40,000. The summary of the project costs
(Fund 46-0551-5833.5125) are as follows:

$150,000.00 Original Contract Fee
($ 15,000.00) Change Order No. 1 (reduction in fee)

$70,000.00 Change Order No. 2 (CMAQ)
$30,000.00 Change Order No. 3 (St. Martin of Tours)
$35,000.00 Change Order No. 4 (CMAQ)
$40,000.00 Change Order No. 5 (Phase 2.5 Investigation)

$310,000.00 New contract price after this Change Order

Note that 61 % of this is eligible for Park Impact Fees.

RECOMMENDATION
Authorize Resolution 2024- a resolution to execute a S. 116th Street Trail Project change
order No. 5 to GRAEF-USA, INC. to prepare a Phase 2.5 Hazardous Materials Investigation for
$40,000.

Engineering: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2024---

A RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE S. 116" STREET TRAIL PROJECT
CHANGE ORDER NO. 5 TO GRAEF-USA, INC. TO

PREPARE A PHASE 2.5 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS INVESTIGATION FOR $40,000

WHEREAS, GRAEF-USA, Inc. was awarded an engineering contract to provide
design services for the "S. 116 Street Trail" project; and

WHEREAS, the S. 116 Street Trail has been separated in two related, yet separate
projects; and

WHEREAS, the southern portion of the project along S. 116 Street was awarded a
Construction Mitigation & Air Compliance (CMAQ) grant that involves particular efforts to
comply with requirements set forth by the Wisconsin Department ofTransportation; and

WHEREAS, review agencies have required additional site investigation and efforts to
gain approval of permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City ofFranklin, that GRAEF-USA, Inc. be issued Change Order No. 5 for $40,000 to prepare
a Phase 2.5 Hazardous Materials Investigation and related efforts.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2024 by Alderman _

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council ofthe City ofFranklin
this day of,2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --



-GRAEF

The Avenue
275 West Wisconsin Avenue. Suite 300
Milwaukee, WI 53203
414 / 2591500
414 / 259 0037 fax
www.graef-usa.com

collaborate / formulate / innovate

December 18, 2023

Mr Glen E. Morrow, PE
Deputy Director of Public Works/ City Engineer
City Engineer/ Director of Public Works/ Utility Manager
City of Franklin
9229 W Loomis Rd.
Franklin, WI 53132

SUBJECT S. 116th Street Trail, Amendment No. 5
116 Street Trail Alignment

Dear Mr Morrow:

We are very pleased to provide you with this proposal to amend our professional services. When accepted,
this proposal will amend our Agreement dated August 9, 2020.

This proposal is for S. 116 Street Trail (Project). This proposal is subject to the Terms and Conditions per
the original agreement. It is our understanding that the nature of the additional work is additional Phase 2 Site
Assessment and WDNR coordinaiton.

For this Project, GRAEF proposes to provide the following Basic Services:

116 Street_Trail Project, Additional sub-surface investigation by others(TRC)

• Coordinate and discuss the Phase 2 findings with the City of Franklin, We-Energies Corporation
(WEC), and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR).

• Prepare and submit an email to the WDNR with an abbreviated Site Investigation Work Plan.
• Coordinate investigation with the City of Franklin, WEC, and GRAEF.
• Obtain site access and necessary permits, if any, to construct borings in the existing or proposed

right-of-way.We have assumed that no fees will be charged by the issuing entity for such permits.
• Complete investigation within the construction corridor including:

o Prepare and administer subcontracts for the investigation.
o Update the site-specific Health and Safety Plan for TRC on-site personnel.
o Contact Digger's Hotline for locating public utilities.
o Install up 25 hand-augured borings along the side slopes of the railroad corridor and

significant cut sections at locations indicated on the attached Proposed Boring Locations
Figure. The borings along the side slopes will be advanced to an approximate depth of
one-foot below ground surface (bgs). The borings within significant cut sections will be
advanced to depths corresponding with planned depth of excavation.

o Collect one soil sample from each boring from depth intervals that correspond to
construction activities and/or that have visual signs of contamination present. This is
anticipated to be the 0.5' to 1.0' interval.



-GRAEF collaborate / formulate / innovate

o Collect one soil sample from each boring from O' to 0.5' to be held at the laboratory for
potential analysis should the 0.5' to 1.0' sample interval indicates elevated arsenic
concentrations.

o Submit up to 25 soil samples for laboratory analyses of total arsenic. Samples will be
analyzed on a standard 10-day turnaround time.

o Submit up to 25 soil samples to be held at the laboratory for potential analysis pending
results from the 25 aforementioned samples. Up to 15 additional soil samples will be
laboratory-analyzed for total arsenic.

o Soil cuttings will be containerized if there are obvious signs of contamination. Segregate
cuttings based on similar fill material type and potential source. Containers will be stored
on site or at a City of Franklin property.

• Prepare one draft Site Investigation Report summarizing the results of the investigation.
• Review soil management options, including potential reuse areas within the project.
• Prepare an updated Materials Management Plan, including a Cap Maintenance Plan. A $300

residual soil contamination fee will be required by the WDNR and is included in this proposal.
• Discuss draft reports with the City of Franklin, WEC, and GRAEF.
• Prepare Closure Report Form 4400-202. A $1,050 Closure Review fee will be required by the

WDNR and is included in this proposal.
• Finalize reports.

It is our understanding that you will provide the following services, items and/or information:

• Access to the corridor for sub-surface field investigation.

You agree to compensate GRAEF for all additional Basic Services noted above on an hourly rate and direct
expense basis to an estimated additional maximum fee of $310,000.00. The breakdown of additional
services includes:

Phase 2.5 Hazardous Materials Investigation
GRAEF WDNR Coordination & Phase 2.5 Oversight
Total

$35,140.12
$4,859.88
$40,000.00

You agree to compensate GRAEF for any Additional Services with an additional fee to be negotiated at a
later date.

-2



-GRAEF collaborate / formulate / innovate

To accept this proposal for additional Basic Services, please sign and date and return one copy to us. Upon
receipt of an executed copy, GRAEF will commence work on the additional Basic Services for the Project.

Please call us at 414-266-9175 if you have any questions regarding this proposal.

Sincerely,

Graef-USA Inc.

out@t
Mary Beth Pettit, P.E.
Vice President, Project Manager

X:\ML\2020120200291\Pro ject Management\Contracts\AmendmentNo5\116thStreetTrail_Proposal Amendment Letter for Additional
Services_AmendmentNo5.docx

-3-



[Projecttame
[Client Name.
[at»

IS.116\hStreet
[Cty ot Frankdn
[12/1n23

I
I
I

Attachment A

S. 116th Street Trail, City of Franklin, Cost Summary

Se.0rootcoo«a
Estimated Hours Estimated Fee

DISCIPLINE SUMMARY
AmendmentNo. 2

Fee Change Fee Change

Amendment No. 5

Fee Change Reivsed Total Fee

Management
Survey4 ROW 226 $25,300

Design 804 $68,000

Storm Wale, 112 $10,900

Specs&Bidding '" $16,700

Meetings 100 $11,200

WeUands&Pumitting "' $10,400

GrantApplications
Environmental Documentation

Total Fee 1598 $150,000

Proposed Time & Materials Fee for the Design of S. 116th Streeet

Amendment No. 1

Amendment No. 2

Amendment No. 3

Amendment No. 4

20,300 I 800 $21,100 10,400 $31,500

(25,700) / '2,300 I 15,200 S57,500 10,800 $68,300 68,300 68,300 68,300

(5,900) $ 5,000 $5,000 $5,000 5,000 I 5,000 5,000

(5,700)$ 11,000 I 14,600 $75,800 $25,600 25,600 25,600 I 25,600

5,000 I 17,200 9,800 $27,000 $27,000 8,000 I JS,000 35,000 I 35,000

18,900 S 9,000 13,200 1'2,200 6,800 1'9,000 10,000 I 59,000 I 4,859.88 63,860 I 63,860

3,000 I 3,000 $3,000 $3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

14,200 $14,200 $14,200 17,000 31,200 35,1'0.12 I 46,340 66,340

-$15,00 S135,000 $70,000 $205,000 $30,000 $235,000 35,000 I 270,000 I 40,000 ' 310,000 ' 310,000

I5uTa Total

35TE 575E.00
S70z@ gag22g
TT@TE@ ELIE
5550 7gg



December 15, 2023

999 Fourier Dr. Ste. 101
Madison, WI 53717

T 608.826.3600
TRCcompa nies.com

Mary Beth Pettit
GRAEF
275 West Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 300
Milwaukee, WI 53203

Subject:. Proposal for Additional Subsurface Investigation and Reporting for the 116" Street Trail
City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
Wis DOT Project ID 2976-00-02
TRC Proposal No. 548490.9990.0000

Dear Mary Beth:

This letter presents TRC's proposal to assist GRAEF with the WDNR-required additional Subsurface Investigation
and associated reporting including a Site Investigation Work Plan, Site Investigation Report, Materials
Management Plan, Cap Maintenance Plan, and Closure Report for the 116th Street Trail in the City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. This proposal was developed in response to our discussion on December 14,
2023.

We are pleased to offer this assistance to GRAEF Please contact me, at 608-826-3628, if you would like to
discuss any aspect of our proposal.

Sincerely,

TRC

Daniel Haak, P.E.
Project Manager

Attachments: 1 Proposal
2. Work Authorization
3. Cost Breakout
4. Terms and Conditions

MSN/548490



GRAEF

Attachment 1
Proposal

December 2023 I Proposal No. 548490.9990
Madison, WI

MSN/548490

Phase 2 Investigation Addendum
116" Street Trail, City of Franklin

> TRcC



GRAEF Phase 2 Investigation Addendum
116"" Street Trail, City of Franklin

1.0 Scope of Services
TRC will perform the following services:

■ Coordinate and discuss the Phase 2 findings with Graef, the City of Franklin, WEC, and the WDNR.

■ Prepare and submit an email to the WDNR with an abbreviated Site Investigation Work Plan.

■ Coordinate investigation with the City of Franklin, WEC, and GRAEF

■ Obtain site access and necessary permits, if any, to construct borings in the existing or proposed right
of-way. We have assumed that no fees will be charged by the issuing entity for such permits.

■ Complete investigation within the construction corridor including:

Prepare and administer subcontracts for the investigation.

- Update the site-specific Health and Safety Plan for TRC on-site personnel.

- Contact Digger's Hotline for locating public utilities.

- Install up 25 hand-augured borings along the side slopes of the railroad corridor and significant cut
sections at locations indicated on the attached Proposed Boring Locations Figure. The borings
along the side slopes will be advanced to an approximate depth of one-foot below ground surface
(bgs). The borings within significant cut sections will be advanced to depths corresponding with
planned depth of excavation.

- Collect one soil sample from each boring from depth intervals that correspond to construction
activities and/or that have visual signs of contamination present. This is anticipated to be the 0.5' to
1.0' interval.

-- Collect one soil sample from each boring from 0' to 0.5' to be held at the laboratory for potential
analysis should the 0.5' to 1.0' sample interval indicates elevated arsenic concentrations.

- Submit up to 25 soil samples for laboratory analyses of total arsenic. Samples will be analyzed on a
standard 10-day turnaround time.

Submit up to 25 soil samples to be held at the laboratory for potential analysis pending results from
the 25 aforementioned samples. Up to 15 additional soil samples will be laboratory-analyzed for
total arsenic.

- Soil cuttings will be containerized if there are obvious signs of contamination. Segregate cuttings
based on similar fill material type and potential source. Containers will be stored on site or at a City
of Franklin property

■ Prepare one draft Site Investigation Report summarizing the results of the investigation.

■ Review soil management options, including potential reuse areas within the project.

■ Prepare an updated Materials Management Plan, including a Cap Maintenance Plan. A $300 residual
soil contamination fee will be required by the WDNR and is included in this proposal.

■ Discuss draft reports with the City of Franklin, WEC, and GRAEF

■ Prepare Closure Report Form 4400-202. A $1,050 Closure Review fee will be required by the WDNR
and is included in this proposal.

■ Finalize reports.

December 2023 I Proposal No. 548490.9990
Madison, WI

MSN/548490



GRAEF

2.0 Deliverables
TRC will provide GRAEF with the following deliverables:

■ Email with abbreviated Site Investigation Work Plan

■ Site Investigation Report

■ Materials Management Plan

■ Cap Maintenance Plan

■ Closure Report

3.0 Schedule

Phase 2 Investigation Addendum
116"" Street Trail, City of Franklin

TRC can begin work on the project immediately after receiving your notice to proceed.

4.0 Budget
TRC proposes to perform the Scope of Services on a time-and-materials basis in accordance with the
attached Cost Breakout (Attachment 3). The total project budget is $35,140.12. Should GRAEF request
TRC to make changes in the services or to perform additional services, TRC will prepare a Change Order for
GRAEF's acceptance prior to execution of the work. Additional services will also be performed in
accordance with the attached Cost Breakout.

4.1 Budget Assumptions
■ Two days for two TRC personnel is budgeted to complete the investigation field work.

■ No lane closures will be necessary to complete the proposed scope of work. Subcontracted traffic
control will not be required to complete borings in or adjacent to the traveled way.

■ Site access to private property, if required, will be granted through reasonable means such as access
letter(s) and telephone notification(s).

■ A closure report will be prepared based on closure-appropriate soil sample concentrations.

■ Project approval would happen prior to the ground being frozen due to winter temperatures. Should
project approval occur after the ground has frozen, the project would likely be postponed until the Spring
season.

4.2 COVID-19 Pandemic Considerations

TRC's proposal accounts for the currently known effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, but TRC cannot predict
any different effects or requirements, such as impacts due to future governmental orders, CDC guidelines, or
extended duration of the COVID-19 pandemic. TRC reserves the right to obtain relief from schedule or
deliverable requirements due to a force majeure event in the event of further impacts to the work due to
COVID-19, and reserves the right to receive compensation for increased PPE, social distancing, or other
requirements that impact TRC's costs.

4.3 Basis for Payment

TRC will submit invoices monthly in accordance with the rate schedule that is in effect when the work is
performed.

December 2023 I Proposal No. 548490.9990
Madison, WI

MSN/548490

2 >TC



GRAEF Phase 2 Investigation Addendum
116" Street Trail, City of Franklin

4.4 Terms of Contract

TRC proposes to perform the Scope of Services under the terms and conditions of the Proposal, the Work
Authorization, the Terms and Conditions, and Cost Breakout (collectively the "Agreement"). If this
Agreement is satisfactory to GRAEF, please sign in the required spaces on the Work Authorization and
return a fully executed copy to my attention and retain a signed copy of the Work Authorization for your
records. If GRAEF requires a Purchase Order for payment purposes, please submit the Purchase Order
referencing and incorporating this Agreement, including TRC's Proposal and Proposal Number in addition to
the signed Work Authorization.

December 2023 I Proposal No. 548490.9990
Madison, WI

MSN/548490

3 > TRcC



2

Previously Completed Soil Sample Locations

Proposed Soil Sample Locations

- z

Figure 2 - Soil Boring Location Map

••

--~--- -----~~~~~D
~

,

BEGINS. 116TH STREET TRAIL PHA E 1
STA67-t-94.00
Y = 238,126 i4
X = 563.038 25

-7

2

ENO . 116TH STREET TRAIL PHASE 1

i'RCJECi 1\0 2020-029: CCU"\-Y VILWAUl<EE ?ROJEC OVE=t.V' EW SHEEi
i M,\8 ,, ,20 2309 9 1DS3 8 u'itA so44 ., 20201_$0 w.3
-"o?J' M•,'( •JZ:i\l. :>O



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2024 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE CAPITAL
OUTLAY FUND TO CARRYFORWARD $234,700

OF UNUSED 2023 FIRE DEPARTMENT
BUILDING IMPROVEMENT

APPROPRIATIONS

MEETING DATE

JANUARY 3, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

Background

On December 19, 2023, the Council approved a request to carry forward $234,700 of the 2023 Capital Outlay
Fund to the 2024 Budget. On September 20, 2022, the Common Council authorized the Fire Department to accept
a Federal Emergency ManagementAgency (FEMA) Assistance to Firefighters Grant. This grant was appropriated
to replace the aging diesel exhaust source-capture systems at the City's three fire stations. The project timeline
provided for project completion to move into 2024.

Fiscal Note
The FEMA Grant will fund 90% of the $234,700 project, with a required local match of $21,336.37. This
project will not be completed in 2023 and the Common Council approved the funds be carried forward to the
2024 Budget.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion adopting an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2024-,an Ordinance Adopting the 2024 Annual
Budgets for the Capital Outlay Fund to carryforward $234,700 ofunused 2023 Fire Department Building
Improvement appropriations.

Roll Call Vote Required

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2024----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2024 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND TO

CARRYFORWARD $234,700 OF UNUSED 2023 FIRE DEPARTMENT BUILDING
IMPROVEMENT APPROPRIATIONS

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2024 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 28, 2023; and

WHEREAS, on September 20, 2022, the Common Council authorized the Fire Department
to accept a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Assistance to Firefighters Grant;
and

WHEREAS, the project associated with the FEMA grant is the replacement of aging diesel
exhaust source-capture systems at the City's three fire stations; and

WHEREAS, the Assistance to Firefighters Grant will fund 90% ofthe project; and

WHEREAS, on December 19, 2023, the Common Council authorized $234,700 of unused
2023 Fire Department Building Improvement appropriations be carried forward into the 2024
Annual Budget; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That a 2024 Capital Outlay Fund Budget be amended as follows:

Capital Outlay Fund
Fire Department Building Improvement Increase $234,700

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts ofordinances in contravention to this ordinance are hereby
repealed.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2024.



ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

AYES NOES ABSENT-- --



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2023 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL

FUND TO MOVE $11,578.38 OF
UNRESTRICTED CONTINGENCY

APPROPRIATIONS TO FIRE DEPARTMENT
AUTO MAINTENANCE APPROPRIATIONS

MEETING DATE

January 3, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND

On November 15, 2022, the Common Council adopted the 2023 Annual Budget. Towards the end of 2023, the
Fire Departments frontline paramedic ambulance developed a significant fluid leak. Also, the unit has had an
ongoing issue of a "Check Engine" light due to a misfire in one of the cylinders. This unit has served the Fire
Department for 8 years and has over 154,000 miles. Due to this major, year-end challenge, the Fire Department
requested authorization to use General Fund - Unrestricted Contingency appropriations to help offset this
expense. On December 19, 2023, the Common Council approved this emergency budget amendment to be
brought forth transferring Unrestricted Contingency appropriations to Fire Department Auto Maintenance
appropriations.

FISCAL NOTE

The Fire Department had requested and the Common Council approved on December 19, 2023 an emergency
budget amendment to be brought forth transferring $11,578.38 from the General Fund- Unrestricted
Contingency account to the Fire Department Auto Maintenance Account. The Unrestricted Contingency
account has $114,000 in available funding and will now have $102,421.62 remaining.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2024- an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance
Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget for the General Fund to move $11,578.38 of Unrestricted Contingency
appropriations to Fire Department Auto Maintenance appropriations.

Roll Call Vote Required.

Finance-DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2024---

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND TO MOVE $11,578.38 OF

UNRESTRICTED CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATIONS TO FIRE DEPARTMENT AUTO
MAINTENANCE APPROPRIATIONS

WHEREAS, on November 15, 2022, the Common Council adopted the 2023 Annual
Budget; and

WHEREAS, on December 19, 2023, the Common Council approved a budget amendment
be brought forward to move appropriations set forth; and

WHEREAS, towards the end of 2023, a Franklin Fire Department frontline paramedic
ambulance developed a significant fluid leak; and

WHEREAS, the same unit has an ongoing issue with the "Check Engine" light on due to
a misfire in one of the cylinders; and

WHEREAS, the same unit has serviced the Franklin Fire Department for 8 years and has
over 154,000 miles; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin as follows:

Section 1

General Fund
0199
0221

Contingency
Fire Department

Unrestricted Contingency
Auto Maintenance

Decrease
Increase

$11,578.38
$11,578.38

The 2023 Budget for the General Fund shall be amended as follows:

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are
hereby repealed.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of2024.



ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

AYES NOES-- ABSENT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2023 ANNUAL BUDGETS FORTHE CAPITAL

IMPROVEMENT FUND TO PROVIDE
ADDITIONAL $43,500 APPROPRIATIONS FOR
THE SCHOOL TRAFFIC LIGHT PROJECT

MEETING DATE
January 3, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND

There have historically been traffic concerns at S. 51 st Street and S. Preserve Way before and after school at the
Franklin High School. On November 7, 2023, the City of Franklin Common Council authorized Franklin staff
to take a draft Memorandum ofUnderstanding (MOU) between the City representatives and the Franklin Public
Schools representatives to the Board ofPublic Works and return to Common Council with a recommended
MOU. Also, the Common Council approved the raSmith, Inc. contract allowing the consultants to provide
Traffic Signal and Roadway Design Improvements Services for a Traffic Signal at S. 51 st Street and S. Preserve
Way since they are familiar with the Franklin High School traffic issues.

FISCAL NOTE

The Common Council approved the contract for the work done by raSmith, Inc. A budget amendment is
appropriate to provide additional appropriations to the 2023 Annual Budget School Traffic Light Account (46-
0331-5839 .9780) from the Capital Improvement Fund balance.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2024-__, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance
Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund to Provide Additional $43,500
Appropriations for the School Traffic Light Project.

Roll Call Vote Required.

Finance-DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2024

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND TO PROVIDE

ADDITIONAL $43,500 APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE SCHOOL TRAFFIC LIGHT
PROJECT

WHEREAS, on November 15, 2022, the Common Council adopted the 2023 Annual
Budget; and

WHEREAS, on November 7, 2023, the Common Council approved a budget amendment
be brought forward to provide additional appropriations set forth; and

WHEREAS, there have historically been traffic concerns at S. 51 st Street and S. Preserve
Way before and after school at the Franklin High School; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin and Franklin Public Schools representatives have been
working on a draft Memorandum ofUnderstanding concerning the traffic light project; and

WHEREAS, additional appropriations are needed to fund the initial stages of development
and design improvements for the traffic light project; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin as follows:

Section 1 The 2023 Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund shall be amended as follows:

Capital Improvement Fund
0331 Highway Traffic Signals Increase $43,500.00

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are
hereby repealed.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of,2024.



APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- --



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Authorize Promotion and Wage Adjustment for
Marion Eeks to Principal Planner
(Grade Level 9; Hourly Rate of $35)

- Account 01-0621-5111

MEETING DATE

1/3/2024

ITEM NUMBER

Marion Eeks, an Associate Planner for the City, has demonstrated exceptional skill and unwavering commitment
to the role of Planner over the past four years. Marion is grateful for the support received and appreciates the
promotion consideration.

Attached are relevant documents, including job descriptions for Marion's current role and the Principal Planner
position, for reference.

Marion has illustrated the ability to work independently and constructively, which is especially noteworthy as the
department operated without a dedicated planning manager for more than half of her tenure. This sustained
demonstration of expertise and skills has significantly contributed to the overall stability of the department.

Notably, Marion has continued to pursue professional development, obtaining certifications as a member of the
American Institute of Certified Planners (AICP) and National Charette Institute Certified Charette Planner and
Manager.

Currently, Marion is undertaking many responsibilities associated with the Principal Planner position. Examples
include drafting new ordinances and revising the UDO for development applications, contributing to the UDO
update, and supporting the Environmental and Parks Commissions in proposing changes to the UDO and
Municipal Code.

Marion's contributions to the Parkland Acquisition Study with Vandewalle and Associates are key
accomplishments. Overseeing the contract, working through drafts, coordinating data input, and leading the
adoption process through the Parks Commission up to Common Council showcase her comprehensive skills.

Beyond Marion's current responsibilities, she consistently goes above and beyond to support the department and
the City. She plays an instrumental part in maintaining team efficiency, providing valuable ideas and feedback,
training interns and administrative staff, and supporting the group in their work. Marion has also taken on special
projects like the "CAV" to assist the City in maintaining good standing with FEMA, involving behind-the-scenes
work with GIS to optimize BS & A for floodplain review and developing procedures to address floodplain
encroachments and resolve violations.

The Director of Administration believes that Marion is well-prepared for the additional responsibilities of a
Principal Planner, and Marion looks forward to contributing further to Franklin's success.

Fiscal Impact
The Planning Department has had unfilled positions within their department on and off for a few years, including
a Planning Manager currently. As a result, the department has a surplus in its full-time salary account (01-0621-
5111). The surplus is enough to cover the additional 2024 expense of $9,406. This amount is within the
department's budget for personnel expenses.

Marion's hourly rate is currently $32 33. This promotion would increase her hourly rate to $35 an hour, bringing
her to the bottom range of grade level 9.



COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Motion to authorize the promotion and subsequent increase in salary levels for Marion Eeks from Associate
Planner Grade Level 7 ($28.21/hr.) to Principal Planner Grade Level 9 ($35/hr.). The annual increase is estimated
at $5,553, with a yearly salary of $72,800.

DOA-KH



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Request Council Approval of an Updated Job
Description for the Administrative Assistant
Position, Formally the Secretary Position.

MEETING DATE
1/3/2024

ITEM NUMBER

H .14,

Background
The Franklin Clerk's Department has been updating old, outdated job descriptions. The Clerk's Secretary
position job description has not been updated since December 2008. Since the job description was 15 years old
and grossly outdated, I worked with staff and Human Resources to update the job description and salary level.

After careful consideration and in alignment with the evolving needs of the City and Clerk's Department, we
have made certain modifications to reflect better the responsibilities and expectations associated with this role.
Included is the old job description and a draft of the updated description and title change, effective immediately
upon the Common Council's approval.

The main reason for the changes is the ever-evolving list of duties created over time with changes in election
laws, changing practices within the City, and additional responsibilities in preparing for fairs/festivals
throughout the City. There will be little impact on the staff currently performing these job duties as she has
continually taken on the extra duties as they have arisen over time, including additional responsibilities while
there is an open position within the Department. The changes that have occurred are being reflected in the
updated job description and title change. We believe these updates will contribute to the continued success of
our team and the overall achievement of the City's goals.

Fiscal Impact
The additional department costs for 2024 with the increases (this position x 2 and the permit licensing specialist
position) are as follows:
Clerk- $22,410
Elections - $643
St. Martin's - $9
Civic Celebrations - $46

Requested Action
The Clerk's Department is requesting approval of the updated job description for an Administrative Assistant
position. This position would replace the Clerk's Secretary position. This position will also be used as a
recruitment tool for the open position within the Clerk's Department. It is important to note this request was
brought to the Personnel Committee on 12/18/2023 and was supported unanimously, along with a two-salary
level increase.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Request to Approve the updated Job Description for the Administrative Assistant Position, Formally the
Secretary Position.

CLERK - SR/DOA-KH



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Request Council Approval of an Updated Job
Description for the Permit Licensing Specialist
Position, Formally the Administrative Clerk

Position.

MEETING DATE
1/3/2024

ITEM NUMBER

Background
The Franklin Clerk's Department has been updating old, outdated job descriptions. The Administrative Clerk
position job description has not been updated since September 2002. Since the job description was 21 years old
and grossly outdated, I worked with staff and Human Resources to update the job description and salary level.

After careful consideration and in alignment with the evolving needs of the City and Clerk's Department, we
have made certain modifications to reflect better the responsibilities and expectations associated with this role.
Included is the old job description and a draft of the updated description and title change, effective immediately
upon approval by the Common Council.

The main reason for the changes is the ever-evolving list of duties created over time with changes in election
laws and changing practices within the city and at the state level about licensing and fairs/festivals. There will
be little impact on the staff currently performing these job duties as she has continually taken on the extra
responsibilities that have arisen over time. The changes that have occurred are being reflected in the updated
job description and title change.

We believe these updates will contribute to the continued success of our team and the overall achievement of
the City's goals.

Fiscal Impact
The additional department costs for 2024 with the increases (this position and the two administrative assistant
positions) are as follows:
Clerk - $22,410
Elections - $643
St. Martin's - $9
Civic Celebrations - $46

Requested Action
The Clerk's Department is requesting approval of the updated job description for a Permit Licensing Specialist
position. This position would replace the Administrative Clerk position. It is important to note this request was
brought to the Personnel Committee on 12/18/2023 and was supported unanimously, along with a two-salary
level increase.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED
Motion to Approve the updated Job Description for the Permit Licensing Specialist Position, formally the
Administrative Clerk Position.

CLERK - SR/DOA - KH



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Schedule Committee of the Whole
Meeting in January

MEETING DATE

ol-03)4
ITEM NUMBER

The Fire Department has requested a Committee of the Whole meeting to discuss the Fire
Apparatus Replacement and will give a presentation on this to the Common Council. The meeting
would be scheduled for Monday, January 8, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. or such other date as the Common
Council otherwise determines is appropriate.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Schedule a Committee of the Whole meeting for Monday, January 8, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. or such
other date as the Common Council otherwise determines is appropriate.

CITY CLERK



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Evaluation and Final Selection of Proposed Tax
Assessment Services. The Common Council may
enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. §
19.85(D)(e), Considering the Deliberating or

Negotiating the Purchasing of Public Properties, the
Investing of Public Funds, or Conducting Other

Specified Public Business, Whenever Competitive or
Bargaining Reasons Require a Closed Session.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

MEETING DATE
1/3/2024

ITEM NUMBER

A motion with regard to the Evaluation and Final Selection of Proposed Tax Assessment Services. The
Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(e), Considering the Deliberating or
Negotiating the Purchasing of Public Properties, the Investing of Public Funds, or Conducting Other Specified
Public Business, Whenever Competitive or Bargaining Reasons Require a Closed Session, and to reenter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

DOA - KH



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR
COMMON COUNCIL ACTION

Confirmation of the Appointment of Shirley Roberts as
Director of Clerk Services. The Common Council may
enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats. §19.85(l)(c)

and (f), to consider employment, promotion,
compensation, or performance evaluation data of a public

employee over which the Common Council has
jurisdiction or exercises responsibility and to consider
financial, social or personal histories of specific persons
which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have a
substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any

person referred to in such histories and may re-enter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters

discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

MEETING
DATE

01-03-24

ITEM
NUMBER

Mayor Nelson requests confirmation of Shirley Roberts as the City of Franklin Director of Clerk
Services. Additional information will be put at your place on January 3, 2024.

Shirley has been a dedicated employee with the City for approximately 10 plus years. She has been the
Deputy City Clerk for approximately 9 plus years.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Confirmation of the Appointment of Shirley Roberts as Director of Clerk Services The Common
Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats. §19.85(1)(c) and (f), to consider employment,
promotion, compensation, or performance evaluation data of a public employee over which the
Common Council has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility and to consider financial, social or
personal histories of specific persons which, ifdiscussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial
adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to in such histories and may re-enter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Motion to confirm Shirley Roberts as Director of Clerk Services.

ADMIN:KH



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

LICENSES AND

PERMITS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES

MEETING DATE
01/03/24

ITEM NUMBER

H.

See attached License Committee Meeting Minutes from the License Committee Meeting of
January, 3, 2024.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of the minutes of the License Committee Meeting of January 3, 2024.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



414-425-7500
License Committee Agenda*

Franklin City Hall Aldermen's Room
9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI

January 03, 2024 - 5:45 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. I Applicant Interviews & Decisions

Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Operator Kimberly Burdick
2023-2024 Irish Cottage
New

Operator Dao T Dang
2023-2024 St Martin of Tours
New

Operator Teresa Kerber
2023-2024 Walgreens #05459
New

Operator Son Thanh Le
2023-2024 St Martin of Tours
New

Operator Jan Matuszak
2023-2024 Tuckaway Country Club
New

Temporary Franklin Police Department
Entertainment & Person in Charge: PO Gary Wallace
Amusement Event: National Night Out - Crime Prevention

Community Event
Location: Franklin Public Library - 9151 W.
Loomis Rd.
Event Date: Monday, 8/5/2024

Temporary St. Martin of Tours Church
Entertainment & Person in Charge: Hoan Chau Nguyen
Amusement Event: Vietnamese Lunar New Year Celebration

Location: 7963 S. 116" St.
Event Date: Sunday, 2/11/2024

Temporary Class "B" St. Martin of Tours Church
Beer Retailer's Person in Charge: Hoan Chau Nguyen

Event: Vietnamese Lunar New Year Celebration
Location: 7963 S. 116St.
Event Date: Sunday, 2/11/2024



License Committee Agenda
Aldermen's Room
January 3, 2024

Police Incident Reports Review of Police Incident Reports from
from May 16, 2023 thru May 16, 2023 thru December 27, 2023 for
December 27, 2023 Class A and B Establishments.

3. Adjournment Time:

*Notice 1s given that a maJonty of the Common Council may attend this meetmg to gather mformat10n about an agenda item over which they have
decision-makmng responsbtltty Thus may constitute a meeting ofthe Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even

though the Common Council wall not take formal action at thus meeting.

Page 2 of2



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
01/03/2024

ITEM NUMBER
I

Attached are vouchers dated December 15, 2023 through December 28, 2023, Nos. 195434 through Nos.
195652 in the amount of$ 1,233,222.17. Also included in this listing are EFT's Nos. 5538 through EFT
Nos. 5552, Library vouchers totaling $ 29,673.33, Water Utility vouchers totaling $ 149,800.25 and
Property Tax Refunds in the amount of$ 6,097.92.

Early release disbursements dated December 15, 2023 through December 27, 2023 in the amount of
$792,355.49 are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing.
These payments have been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834.

Attached is a list of property tax disbursements, EFT No. 492 dated December 20, 2023 in the amount of
$6,097.92. This payment has been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and
2022-7834.

The net payroll dated December 29, 2023 is $ 482,098.32, previously estimated at$ 468,000. Payroll
deductions dated December 29, 2023 are $ 463,445.52, previously estimated at$ 457,000.

The estimated payroll for January 12, 2024 is $ 625,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments
of$ 300,000.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date ofDecember 28, 2023 in the amount of$ 1,233,222.17

• Payroll dated December 29, 2023 in the amount of$ 482,098.32 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 463,445.52, plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated January 12, 2024 in the amount of$ 625,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 300,000, plus City matching payments.

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept --- SB/CH


